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MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES OF
I_ANDSEA GREEN GROUP IN 2017
L EEB 01/ FE NS LR

2016 EREMEIHFIRZ

CORPORATE’S ACCOLADES OR AWARDS IN 2017

N
Lo

In January, Landsea gained the 2016 Model for Change in China
— China Green Enterprise Award.

On 16 March, Landsea Green Group was on the list of Top 100
China Real Estate Enterprises for the seventh consecutive year,
and gained the honour of Top 10 Operation Performance among
Top 100 Enterprises and 2017 Outstanding Enterprise for Real
Estate Operation with Chinese Characteristic.

On 17 March, Hangzhou Landsea Xihua Mansion and Nanjing
Landsea Xihua Mansion achieved WELL Building Certification,
among which Hangzhou Landsea Xihua Mansion was the only
fully certified residential project. Hangzhou Xihua Mansion also
achieved Grade 3 Green Building Certification.
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On 22 March, Landsea Green Group ranked 51st in 2017
China’s Top 500 Real Estate Developers, and ranked 3rd among
the Top 10 Innovation Capability. This is the seventh year in a
row for Landsea to enter the Top 100 list.

On 22 March, the first White List of Real Estate Green Supply
Chain was officially published and Landsea was on the list.

On 31 March, Landsea was invited to become the branch vice
chairman and council unit of 2017 Urban Regeneration Summit
(BHEHEEISRIGRBEEN) .

On 31 March, Landsea was licensed to be the internship base for
international MBA students of International Business School.

On 25 May, Landsea Green Group Co., Ltd. ranked 68th in 2017
China’s 100 Best Real Estate Listed Companies in terms of
Comprehensive Strengths and was the third fast-growing
enterprise.

fie 2077 Bewt 100 China Resl Estab

L L)
R S
20175 WG L AT R
Cortificate of 2017 China Top 100 Listed Real Estale Companies.

i E 7 ( 00106.HK )
2017 hE B~ EHARSESTH 1008

e hesety cortty Wi compony a1 :
o Listed Companies with S¥ongast Comprahansie Swangths 1
AP .

3A228 - BFHZEEES) [2017HHEH
E50058 85T | 5514 - RERS [ BI34E
1058 £=% - BEEAFEEFE-FABZ
BIFFE R -

3H22R - A EHESABHERARELN
BN BARERF o

3A31H  2017HAFZARBMENEE D
SRIERIEEEN -

S3AS31H ' BAFWIRE A BRK T i EkMBA
BIRRER T E Eit o

5A25H @ BASEEBERARILE 2017
FEEE EFHARSRAE 10058 15684
THESKREEE=ZLHNRIFRE -

e

BEHSeRERERAE / T LFFR




MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES OF
I_ANDSEA GREEN GROUP IN 2017
LG BEE 017 FE ANEDHELE
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On 10 June, Landsea Green Group gained the honour of 2017
China’s Top 10 Green Real Estate Enterprises, and ranked 2nd
for 2017 China’s Green Real Estate Enterprises (Residence) by
virtue of its gross floor area with Grade 3 Green Building
Certification.

On 24 July, Landsea Taihu Lake Green Building R&D Base was
awarded the medal of “Green Building R&D Demonstration
Base”.

On 8 August, Landsea won the 2017 China’s Green Real Estate
Developer Award.

On 9 September, Landsea’s design institutes won two Elite
Science and Technology Awards — Fully Fitted-Out Project
Award.
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In September, Landsea Property was recognised as 2017

China’s Characteristic Brand Enterprise for Property Service.

On 26 September, Landsea Green Group gained the honour of
2017 Valuable Real Estate Enterprise.

On 13 October, Landsea Green Group ranked 1st in the CITI
index for Real Estate Green Supply Chain.

In mid-October, Landsea Green Bud Act was awarded the
Outstanding Award for Case Study in Corporate Social
Responsibility in China of the 2nd « i Social Value Co-Creation.

On 26 October, Zhongshan Green County of Landsea became
the first licensed residential community of Golden Key
International Alliance in Nanjing.

On 8 December, Landsea Green Group gained the Value Co-
Creation Award of China Elite Programme organised by yicai.com.

In late December, Landsea won five science technology awards
in the 14th Elite Award, among which Landsea 8 Renmin Road
won the top prize — Gold Elite Award.
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MAJOR EVENTS AND ACCOLADES OF
L ANDSEA GREEN GROUP IN 2017
ARG EEE 017 FAELHHEE

MAJOR EVENTS IN 2017 2017 KR=3:2

e On 23 January, Landsea Group Co., Ltd. BAFFSERMNBMRAR) o 18238 SASEERMERAT(HASE
(“Landsea Group”) entered into a letter of intent for strategic BDEFAEE  BASHPRRIZHAEER
cooperation with Sumitomo Corporation and Japan SHIP BEEERZ  EhiBETRHBEEEEEITE
Company to announce the strategic cooperation in the field of BEE1E -

elderly care in China.

e On 22 February, Landsea Group was elected to be the 2nd o 2H22H - B EE SR P REEGEHSW

Standing Council Unit of Passive House Alliance of China PAERBRE_EFHEEEN - FFEE
Association of Building Energy Efficiency (F B2 L5 RE 17 & 1 B SEEERINTENREERE _EREXFE -

MBS E S — BB I5IEEEN), and Xie Yuanjian, the CTO of
Landsea Green Group, was elected to be the 2nd rotating

chairman.

. On 23 March, Taihu New City Development Group (AAFTHEE 3A238 KA EREEMHMAGEERSE
[R& &) entered into a strategic cooperation agreement with BIRE S 1EaE ©
Landsea Group.

e On 18 July, Landsea Corporate Social Responsibility Report o 78180 ' Bt ¥Ete ST REevmes
Release and Forum of Real Estate Green Supply Chain was HE M EERIEEIL RE MR -
successfully held in Beijing.

. On 3 August, Landsea Green Group signed a contract with e 8H3H  HEweEREHEEIEREERED
Fundo Holdings Group (I E 1% & B) to enter Xuzhou. BYE - EERM o

. On 11 August, Landsea Green Group entered into a strategic e SH11H  BSgeE ulE SihEREHMR
cooperation agreement with Heavy Truck Real Estate (&S E) E1EWZE - BIFEXNSHEERS -

i to formalise its presence in Jinan.
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On 16 August, Landsea Green Group entered into a formal
strategic cooperation agreement with Beijing Urban And Rural
Construction Group (1t Ik 87238 52 B).

On 8 September, Landsea Green Group signed a contract with
Wandu Real Estate (8 #BHIE) to enter Baohua with its Linglong
product line.

On 6 September, Landsea China ESG Development Index
(ESGDI) was officially announced.

On 13 October, Landsea participated in the 8th U.S. — China
Energy Efficiency Forum as the vice chairman unit of China
Association of Building Energy Efficiency (T BliEstistin e e
K &) and signed the U.S. — China Framework Agreement on
China Better Buildings Action ( [ EFR2ETH) | PRIERR
D))

On 26 October, Landsea Chang Qingteng Summer Palace
Ruicheng Community (BA#F & SEEERE - AR L), the
largest integrated service community for elderly care in Gulou
District, Nanjing, commenced operation.

On 13 November, Landsea entered into a strategic cooperation
agreement with Bank of East Asia (China).
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[ATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the business review for the year ended 31
December 2017 and the prospects for 2018 of Landsea Green Group
Co., Ltd. (“Landsea” or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”).

Chairman F/

ERARE

RAMARBSUBRRREERFTGZEEBRER QA
(TEARF I S [ARE]) - ERENMB AR (G A
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2017 IN REVIEW

In 2017, Landsea continued to execute the strategy of transformation
and upgrading as well as explore the business model 2.0, making
impressive progress in, among others, projects expansion, business
development, research, development and innovation of products,
financial management and innovation, establishment of organizational
culture and sustainable development.

OPERATING RESULTS

During the period under review, revenue of the Group amounted to
RMB6.214 billion, representing an increase of 28.3% as compared to
the corresponding period of last year. The development management
service fee income from independent third parties or cooperative
partners of approximately RMB752.6 million (2016: RMB549.1 million),
and the profit before tax for the asset-light services from independent
third parties or cooperative partners was approximately RMB410.9
million. In addition, Landsea Group and the Group recorded contracted
sales under “Landsea Products” (i.e. the products using Landsea’s
brand and technology or the projects operated by Landsea) of
approximately RMB32.053 billion and RMB28.411 billion, respectively,
with contracted gross floor areas of approximately 1.63 million square
meters and 1.41 million square meters, respectively, for the year ended
31 December 2017. The Group achieved a profit of RMB720.8 million,
representing an increase of 18.8% as compared with the
corresponding period of last year. The net core earnings amounted to
RMB932.2 million, representing a significant increase of 1.3 times as
compared with the previous year.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
BRI ES

MARKET INTERNATIONALISATION

Landsea Group entered the U.S. property market in 2013 in active
implementation of its strategy to expand in the international market.
China and the United States are the two largest economies, and
therefore the two largest property markets, of the world. The gap
between China and the United States in terms of economic and market
development cycles provides us with a hedge against the potential
risks and uncertainties of the Chinese property market, such that we
do not put all eggs in one basket. Hence, Landsea’s tapping of the
U.S. market is not an expedient measure. On the contrary, we are
committed to long-term development in the United States with the aim
of growing into a mainstay domestic property developer in the country
to capitalise on its stable political and commercial environments and its
well-operated property market.

THE BANYAN TREE SCHEME

To further address potential risks and uncertainties in China’s property
market, Landsea has made a major effort to drive business
diversification into other relevant sectors on top of its existing property
business. In this connection, the “Banyan Tree Scheme” has been
initiated to extend our business reach to, among others, long-term
rental apartment, elderly care services, Green Fir Investment, design,
property management services and decoration in a systematic manner
with a strong focus on environmental protection, as a transformed and
upgraded business model 2.0 has gradually come into shape, as
opposed to model 1.0 primarily focused on property development.
Effective strategic synergies have been formed between such new
businesses and the green property development business of Landsea,
such that complementary support has been afforded to both. Taking
advantage of the window for strategic development, Landsea has
made incessant efforts to develop expertise in green businesses in the
formation of a business model with core competitiveness.

In the past, Landsea was engaged in the provision of green
technology-based residential products only, while Landsea Green
Properties was committed to leading in green property development
and fulfilling the mission of building houses for people. Given our
profound strategic transformation, however, many of our non-property
businesses, new businesses and new business models do not fall
under the scope of green property, and Landsea Green Properties can
hardly be a full reflection of the wider prospects of Landsea’s future
development. Accordingly, the Board proposed to change the name of
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the Company from “Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd.” to “Landsea
Green Group Co., Ltd.” during late 2017 and early 2018. The proposed
change of name has reflected the strategic progression of Landsea,
which has transformed from a property developer focused on green
properties to an international provider of property development services
specialised in environmental protection and vertical business
integration. From there, we will strive to grow into a people-oriented
and green technology-focused property developer/operator and daily
service provider committed to the building of a green life regime for our
customers that covers the full life cycle, as it continues to lead and
guide in the pursuit of the green life.

PROJECTS EXPANSION

In 2017, Landsea took the lead to adopt the flat and highly-effective
“platform — commandos” model for projects expansion in order to
seize market opportunities and create new development advantages.

In 2017, the Group acquired a total of 34 projects, including 30
projects in the PRC, 4 projects in US, among which 32 projects were
under development for sale (including 19 projects in which the Group
held equity interest, 13 development management projects entrusted
by independent third parties), and 2 were properties held for rent. For
projects under development for sale, the Group recorded a saleable
GFA of approximately 3,401,000 square meters and expected saleable
value of approximately RMB53.7 billion, in which approximately
2,311,000 square meters in gross floor areas, saleable GFA of
approximately 1,617,000 square meters and expected saleable value
of approximately RMB28.4 billion secured for equity-held projects of
the Group. 90% of the projects were obtained through mergers and
acquisitions, entrusted development and in form of equity participation,
which has effectively prevented the occurrence of record-high land
prices.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

To follow the market trend, Landsea formed a business division for
long-term rental apartment to intensely develop the “Landsea
Apartment” ( BAFFE ), a long stay apartment. It has four product lines,
namely youth apartment, white collar apartment, boutique apartment
and serviced apartment. As at the end of 2017, Landsea Apartment
acquired a total of 55 projects with a total area of over 526,000 square
meters, which are available for securing 15,040 rooms in standard
specification of 35 square meters, and 2,010 rooms are currently in
operation.

BRAAAMEBRE Mt —RBEXEINEK
HRBRGE  EMERKBUAARE - BE DA
BREAZL  BIRAFFPITEBREZ2Ew AN
HRELERRANABRELHREERBER - 5l A&
BAEE -

HBHRE
T EFHFERBMRTEXERARY B
MEFE — RER] BN MERE - aEER

B -

ZE—EF AEBEBEEM4EER HREFEH
HESOME  EREH4[  RIERABEERYES
M(EAEEESEIEE19E  BLFE=HEH
FEEEIER 13E) RFA LAY 2E : FEH
ERYEIIE A EEELN B340 BFHK - 1BET
AEEENAARES7TE L EPAEEESE
HEBZHMELEEBNANIEFT K A&
AENABI161.7TBE K B AEEENAAR
¥o847T o NAKIEE BRABWHE THAZ RS
BREFAER - BtBe T BT -

BERBRE

IEFEmISZ S BB E S —tFRIREAAE S
X ANBEEREQAE — (38 ERS AT
FRBE  AELE BRABMBRBEALE - BE
TE—tFK - AHEHRERUEES5E - BEEE
52.6 B8R YOK - R B EEUE 15,040 f (3% 35 F K
ZEEBE O E) B2 EREME2,010/H -

e

BFEeEEARAT / ZE—+FFR




CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
BRI ES

In addition, Landsea Chang Qingteng, a business division under
Landsea Group, achieved impressive breakthrough in 2017. Landsea
Chang Qingteng has been committed to become the most outstanding
elderly care institution in China. As at the end of 2017, the business
operations have expanded to Shanghai, Hangzhou etc. with 1,170
beds in operation, and the integrated business model of elderly care
services spread in the residential areas, community and organizations
has been established. Landsea Chang Qingteng has implemented the
“neighborhood elderly care” model which is being considered to be
injected into the Group’s business.

The Group has continued to expand its investment in the U.S. real
estate property market upon gaining the first mover advantage to enter
into the U.S. market in 2013. As at the end of 2017, the U.S. business
of Landsea has 11 projects under development in prime locations
across East Coast and West Coast of the U.S. In particular, the entire
development stage of Kingswood has completed and the assets of the
U.S. business accounted for approximately 24.1% of the Group’s
assets.

RESEARCH, DEVELOPMENT AND INNOVATION OF
PRODUCTS

With the technology for green diversification products, Landsea has
combined its practical green architectural technology with local climate
conditions and economical approach to enhance the habitation value
in terms of health, comfort, energy efficiency and environmental
protection.

For research, development and application of products, Landsea has
vigorously facilitated the development of and training on “Le Mansion”
products as well as product standardization of “Hua Mansion”. “Le
Mansion” is the symbol of Landsea’s green product conforming to the
highest standards, its enormous flexibility may accommodate demands
from different customer groups and requirements of different climate
conditions. By upholding the principle of “best suited for local
circumstances and people based on local climate and customers’
need”, Landsea has launched research and development of
technological system for passive houses designed for cold weather in
Northern and Northwest China, creating value for our customers.

Landsea has endeavored to optimize research, development and
application by upgrading centralized fresh air ventilation units for the
projects delivered and carrying out research and development of the
effective protection system for PM2.5 removal. Also, Landsea has
successfully applited the Landsea Screen system which will play an
important role in the product series of Landsea.
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FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND INNOVATION

A sound financial management system and an appropriate innovative
strategy in finance are the keys to business success. Due to the
restrictions on real estate financing, Landsea has eagerly been
exploring financing channels and innovative financing solutions. The
Green Fir Investment has established four joint investment platform
with CITIC Capital, Cinda Investment, Pingan Real Estate, Zhongrong
Trust, respectively, to manage an asset size of over RMB6.0 billion in
total.

In 2017, Landsea was granted credit rating by international credit rating
agency for the first time, laying a foundation for a solid business
operation of the Group. Landsea has focused on planning and
management system for rolling cash flow and profit to dynamically set
a goal for its overall profit and cash flow in the management of the
strategic transformation. As such, financial resources and human
resources have been deployed in a most effective manner for strategic
planning.

ORGANIZATIONAL CULTURE ESTABLISHMENT

A good organizational culture is a foundation for long-term sustainable
development of a business. In 2017, Landsea upheld the philosophy of
“people-oriented” to reinforce the establishment of corporate culture by
consolidating training mechanism, such as cadre training group, setting
up and improving expansion of investment, project development as
well as an effective incentive mechanism for each segment of our
business. By promoting culture orientation, system protection and
incentive mechanism, we are committed to building a strong team with
vitality through redeployment of resources for headquarters and staff
optimization.

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

In 2017, Landsea released its first corporate social responsibility (CSR)
report. Landsea has attached importance to the balance of
environment, social and governance in order to substantiate the
concept of sustainable development. Landsea has initiated “green
supply chain in the real estate industry” (the “green supply chain”) with
other four institutions/enterprises since 2016, calling for industry peers
to participate the green supply chain for jointly protecting the
environment. As at the end of 2017, 89 real estate developers have
participated the green supply chain.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
BRI ES

For public welfare activities, Landsea continued to take the “Green Bud
Act”, setting up the anti-haze ventilation system in 12 kindergartens
located in 10 cities nationwide. Meanwhile, Landsea has organized the
“Green Seedling Support Scheme for Primary Schools” to fully support
the students of Landsea Wuquan Hope Primary School (% £/ &)
and Landsea La Bu Shi Wang Primary School ( frfif+ 2/ &),

OUTLOOK FOR 2018

MACRO-ECONOMIC LANDSCAPE

For the global economic outlook, in view of recovery in the U.S. and
Eurozone economies, the quantitative easing is expected to be slowly
unwound or ended. Rising interest rate and balance sheet shrinkage in
the U.S. are anticipated to drain the global liquidity. In China, the PRC
government will push forward with supply-side reform and support the
development of real economy, so as to prevent systemic financial risks
and it is expected funds will be further in shortage.

In 2018, control policies on the property market in China are expected
not to be relaxed, the market will remain stable in general with uneven
development and signs of cooling shown. In addition, the substance of
the policies on property market will move to the establishment of long-
term mechanism, providing new opportunities for leasing market.

RESPONSIVE MEASURES BY LANDSEA

Landsea has to stay strong and steady and undergo on-going
transformation and upgrading to conform such new circumstances,
expanding its own professional capacity. The Group is committed to
undergo profound transformation in 2018 to seize opportunities by
addressing challenges in face of the external circumstances.

The resolution for approving the change of the English name of the
Company from “Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd.” to “Landsea
Green Group Co., Ltd.” was duly passed by the Shareholders at the
special general meeting of the Company held on 28 February 2018.
The new company name reflects the new vision and mission of
Landsea, implying that Landsea is transforming and upgrading itself
from an international professional development service provider
committed to environmental protection and vertical business integration
to the development operator and the living service provider, with an
aim to offer our customers green living covering all-inclusive life cycle.
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In 2018, in addition to our core green property business, Landsea will
continue to develop the banyan tree scheme and various business
divisions in order, including long term rental apartment, Landsea Chang
Qingteng, financial services and US business, in hope of creating a
brand portfolio for its property development arm, decoration arm,
design institute arm and marketing arm which will be the new strategic
development pillars of Landsea beyond its real estate business. The
vertical development of diversified green business by Landsea will
progressively create a healthy, green and sustainable business
ecosystem targeting at the demands of customers.

In the course of our strategic transformation from “product-oriented” to
“customer-oriented”, “being responsible for customers” is an essential
element. Landsea has to put itself in customer shoes for delivery of
outstanding products to customers, creating value for them and
gaining recognition from the market.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Landsea would like to take the lead in transformation and upgrading,
welcoming to the new era with our newly transformed business model.
The continuous support from stakeholders and valuable contribution
from the dedicated staff at all levels are essential to the strong
development of the Group. On behalf of the Board, | would like to take
this opportunity to extend our heartfelt gratitude to our staff,
shareholders, investors and business associates for their support.

We will keep initial intent in mind and move forward with courage,

continuously creating value for our customers, staff, shareholders and
other stakeholders.

Tian Ming
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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BOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

=EEZENEAEEABREY

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tian Ming (“Mr. Tian”)

Aged 57, was appointed as the Chairman of the Board and an
executive Director on 31 July 2013. He is the chairman of the
nomination committee and the sustainable development supervision
committee, and a member of the remuneration committee of the
Company. He has a Master of Business Administration from China
Europe International Business School. Mr. Tian founded Landsea
Group Co. Ltd. (BAFFS BN BRRAR]) (‘Landsea”) in 2001. He is
now the largest shareholder and also the Chairman and President of
Landsea and its subsidiaries (“Landsea Group”). Mr. Tian has 17 years’
extensive experience in the fields of competitive strategy, operation
management and property investment and development. Committed
to “green development” and “sustainability”, Mr. Tian is an advocator of
environmental protection and pioneer of green technology and property
in the industry.

Mr. Tian initiated the “Green Supply Chain Act of Real Estate Industry”,
which aims to mitigate the negative effect of the industrial supply chain
on the environment by promoting green procurement and facilitating
the emission reduction of upstream suppliers.

Mr. Xiang Jiong (“Mr. Xiang”)

Aged 47, was appointed as an executive Director on 18 November
2018 and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 23 February
2014. Mr. Xiang is responsible for the overall operating management of
the Group. He holds a Bachelor’s degree of Engineering from Huagiao
University and a Master’s degree of Business Administration from
China Europe International Business School. Mr. Xiang joined Landsea
Group in 2003, has been the marketing manager, executive marketing
director, general manager of Zhejiang region and executive vice
president of Landsea Group. Mr. Xiang has over 20 years of working
experiences in real estate marketing and operations management.
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Ms. Shen Leying (“Ms. Shen”)

Aged 40, was appointed as an executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company on 31 July 2013 and was re-designated from
Chief Executive Officer to the Co-Chief Executive Officer of the
Company on 23 February 2014. Ms. Shen oversees the Group’s
financial management, investment and financing as well as capital
management functions, and also serves as the person-in-charge of the
business department of Green Fir Investment of the Company. She
obtained a Master’s degree of Media Communication from Shanghai
University. Ms. Shen joined Landsea Group in 2011 and served as the
GM of Marketing and Sales Center, GM of Nanjing property regional
company, VP-investment and financing, finance management, and
legal in Landsea Group. Before joining Landsea Group, Ms. Shen had
been working in Gallup Consulting for nine years and served in the
positions such as research and consulting director, member of the
Management Committee of Shanghai Office. Ms. Shen has more than
16 years’ experience in various areas including management
consulting, market and customer strategy, property development
management, investment and financing, financial management, etc.

Mr. Xie Yuanjian (“Mr. Xie”)

Aged 53, was appointed as an executive Director and the Chief
Technology Officer of the Company on 31 July 2013. He is a member
of the sustainable development supervision committee of the
Company. He has a Bachelor of Architecture from Logistical
Engineering University of PLA, Masters of Business Administration in
China Europe International Business School, and is a national first class
registered architect and senior engineer. Mr. Xie joined Landsea Group
in 2003 and served as the general manager of R&D and design
institute, general manager of product center, and vice president of
products in Landsea Group, where he had been in charge of the work
related to green architectural products and technology for a long time.
Mr. Xie has more than 20 years’ working experience in the fields of
architectural design and technology R&D.
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BOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEMEREEAERT

Ms. Zhou Qin (“Ms. Zhou”) BAgzt Azt

Aged 44, was appointed as a non-executive Director on 5 January IRE 4455 R-E—HE— AR B EZ T AIEHNTT
2015 and was re-designated as an executive Director on 15 August BERR -Z—~ENA+HERFAEARITES -
2016. She is also a member of the remuneration committee of the KINAKAGRHFMEEESKE - AL+ HMAKER
Company. Ms. Zhou is also the Chief Human Resource Officer of the HBFEANEZERE c AXTR _EE—FR2ENDE
Group. Ms. Zhou earned her Executive Master of Business BT &0 - WA K EMBATE T 847 - it A
Administration degree from China Europe International Business MR AZMBAE T2 - X+t EEHEXKH
School in 2001 and MBA degree from Nanjing University. Ms. Zhou %% - & MNBLE R A EEB T 22 FMRE - R —
has nearly 22 years’ experience in business development, investment ZEZ 5 > KHIIABFER > ©@HEFER - &N LE
and operation management in real estate. She joined Landsea Group BZEIE A FIETAKZIE - fd - At HEES
in 2002 and served as the regional general manager in multiple £ - BEPSEEGIIEBEE - B2 HT
locations, such as Nanjing, Suzhou and Shanghai. After that Ms. Zhou  BAiF E)SRHEAR] @ SBET TR A LIRS o

led Landsea Group’s global strategic deployment while serving as the

assistant to Chairman, general manager of Shanghai Landsea

Architecture Technology Co., Ltd., and general manager of Landsea

Architecture Design Institute.

Currently, Ms. Zhou is the vice president of Landsea Group and B EAXtTHEIHSEEREH, T E/EBEIE
responsible for overseas business exploration. She played the ¥R - th2 22 MW EE TAFEEERER
fundamental role to facilitate Landsea Group’s US business WHEZEMEE BT —WNE+-_A—H#E - wH
development and investment. Since 1 December 2014, she served on  (FRRER AR EEWEFEE SR EEZESEE -
the board of directors in a Landsea Group’s company in U.S.A. and

also the chairman of its investment committee.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FHITES

Mr. Zhou Yimin (“Mr. Zhou”) PHEREE(PEED

Aged 59, was appointed as a non-executive Director on 17 November IRE598  R—E—RAE+— A+ +REZEAIE
2015. He is a member of each of the audit committee and nomination FHITEE - ORI AR R AIEZLZESNIEEXEE
committee of the Company. He is the chairman and chief executive &8 - AT EZABEBAER AT ZFERTT
officer of Pingan Real Estate Capital Limited. Mr. Zhou joined Ping An  B## - EER —_ZE—ZFEMMATE L RE
Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd. in early 2010 after spending (E£BE)RH AR AR AT EERERKAME
more than 12 years in Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, one of the RH&®Er —  BIARESHTEEMERESR
largest global real estate developers headquartered in Hong Kong. AaTEBAE+ —F - SFAERNIEEMELRRESR
During his time at Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, Mr. Zhou was the ~ [RA FM{ERLHART - EEEFEEMERRE (hE) AR
director and general manager of Sun Hung Kai Real Estate RQARIZEERERKE BEEETEMBECEHE
Development (China) Limited, overseeing its real estate business inthe  EK N+ FEHBRIEEAE ZEEER - NIBEE
China market and the significant growth in its land bank and investment i ZEZE AR A TR 2 AT - WL E AT B
portfolio. Prior to his term at Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, Mr. 2 (B&n) B8R A (A [ IMEERAR A7)
Zhou was the vice chairman of Chu Kong Shipping Enterprises (Group) BIEJE @ ZZ 2 alR— N NEFR IR EE AT £ -
Co., Ltd. (formerly known as ‘Chu Kong Shipping Development Co., 8845t A IR(E/ERE AT E ey B B IR (£ E) AR A
Ltd’), which was successfully listed on the Stock Exchange in 1997. & (R =55 : 884) HIIELNITES - PLAEBER
Mr. Zhou is currently a non-executive director of CIFI Holdings (Group) £ B A& « A8 o

Co. Ltd. (Stock Code: 884), which is listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr.

. Zhou graduated from Fudan University with a doctorate degree.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Xu Xiaonian (“Mr. Xu”)

Aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
31 July 2013. He is a member of each of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee, the nomination committee and the
sustainable development supervision committee of the Company. He
obtained a PHD of Economics from University of California Davis in
1991. He was the managing director and head of research department
in China International Capital Corporation Limited, and senior
economist of Merrill Lynch (Asia Pacific) and consultant of World Bank.
Currently, Mr. Xu serves as the professor of Economics and Finance in
China Europe International Business School and his research areas
include macroeconomics, finance, financial institutions and markets,
transition economics and China’s economic reforms. Mr. Xu is a
famous Chinese economist and was granted the highest award of
economics study in China, the “Sun Yefang Economic Science Award”.
Mr. Xu has more than 32 years’ experience in economics analysis.

Mr. Ding Yuan (“Mr. Ding”)

Aged 48, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
31 July 2013. He is the chairman of the audit committee and a member
of each of the nomination committee and the remuneration committee
of the Company. He has a PHD of Management Science from College
of Business Administration, Bordeaux IV University in France. Mr. Ding
used to serve as a tenured professor of Accounting and Management
Control in HEC School of Management in France. Currently, he is the
Vice President and Dean, Cathay Capital Chair in Accounting in China
Europe International Business School and the associate editor of
European Accounting Review. Mr. Ding is an independent non-
executive director of each of Red Star Macalline Group Corporation
Ltd. and Man Wah Holdings Limited, the shares the companies are
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, and has been an
independent director of TCL Corporation (TCLE B D AR A E]), an
A-share listed company from June 2008 to August 2014 as well as an
independent director of Magindustries Corp., a TSX listed company in
Canada from July 2011 to June 2015. Mr. Ding has more than 20
years’ experience in teaching and studying financial accounting,
financial statement analysis, corporate governance and M&As.
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BOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFhEREEANEMT

Mr. Lee Kwan Hung (“Mr. Lee”)

Aged 52, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
31 July 2013. He is a member of each of the audit committee and the
nomination committee of the Company, and the chairman of the
remuneration committee of the Company. He received his Bachelor of
Laws (Honors) and Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from the University
of Hong Kong in 1988 and 1989 respectively. He was then admitted as
a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1991 and in England and Wales in 1997,
and is currently a practicing lawyer. Mr. Lee is currently a consultant of
Howse Williams Bowers. He was a senior manager of the Listing
Division of the Stock Exchange from 1993 to 1994. Mr. Lee is
experienced in IPOs and corporate financing, including assisting the
listing of Country Garden Holdings Company Limited in Hong Kong.
Mr. Lee is currently an independent non-executive director of each of
Embry Holdings Limited, NetDragon Websoft Holdings Limited, Asia
Cassava Resources Holdings Limited, Newton Resources Limited,
Tenfu (Cayman) Holdings Company Limited, China BlueChemical Ltd.,
China Goldjoy Group Limited, FSE Engineering Holdings Limited, Red
Star Macalline Group Corporation Ltd. and Ten Pao Group Holdings
Limited, the shares of these companies are currently listed on the
Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-executive director of
each of Vestate Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as ‘Walker
Group Holdings Limited’) and Futong Technology Development
Holdings Limited, until his resignation on 1 April 2016 and 18
November 2017 respectively, the shares of these companies are listed
on the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lu Baoxiang (“Mr. Lu”)

Aged 43, was appointed as Vice President of the Company and
general manager of the Group’s property development company in
Nanjing on 17 November 2015. He graduated from the Philosophy
Department of Nanjing University specialising in Management and
Decision. Mr. Lu joined Landsea Group in 2004. He served as director
of real estate marketing of Landsea, deputy general manager of
Nanjing Real Estate Company, general manager of market customer
service center, general manager of property company, general
manager of human resource and administrative center, vice president
of Landsea Group. Mr. Lu has over 15 years of working experiences in
marketing of real estate, human resource management, property
management, operation, development and management of real estate.
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Mr. Wang Lei (“Mr. Wang”)

Aged 40, was appointed as Vice President and Chief Operating Officer
of Lansea Group on 10 July 2017. Mr. Wong has served as the general
manager of the Shanghai Real Estate Company of the Group. He
graduated from Tongji University with specialisation in Architectural
Engineering, and is now studying an EMBA programme in China
Europe International Business School. He has joined several enterprises
including Jingrui Properties (Group) Limited and China Overseas Land
& Investment Limited, and served as the regional president and project
manager. He has extensive experience in real estate industry,
construction management, corporate organization and governance as
well as project operation and management.

Mr. Jiang Chao (“Mr. Jiang”)

Aged 40, was appointed as assistant to president and Chief Investment
Officer of Lansea Group on 12 January 2017, and is also in charge of
the strategic expansion centre. He graduated from Shenyang Jianzhu
University with specialisation in Real Estate Management. He has
joined several enterprises including Longfor Group Holdings Limited
and China Vanke Co., Ltd., and served as the person-in-charge of the
investment centre and manager of the development department for
regional projects of the group. He has extensive experience in real
estate industry, land acquisition as well as project acquisitions and
mergers.

Mr. Ding Feng (“Mr. Ding”)

Aged 39, was appointed as general manager of Hangzhou Real Estate
Company on 24 October 2016. He graduated from Nanjing University
with EMBA. Mr. Ding joined Landsea Group in 2006 and has served as
the manager of investment department for land projects of Landsea
Group, the deputy managing director of Landsea Chengdu Real Estate
Company, the general manager of the strategic expansion centre of
Landsea Group and the acting general manager of the operation and
management centre of Landsea Group. Mr. Ding has extensive working
experience in land investment and M&As as well as property
development, operation and management.
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BOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFhEREEANEMT

Mr. John Ho (“Mr. Ho”)

Aged 36, was appointed as the Vice President and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group in the United States on 18 March 2016. Mr. Ho
graduated from USC Marshall School of Business and obtained
bachelor degree in Business Administration. He worked in various
international renowned real estate investment management and
advisory firms including Colliers International, Jones Lang LaSalle. Mr.
Ho served as a director, a vice president and the head of PRC
business division in Jones Lang LaSalle, and was responsible for the
provision of a wide range of services, such as acquisition, consultation,
leasing and comprehensive investment management of real estate, to
the PRC enterprises focusing on the expansion into the international
market.

Mr. Zhou Qing (“Mr. Q Zhou”)

Aged 52, was appointed as the Vice President and the chairman of the
Beijing company of the Group on 18 March 2016. He graduated from
China Europe International Business School and obtained master
degree in Business Administration. Mr. Q Zhou has served as the
Secretary of the General Office of the Ministry of Construction, senior
management of Pan-China Group, the chairman of Beijing Pan-China
Gauging Project Consultant Co., Ltd. (bt U2 ER & TIRZAER A7),
an independent director of China Zhonghua Geotechnical Engineering
Co., Ltd. (FIEE L TEEHBR A F]). Mr. Q Zhou currently serves in
various non-government organizations such as a vice president of
Beijing Zhongguancun Bairenhui Angel Investments Alliance* (1t 2 8
NBE AGXFERER ), a deputy director of China District Energy
Association of China Association of Building Energy Efficiency* (1 Bl
HEREHLRIGEFEEELZE ), and is familiar with the real estate
industry policies.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Yuen Ying, Stella (“Ms. Chan”)

Ms. Chan was appointed as company secretary and authorized
representative of the Company on 1 November 2006. Ms. Chan is a
fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Company Secretaries. She is also a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. Ms. Chan has over 20 years’ experience in
handling listed company secretarial matters.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS
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OVERALL PERFORMANCE

During the year of 2017, the Group continued to deepen the
transformation and upgraded strategy of “product-differentiation,
asset-light transformation and market-internationalisation”, stayed true
to put green products differentiation into practice, and actively explored
and made an attempt to business mode 2.0 for property development.
Based on our real estate business, the Group will vigorously develop
project development and management service business while put great
emphasis in promoting the development of related diversified
businesses. With the initiation of “banyan tree scheme”, the Group
expands its business segment to, among others, long-term rental
apartments, elderly care services, green financial services, design
institute, property and decoration, hence the core value of
environmental protection has gradually turning out and the Group has
achieved remarkable results.

After four years of nurturing by Landsea Group, the Group has
substantially enhanced its main capability in property development
business and the provision of development and management services,
which has gained market recognition. The revenue of the Group for
2017 amounted to approximately RMB6,214.0 million (2016:
RMB4,845.0 million), representing an increase of approximately 28.3%
as compared with that for the previous year. The total profit of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB720.8 million, representing an
increase of 18.8% as compared with that for the previous year. The net
core earnings (i.e. net profit excluded after tax exchange gain/loss and
change of fair value on investment property) amounted to
approximately RMB932.2 million (2016: RMB401.9 million),
representing a significant increase of 1.3 times as compared with that
for the previous year. Net core earnings margin was 15% (2016: 8.3%).
The Group has been making good progress in the segment of
development and management services. In 2017, the Group had
entered into projects in relation to property development and
management services with independent third parties or cooperating
parties, with contract sum of approximately RMB1,407.2 million (2016:
RMB1,259.3 million), whereas the revenue recognised from the
provision of development and management services amounted to
approximately RMB752.6 million (2016: RMB549.1 million),
representing an increase of 37.1% as compared with the
corresponding period of the previous year. For the year of 2017, the
Group achieved fruitful results, reporting segment profit before income
tax of approximately RMB410.9 million (2016: RMB340.2 million)
arising from the asset-light services projects with independent third
parties or cooperating parties.
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For the year of 2017, “Landsea Products” (referring to development
operation projects entirely managed by Landsea Group, including
equity-held projects and projects engaged in entrusted development
management) recorded contracted sales of RMB32,053,283,000
(including RMB28,411,048,000 from the Group and a small amount of
remaining projects entrusted by Landsea Group) with contracted gross
floor areas of approximately 1,629,394 square meters (including
1,406,466 square meters from the Group and a small amount of
remaining projects entrusted by Landsea Group).

Owing to the strategic development and upgrading, the Group is
actively expanding its operations of light-asset management and
operation services, from the traditional property development to the
development of various kinds of green operation business, including
long-term rental apartment, elderly care services, green financial
services, green architectural design, property services and decoration.
The Group hence changed its name to “Landsea Green Group Co.,
Ltd.”, as the former name “Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd.” can no
longer match with our diversified businesses. The management
considers the new company name can better reflect the new business
strategies of the Company, which aligns businesses of green
development and services (i.e. vertical business integration).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS
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BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

In 2017, the Group secured a total of 34 projects in Shanghai, Nanjing,
Hangzhou, Chengdu, Xi’an, Chongqging and the US respectively, of
which 30 were in the PRC and 4 were in the US, among which 32
projects were under development for sale (including 19 projects in
which the Group held equity interests and 13 development
management projects by entrusted independent third parties) and 2
were properties held for rent, which is a satisfactory result in project
expansion in view of the unfavourable market conditions. For projects
under development for sale, the Group recorded a saleable GFA of
approximately 3,401,298 square meters and expected saleable value
of approximately RMB53.7 billion, in which approximately 2,311,568
square meters in gross floor areas, saleable GFA of approximately
1,617,087 square meters and expected saleable value of
approximately RMB28.4 billion secured for equity-held projects of the
Group, with gross floor areas of approximately 1,326,771 square
meters, saleable GFA of approximately 851,984 square meters and
expected saleable value of approximately RMB14.1 billion attributable
to the Group and gross floor areas of approximately 2,366,765 square
meters, saleable GFA of approximately 1,784,211 square meters and
expected saleable value of approximately RMB25.3 billion secured for
entrusted development management projects. 90% of the projects
were obtained through mergers and acquisitions, entrusted
development and in form of share, which has effectively prevented the
occurrence of record-high land prices.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had project reserves with saleable
GFA of approximately 6,352,998 square meters and expected saleable
value of approximately RMB117.9 billion, in which total gross floor
areas of approximately 8,380,791 square meters, saleable GFA of
approximately 3,606,959 square meters and saleable value of
approximately RMB68.4 billion secured for the equity-held projects,
with saleable GFA of approximately 1,446,646 square meters and
saleable value of approximately RMB29.2 billion attributable to the
Group. The Group had also acquired 26 development management
projects by entrusted independent third parties, with saleable area of
approximately 2,746,039 square meters and expected sales amount of
approximately RMB49.5 billion. For the properties held for rent, the
Group recorded an increase of total gross floor areas of approximately
57,723 square meters, in which approximately 34,575 square meters
attributable the Group.
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The long-term rental apartment market is considered to be a
sustainable business by the industry as a result of favourable policies
and stepping into the era of inventory houses in the real estate market
of certain first-tier and second-tier major cities. The transactions of
second-hand housing in Beijing and Shanghai are far more than those
of commodity housing. Young buyers in first-tier cities face tremendous
pressure of realising their dreams of buying house in a short period of
time. It is contemplated that more and more people will tend to rent
houses in order to solve their housing issues, resulting in gradual
increase in the rentals of the long-term rental apartment market in
future. In 2017, the Group has attached great weight to develop the
long-term rental apartment brand “Landsea Apartment” ( B & &)
which has the product lines of youth apartment, white collar apartment,
boutique apartment and service apartment. “Landsea Apartment”
project was thoughtfully planned by the end of 2016 and fully
implemented in February after the Spring Festival in 2017, currently
having 55 projects covering a total of 11 cities, namely Beijing,
Shanghai, Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Hangzhou, Nanjing, Suzhou,
Chengdu, Xi’an, Ningbo and Wuxi with a total area of more than
526,000 square meters, representing an expansion of 15,040
apartments. The project will be expanded into other major first and
second-tier cities in the future. For the year ended 31 December 2017,
“Landsea Apartment” with 2,010 rooms in operation contributed
revenue of approximately RMB8,282,000 to the Group. The long-term
rental apartment business is expected to contribute considerable
revenue to the Group in the future.

“Landsea Chang Qingteng” is Landsea’s another development focus
following the long-term rental apartment project. The Group intends to
establish Landsea Chang Qingteng as the best elderly care services
centers in the PRC. Landsea Group initiated its updated green strategy
in 2012, part of which is elderly care. Since 2012, Landsea Group has
studied the projects operated domestically and abroad and established
its presence across the country based on its experience in Nanjing.
Since 2018, the business operations have expanded to, while carried
out by the Group as the main entity, certain number of first-tier cities,
such as Beijing, Shanghai, Hangzhou, Guangzhou and Suzhou, and
such existing projects acquired as of the end of 2017 are being
considered to be injected into the Group’s business though no injection
agreement has been signed.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS
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The Group officially established a real estate company in Xi’an in May
2017, and acquired a project in Xi’an in June 2017. With the Group
tapping into Xi'an, a “green” wave may sweep into the property market
of West Avenue ( FAEFAE ).

Further, the business sector and architectural design companies in the
US were injected into the Group in 20186. Its ancillary businesses
related to green properties were strategically consolidated, aiming at
developing a listed platform with vertically-integrated business focusing
on green property development and green services to drive the growth
of the Group’s sales revenue in the global market. In particular, the
assets of the US business accounted for approximately 24.1% of the
Group’s assets as at 31 December 2017. For the year of 2017, the
total contracted sales of the US projects amounted to approximately
RMB3,372,634,000. The revenue from sale of properties of
approximately RMB193,944,000 and sales areas of approximately
6,638 square meters were recognized by the US business of the
Group for the year of 2017. In addition, the Group disposed of the land
parcels with total land areas of 290,301 square meters from The Vale,
Ironridge and Sanctuary in 2017 and sales areas of approximately
219,255 square meter were recognized. The total selling price of those
three land parcels was approximately RMB1,730,143,000, contributing
a revenue of approximately RMB1,136,901,000 for the year ended 31
December 2017. The business strategy of the Group for market
internationalisation began to yield positive results.
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OPERATION INCOME AND GROSS PROFIT

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s revenue was
mainly derived from development and management services income of
approximately RMB753,225,000, income from sale of properties of
approximately RMB5,425,876,000 and rental and property
management fee income of approximately RMB34,830,000, which in
aggregate was approximately RMB6,213,931,000, representing an
increase of approximately 28.3% over the total revenue for the year of
2016. The increase in revenue was mainly due to an increase of
approximately 29.3% in revenue from sale of properties as compared
with that for the previous year. Despite an increase of approximately
20.9% in total development and management services income, the
income from development and management services from independent
third parties or cooperating parties increased by 37.1% to
approximately RMB752,613,000 as compared with that for the
corresponding period of last year. As a result of the completion of most
of the projects for which property development and management
services had been provided to Landsea Group by the Company for
more than three years, the income derived from the development and
management services of the Group to Landsea Group was
approximately RMB612,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017 as
compared with that of approximately RMB74,045,000 for the previous
year. With the Group’s operation strategy of “asset-light”, the number
of entrusted development management contracts entered into with
independent third parties or cooperating parties also increased.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the gross profit of the Group
was approximately RMB1,523,521,000, representing an increase of
approximately 100.8% as compared with the gross profit for the year
of 2016. The overall gross profit margin of the Group was
approximately 24.5% (2016: approximately 15.7%), representing an
increase of 8.8% as compared with that of 2016. The gross profit
margin of joint ventures and associates was 22.2% (2016: 17.8%).

KEWRAREF

HEZ—+tF+-_A=+—BILtEE K&£BZ
BHEWATERERFABRLEERBEBAHDARE
753225000 M EHEE B AN AR E
5,425,876,0007C * A RS RMEETEBEWALIA
R #34,830,0007T - & # 4 A R #6,213,931,000
T BT NFEERA EFAL28.3% 0 EEW
AENEEZHRWEHERAREZF LAY
20.3%  HERERREWALLE EFH420.9% °
Hp  mBYE=FBEXEEARRCAERE
BEWH A ANRET752,613,0007T © % & R Hi
’371% - BHRARRRHTFAFER 2 HEERE
fR%% BT =FZMRHE - REHEBEEEERT
BEEE - Bt HEE—+FE+-_A=+—HIit
FE - AEERETHASEENREEERREEA
B AR®612,0007T - EFZBRAHBEARKE
74,045,0007C c FEARNEE [ B E S AL | & & 8
T BB E=AREEAI L EAREERS
EEE IR AB T -

HE-_Z—tF+-_A=+—BLEE A£BHZ
FEFHAAREA1,523,521,00070 * BRZF—RFE
M EF#100.8% @ NEE 2 EEBENERLN H24.5%
ZE—RF H157%) R-E—RF LA88HE
BANB - BBEEE EFME22%(ZE—F:
17.8%) °

e

HRRefEEERLAE / —T—tFFR




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS
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PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the profit attributable to the
Shareholders of the Company was approximately RMB580,523,000,
representing a decrease of approximately 2.5% as compared with that
for 2016. That was mainly due to unrealized foreign exchange losses
arising from foreign currency loans and foreign currency exchanges
between the subsidiaries within the Group during the year. The core
earnings attributable to shareholders of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB791,888,000 , after deducting foreign exchange
losses and fair value, representing a significant increase of
approximately 103% as compared with that for 2016.

CONTRACTED SALES AND PROPERTIES SOLD
BUT NOT RECOGNISED

In 2017, “Landsea Products” recorded contracted sales of
RMB32,053,283,000 (including RMB28,411,048,000 from the Group
and a small amount of remaining projects entrusted by Landsea Group)
with contracted gross floor areas of approximately 1,629,394 square
meters (including 1,406,466 square meters from the Group and a small
amount of remaining projects entrusted by Landsea Group), among
which the total contracted sales of the property projects in which the
Group held equity interests amounted to approximately
RMB17,799,404,000 with contracted sales areas of approximately
665,989 square meters, i.e. an average selling price of RMB26,726 per
square meter, while the total contracted sales of land sites amounted
to RMB1,730,143,000 with contracted sales areas of approximately
290,301 square meters, i.e. an average selling price of RMB5,960 per
square meter. The Group recorded total contracted sales of
RMB19,529,547,000 from equity-held projects for property and land,
representing an increase of 30.2% as compared to 2016 while the
contracted sales areas were 956,289 square meters, representing an
increase of 18.4% as compared to 2016. The contracted sales were
mainly from the on-sale projects in Nanjing, Shanghai, Suzhou,
Hangzhou, Chengdu in the PRC and Boston, New Jersey and San
Francisco in the US. As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s
accumulated areas of properties sold but not recognised were
approximately 1.43 million square meters, amounting to approximately
RMB28.460 billion, in which areas of properties sold but not
recognised attributable to the Group were 440,000 square meters,
amounting to approximately RMB9.170 billion.
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Average

Contracted
Sales Selling
Contracted Price per
Equity Sales Contracted Square
Project HEB Holding Amounts Sales GFA Meter
BEHK
ERKE ERKE ERKE
EEH -] EEEE FHEHE
(Square
(RMB’000) Meters) (RMB)
(AR®TFT) (FrK)  (ARET)
Property Sales: MEIHE
1. Nanjing Youth Block HEREAEMER 100% 778,040 56,825 13,692
2. Nanjing Future Home M RARREK 50.10% 83,933 7,871 10,663
3. Nanjing Poly Landsea Weilan B AR B SRR X 29.94% 2,196,174 67,864 32,362
4. Nanjing Landsea Xihua Mansion R EA:FEREfT 12.9% 2,067,219 59,122 34,965
5. Shanghai Future Block EERRER 100% 35,342 1,730 20,432
6.  Shanghai The Course of FBEE
The Future 100% 35,314 1,808 19,528
7. Shanghai New Mansion EEEFER 38.46% 573,120 5,841 98,114
8.  Shanghai Putuo Changfeng LBERRERE 23% 329,941 6,273 52,597
9. Wuxi Tiancui R 100% 2,554 138 18,487
10.  Wuxi Luka Small Town EEHAR /MR 100% 23,108 1,953 11,833
11.  Suzhou Green County BRIN AL BB
of Landsea 55% 862,338 44,855 19,225
12.  Suzhou Landsea Luzhou ERINBAREAR N 20% 14,440 243 59,423
13.  Suzhou 8 Renmin Road BINARE 8 5% 51% 702,836 26,516 26,506
14.  Hangzhou Mer De Fleus mINTEE 8 100% 92,508 2,782 33,255
15.  Hangzhou Landsea Xihua Mansion #7 /1 B8 55 BR £ fF 49% 3,190,843 70,150 45,486
16. Hangzhou Le Mansion AESTS; 50% 1,243,691 27,018 46,032
17. Chengdu Southern Gate Green  FX#FRA 35 @I PI4% D 25% 1,458,267 79,016 18,455
18. Chengdu Golden Sand City XA BA R & 9.91% 285,107 17,546 16,249
19. Chengdu Landsea Future Home X EBEA SRR K E B 50% 279,386 44,637 6.259
20. Chengdu Landsea Xihua Mansion X #BEA 53 BR 2 T 33% 1,902,753 112,731 16,879
21.  Kingswood AT E 100% 117,751 4,092 28,776
22. Pierce Boston Pierce Boston 25% 416,617 3,955 105,339
23. Avora BZEN 51% 232,851 3,198 72,811
24. Stoney Ridge & Stoney Hill Stoney Ridge &
Stoney Hill 100% 38,449 870 44,194
25. The Vale The Vale 71% 693,539 13,615 50,939
26. Ironridge Ironridge 100% 143,284 5,340 26,832
17,799,404 665,989 26,726
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS
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Average
Contracted
Sales Selling
Contracted Price per
Equity Sales Contracted Square
Project HEB Holding Amounts Sales GFA Meter
FEGK
ERME ERHE ERHE
REE B +8 EEEE FIHEE
(Square
(RMB’000) Meters) (RMB)
(AR®FT) (FBHK)  (ARET)
Lots sales: THbIHE -
1. The Vale The Vale 71% 416,890 21,707 19,206
2. IronRidge IronRidge 100% 268,001 42,569 6,296
3. Newark Newark 100% 1,045,252 226,025 4,624
1,730,143 290,301 5,960
Total #a5 19,529,547 956,290 20,422
RECOGNISED SALES CEAHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded
recognised sales revenue of approximately RMB5,425,876,000 (2016:
RMB4,195,374,000), representing an overall increase of approximately
29.3%. The recognised revenue from sales of properties and total
areas were approximately RMB4,288,975,000 and 303,921 square
meters respectively, mainly attributable to the Nanjing Youth Block,
Suzhou Green County of Landsea, Wuxi Luka Small Town, Wuxi
Tiancui, Shanghai Future Block, Shanghai The Course of The Future,
Hangzhou Mer De Fleus and Kingswood in the US. The average selling
price of recognised sales was approximately RMB14,112 per square
meter. In addition, the Group has sold land lots of The Vale, Ironridge
and Sanctuary in April, August and December 2017 respectively and
sales area of approximately 219,255 square meter were recognised.
The total selling price of these three land lots was approximately
RMB1,730,143,000 and revenue of approximately RMB1,136,901,000
therefrom have been realised during the year.

N

HE-Z—tF+-A=+—HLFE £%£EE
BREE WAL B ARYS,425876,000T( =&
—NF: AR#4195374,0007T) B FFALH
29.3% - WRAWEHERARBEBESROAAR
% 4,288,975,000 7T % 303,921 F 5K EERK B
AREEHRE  HMANEE - BH&KR/NE - &
BRYE - EERKRER - LEER - MMEEER
THEHHMERER - FHBEEERNATEF KA
RE1411270 - B4 RZZE—FWMA - NA R
+= A KNEBThe Vale * Ironridge & Sanctuary
R E - EREEEBEL A219255F F K - 3%
=B AREEE AR 1,730,143,000 7T * WH
AFERBALARME1,136,901,000 7T ©

Landsea Green Group Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2017




PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT AND
MANAGEMENT SERVICES

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded property
development and management services income of approximately
RMB753,225,000 (2016: RMB623,171,000), representing an overall
increase of approximately 20.9%. The income from property
development and management services provided to independent third
parties or cooperating parties increased by 37.1% to approximately
RMB752,613,000 (2016: RMB549,126,000) as compared with the
previous year. Therefore, benefiting from the implementation and
enhancement of the operation strategy of “asset-light” in full of the
Group, the income from provision of property development and
management services received from independent third parties or
cooperating parties increased significantly.

RENTAL AND MANAGEMENT FEE

The Group’s investment property, namely Landsea Tower, is located in
Shenzhen, the PRC. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group recognised income of approximately RMB26,548,000 (2016:
RMB26,463,000), representing an increase of approximately 0.3% as
compared to 2016. Such slight increase was mainly attributable to no
rental income from a unit on the second floor of Landsea Tower from
February to June 2017, due to improvement works performed in the
relevant period. Leveraging its prime location and quality property
management services, Landsea Tower maintained a high occupancy
rate during the year. In addition, under the effective cost control, stable
net operation income from this building was guaranteed. Moreover,
“Landsea Apartment” generated revenue of approximately
RMB8,282,000 (2016: Nil), with aggregate rental and management fee
income of approximately RMB34,830,000 (2016: RMB26,463,000).

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s fair value gain on
the investment property was approximately RMB28,910,000. The fair
value of Shenzhen Landsea Tower was determined by a competent
independent valuer based on the property’s current business model
adopted by the Group and its expected income to be generated.

SELLING EXPENSES

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded selling
expenses of approximately RMB119,889,000 (2016: RMB90,115,000),
representing an increase of approximately 33% as compared to 2016.
Selling expenses mainly include the projects’ pre-sale promotional
expenses and sales commissions.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIEE R DT

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The Group continued to implement budget control since 2017. For the
year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded administrative
expenses of approximately RMB420,235,000 (2016:
RMB288,754,000), representing an increase of approximately 45.5%
as compared to 2016. The increase was within the budget control and
was mainly due to the Group’s significant expansion of business scale
as compared to the same period of last year with an increase of 30.9%
in staff number as a result of the establishment of a company in Xi’an
by the Group during the year, representing an active expansion in new
businesses including the long-term rental apartments, and thus
relevant human resources are prepared for the development of the
newly entered region. At the same time, since the US business has
been in the rapid expansion of the scale with improved deployment of
personnel, the administrative expenses increased accordingly.

FINANCE COSTS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded interest
expense of approximately RMB526,813,000 (2016: RMB571,684,000),
representing a decrease of approximately 7.8% as compared to 2016,
as a result of its effective management of borrowing balance and the
weighted average finance cost. Under the asset-light strategy, new
projects of the Group mainly included non-consolidated projects of
joint ventures and associates. As a result, the capitalized portion of
interest payable which was charged to finance costs recognized for the
year declined, with the capitalization rate of interest expenses of 53%
in 2017 (2016: 67%). For the year ended 31 December 2017, the
finance costs recognized for the Group were approximately
RMB238,925,000 (2016: RMB194,085,000). For the finance costs
recognized, it is more reasonable to consider the interest income on
equity borrowings of the Group received from joint ventures and
associates as credited to other income to be treated as net finance
costs on an aggregate basis. For the year ended 31 December 2017,
net finance costs of the Group were approximately RMB93,822,000
(2016: RMB62,204,000). During the year, weighted average finance
cost was 7.4% (2016: 8.0%).

TAXATION

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded taxation
charge of approximately RMB406,570,000 (2016: RMB225,631,000).
The increase was mainly due to the significant increase of 35.4% in
assessable profit of the Group.
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EARNINGS PER SHARE

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the basic and diluted earnings
per share attributable to the Shareholders of the Company were
RMBO0.143 and RMBO0.127 respectively (2016: RMB0.147 and
RMBO0.131 respectively). The basic core earnings per share was
RMBO0.197 (2016: RMBO0.095), representing an increase of
approximately 107% as compared to 2016.

PROJECT RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had project reserves with total
gross floor areas of 12,865,868 square meters, saleable GFA of
6,352,998 square meters and expected saleable value of
approximately RMB117.9 billion. Calculated according to equity
interests, the total gross floor areas of the project reserves attributable
to the Group were 3,758,640 square meters, saleable GFA of
1,446,646 square meters and expected saleable value of
approximately RMB29.2 billion. The Group had also acquired 26
development management projects by entrusted independent third
parties, with saleable GFA of approximately 2,746,039 square meters
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REESREARE R EBRBERZAARKE0.143
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£3,758,640F 75 K I P] & H 18 1,446,646 F 77 K K&
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2,746,039 750K - TRETAIEBEA/ARKEI5ETT -

and expected sales value of RMB49.5 billion.

Projects HR Equity Holding Value Sold GFA Sold Saleable Value  Saleable GFA
Rzt BEEE BEER TEEE TEER
(RMB'000)  (Square Meters) (RMB’000)  (Square Meters)
AREFI ik AREFI FrR
1. Shanghai Future Block ERRER 100% 1,934,080 105,117 1,183,800 43,449
2. Hangzhou Mer De Fleus mMEEE 100% 1,395,380 140,980 25,340 689
3. Shanghai The Course of The Future HEER 100% 1,312,640 79,499 43,030 1,479
4. Nanjing Youth Block HRERHR 100% 2,804,510 253,421 165,860 4,153
5. Nanjing Future Home ARARK 50.10% 911,310 105,387 49,450 4412
6. Nanjing Landsea Xihua Mansion HRASHRER 1297% 5,091,180 143,519 514,490 4,924
7. Nanjing Poly Landsea Weilan ARRABHEE 20.94% 5,517,080 194,358 163,880 3,183
8. Suzhou 8 Renmin Road BMARK 8 51% 1,299,810 44,723 454,460 12,105
9. Suzhou Green County of Landsea MK 55% 3,638,250 229,857 1,849,500 97,472
10, Wuxi Tiancui BHRE 100% 469,780 34,411 14,120 582
M. Wuxi Luka Small Town BHERE 100% 683,530 93,808 236,710 16,877
2. Chengdu Southern Gate Green AR R IR 25% 1,325,440 156,769 213,020 1,828
18, Shanghai New Mansion EHES 38.46% 624,560 6,299 787,000 8,735
14, Hangzhou Landsea Xihua Mansion mMERER 49% 3,190,840 70,568 1,076,740 18,863
15, Hangzhou Le Mansion TN 50% 1,243,690 27,514 1,430,720 27,765
16. Chengdu Golden Sand City REAFE D 9.91% 1,597,980 123,897 5,342,960

218,373 —
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Projects R Equity Holding Value Sold GFA Sold Saleable Value  Saleable GFA
it BEEE BEAR TEEE TEAE
(RMB000)  (Square Meters) (RMB'000)  (Square Meters)
AREFT Tk ARETT FIR
17, Tianjin Zhong Xin Eco-City Project REPIERAER 75% - - 1,524,420 106,739
18, Tianjin Huoli Gang Project REENEER 35% - - 1,758,260 109,989
19, Shanghai Putuo Changfeng, Project LBERREER 23% 325,040 6,273 552,000 12,133
20.  Suzhou High-Speed Rail New Town Project &M ZEHTIER 51% - - 822,060 63,403
21, Wuhan Xudong Project HERRIER 30% - - 3,932,910 100,326
22, Chengdu Muhua Road Project REBMERIEE 4.85% - - 8,259,760 724177
23, Wuhan Sanjintan Project HE=SEREE 5% 2,225,100 136,767 695,000 31,233
24 Changsha Jurong Shuixi Project RYRRKEER 1% 95,200 36,667 686,440 123,836
25, Chengdu Landsea Xihua Mansion KEAFRER 33% 1,325,440 156,769 213,020 1828
26. Hangzhou Yuhang North Upper Loop MMARIL LREEE
Bridge Project 50% - - 532,000 37,385
27, Hefei Wanxin Hi-tech District Project AEGHENEER 25% - - 2,493,050 93,413
28 Hangzhou Xiasha Project MMTHEE 40% - - 1,401,680 72,627
29 Hangzhou Ningbo Jiangbei Project MMERTIIER 100% - - 1,179,940 73,262
30.  Chengdu Landsea Future Home A RKIER 50% 279,390 45,000 602,280 63,008
31, Chengdu North Jianshe Road RERRIR 50% - - 325,650 22,375
32, Xian Jiapeng Project e e 70% - - 550,590 55,384
33 Hefei Feidong Jade Garden AEERSERER 10% - - 757,900 40,333
84, Yixing Red Star Macalline Project HEAEXHEHE 51% - - 1,584,530 165,805
35, Jiangyin Chengjiang Project C-10 IfEEIERC10 19% - - 1,551,990 99,997
36 Jiangyin Chengjiang Project G-11 IREIEBC1 19% - - 1,002,790 63,274
37 Sugian Weilan Court BRHERN 100% - - 2,176,650 160,038
38 Sugian Weilan Elegant Court BEHENRMN 100% - - 1,631,039 138,890
39 Chongging Caijia Project BEEFREE 25.5% - - 5,264,320 272,043
40. Haining University District Project BERBHIER 80% - - 1,416,650 82916
41, Nanjing Lishui Project AREKER 20% - - 2,785,290 163,252
4. Avora REN 51% 474,940 5,240 1,345,660 14,846
43, The Westerly The Westerly 100% - - 788,550 34,559
44, Pierce Boston Pierce Boston 25% 523,670 7,023 2,014,660 27,021
45, Stoney Ridge & Stoney Hil Stoney Ridge & Stoney Hill 100% 37,700 836 188,500 4,181
4. Siena Siena 100% - - 425,430 12,079
47 ronRidge lronRidge 100% 412,634 45922 2,640,749 97,859
4. TheVale The Vale 1% 1,043,230 35,311 1,966,620 42,382
49 Lido Vilas Lido Villas 100% - - 366,560 4,350
50.  Synagogue Synagogue 90% - - 537,110 3,408
51, Sanctuary — Village | Sanctuary — Vilage I 100% 1,032,130 226,026 858,240 33,719
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Projects EH Equity Holding Value Sold GFA Sold Saleable Value  Saleable GFA
it fl BEEE BEAR TEEE TEAE
(RMB000)  (Square Meters) (RMB'000)  (Square Meters)
AREFIL ik AREFR IR
52 Nanjing Xinglong Avenue Project HRERAEER 0% 6,685,950 161,750 2,588,250 57,732
53 Nanjing Jinpu Project HReRER 0% 2,599,910 118,846 3,693,021 124,707
54 Nanjing Jiulonghu Plot C HRNENCHSE 0% - - 1,135,000 40,916
85. Nanjing Jiulonghu Plot A/B AR NERABIS 0% 1,643,960 70,633 364,230 14,904
5.  Changhou Landsea Garden BB RE 0% 1,389,738 16,784 98,670 5,453
57. Hefei Wanxin's Green County AR RE 0% 1,309,520 125,069 119,010 707
58. Wuxi New Gounty Project mEHETER 0% 1,396,930 51,659 1,740,529 76,105
5. Neijiang Lexian Project WIZERER 0% 109,263 30,644 2,155,740 245,904
80.  Baoding Xishanyue Project RERIEE 0% 121,892 6,004 249,694 8,036
61, Wuzhong Hongzhuang Project in Suzhou BMRPAIHER 0% - - 996,100 42,683
62. Chengdu Jixian Xipu Project REABLEEFEE 0% - - 459,854 35,652
63.  Century Plaze Project in Yancheng Dongtai MR AL EFER 0% - - 1,511,510 159,008
64.  Nanjing Project G68 BRGe8IEE 0% - - 9,000,000 150,000
65 Shangyuan Project in Wuxi Hongshan EHELRERIEE 0% - - 1,154,000 118,567
B6.  Wuxi New County Project 2A3 EHHEASIER 0% - - 4,161,050 188,457
67.  Jiangyin Lingang Project TeiAEE 0% - - 687,190 107,236
B8.  Beijing Kangzeyuan Project IRE2REE 0% - - 1,778,095 33,998
69, Xuzhou Peixian Fankuai Road Project R B Be I 0% - - 2,004,948 333,498
70. Ma'anshan Hori Hil Road SHLIEELRE 0% - - 2,233,170 227,863
7. Jurong Baohua Project AREEER 0% 50,540 5,344 1,810,394 110,269
72 Beiiing Zhangjiakou Project EREROER 0% - - 966,674 75,699
73. Jinan Sinotruk Project EmEEE 0% - - 1,826,920 182,692
74, Tangshan Yutian Project EILEMER 0% - - 774,146 124,046
75, Nanjing Jiangning Project G45 HRIEGHEE 0% - - 2,625,000 105,000
76.  Shangfang Project G2 in Nanjing Jiangning ~ BIRULE L35 G225 B 0% - - 2,546,455 75,324
77 Shangfang Project G62 in Nanjing Jiangning ~ FIILE L4 G62%E B 0% - - 2,827,480 101,562
Total ait 56,122,236 3,098,694 117,890,509 6,352,998
Of which Subtotal of Equity-held Projects e BEERER /NG 40,814,534 2,511,961 68,383,378 3,606,959
Subtotal of Entrusted Development ZRERERBEA/
and Management Projects 16,307,703 586,733 49,507,130 2,746,039
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS
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GFA for
Equity Developed Developing Future
Projects EHR Holding GFA GFA GFA  Development
BRE  BRINE  BRVE RRER
B Al [ HE i NEEE
(Square (Square (Square (Square
Meters) Meters) Meters) Meters)
(F7rK) (F7K) (7K (F7K)
1. Shanghai Future Block DERRER 100% 233,791 233,791 - -
2. Hangzhou Mer De Fleus mMEEE 100% 180,473 180,473 - -
3. Shanghai The Course of The Future LBER 100% 108,264 108,264 - -
4. Nanjing Youth Block HREEEE 100% 314,704 167,558 147,146 -
5 Nanjing Future Home HRARK 50.10% 133,530 133,530 - -
6. Nanjing Landsea Xihua Mansion ERAFRER 12.97% 202,487 - 202,487 -
7.~ Nanjing Poly Landsea Wellan HRRFIAFHE 29.94% 250,567 - 250,567 -
8. Suzhou 8 Renmin Road BMARKE 8 % 51% 85,231 - 85,231 -
9. Suzhou Green County of Landsea BN 55% 432,700 184,200 248,500 -
10 Wuxi Tiancui AHRE 100% 48,772 48,772 -
M. Wuxi Luka Small Town BOER/NE 100% 139,689 115,100 24,589 -
12 Chengdu Southern Gate Green KA EMRE 25% 235,149 - 235,149 -
13. Shanghai New Mansion LEHEY 38.46% 15,787 - 15,787 -
4. Hangzhou Landsea Xihua Mansion MR EER 49% 139,152 - 139,152 -
15 Hangzhou Le Mansion MR 50% 80,602 - 80,602 -
6. Chengdu Golden Sand City KBRS DR 9.91% 685,684 = 440,759 244,925
7. Tianjin Zhong Xin Eco-City Project REREESER 75% 144,100 - 144,100 -
18, Tianjin Huoli Gang Project REENBEE 35% 155,136 - 59,332 95,804
19, Shanghai Putuo Changfeng, Project HEERRAEE 23% 18,406 - 18,406 -
20 Suzhou High-Speed Rail New Town Project &M @& ¥ HE R 51% 92,600 - - 92,600
21 Wuhan Xudong Project RERFER 30% 130,529 - - 130,529
22, Chengdu Muhua Road Project KA ERIER 4.85% 1,022,400 - - 1,022,400
23, Wuhan Sanjintan Project RE=2ZHE 5% 235,532 - 235,532 -
24 Changsha Jurong Shuixi Project ROFEKZIEE 1% 245,541 - 80,541 165,000
25 Chengdu Landsea Xihua Mansion AP REN 33% 367,753 - 367,753 -
26 Hangzhou Yuhang North Upper Loop MR HREER
Bridge Project 50% 37,699 - - 37,699
27 Hefei Wanxin Hi-tech District Project ARGHENERE 25% 131,445 - 131,445 -
28 Hangzhou Xiasha Project MM TYIEE 40% 94,095 - 94,095 -
Hangzhou Ningbo Jiangbei Project MMERTIEE 100% 73,790 - - 73,790
Chengdu Landsea Future Home REBAFRRRIEE 50% 146,733 - 146,733 -
Chengdu North Jianshe Road RERRIE 50% 30,157 - 30,157 -
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GFA for

Equity Developed Developing Future
Projects HR Holding GFA GFA GFA  Development
BEg  CRIVE  RRYYE RRER
B Al [ HE HE NEEE
(Square (Square (Square (Square
Meters) Meters) Meters) Meters)
(F7K) (F7K) (7K (F7K)
32, Xian Jiapeng Project AEzEEE 70% 72,196 - - 72,196
33, Hefel Feidong Jade Garden AREERERER 10% 57,398 - 42,557 14,841
34 Yixing Red Star Macalline Project e 51% 220,044 - - 220,044
35 Jiangyin Chengjiang Project C-10 IREIIEAC-10 19% 134,812 - - 134,812
36. Jiangyin Chengjiang Project C-11 TEETEEC-11 19% 85,820 - - 85,820
37. Sugian Weilan Court BREHEZN 100% 225,000 - 18,474 206,526
38 Sugian Weilan Elegant Court BRHERL 100% 193,500 - 6,436 187,064
39 Chongaing Caifia Project BEFEREE 25.5% 272,520 - - 272,520
40 Haining University District Project FEARBHIER 80% 84,266 - - 84,266
41, Nanjing Lishui Project HREKIEE 20% 210,485 - - 210,485
2. Avora REN 51% 31,776 - 31,776 -
43 The Westerly The Westerly 100% 34,560 083 819 32,758
4. Pierce Boston Pierce Boston 25% 39,202 - 39,202 -
45, Stoney Ridge & Stoney Hil Stoney Ridge & Stoney Hil 100% 5017 334 1,171 3,512
46.  Siena Siena 100% 12,079 - - 12,079
47, lronRidge IronRidge 100% 143,781 2,634 48,800 92,347
48.  The Vale The Vale 71% 77,694 - 43,787 33,007
49 Lido Villas Lido Villas 100% 4,350 - - 4,350
50.  Synagogue Synagogue 90% 4,049 - 4,049 -
51, Sanctuary — Vilage I Sanctuary — Village Il 100% 259,745 - 226,026 33,719
52, Nanjing Xinglong Avenue Project HRERAERE 0% 278,684 - 278,684 -
53 Nanjing Jinpu Project HREEEE 0% 307,241 - 307,241 -
5 Nanjing Jiulonghu Plot C ERNEHCHR 0% 44,271 = 44,271 -
55, Nanjing Jiulonghu Plot A/B BRNERABIIR 0% 115,000 115,000 - -
56. Changhou Landsea Garden EMEAFRE 0% 177,769 177,769 - -
57. Hefei Wanxin's Green County =Y il Erodi 0% 139,409 139,409 - -
58. Wuxi New County Project EH AR 0% 205,189 51,519 153,670 -
99, Neijiang Lexian Project RIT£EEE 0% 255,343 - 69,534 185,809
60.  Baoding Xishanyue Project REZILHMIER 0% 11,320 - 11,320 -
61, Wuzhong Hongzhuang Project in Suzhou BMRBAIER 0% 131,102 - - 131,102
62 Chengdu Jixian Xipu Project REAEERHEE 0% 51,934 - 51,934 -
63.  Century Plaze Project in Yancheng Dongtai BB AL EHEE 0% 209,251 - 46,740

162,511 T
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS
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GFA for

Equity Developed Developing Future

Projects EHR Holding GFA GFA GFA  Development

BpE  ERINE  BRTYE AREE

ERLA A% HE i NEER

(Square (Square (Square (Square

Meters) Meters) Meters) Meters)

(FFHK) (FHA) (FHK) (FHK)

64.  Nanjing Project G68 B RG68ER 0% 191,800 - - 191,800

65.  Shangyuan Project in Wuxi Hongshan aHBLEkEE 0% 177,336 - - 177,336

66. Wuxi New County Project 2A3 EHIIAIER 0% 268,752 - - 268,752

67. Jiangyin Lingang Project TREEEE 0% 131,008 - - 131,098

68.  Beiing Kangzeyuan Project R EREE 0% 45,860 - - 45,860

69, Xuzhou Peixian Fankuai Road Project M hEEEsRIER 0% 433,637 - - 433,637

70 Ma’anshan Hori Hill Road SRLEZLAE 0% 330,339 - 34,814 295,525

1. Jurong Baohua Project TREEEE 0% 192,904 - 24,397 168,507

72. Bejing Zhangjiakou Project FREFOEE 0% 128,446 - - 128,446

73, Jinan Sinotruk Project EHEREE 0% 182,692 - - 182,692

74, Tangshan Yutian Project EIEHER 0% 134,625 - - 134,625

75 Nanjing Jiangning Project G45 ARIEG45ER 0% 105,896 - - 105,896

6. Shangfang Project G22 in Nanjing Jiangning BT % F$G227EE 0% 101,138 - - 101,138

1. Shangfang Project G62 in Nanjing Jiangning BRI E £HG62%ER 0% 134,041 - - 134,041

Total At 12,865,868 1,669,336 4,668,764 6,642,768

Of which Subtotal of Equity-held Projects b ERERER NG 8,380,791 1,175,639 3,641,160 3,563,992
Subtotal of Entrusted Development EHABEEE /G

and Management Projects 4,485,077 483,697 1,022,605 2,978,775

RN

Landsea Green Group Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2017




Equity

Projects 1HH holding Status Usage GFA
R iREE A& BEEE
(Squares Meters)
(F7HK)
Shanghai Huangxing Building ~ H/&& 8 K& 100%  Under renovation To be leased
B U i quellic| 11,427
Shanghai Senlan Apartment*  _E/8FRBEAE ™ 50% Under renovation To be leased
RiEUE 7 46,296
Nanjing Huafei Dormitory MRERES 100%  Under renovation To be leased
RiEUiE 7 5,729
Shenzhen Landsea Tower FYIBAFFRE 100% Completed Leasing
wT A 23,736
Total &t 87,188
* The property is a joint venture of the Group * BBEBARAEEEEAR
LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES REBESRIMBEER
CASH POSITION REARR

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash amounted to approximately RMB3,623,787,000 (2016:
RMB2,976,852,000), representing an increase of 21.7% as compared
to 31 December 2016. As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s current
ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) was approximately 1.4
times (2016: 2.0 times).

INDEBTEDNESS

As at 31 December 2017, the total indebtedness of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB5,429,415,000 (2016:
RMB6,083,341,000), representing a decrease of 10.7% as compared
to 31 December 2016, mainly comprised shareholder’s loans, secured
bank loans, senior private notes and EB-5 financing. As at 31
December 2017, the proportion of short-term debts was 40% and
long-term debts was 60%.

RZE—+tF+ZA=+—0 *x£ERe KRS
LM RZRHIIR L AARE3,623,787,000 7T
—E—XF: AR#20976,852,00070) R=F
—RNE+_AZ+—HEA21.7% - R=ZZT—tF
TZA=+—H AEEMRBEELER(RBEE
BRILRBIBE) HAB14E(ZF—RF 1 2.01F) -

B

RZBE—+tF+ZA=+—H  AKEEHETL
BARMS429415000(ZE—RF: ARK
6,083,341,0007T) ‘#-ZZFE—A~"F+-ZA=+—8H
TH107%  EHEETEREREER  BERFERT
BR - EBELEESNMEBSRE - R-T— L&
TZA=+—H SHEKLHA40%  REES
Lb 515 60% ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS
BB AT

Analysis of Indebtedness:

31 December 2017

31 December 2016

—E—tF —T-RF
+=—A=+-—H +=—A=+—8
RMB’000 Percentage RMB’000 Percentage
AR¥ Tt wESE AREFIT (=Dl
Analysis of indebtedness REGANEEETE DT -
by currency:
Denominated in RMB UIARBEH 3,202,900 59.0% 4,514,861 74.2%
Denominated in USD NETHEE 1,995,807 36.8% 1,359,568 22.4%
Denominated in HK$ LA T & 230,708 4.2% 208,912 3.4%
5,429,415 100.0% 6,083,341 100.0%
Analysis of indebtedness REBETEAZEI B 24T -
by maturity:
Within one year F—FNR 2,174,458 40.0% 1,267,990 20.8%
Between one and two years F—FEMF 188,019 3.5% 2,022,747 33.3%
Over two years LA 3,066,938 56.5% 2,792,604 45.9%
5,429,415 100.0% 6,083,341 100.0%
OFF-BALANCE SHEET EQUITY DATA RIMER TEIS

With the implementation of the asset-light strategy, the newly added
projects to the pipeline of the Group primarily relates to joint ventures
and associates accounted for using the equity method, the balance
sheet information of which has not yet been included to the combined
financial statements of the Group. During the year ended 31 December
2017, the balance of monetary capital attributable to the Group in
proportion to the equity in joint ventures and associates was
RMB2,345,389,000 (2016: RMB724,724,000), while the balance of
interest-bearing liabilities attributable to the Group in proportion to the
equity in joint ventures and associates was RMB1,889,027,000 (2016:
RMB1,368,555,000), and the net cash balance attributable to the
Group in proportion to the equity in joint ventures and associates was
RMB456,363,000 (2016: net debt attributed RMB643,831,000).

FEERALEIE T  AEBHIEEEH#ZETESR
BHEZENEERBEAFIEE  HEEBERE
BAMAREEEHPBHREF  -BHE_T—+F
TZAZ=T—HBLEE  AEEREEE A FIRRE
=PI (R E K E S 85 A AR 2,345,389,000
TT(ZE—RF: AR¥724,724,00070) © REH
ERNAIERERLELINECEEBEREARYK
1,889,027,0007( = & — X F: A R &
1,368,555,0007T) * REH & N iRzt &
RIS B AR 456,363,000 T (ZF — /R F
FEMhF A G AR 643,831,0007T) °
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GEARING RATIOS

The Group has been working hard on optimizing its capital and debt
structure. As at 31 December 2017, the net debts to equity ratio# of
the Group was approximately 48.8% (2016: 101.8%), representing a
significant decrease of 53 percentage-point as compared to 31
December 2016, and off-balance sheet liabilities and net cash as at
end of 2017 are net cash. The Group’s debt to total assets ratio (total
borrowings divided by total assets) was approximately 26.7% as at 31
December 2017 (2016: 33.8%), representing a decrease of 7.1
percentage-point as compared to 31 December 2016. In addition, the
debt to assets ratio of the Group was 81.8% (2016: 83.0%),
representing a slight decrease of 1.2 percentage point as compared to
that as of 31 December 2016. The management will continue to
monitor the Group’s capital and debt structure from time to time with
an aim to mitigating its exposure to the risk of gearing.

# net debts to equity ratio = total debts less cash and cash equivalents and restricted
cash divided by total equity

PLEDGE OF ASSETS OF THE GROUP

As at 31 December 2017, the bank loans of the Group were secured
by one or a combination of the following securities: investment
property, leasehold land payments, properties under development,
properties held for sale, restricted cash and guarantees provided by
controlling shareholders. Senior private notes were guaranteed by
shares of subsidiaries of the Company. EB-5 loans are guaranteed by
a subsidiary.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND CURRENCY RISK

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash were mainly denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong
dollar and United States dollar. The functional currency of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the United States is United States dollar while that of the
Hong Kong subsidiaries is Hong Kong dollar, and that of the domestic
subsidiaries is Renminbi. As of 31 December 2017, the borrowing of
RMB1,665,000,000 to the Group’s subsidiary in the United States from
the ultimate controlling shareholder was the long-term financial support
to the Group. The amounts of RMB2,173,200,000 of the Group’s
Hong Kong subsidiary due to its domestic subsidiary were dealt in
transactions within the Group. The exchange rate changes in the said
amounts resulted in exchange losses recorded by the Group of
RMB270,320,000 (2016: exchange gain of RMB226,898,000). The
exchange loss is unrealized and hence no financial instrument is
required for hedging purposes.

BEL=R

TEE-—BEBNBLEARBELRE RZIZT—+
FH_A=ZT—HRNFEEERAERLEE4OR
48.8% (=T —NF :101.8%) r H-F—RF+—
A=+—BiLEETHREEE S - BEXRINEE
RZE—+tFRNBEERSFEAFES - A%
EaEEELR(ERAERUIBREE) RN =_2—+
FH+ZA=Z+T—BHAE267%(ZF — < F:
33.8%) r B-F—REF+-A=+—HMBLTHE7.1
EEDE - B AEBZEEBEEXR81.8% (=
T—RF :83.0%) B-FT—RF+_H=1+—8H
AL TE12EESE - EEESLPIHEER
EMEAN BELEE  DUREMASNESRR -

’ FREAERRALLE - AHAERRA S RRSEEYRZRE
REBABRA LR

AEEEERA

R-F—tF+-A=+—8 FEEORTER
MAT—BRABELER  RANE BELH
(3 FRREILE  BIFRENE SRR
RERBEREHNER - BLELEESRADTZ
A RRAD AR - EB-SE R — RN REIR -

HMNEE Rz HMEE [ B

RZE—+F+ZA=+—0  AKEZHRES KR
CEBYRIBRHIREUAARE - BITRETAE
EHE  AEBEXEMBARZEAMNEAET
ERMBARKERAE BB  BANB AR
BEAMNEAARE HE_ZT—+F+-A=+—
B A&EBXREMNBARREBEZRIERRR
1,665,000,000 T A REER - REERKRFHAEH
ZRHESIR  AEBEBWE QR E A
BARZFIE2,173,200,000 T AR - RAEER
BESER  HEMNEXZESHHK T AEBERERE
HIEGE AR 270,320,000 T ( ZF—7<F : [EH WK
= AR #5226,898,0007T)  iZEHIBRARERK
BBk WBARATME T A PR -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS

BB AT

INTEREST RATE RISK

As at 31 December 2017, the debts payable borne with fixed interest
rate accounted for approximately 84.2% (2016: 62.5%) of the total
debts of the Group. In this regard, the exposure to interest rate risk
was minimal. The Group will continue to monitor the trend of interest
rates in the market closely and seek to adopt appropriate risk
management measures for mitigating the exposure to the interest rate
risk.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

On 3 January 2017, #i/NBAEIR & BB R A& (Hangzhou Langhui
Investment Management Company Limited*) (“Hangzhou Langhui”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an acquisition
agreement with 28 )i 5 7K F5 b 2 B 3% A IR 2 &) (Ningbo Jinwo Real
Estate Development Company Limited®) (“Ningbo Jinwo”), pursuant to
which Hangzhou Langhui had conditionally agreed to purchase, and
Ningbo Jinwo had conditionally agreed to sell, the entire equity interest
in BN S RREEREAR 2 E (Ningbo Jinwo Commercial Investment
Company Limited*), a company holding a piece of land in Ningbo for
commercial use, at a consideration of not more than
RMB270,000,000. The transaction was completed on 20 February
2017. (Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 3
January 2017 for further details).

On 3 January 2017, Hangzhou Langhui entered into an acquisition
agreement with 171 M 41 B & 71 X £ BR 2 A (Hangzhou Hongbao
Electric Fuel Company Limited*) (“Hangzhou Hongbao Electric Fuel”),
pursuant to which Hangzhou Langhui had conditionally agreed to
purchase, and Hangzhou Hongbao Electric Fuel had conditionally
agreed to sell, 100% equity interest in ¥ XTTEMERZEBR AT
(Zhejiang Tianyuan Properties Development Company Limited*)
(“Zhejiang Tianyuan”), and Hangzhou Langhui had conditionally agreed
to provide a shareholder’s loan to Zhejiang Tianyuan, at a total
consideration of RMB286,910,039. Zhejiang Tianyuan holds a piece of
land in Nongfa District, Haining City, Zhejiang for commercial and
residential use. The transaction was completed on 18 January 2017.
(Please refer to two announcements of the Company both dated 3
January 2017 for further details).

=B
R_ZE—+tFT_H=+—H FxEEETEHNEHN
JERHES IR RERL84.2% (=T —7RF : 62.5%)
HHENAREHERBRRE ANEEEERYERT
BREBRRESRKeENRREIEEE - ARE
F= @ g o

EERE EXAWEBERHESHE

R-E—tF—A=R ARFIZ2EWBRRN
JHERIEIR BB R BR AR ([MMBAE]) BERSRK
FHERBEAR AR ([BREX ) ALK ERZ
RUE - UNBRER R R B W R BERERE &M
RAEHEENSAREREARAA (RERFAE—
RIERmERZEN L) W2 EAE - KESTEBA
R#270,000,0007C c ZXHER_TE—+F_H
“tHHEK  (FERLHARF AR/ T —tF
—R=RZR&E) -

RZZE—tF—A=H " MMNEBABERMMNAEES
BB AR AR (MBS AR 5T 3 U 5B 1
OB N ERERENE - RMNLE
BEORHERGERELEN IR TEHERZEER
AR([HIRIT]) 100% 2 i - LARAMNEABE
BERERMIRITRERREER  BREAAR
¥ 286,910,039 7T ° AT KT T B Em R R
BE—REBEREN I - ZXFER-_ZT—+t
F-A+TNBZEK - (FBEFLHEAARBHA=ZT
—t+tF—AZBZMHORE) -
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On 10 February 2017, Ak #RAIE > 2 B2 7% A R A 7] (Chengdu
Langhui Corporate Management Consulting Company Limited*)
(“Chengdu Langhui”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a share transfer agreement with Masque Enterprises
Limited (“MASQUE”), pursuant to which Chengdu Langhui had
conditionally agreed to purchase, and MASQUE had conditionally
agreed to sell, the entire equity interest in FXEBERE HERZE AR A
7] (Chengdu Hanfei Properties Development Company Limited*), a
company holding a piece of land in Chengdu City for residential and
commercial use, at a consideration of RMB186,000,000. The
transaction was completed on 14 April 2017. (Please refer to two
announcements of the Company dated 10 February 2017 and 13
February 2017 for further details).

On 24 February 2017, E/8BAIAE % B R 2 & (Shanghai Langsong
Enterprises Company Limited®) (“Shanghai Langsong”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, successfully bid for #1 Bl _+/& 15 # 2 =
¥ 18 SR A HE (the office building located at No. 18, Huangxing Road,
Yangpu District, Shanghai, the PRC*) (the “Properties”) held by China
Pacific Life Insurance Co., Ltd (“China Pacific Life Insurance”) at the
public auction held by Shanghai United Assets and Equity Exchange
and entered into the Shanghai property right transfer agreement,
pursuant to which Shanghai Langsong agreed to purchase, and China
Pacific Life Insurance agreed to sell, the Properties at a consideration
of RMB312,000,000. The transaction was completed on 25 August
2017. (Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 24
February 2017 for further details).

On 3 April 2017 (US time), LS-NJ Port Imperial Member, LLC. (“LS-
NJ”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
cooperation agreement with PL North America-NJ Port Imperial, Inc.
(“PL North America”), pursuant to which it was agreed that LS-NJ and
PL North America would cooperate to develop the Avora Project held
by LS-NJ Port Imperial LLC (“LS-NJ Port Imperial”), a then wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company through the injection of capital in the
amount of US$45,666,654 into LS-NJ Port Imperial by PL North
America. Upon completion of the transactions contemplated under the
cooperation agreement on 5 April 2017, LS-NJ Port Imperial was held
as to 51% by LS-NJ and as to 49% by PL North America. (Please refer
to two announcements of the Company dated 4 April 2017 and 11
April 2017 for further details).

MRZZE—+F_A+H ARAZEZ2EWERRIK
HABCEXEEFRARLAI([KEHAE]) &
Masque Enterprises Limited ([ MASQUE) 7T 37 % #&
HEGZ Bt KEAEBRUERERE &
MASQUEE iR EHEXK I ERFEERZER
RNAEN (B HE —RIEREREN M) 228
PeE - KB/ AR 186,000,0007T « ZRXHERZ
T—tFMOA+MBETEK - (FIEBELMAAF A
RZE—+tF_A+HERZZE—tF-A+=RHZ

MIPRE) o

R-ZE—tFE_A-+WHAB  ARQRFRZE2EMER
Al LERAMEEBR AR ([ LEBAR]) KINE LS
BEEER SO AMBELEREFREAEFEA
SREBRMBERAR(THREANFEFAZRR]FH
BN AR B LTSGR E R 185k A ([Z]
EDWETZ EBMEER S - Bt - EERANR
REWE RYBRAKFFASRBRRAELEZY
¥ REAAR312,000,0007 - ZXHER-Z
—tFNAZTHBTK - (FHEBELMEAAR A
ABZE—tFZAZFTHEAZAE) -

AZE—LFNA=ZRH(EBERKH) ARFzE2E
B B A 8] LS-NJ Port Imperial Member, LLC. ([LS-
NJ]) E& PL North America-NJ Port Imperial, Inc. ([PL
North Americal) ] 32 & fE 3% » # It - LS-NJ & PL
North America A B & EMZEHRA QR ERFEBHAPL
North America ¥ & 45,666,654 % T2 2 B E A A
LS-NJ Port Imperial LLC (['LS-NJ Port Imperial]) ¥
B AvoralE B - RTEREEHRIE T 2R 5 (AR
—Z—+tFMAEHA)%E  LS-NJ Port Imperial
LS-NJ#EH51% & B PL North America#E49% ° (5%
BELHMARRBHAE_T—ttEFNANBR=-F
—tFHA+—HZMHAE) -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS
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On 26 May 2017, F3 REASEHE S B AR A A (Nanjing Langming Rea
Estate Group Limited*) (“Nanjing Langming”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an acquisition agreement with
Mr. Qiang Zhuang, Mr. Zhang Tao and Mr. He Xiaoning (collectively,
the “Vendors”), pursuant to which Nanjing Langming had agreed to
purchase, and the Vendors agreed to sell, the entire equity interest in
Pl R %= B b E M % B BB 2 7 (Shaanxi Changtai Real Estate
Development Company Limited*), a company holding a piece of land in
Shaanxi Province, at a consideration of RMB150,000,000. The
transaction had not yet been completed on as at the date of this
report. (Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 26
May 2017 for further details).

On 27 May 2017, Nanjing Langming, FX#BEASAE ¥ AR A 7] (Chengdu
Langming Real Estate Company Limited®) (“Chengdu Langming”) and
Chengdu Langhui, all being wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
entered into equity transfer and investment agreements with 5 57/& &
EERMEREASINSE (BRA ) (Nanjng Luode Dening Real
Estate Investment Partnership) (Limited Partner) (“Nanjing Luode
Dening”), pursuant to which Chengdu Langming and Nanjing Luode
Dening had agreed to cooperate in the development of Chengdu
Landsea Future Home project held by Chengdu Langhui. Upon
completion of the transactions contemplated under the equity transfer
and investment agreements on 1 June 2017, Chengdu Langhui was
held as to 50% by each of Chengdu Langming and Nanjing Luode
Dening. (Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 27
May 2017 for further details).

On 2 August 2017, Nanjing Langming entered into agreements with #&
$HESEMERZEAMR QA (Wuxi Xinghai Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd*) (“Wuxi Xinghai”), Z & B #R¥RZE £ (Anhui Daily Newspaper
Press Group*) (“Anhui Daily Newspaper ”) and #1112 X &= it Z 573
A B 2 7 (Ma An Shan Xingwen Real Estate Development Co.,
Limited*) (the “Target Company”), pursuant to which Nanjing Langming
had conditionally agreed to purchase, and Wuxi Xinghai had
conditionally agreed to sell 70% equity interest of the Target Company
at zero consideration, and Nanjing Langming had conditionally agreed
the provision of the shareholder’s loan of RMB280,000,000 to the
Target Company which holds a land parcel in Ma An Shan City for real
estate development project. The transaction was completed on 7
August 2017. (Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 2 August 2017 for further details).

MN-ZBE—+ERA-+RE ARAFZE2EHBA
A RN EEB AR AR ([FEREAS]) Hagit
Sh - RBRERMNELEE(HB [ZEERDE]
TR Bt mRARRERE - RZEE
FRENERARREHEREBR AR (RREA
FRE—#tu) 2H8BE RERARE
150,000,0007T ° % X SR AME A HRTK °
(HEFE2MARRBHA-_T—tFRA-FH
ZRE) .

RIZB—+FRAA-tLH ARBAZ2EHNBR
FIFREAS - CEPBASRE R AR AR (TAEBEASE])
RXHBHERE RS ERERSEREAKEE(R
REV) ([FRBBIEE]D T RRERGHEIRE
WES - Bl KSR EERBEREREAE
51 3% i P EREA R B MR EBEA SRR R IA R » %
PR R I R IR E RS HEE 2R 5 (AR
“EEFRA-R)E - REAE AR
RREREERBFA0%RE - (FEE2HAR
AEMA-E—tFREA-TERZASE) -

RZE—+FNAZH  BERPAHEEHEFR
EREERAR(IEZESR]) ZHABRBEER
(ZBEHRDEEZLEXSHEREEFRAA
(TERRAAD ATz - Bt - FARBARE IRM
AEWE MEHESERGRELEREERA
0% REAT  URERBHEERERER
EEAR(RBERLMHEE —MIEEHEREN L
) IR AR R E A R 280,000,0007T ° Z R HE
RZE—tFN\ALHTK - GE—FHBEBRLHN
ARBPHAT—+tFNAZRBZAE) -
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On 14 August 2017, Hangzhou Langhui as vendor, and #iH3ARKIRE
& B B B 2 7 (Hangzhou Hongcheng Investment Management
Company Limited®) (“Hangzhou Hongcheng”) as purchaser, entered
into the equity transfer and development cooperation agreement,
pursuant to which Hangzhou Langhui conditionally agreed to sell and
assign, and Hangzhou Hongcheng conditionally agreed to purchase
and accept assignment of, 60% equity interest of and 60% of the
outstanding shareholder’s loan owed by Zhejiang Tianyuan to
Hangzhou Langhui at the total consideration of RMB266,364,419
(subject to adjustment), among which the consideration for the sale
shares is RMB94,701,010 and the consideration for the sale loan is
RMB171,663,409 (subject to adjustment). Zhejiang Tianyuan holds a
land parcel in Haining City, Zhejiang for commercial and residential use.
Upon completion of the transaction on 18 August 2017, Zhejiang
Tianyuan is no longer a subsidiary of the Group. (Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 14 August 2017 for further
details).

On 14 August 2017, & Z Bj 18 & % B R 2 7 (Wuhan Langheng
Enterprise Company Limited*) (“Wuhan Langheng”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, participated in the public auction held by
Wuhan Optics Valley United Property Rights Exchange for the
proposed acquisition of 60% equity interest of 1L SRR R EES
E ¥ AR 2 A (Hubei Supply and Marketing Xudong Minsheng Plaza
Properties Limited®) (the “Xudong Minsheng Company”) and the loan at
a total consideration of RMB1,082,200,000. On 15 August 2017,
Wuhan Langheng received two confirmation notices of intended
transferees qualification dated 15 August 2017 issued by Wuhan
Optics Valley United Property Rights Exchange, confirming Wuhan
Langheng, upon the fulfillment of the conditions, as qualified transferee
for: (1) 51% equity interest of the Xudong Minsheng Company and the
loan; and (2) 9% equity interest of the Xudong Minsheng Company.
Xudong Minsheng Company holds a property in Xudong Village,
Hongshan District, Wuhan for residential use. The transaction was
completed on 19 September 2017. Wuhan Langheng further acquired
the remaining 20% equity interest in Xudong Minsheng Company
pursuant to the equity transfer agreement entered into with FZF|4fE
HE R AR AR (Wuhan Lihao Real Estate Development Company
Limited*) on 18 September 2017 at a consideration of
RMB132,144,000 which has been completed on 20 September 2017,
and since then Xudong Minsheng Company became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. (Please refer to the two announcements of
the Company dated 14 and 15 August 2017 and the circular of the
Company dated 24 November 2017 for further details).

RZT—+tFN\A+WmE  MMBAEEAEH) &
ML IR EBER AR AR (THMAK]) EAE
F) R IR R A ERE g - B mNRAE
ERHERERE REZE  RMNAKEIRERER
B8 R 2RI R I 60% AR HE K AZ R A B4 R AT
BAME R 60% & - BRE A ARK266,364,4197T
(AAFTHAE) EHFHEROREABARYE
94,701,010 T R HEERERE /AR 171,663,409
TL(AIFHAE) « IR TBET A —HRE
EmEAEHNLIH REXNZRSHBIZE—tFNA
TN & IR TIBEARRAGNMMBAR -
(E—FHBHL2EARRBHA-_T—+tFENA
+THAZAE) -

RZZE—+tFNA+TWEAB  KRRIZZ2EMB A A
RZREEXARAR(THEME] 2HRELAS
BEERR S ARE REE - BRI
BREREESEEERAR(HRERERRD AR
BO%R AiEZm R ERE BRERARKYK
1,082,200,0007C c R—ZZE—+ENA+HA )&
BRI EAAHESERZSEHMMN BEY
A-E—tFN\ATHRAMERSZEERERBN
E BRTEKHENER  AEBERNXESIXE
MBEREERFSI%BRAER REE  RQBRREE
HERTO% RAERZ - RERAERNRFE—BURR
ERHBGRENNEEDE - ZRFERZZT—t
FRATABTK - RBER=_ZE—tFNLA+/N\H
HRENTEHERZEBR ARG LA REEZER
& REREE - TWERREREQARST 20% 8K
- REAARK132,144,0007T - ZXHER-Z
—tFNAZTHTK - & RREERTNE
AREINEEMBAR - CE—FHBERFL2HARA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS

BB AT

On 11 October 2017, FEMEE (XF) EFXARAF (Zhongfu Yiyang
(Tianjin) Properties Company Limited*), an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company as vendor, entered into the cooperation
agreement with KEZR K 8)I| B B BR 2 7] (Tianjin Taihe Jinchuan
Properties Company Limited*), as purchaser, in relation to the disposal
of the land use right and the construction project on the land parcel at
Sino-Singapore Tianjin Eco-city (X2 ™M #1 X Z £ & ) ata
consideration of RMB849,586,000. (Please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 11 October 2017 and the circular of the
Company dated 24 November 2017 for further details).

On 29 November 2017, Nanjing Langming entered into a cooperation
agreement with A dt 2% % 5 ith 2 [ 32 B IR 2 &) (Zhongbei Shengye
Properties Development Co. Ltd*) (“Zhongbei Shengye”), pursuant to
which Zhongbei Shengye shall subscribe the additional registered
capital of RMB7,500,000 of M R E R IB P X EEZRNER A F
(Nanjing Xushenghui Corporate Management and Consulting Co., Ltd*)
(the “Nanjing Xushenghui Company”) and provide shareholder’s loan of
RMB217,035,000. Nanjing Xushenghui Company owns 50% in a
project company holding a piece of land in Lishui District, Nanjing City
for developing into commercial and residential project. Upon
completion of the share capital increase on 30 November 2017,
Nanjing Xushenghui Company was owned as to 40% by Nanjing
Langming and as to 60% by Zhongbei Shengye. (Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 29 November 2017 for further
details).

On 30 November 2017, /8B & 1% & & 12 B R 2 7) (Shanghai
Langqing Investment Management Limited*) (“Shanghai Langqing”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the cooperation
agreement with JXYIIE 813 & B R FBR A & (Shenzhen Hengchuang
Investment Management Limited*) (‘Hengchuang Investment”) and
BEADLCEEIEZ A R A A (Shanghai Zhujiu Enterprises
Management Consulting Limited*) (“Shanghai Zhujiu”), pursuant to
which, Shanghai Langging conditionally agreed to transfer, and
Hengchuang Investment conditionally agreed to accept transfer of 50%
equity interest of Shanghai Zhujiu at a consideration of RMB1, while
Shanghai Langging and Hengchuang Investment shall make payment
for their respective subscription capital in Shanghai Zhujiu of
RMB5,000,000 each; and the parties agreed to acquire the entire
equity interest of the project company which holds the project locating
at Pudong New District of Shanghai pursuant to the terms to be agreed

4
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by Shanghai Langqging and Hengchuang Investment through Shanghai
Zhujiu, the consideration for which shall be satisfied by the
shareholders’ loan to be provided by Shanghai Langging and
Hengchuang Investment to Shanghai Zhuijiu. Upon completion of the
transaction on 13 December 2017, Shanghai Zhujiu became a joint
venture of the Company. (Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 30 November 2017 for further details).

On 18 December 2017, EMBAF M EEIEH RN EMR A7 (Guangzhou
Langxiu Corporate Management consulting Limited*) (“Guangzhou
Langxiu”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered into the
acquisition agreement with 3B BR 2 7] (Jianzhao Company Limited*)
(“Vendor I’y and E B & % (X Y1) AR 2 8 EM D 2 A (Hanguo
Properties (Shenzhen) Company Limited, Guangzhou Branch®)
(“Vendor II”), pursuant to which (i) Guangzhou Langxiu conditionally
agreed to acquire, and Vendor | conditionally agreed to sell, the entire
equity interest of & I 1 i B3 & % A& R 2 A (Guangzhou Jianzhao
Properties Company Limited*), a company holding properties in Yuexiu
District, Guangzhou, at the consideration of RMB230,000,000 (subject
to adjustment), and (i) Guangzhou Langxiu conditionally agreed to
accept assignment of and Vendor Il conditionally agreed to assign, the
loan at the consideration of RMB30,000,000. The transaction had not
yet been completed as at the date of this report. (Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 18 December 2017 for further
details).

On 25 December 2017, Nanjing Langming and Shanghai Langqging
entered into the limited partnership agreement with _E & A 35 G A IS
REESLEIEAMR A A (Shanghai Zhongcheng Era Equity Investment
Fund Management Co., Ltd.*) (“Shanghai Zhongcheng Era”) and /&
P BRI E R L (E R A K) (Shanghai Zhongcheng Yongyi
Investment Center (Limited Partnership)*) (“Zhongcheng Yongyi”),
pursuant to which the parties shall make capital contribution to /&
WE S E S D (AR A {K) (Shanghai Zhongcheng Qiannian
Investment Centre (Limited Partnership)*) (“Zhongcheng Fund”),
whereby the 100% equity interest of the Group in Zhongcheng Fund
amounted to 50% by the capital contribution of RMB336 million. The
investment goals of Zhongcheng Fund are principally high quality real
estate development and sale projects. The transaction was completed
on 29 December 2017. (Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 25 December 2017 for further details).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY SIS
BB AT

On 25 December 2017, Nanjing Langming and FERJEBBHHEEREE RIZZE—+tF+ZAZ+EHA  XRRZ2ENE
R 2 &) (Nanjing Xubohui Corporate Consulting Management Company A& RM#EE R/ BIEECEEBAR AR ([FE
Limited*) (“Nanjing Xubohui”), wholly-owned subsidiaries of the FJBIEIE ) - AAEGRFAZ LR EBR AR (A
Company, entered into the cooperation framework agreement with & EEB AF ) RPWES T LA EEL WS - B
A Be #7 BA 3% S0 (b 18 & B R 2 7 (Hefei Wanxin Landsea Cultural It - R fBIEERSHERTHELRBWESE
Investment Company Limited*) (the “Hefei Project Company”) and TEE R F148% 2% » RE A AR 2,4858 T
Zhongcheng Fund, pursuant to which Nanjing Xubohui has agreed to M RBEEREEERFHESRESXESICEH
sell and Zhongcheng Fund has agreed to acquire 48% equity interest AR&E R RIBIEBHNERARE 6203258 T -
of the Hefei Project Company at a consideration of RMB24.85 milion, KFAHESLREEEALER ARIRETBBARE
and Nanjing Xubohui has agreed to assign and Zhongcheng Fund has 1,783 B THIREER - XSO N _T—+F+—
agreed to accept assignment of the loan owed by Hefei Project AZ+hLHZEK > (E—FTHBERL2H AR AHA
Company to Nanjing Xubohui of RMB629.32 million, and Zhongcheng Z—ZE—+&+-A-+HAZAERARQRAHA
Fund has agreed to provide the shareholder’s loan of not exceeding —Z—/\F=ZA=-+/"BZBEX) -

RMB17.83 million to Hefei Project Company. The transaction was

completed on 29 December 2017. (Please refer to the announcement

of the Company dated 25 December 2017 and the circular of the

Company dated 26 March 2018 for further details).

On 27 December 2017, i R E B ¥ B R 2 7 (Nanjing Langaging MZZ—+F+-_A-++BARQRZEE2EMN
Property Co., Ltd.*) (“Nanjing Langging”), an indirect wholly-owned BARBRBEBXERA AT ((MRME]) B8
subsidiary of the Company, BB EE X AR A F (Sugian Langxin  BAZEEAR AR ([TBRA QR MU/ EXMEE
Property Co., Ltd.*) (‘Project Company I”) and FUJI|EEXFISREXER HBERAR(MEIINEX DA ZREEZG R &
/2 a] (Sichuan BRC Hejun Industrial Co., Ltd.*) (“Sichuan BRC”) entered it » FIREAE &I EXREAEMAZEHER Q8|
into the equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which Nanjing Langging #BRIZENFREBEBTEHE LERR S 2R
and Sichuan BRC agreed to jointly develop the real estate development  #ZEFZIER - Hh @QERBEEEKEREHE
project on the land parcel No. 05 located at Susu Industrial Park, X PUJIIE A EHRSWEE B AR 2 60% I -
Sugian City (BB M LEER 05 Hi1%), the PRC held by Project X8 AB AR % 129,580,124 7T © K (o) P01 & ¢ A& &
Company |, of which (a) Nanjing Langging conditionally agreed to sell RIS IRHARERARE 7,790,880 7T : N R EA
and Sichuan BRC conditionally agreed to purchase 60% equity interest B« BEBAFEZ AR AT ((EEB QR 2l
of Project Company | at the consideration of RMB129,580,124; and (b)  EE Yt aT AR REEEE 3% - TRt - M BRI &
Sichuan BRC conditionally agreed to provide shareholder’s loan of Y RBAEMRZERER ARIEAEN T EEBHEH
RMB7,790,880; and Nanjing Langqing, T8 BEAFBE X BRAR) Sugan B ILEEE6HEE 2 EHEMEIER Edh @/
Landsea Property Co., Ltd.*) (“Project Company II”) and Sichuan BRC REIEAKEHERSHE - RUJIEXEEER B
entered into the equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which Nanjing 8 38 B 2 alllZ60% # > KRB & A R &
Langging and Sichuan BRC agreed to jointly develop the real estate 111,400,133 7T : K (o) PU)I| B Y B 1§ 1F R Z 3= 4%
development project on the land parcel No. 06 located at Susu  RERARE 7,206,540 ° 2R S A3k HE
Industrial Park, Sugian City (TB&8 T &kTE LEE R 06 #13 ), the PRC K7k - GE—# 5B L2MA QAT EHRA-ZS—+
held by Project Company I, of which (a) Nanjing Langqing conditionally &+ -A-+tHBzZ2RA%) -

agreed to sell and Sichuan BRC conditionally agreed to purchase 60%

equity interest of Project Company Il at the consideration of

RMB111,400,133; and (b) Sichuan BRC conditionally agreed to

provide shareholder’s loan of RMB7,206,540. The transaction had not

yet been completed as at the date of this report. (Please refer to the

announcement of the Company dated 27 December 2017 for further

i details).
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On 28 December 2017, Nanjing Langming and Shanghai Langging
entered into the limited partnership agreement with XZEASIEE 8
BBR7Aa] (Tianjin Langxin Investment Management Limited*) (“Langxin
Capital”) and {5Z & B R A A) (Xinda Investment Company Limited)
(“Xinda Investment”), pursuant to which the parties agreed to set up
Jiaxing Langda LP. Nanjing Langming and Xinda Investment shall be
the limited partners of Jiaxing Langda LP which will subscribe 30% and
70% respectively of the capital of Jiaxing Langda LP, while Langxin
Capital shall be the general partner of Jiaxing Langda LP, which will
subscribe RMB1,000,000. Shanghai Langqging shall be the
administrator of Jiaxing Langda LP; and Wuhan Langheng entered into
the agreement with Jiaxing Langda LP and Xudong Minsheng
Company, pursuant to which Wuhan Langheng agreed to sell and
Jiaxing Langda LP agreed to purchase 99.9% of the equity interest of
Xudong Minsheng Company, at a consideration of RMB660,000,000
and Xinda Investment or its connected parties agreed to accept
assignment of part of Wuhan Langheng shareholder’s loan of
RMB680,000,000; and Jiaxing Langda LP will provide a shareholder’s
loan of RMB461,000,000 to Xudong Minsheng Company. The principal
activities of Xudong Minsheng Company are real estate development
and management, which holds a project company holding a property
in Xudong Village, Hongshan District, Wuhan. The transaction was
completed on 29 December 2017. (Please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 28 December 2017 and the circular of the
Company dated 26 March 2018 for further details).

Save as disclosed above, the Group was not involved in any significant
investments, material acquisition or disposal during the year ended 31
December 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIEE R DT

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group cooperates with various financial institutions to arrange
mortgage loan facilities for the purchasers of its properties and
provides guarantees to secure such purchasers’ obligations of
repayment. As at 31 December 2017, the outstanding guarantees
amounted to approximately RMB2,140,598,000 (31 December 2016:
approximately RMB2,648,983,000). Such guarantees will be
discharged upon the earlier of (i) the issuance of the real estate
ownership certificate; and (i) the satisfaction of relevant mortgage loan
by purchasers. In addition, the Group provides guarantee to secure the
bank borrowings granted to Fenway Ventures Point Properties LLC, a
joint venture owned as to 50% by its joint venture LS-Boston Point
LLC. As at 31 December 2017, such guarantee amounted to
RMB230,316,000 (831 December 2016: approximately
RMB141,558,000). Such guarantee will be discharged upon the
release of corresponding indemnity provided by Landsea Group.

As at 31 December 2017, there were certain corporate guarantees
provided by the subsidiaries of the Group for each other in respect of
their borrowings. The management considered that the subsidiaries
had sufficient financial resources to fulfill their obligations.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2017.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 2,110 employees (31
December 2016: 1,612) who were responsible for the managerial,
administrative, technical and general functions in Hong Kong, the US
and the PRC. The increment levels of the employees’ emolument,
promotion and remuneration were determined with reference to their
duties, performance and professional experience. Other employee
benefits included mandatory provident fund scheme, insurance and
medical coverage. According to the terms of the Share Option Scheme
adopted on 25 April 2012 and the Share Award Scheme adopted on 2
July 2014, the Company will grant share options or awarded shares to
the Group’s management and staff based on their individual
performance.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 7 February 2018, Shanghai Langging and Nanjing Langming
entered into the transfer agreement with CITIC Capital Holdings Limited
(“CITIC Capital’) and £/ TFTLZEHKREEEBREE AR (Shanghai
Pingan Heding Investment & Management Co., Ltd.*) (“Pingan
Heding”), pursuant to which (i) CITIC Capital conditionally agreed to sell
and Shanghai Langqing conditionally agreed to purchase the entire
property share of general partner of H/8BRFAIRESKDZE (BRAIN)
(Shanghai Rui Kai Investment Partnership (limited partnership)*) (the
“Partnership”) at the consideration of RMB10,000; and (ii) Pingan
Heding conditionally agreed to sell and Nanjing Langming conditionally
agreed to purchase the entire property share of limited partner of the
Partnership at the consideration of RMB221,000,000. The Partnership
holds 100% equity interest of Best Benefit Limited, and Best Benefit
Limited and the Company each holds 61.54% and 38.46% equity
interest of Silver Knight Global Limited respectively. Silver Knight Global
Limited is the special purpose vehicle for holding and developing the
properties in FE L8 M REEFEK 770 F 25 5% (the unsold 40
residential units, car parks and public facilities located at No. 25, Alley
770, Qingxi Road, Changning District, Shanghai, the PRC*). (Please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 7 February 2018
and 8 February 2018 for further details).

At the special general meeting of the Company held on 28 February
2018, the shareholders of the Company approved the special
resolution for the change of the English name of the Company from
“Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd.” to “Landsea Green Group Co.,
Ltd.” and the adoption of “ BA #F 4% & & & & R 2 7] ” as the new
secondary name in Chinese of the Company to replace its secondary
name in Chinese “ BA 5F #& & # & & R 2 7] . The Registrar of
Companies in Bermuda entered the new English name and the
secondary name in Chinese of the Company on the register maintained
by it in place of the former name of the Company on 2 March 2018.
The Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong issued the Certificate of
Registration of Change of Corporate Name of Non-Hong Kong
Company on 22 March 2018.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Company is committed to maintain corporate governance of high
standards and quality procedures. The Company has put in place
governance practices with emphasis on the integrity to shareholders
and quality of disclosure, transparency and accountability to
shareholders for the sake of maximizing returns to shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code
of corporate governance.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company was in
compliance with all the relevant code provisions under the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions.

The Company confirms that, having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all Directors have complied with the required standards as
set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company, and is responsible for setting up the overall strategy as well
as reviewing the operation and financial performance of the Group. The
Board reserved for its decision or consideration matters covering
overall Group strategies, major acquisitions and disposals, annual
budgets, annual and interim results, recommendations on Directors’
appointment or re-election, approval of major capital transactions and
other significant operational and financial matters. The management
was delegated the authority and responsibility by the Board for the
daily management of the Group. In addition, the Board has also
delegated various responsibilities to the Board committees. Further
details of these committees are set out in this report.

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a year at
approximately quarterly intervals in addition to other Board meetings
that are required for significant and important issues, and for statutory
purposes. Appropriate and sufficient information is provided to Board
members in a timely manner to keep them abreast of the Group’s
latest developments and thus can assist them in discharging their
duties.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of the Board
meetings and drafts of which will be circulated to all Directors for their
review, comments and approval after the meetings. The minutes books
are kept by the Company Secretary and will be open for inspection by
the Directors upon request. All Directors have access to the advice and
service of the Company Secretary who is responsible to the Board for
ensuring that the procedures are followed and that all applicable laws
and regulations are complied with.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently consists of five executive Directors, one non-
executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Tian Ming

Mr. Xiang Jiong

Ms. Shen Leying

Mr. Xie Yuanjian

Ms. Zhou Qin

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
Mr. Zhou Yimin

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Xu Xiaonian

Mr. Ding Yuan

Mr. Lee Kwan Hung

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial, business
and family relationship among members of the Board. The biographies
of the Directors are set out on pages 22 to 28 under the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development
by attending seminars or in-house briefing relating to their role as
director of the Company/taking part in business-related training/acting
as speaker for seminars and refreshed their knowledge and skills and
provided to the Company a record of training they received for the
financial year ended 31 December 2017.
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The Company has also continuously updated Directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.

The individual training record of each Director received for the year
ended 31 December 2017 is summarized below:

Attending or
participating in
seminars/in-house

ARRFFERAESRHEEH MR REMER
EERECRTBREM  MERRFENRET
RUFBEERTER -

HE_T—+tF+_A=1+—"HILEFE SEFM
B ZEAABIRRSAEIT

briefing relevant HES2H
to the business, BRAXK -
regulatory BHEEBRR
updates and EEREC
Name of Directors director’s duties BEENR meE ABEER
Executive Directors HITEFE
Mr. Tian Ming v/ MR- v
Mr. Xiang Jiong v/ EFEEES v
Ms. Shen Leying v/ gL 7+ v
Mr. Xie Yuanijian v/ FmEEAE v
Ms. Zhou Qin v/ IEEk e v
Non-executive Director IERTTEE
Mr. Zhou Yimin v/ BHREE v
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHHITEE
Mr. Xu Xiaonian v/ FFNER A v
Mr. Ding Yuan v/ T®RTAE v
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung v LA v/

All the Directors also understand the importance of continuous
professional development and are committed to participating in suitable
training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The Company has a separate chairman and chief executive officer
currently. On 31 July 20183, Mr. Tian Ming was appointed as the
Chairman and Ms. Shen Leying was appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer. Subsequently on 23 February 2014, Mr. Xiang Jiong was
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer and Ms. Shen Leying was re-
designated as Co-Chief Executive Officer. The Company considered
that the division of responsibilities between the chairman and chief
executive officer is clearly established.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors of the Company are appointed for a
specific term and they are also subject to the retirement by rotation at
least once every three years in accordance with the Bye-Laws.

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with specific
terms of reference, which is responsible for, among others, identifying
suitable individuals to become Board members and reviewing the
structure, size and diversity of the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
As required under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive Directors, of
whom Mr. Xu Xiaonian, is a famous Chinese economist and was
granted the highest award of economics study in China, the “Sun
Yefang Economic Science Award”. Mr. Xu has more than 30 years’
experience in economics analysis.

Mr. Ding Yuan, is the Vice President and Dean, Cathay Capital Chair in
Accounting in China Europe International Business School and the
associate editor of European Accounting Review. He has more than 20
years’ experience in teaching and studying financial accounting,
financial statement analysis, corporate governance and M&As.
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Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, is currently a practicing lawyer in Hong Kong. He
was a senior manager of the Listing Division of the Stock Exchange
from 1993 to 1994. Mr. Lee is experienced in IPOs and corporate
financing.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors the annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy on 30 August 2013
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. The Company recognises that increasing
diversity at the Board level will support the attainment of the
Company’s strategic objectives and sustainable development. The
Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The Company will also take into
consideration its own business model and specific needs from time to
time in determining the optimum composition of the Board.

The Board delegated certain duties under the Board Diversity Policy to
the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee will discuss
and review the necessity to set measurable objectives for implementing
the Board Diversity Policy from time to time.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD AT BOARD MEETINGS E=/FS23RHERHE

During the year ended 31 December 2017, five Board meetings were #HE—_Z—+F+_-_A=+—HILEE EF/H
held. All Directors are given an opportunity to include any matter inthe BT RAN© % - 2EEEH AR ENEERFEHEE
agenda for regular Board meetings and are given sufficient time to  ZJZEEPIMAFEAEEET > W ERETBERR
review the documents and information to be discussed in Board EXHFemRTAERE TImzIXERER -
meetings in advance.

Number of
Name of Directors meetings attended EENA HESE IR
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Tian Ming (Chairman) 5/5 HEALEE (EE) 5/5
Mr. Xiang Jiong 4/5 BEObHES 4/5
Ms. Shen Leying 4/5 FRga 47+ 4/5
Mr. Xie Yuanijian 4/5 HIRERE 4/5
Ms. Zhou Qin 4/5 ISk 4/5
Non-executive Director HHITEE
Mr. Zhou Yimin 4/5 BmRTE 4/5
Independent Non-executive Directors BUIFRTESE
Mr. Xu Xiaonian 5/5 FRNF A 5/5
Mr. Ding Yuan 5/5 TREE 5/5
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung 5/5 ES oSt 5/5
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ATTENDANCE RECORD AT GENERAL MEETING

iﬁ‘%tﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁi

During the financial year ended 31 December 2017, one general HE-—Z—+F+-_A=+—HUIFHEE ' &2
meeting of the Company was held, being the annual general meeting & & éﬁgﬁ KEEREAE I —+tFH A=+~
of the Company held on 26 May 2017 (“2017 AGM”). BROTZBREBFAS((ZSE—ttEFRFREKX
=)o

Number of
Name of Directors meeting attended EENE HERERE
Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. Tian Ming (Chairman) 1/1 MR L4 (£/E) 11
Mr. Xiang Jiong 1/1 ELEPHES 11
Ms. Shen Leying 1/1 EES peanm 11
Mr. Xie Yuanijian 1/1 AR A 11
Ms. Zhou Qin 1/1 ISEJksen 11
Non-executive Director FHITESE
Mr. Zhou Yimin 1/1 AR AE 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BUIHITEE
Mr. Xu Xiaonian 1/1 FNESE 1/1
Mr. Ding Yuan 1/1 TiRESE 11
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung 1/1 ZHERE 11
The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with & =R & &5 HREEERIEYE tﬁl%a A% B A 4
shareholders and in particular, uses annual general meetings or other AK€ siHMIFE AL HEIFEERH X WESERER

general meetings to communicate with them and encourage their

M-BEXZRETFULEZZES REZEQRF

participation. The Chairman of the Board, the chairmen of the Audit MZE@FXFEHEHE—_E—+ERRAFTAS
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration fREIFHEFRIWWNERF =R o

Committee attended the 2017 AGM to answer questions and collect

views of shareholders.

BOARD COMMITTEES EEZET

The Board has established various committees under the Board, ﬁ%%aﬁj{i;MIi%)EjﬁiT ~Be BEERE
namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination T Ee }E%é/\ @ TR Ee KA
Committee, Executive Committee and the Sustainable Development ﬁ%%ﬂ?& X ELE® ERAREFINFESEE S

Supervision Committee, to oversee different aspects of the Group’s
affairs and to assist in the execution of the Board’s responsibilities.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Audit
Committee in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange
and are aligned with the code provisions set out in the CG Code. The
Audit Committee comprises one non-executive Director, namely Mr.
Zhou Yimin and three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Ding Yuan (as chairman), Mr. Xu Xiaonian and Mr. Lee Kwan Hung.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are currently made
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of
its resignation or dismissal of such auditor; reviewing the interim and
annual reports and financial statements of the Group; and overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting system including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff in charge of the
Company’s financial reporting function and their training arrangement
and budget, and to review the risk management and internal control
systems.

The Audit Committee meets the external auditor regularly to discuss
any area of concern during the audit. The Audit Committee reviews the
interim and annual reports before submission to the Board. The Audit
Committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance with
reporting and accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal
requirements in the review of the Company’s interim and annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee held
two meetings. Each committee meeting has supplied with the
necessary financial information of the Group for members to consider,
review and assess significant issues arising from the work conducted.
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Number of

Name of Members meetings attended REHE HESEXH
Mr. Ding Yuan (Committee Chairman) 2/2 TREE(ZESEE) 2/2
Mr. Xu Xiaonian 2/2 FRNF A 2/2
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung 2/2 EScytea 2/2
Mr. Zhou Yimin 2/2 PRI E 2/2

During the year under review, the Audit Committee had performed the
following work:

—  reviewed the annual results for the year ended 31 December
2016 and the interim results for the six months ended 30 June
2017;

— discussed with the management of the Company over the
completeness, fairness and adequacy of reporting and
accounting standards and policies of the Group in the
preparation of the 2017 interim and annual financial statements;

— reviewed and discussed with the external auditor over the
financial reporting of the Company;

— recommended to the Board, for the approval by shareholders, of
the re-appointment of the auditor;

— reviewed the continuing connected transactions of the Group
and relevant reports from external auditor; and

— reviewed the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the
Remuneration Committee in accordance with requirements of the
Stock Exchange and are aligned with the code provisions set out in the
CG Code. The Remuneration Committee shall comprise at least three
members with majority of independent non-executive Directors, and an
independent non-executive Director should take up the role of
chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration
Committee currently comprises two executive Directors, Mr. Tian Ming
and Ms. Zhou Qin, and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Lee Kwan Hung (as chairman), Mr. Ding Yuan and Mr. Xu
Xiaonian. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
currently made available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.

The functions of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
on the remuneration packages for all Directors’ and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy, to review and approve
the management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives, to make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, and to make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting for reviewing the remuneration policies
and structure of the Directors and senior management and
recommended to the Board the proposed remuneration of the

Directors and senior management.

B
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ABZHHBEREBEREERBRERARY
s

Number of
Name of Members meeting attended REHZ RE
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung (Committee Chairman) 1/1 FHERE(ZEEFE) 1/
Mr. Tian Ming 1/1 MR E 1/1
Mr. Xu Xiaonian 1/1 R NFE A 11
Mr. Ding Yuan 1/1 TiRESE 11
Ms. Zhou Qin 1/1 ISk 1/1

The emolument payable to Directors and senior management will
depend on their respective contractual terms under the employment
agreements, if any, and is fixed by the Board with reference to the
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, the performance of
the Group, their duties and responsibilities, remuneration benchmark in
the industry and the prevailing market conditions. Details of the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management are set out in
note 14 and note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Nomination
Committee in accordance with requirements of the Stock Exchange
and are aligned with the code provisions set out in the CG Code. The
Nomination Committee shall comprise at least three members with a
majority of independent non-executive Directors, and the Chairman of
the Board or an independent non-executive Director should take up
the role of chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee currently consists of one executive
Director, Mr. Tian Ming (as chairman), one non-executive Director, Mr.
Zhou Yimin, and three independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Xu Xiaonian, Mr. Ding Yuan and Mr. Lee Kwan Hung. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are currently made available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

ERNESERRREEBABZHMEBETRESAZ
EERZ(INB) IAEHNKT  THEEFRLS
FTMEZEEgcERE  AEEIRE  BEZBER
B TEFWEEREAMAMEBEE FHEES

BREEAB S BHN GRS P B HREME
14 R Pf5E15 ©

REEES

ARABREMRAZHAE - BREXE ST
SRR BRI R R E @ EMBREE - R2 R
B AM=-RKEAR  MEFASHREIL
FATESF THEFREIFX BB UIFATE
SRERRZE8EXF -

REAZESHRH—BATEFTARALLE(EF)  —
EHATESFPRREEUR=ZEBIIFRITES
FRNFERAE  TEXRERFHEEEAK - REBE
BE 2 B g0 E R C TSN AT M AR B, -

e

HRReEEERAE /| —T—tFFR




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RN
EEIRMS

The functions of the Nomination Committee are to review and monitor
the structure, size and diversity of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Group’s strategy; to identify qualified individuals to
become members of the Board; to assess the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; and to make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or re-election of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Nomination Committee
held one meeting for reviewing the structure, size and diversity
(including without limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of services) of the Board; assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors; and considering the re-election
of Directors before putting forth for discussion and approval by the
Board.

REZEGZRBEARINEEREZTRZIEARE R
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Number of
Name of Members meeting attended REHSE HESZAE
Mr. Tian Ming (Committee Chairman) 1/1 HPEE(ZESEE) 11
Mr. Xu Xiaonian 1/1 SFNFE S A 11
Mr. Ding Yuan 1/1 TEEE 11
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung 11 L L 1/1
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS TEERBAE

The corporate governance functions were performed by the Board.

The corporate governance functions are to develop and review the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance to comply
with the CG Code and other legal or regulatory requirements and make
recommendations to the Board, to oversee the Company’s orientation
program for new Director, to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors, and
to review the disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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During the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the Board has
reviewed the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management and reviewed the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee (formerly named as “Operational Committee”)
of the Company was established on 18 March 2005, and was reformed
and renamed to “Executive Committee” with all of the executive
Directors as its members and a new set of terms of reference was
adopted on 31 July 2013, which has been subsequently amended to
reflect the powers, authorities and discretions delegated by the Board
from time to time.

The Executive Committee meets on ad hoc basis in accordance with
its written terms of reference.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Group and ensure that the financial
statements are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The Directors also ensure the
timely publication of the financial statements of the Group.

The responsibility statement of external auditor of the Company,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 103 and 111.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of
any matters uncertainly relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the remuneration paid/payable
to the Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers is set out below:

% B4 B B &
HE_Z—tFt+-_A=+—HLtFE B E
AR X B A% BN 28 Fo ok 38 & 5T R B 15 P 2 & 40
T

RMB’000
AR%T R

Services rendered by PricewaterhouseCoopers B EFOK B TR B ATRME < RS
Audit services ZH RS 1,298
Non-audit services (Note) FERZERTS (MI5E) 864
2,162

Note: non-audit services include services for reviewing the interim results of the Group for

the six months ended 30 June 2017 and other non-audit services.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages an external professional company secretarial
services provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited (“Uni-1"), to
provide compliance and full range of company secretarial services to
the Group in order to assist the Group to cope with the changing
regulatory environment and to suit difference commercial needs.

Ms. Chan Yuen Ying, Stella (“Ms. Chan”), the representative of Uni-1, is
the named Company Secretary of the Company. The biographical
details of Ms. Chan are set out under the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management”.

Mr. Leung Nga Tat, the Assistant Financial Controller, is the primary
point of contact at the Company for the Company Secretary.

According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms.
Chan has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
for the financial year ended 31 December 2017.

74
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communications between the shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the
place as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting,
other than an annual general meeting, shall be called a special general
meeting.

SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE A SPECIAL
GENERAL MEETING

Shareholders may convene a special general meeting of the Company
according to the provisions as set out in the Bye-Laws and the
Companies Act of Bermuda. The procedures shareholders can use to
convene a special general meeting are set out in the document entitled
“Procedures for a Shareholder to Propose a Person for Election as a
Director”, which is currently available on the Company’s website.

PUTTING ENQUIRIES BY SHAREHOLDERS TO
THE BOARD

To ensure effective communications between the Board and the
shareholders and the investment community at large, the Company
has adopted a set of shareholders communication policy (the “Policy”)
on 12 March 2012. Under the Policy, the Company’s information shall
be communicated to the shareholders and the investment community
mainly through the Company’s financial reports (interim reports and
annual reports), and its corporate communications and other corporate
publications on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website. Shareholders and the investment community may at any time
make a request for the Company’s information to the extent such
information is publicly available. Any such questions shall be first
directed to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong.
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PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS BY SHAREHOLDERS AT
SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

The number of members necessary for a requisition for putting forward
a proposal at a general meeting shall be:

(@ any number of members holding not less than one-twentieth (5%)
of the paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the
requisition carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company; or

(b)  not less than one hundred members.

A copy or copies of requisition signed by all requisitions shall be
deposited, with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses in giving notice of the proposed resolution or circulating any
necessary statement, at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong in the case of:

(i) a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than six
weeks before the meeting; and

(i)  any other requisition, not less than one week before the meeting.

The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirming that the
requisition is proper and in order, the Board will proceed with the
necessary procedures.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during
the year.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications with all
shareholders. The Company’s annual general meeting is a valuable
forum for the Board to communicate directly with the shareholders.
The Chairman of the Board as well as the chairman of each of the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee together with the external auditor are present to answer
shareholders’ questions. The annual report together with annual
general meeting circular is distributed to all the shareholders at least 20
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VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll except where the chairman,
in good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a
procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands.
As such, all the resolutions set out in the notice of the 2018 annual
general meeting will be voted by poll.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the development and
maintenance of risk management and internal control systems of the
Company and evaluation of their effectiveness. The Company adopts a
comprehensive risk management and internal control structure to
handle and manage its risks. The Company has set up strict
procedures to ensure that no assets would be subject to unauthorized
use or disposal and appropriate accounting records are kept for the
preparation of reliable financial reports in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the risk management,
internal control and financial control systems. It discusses with the
management regarding the risk management and internal control
systems to ensure they have performed their duties to establish
effective risk management and internal control systems. The Audit
Committee is also responsible for ensuring that the internal audit
function is adequately resourced and has appropriate stand within the
Company, and reviewing the adequacy of qualifications and
experience, training programs and relevant budgets of staff in charge
of accounting, financial reporting and internal audit of the Company.

Based on the information and confirmation of the management and
internal audit department, the internal control system of the Group
covers all of its activities and transactions, and the management shall
conduct regular risk assessment (at least annually) and monitor and
report the progress of actions taken to cope with significant risks from
time to time. The Company has set up a supervisory and audit office
which carries out audit and supervisory work independently annually
under the guidance and supervision of the Board, and directly reports
to the Chairman of the Board and the Audit Committee. The
accounting, financial reporting and internal audit personnel have
sufficient qualifications and experience and have received adequate
training within the review period.
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Appropriate policy and supervision have been designed and put in
place to safeguard assets against unauthorized use or disposal, ensure
compliance with relevant rules and regulations, maintain reliable
financial and accounting records pursuant to applicable accounting
standards and regulatory requirement on reporting and properly identify
and manage the major risks which may affect the performance of the
Group. The relevant system and internal control can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
or loss as they are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business targets.

The internal audit department of the Group carries out auditing work
aiming to control risks. Its annual working plan covers all major works
and procedures of the operational, business and service units of the
Group and special review will be conducted in accordance with the
requirement of the management. The results of audit shall be submitted
to the Audit Committee. The internal audit department will review and
follow up on issues raised during the audit to ensure effective
implementation and regularly report the progress to the Audit
Committee.

The internal audit department of the Group shall independently confirm
to each of the Board, the Audit Committee and the administrative
management of the Group that the internal control of the Group is
sufficient and effective. The head of the internal audit department of the
Group shall directly report to the chairman of the Audit Committee, the
Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of the Group.

The management is responsible for the design, implementation and
supervision of risk management and internal control systems, and shall
regularly report to the Board and/or the Audit Committee regarding the
effectiveness of the relevant system.
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REVIEW ON SYSTEMS EFFECTIVENESS

The review on effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems for 2017 covers the year ended 31 December 2017, in
which the Board has performed annual review on the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group
through the Audit Committee, and was of the opinion that the existing
risk management and internal control systems was sufficient and
effective. During the review, the Board has reviewed the adequacy of
resources, staff qualification and experience of the audit and financial
reporting function of the Group through the Audit Committee, and has
not identified any material deficiencies. The Board was not aware of
any material issues that may affect the shareholders and require their
attention, and was of the view that the internal control of the Group
was in full compliance with all of the code provisions relating to internal
control under the CG Code.

In conclusion, the Board strives to enhance the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group on an ongoing basis.

IMPROVING INTERNAL CONTROL MECHANISM
The Group has formulated the Manual of System Development
Procedures of Landsea Green Group ( {BRzF4k 2 £ E R E X RigH
€ F fit ) ) (V3 version), which covers all important aspects including
the project positioning, design management, cost management,
project management, sales management, customer management,
brand management, financial management, operation management
and human resources, to optimize the internal control system and
safeguard a stable operation and management. The Group has also
formulated systems for specific business procedures based on the
business lines, including the Management Measures on Project Design
and Quality ( ¢ T #2 5% & 52 & & # ## )% ) ), to further improve the
management of business risks and regulate the management of
business processes.

OPTIMIZING INTERNAL CONTROL MEASURES
Based on the characteristics of different risks and business segments,
the Company adopts various specific measures in respect of market
risk, financial risk, product risk, operational risk and information system
security in order to enhance the internal control standards. The
Company has also formulated the Cultural Strategy Handbook ( {31t
By & F 1) ), the Landsea Brand Handbook ( €Az Mk F ) ) and
the Staff Handbook to strengthen the behavioral management and
regulatory guidance of staff.
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PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
FOR THE HANDLING AND THE DISSEMINATION
OF INSIDE INFORMATION

In accordance with the requirements of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance and the Listing Rules, the Group shall disclose to the public
any inside information as soon as possible after such information
comes to the attention of the Board, unless such information is within
the scope under any safe harbours provision in the Securities and
Futures Ordinance. The Board will ensure such information will be kept
confidential before it is fully announced to the public.

If the Board considers that the confidentiality required cannot be kept,
or such information may have leaked already, such information will be
disclosed to the public immediately. We also endeavour to ensure that
the information contained in the annual report shall not be deceptive or
misleading in all material aspects, and there are no other material
matters the omission of which would make the information contained
therein to be deceptive or misleading, such that the insider information
disclosed can be made available to the public in an equal, timely and
effective manner.

In addition, if there occurs any significant risk events, the related
information will be disclosed to appropriate authorities and personnel in
a complete, accurate and timely manner, so that appropriate decisions
and measures can be made and implemented by the Group to deal
with such risk events. Meanwhile, in order to further develop the risks
management culture of the enterprise, as well as to enhance the risk
awareness of our staff, the Group has already rolled out training
programs, so that we can assure to maintain the balance between
business expansion and risk management in our operation.

CLEARLY DEFINING AUTHORITY OF
MANAGEMENT

Through a series of systemized and standardized measures including the
revision of Handbook of Authorities and Responsibilities ( <& F ) ),
the Company has strengthened the daily authorization management
and the authorization system, which has laid the foundation of the
existing authorization management system of the Company.
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HIGHLY EMPHASIZING PREVENTION AND
CONTROL OF SIGNIFICANT RISKS

The Company attaches high importance in the prevention, control and
investigation of significant risks. Pursuant to the principle of “Full
Coverage and Comprehensive Investigation to Control Risk”, the
Company conducts investigation with focuses on major areas including
tender and procurement, housing maintenance and marketing, and
implements rectification measures against each of the problems
identified for effective prevention and solution.

STRENGTHENING INTERNAL AUDIT AND
RECTIFICATION

The internal audit department of the Company has conducted audit on
the financial and internal control of the Company and its subsidiaries,
including the financial management, budget management, cost
management, procurement management and expense management,
and provide advices on rectification and risk prevention aiming to
improve systems, standardize procedures and optimize mechanisms.
Improvement has been made in response to the rectifying opinions for
the year.

IMPROVING ANTI-CORRUPTION MECHANISM
AND STRENGTHENING CASE MANAGEMENT
The Company has set up an anti-corruption committee, which consists
of Mr. Tian Ming, the Chairman of the Board, as the chairman, Mr.
Xiang Jiong, the Chief Executive Officer, and Ms. Zhou Qin, the Chief
Human Resource Officer as the vice chairman, and the supervisory and
audit office, the legal department and the human resource centre as
the working bodies. The Company has set up reporting email, reporting
hotline and WeChat reporting platform, and announcements are made
to the relevant internal and external units and personnel. If they have
any concern or opinion on the Company’s operation, they may reflect
to the Company via email, phone or WeChat platform. The Group has
zero tolerance towards corruption. Therefore, in the event of any
corruption, the Group will immediately report to the police.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
EERWE

The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 43
to the financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages
112 to 113.

The Directors recommended to the shareholders of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Monday, 28 May 2018 (“AGM”) a distribution of RMB3.54 cents
(equivalent to HK cents 4.42) per share out of contributed surplus of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017.

There is no arrangement that a shareholder of the Company has
waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital for the year ended 31
December 2017 are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

SHARES ISSUED

The Company did not issue any shares during the year ended 31
December 2017.

DEBENTURES ISSUED

The Company did not issue any debentures during the year ended 31
December 2017.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Particulars of a discussion and analysis on the activities specified in
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a fair
review of the Group’s business, a discussion on the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, future development in the Company’s
business and analysis using financial key performance indicators, are
set out in the sections headed “CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT”,
“MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” and “CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REPORT” in this annual report. The above sections
form an integral part of this directors’ report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The environmental policies and performance of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2017 are contained the information required
under Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules”), which will be published on the Stock Exchange’s
website and the Company’s website within three months after
publication of the Company’s 2017 annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and therefore the
Company is subject to relevant laws and regulations in Bermuda. In
addition, the Company is registered as a non-Hong Kong Company
under Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”) and therefore is subject to
the relevant provisions under the Companies Ordinance.

The Company is listed on the Stock Exchange and therefore the
Company is subject to the governance of the Listing Rules including
the disclosure requirements and corporate governance provisions
therein.

Under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571, Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO”), the Company is required to maintain a register
of interests in shares and short positions and a register of directors’
and chief executives’ interests and short positions and is obliged to
disclose price sensitive or inside information.
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The Group engages in properties development in the PRC and the
United States and therefore is subject to the relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC and the United States.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Company recognises that employees are our valuable assets. Thus
the Group provides competitive remuneration package to attract and
motivate the employees. The Group regularly reviews the remuneration
package of employees and makes necessary adjustments to conform to
the market standard. The Group also understands that it is important to
maintain good relationship with business partners and bank enterprises
to achieve its long-term goals. Accordingly, the management have kept
good communication, promptly exchanged ideas and shared business
update with them when appropriate. During the year under review, there
was no material and significant dispute between the Group and its
business partners or bank enterprises.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the identity of the shareholders entitled to
attend and vote at the AGM, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Monday, 21 May 2018 to Monday, 28 May 2018,
both dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
effected. All transfer of shares accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 18 May 2018.

For determining the entitlement of the shareholders to the proposed
distribution, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 5 June 2018 to Wednesday, 6 June 2018, both dates
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In
order to qualify for the proposed distribution, all transfer of shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 4 June 2018.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group revalued all of its investment properties at the year-end
date. The net increase in fair value of RMB28,910,000 has been
credited directly to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Details of the movements in the investment properties and property,
plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in notes
18 and 19 to the financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the amount standing to the credit of the
Company’s share premium account in the amount of RMB212,051,000
may be distributable in the form of fully paid bonus shares. Under the
laws of Bermuda, the Company’s contributed surplus may be
distributed under certain circumstances, as at 31 December 2017, the
balance was RMB476,029,000.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Tian Ming (Chairman)

Mr. Xiang Jiong (Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Shen Leying (Co-Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Xie Yuanijian (Chief Technology Officer)
Ms. Zhou Qin (Chief Human Resource Officer)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
Mr. Zhou Yimin

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Xu Xiaonian

Mr. Ding Yuan

Mr. Lee Kwan Hung

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 87, Mr. Ding Yuan, Mr.
Lee Kwan Hung and Mr. Zhou Yimin will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

REMYRURABE - TRERE

AEBPNEEBEGHESHREEDE - AR (EE
hEEE A R ¥ 28,910,000 LB E#E T ALAE 2 E K

AEBMZBEEENEARTHE - THERERF
N2 EEFED BTSN BHRRMFE18 K219 -

A7k 2
RZE—tEF+ZA=+—8  XRARKRMDEER
A A A R 212,051,000 7T 2 # BR3¢ 7] LA SR 4T
Rk - RBAREEN ARG CEHA
BRAIRETERATHRE R=ZF—+tF+=A4
=+—H - ##HAEARM 476,029,000 7T °
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The Company entered into a service contract with each of the
executive Directors on 11 November 2016 for a term of three years
commencing from (1) 1 August 2016 for Mr. Tian Ming, Ms. Shen
Leying and Mr. Xie Yuanjian; (2) 15 August 2016 for Ms. Zhou Qin; and
(8) 19 November 2016 for Mr. Xiang Jiong.

The Company entered into an appointment letter with each of Mr. Xu
Xiaonian, Mr. Ding Yuan and Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, independent non-
executive Directors, on 11 November 2016 for a term of three years
commencing from 1 August 2016.

The Company also entered into an appointment letter with Mr. Zhou
Yimin, a non-executive Director, on 17 November 2015 for a term of
three years commencing from 17 November 2015.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

ARBARZF-—RF+—AT - HEZIRITESEE
ARBEA B =T "ENA—B(BHELLE -
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+—A+tRRH=F-

BEBEEEEANAXEEMHBRARTAAEET
AR —FARMEEECEERERIN) M L2 RS
B8R -

N
=

Landsea Green Group Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2017




DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or were required
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as
follows:

LONG POSITION IN ORDINARY SHARES OF HK$0.01
EACH OF THE COMPANY

EERFETBRAERKRS - HER®D
SRk £

R-F—tF+-_A=+t—H EFHARFATE
TTBRABRARRSEEMREEE (EXRESF M
HEHERAIFEXVER) 2By - AR REHFF - #
ERERBFMAEGIEXVIETREHRAMNE
ARBIMBRA S RAR  IRBEESFRHE
{28 352 R ZA AL ER 1N 2% R B Pyl & RO it R 2 #E 25
KRR BRBLEMBETAEFETEZR SR
EFRI(MEESTR D ARTHEARR KRBTz
R MoXR T

REQAFABREENEBETEERZHFR

Number of Shares held/Approximate percentage in
total number of issued Shares

FEROBE, (HERTROBBBNE DL

Number of Number of Total
ordinary derivative number of
Name of Director Capacity Shares Shares Shares
BEEpE g4 EERHE TERGEE BB
Mr. Tian Ming (“Mr. Tian”) Interest of controlled corporations 2,545,611,927 463,560,113 3,009,172,040
HERLAE (THREE]) SIS EE RS (64.98%) (11.83%) (76.81%)
(Notes 1 and 3) (Notes 2 and 3)
(Fi#E1 R3) (HizE2 K 3)
Beneficial owner 3,172,000 3,277,500 6,449,500
ExEAA (0.08%) (0.08%) (0.16%)
(Note 4) (Note 4)
(FftzE4) (Pit5E4)

e
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Number of Shares held/Approximate percentage in

total number of issued Shares

FROBE, MHERTROBEBNED L

Number of Number of Total

ordinary derivative number of

Name of Director Capacity Shares Shares Shares

BEEps 227 EER#A TTERGBEAR LAEnECE

Mr. Xiang Jiong Beneficial owner - 3,277,500 3,277,500

I 55 A EREAA (0.08%) (0.08%)

(Note 4) (Note 4)

(Pt 4) (PiFE4)

Ms. Shen Leying Beneficial owner = 2,214,500 2,214,500

R+ EnEBA (0.06%) (0.06%)

(Note 4) (Note 4)

(FftzE4) (F5E4)

Mr. Xie Yuanjian Beneficial owner = 2,037,500 2,037,500

ARELAE ERBAA (0.05%) (0.05%)

(Note 4) (Note 4)

(FftE4) (PFif3E4)

Ms. Zhou Qin Beneficial owner 244,144 1,505,000 1,505,000

[E g+ EnEBA (0.01%) (0.04%) (0.04%)

(Note 4) (Note 4)

(FftE4) (PFid3E4)

Notes: BaE
(1) These include (i) 2,209,991,823 ordinary shares held through Greensheid ©) £ # (i)2,209,991,823 i i% 18 Greensheid Corporation
Corporation (“Greensheid”); (i) 218,902,171 ordinary shares held through Landsea ([Greensheid ) Fff 3% & #) % @ & - (i) 218,902,171 % 35 i@
International Holdings Limited (“Landsea International”); and (iii) 116,717,933 Landsea International Holdings Limited ([ Landsea
ordinary shares held through Easycorps Group Limited. International ) FT#5 & & @ A% © K (ii)116,717,933 A% i 18
Easycorps Group Limited FT# 5 2 EiBA% °

2 These 463,560,113 derivative shares are held through Landsea International which ) AATNR—F—75%F— A=+ B\ Landsea International

shall be issued by the Company upon exercise of the conversion rights attached to
the convertible perpetual securities in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$432,687,009 issued by the Company to Landsea International on 29 January
2016 .

N

FrEsiT A £ 54 ££ 432,687,009 /8 7T 2 AJ R 5k A & 2 AT A
AR B 1T E 18 15 % 1T 89 463,560,113 % 5 #8 Landsea
International #8 KI$T AR °
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©)) Greensheid is wholly-owned by Landsea International, which is in turn wholly-owned
by Landsea Group Co., Ltd. (“Landsea Group”). Mr. Tian is the controlling
shareholder of Landsea Group. Easycorps Group Limited is a company wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Tian Ming.

(4) These are restricted shares granted according to the restricted share award scheme
adopted by the Board on 2 July 2014.

Save as disclosed, as at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors and
the chief executives of the Company and their respective associates
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions in which
they are deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein or which were required
pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than those disclosed in the sections headed “Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions” below and
“Related Party Transactions” in note 41 to the financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2017, no contracts of significance to
which the Company or its subsidiaries were a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

Each of the directors has confirmed that none of them is engaged in,
or interested in any business which, directly or indirectly, competes or
is likely to compete with the business of the Group.

) Greensheid B Landsea International & & # A& * ifi Landsea
International BEAFF R ERN AR AR ([BAFEE]) 2 &%
F o M5 E BB & B & E AR AR 3R © Easycorps Group
Limited A —RHERALEEREERERAHIRT] ©

@ RER-_ZE-EFLtA-AHERRRMZBHIERN &
Byt BIR 2 RAIERAD

BREXPABEEEN Rt F+-_A=+—
B EZERARAETBTRABUMRBEEFS B 2B
SAMBERARRRERBZE (EEREHFLHE
ERBIEXVER) 2 Bt ~ HHEARMD RESH - HHR
B %&Hﬂfﬂlﬂﬁﬂ XVEBE 7 R8 D FAME RN
A MR Pz s BOR R (BIEIRIBRE 75 M B &)
ﬁF&'ﬁ1H<Kﬁﬁff)§2“="f’ETﬁEﬁEJZ%EZﬁE%ﬁZ%ﬁﬁ&M
B SRR 7 R HE (R DI 5 3562 (RARC SR 7% 15
PiFmiE MR BEIORR  IARBRETRIZA
HEARR R FT2 EamSRE -

EENERGHNzER

BIX HEXZEHERERS | RTENEE
F—tF+=H :+—a¢¢rgzam#&ﬁwﬁ41
(BT R %] METAREEIN  RAFEERFX
FREAER  ARABREEEHEEARAR A REHK
BRBIRIMZEMEXGHTER KB EESR TM
EPN 3ol

EENHEFRETNES

BEFHR  IEMENFEMNEAREXEHER
HEEBHFRAEBRAFOEBINEFHEE
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'’S INTERESTS
IN SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

Other than those disclosed in the sections headed “Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions” below and
“Related Party Transactions” in note 41 to the financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2017, at no time during the year had the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, and the controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance or any
contract of significance for the provision of services by the controlling
shareholders or any of its subsidiaries to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
During the year, the Group had charitable donation of RMB150,000
(2016: RMB1,110,000).

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme and the restricted share award
scheme of the Company as set out below in this report and also note
33 to the financial statements, other equity-linked agreement entered
into by the Group during the year or subsisting at the end of the year
are set out in the section headed “MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS” and also note 34 to the financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 2 July 2014, the Board adopted a restricted share award scheme
(“Share Award Scheme”) to recognise the contributions by employees
and to give incentives to retain them for the continuing operation and
development of the Group, as well as attract suitable personnel for
further development of the Group. The Directors strongly believe that
the continued success of the Group is closely tied with the commitment
and efforts of the employees of the Group. The shares subject to
restrictions (“Restricted Shares”) can serve as an incentive to motivate
them to further contribute to the Group. The Restricted Shares to be
awarded will be with reference to the performance, operating and
financial targets and other criteria determined by the Board from time
to time. The Share Award Scheme is effective for a term of 10 years
commencing on the date of adoption subject to any early termination

ERBRRNRERGN 2 #E

BIX HEXZEFEBERS | RTEREE"
E—tF+-A=1+—RLFEZHBHRRMT41
(Bl S X 5 | METFTINEEE SN - NA B SE A KT
B 1% B 1A B P 4R B4 AR A R SR ELAE (e Y /BB R B AT
MERERAGH - A BERRRAEEMNEA
BRI R B AR B Z AL E D BR AR 2 E
[EEZN=F K

ZEBEX
RAFEE  KNEBZEZBEHIAEARK150,0007T
(ZZ—R"F : AR¥1,110,0007T) °

i SR 89 175 R

B AR S TR TS IRAMITE 33 A A AN
SRR B R IR UL RR 13 SRR BN - AEERE R
TS SRR E R BT 0 H AR EAM D A BN [E 2
BB AN — SRS BRRMES -

EEEH
RAEE  BEIT R EEEHAAT BRI
BAEBMEERITRMAY o

BR 51 14 A 40 8 B =t &)
R-F—NFELAZB  EZRRMAR IR 82
Bhat 81 ([ It BBt 8 ) AZmFHER < BB BB
PR REE 2 HELEMBERMELE N AAK
SEE—THRRIIBEEAT - ESWHEE A5KHE
ZRHERNEAEERE 2 AERENERRE -
SRR BB (TR SIMER D |) 7] PAVE & — T RUB) bA (R
EfIE— P HAEEERTR - & FREZR S
RO B2ERR AEELZE RPBETA RS
BRI FERE 2 MR EETE o ki ZE
SPEREMEREER R+ REREER
IREFRFRUE -

— as may be determined by the Board.

Landsea Green Group Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2017




The summary of the principal terms and conditions of Share Award
Scheme were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 2 July
2014. As at 31 December 2017, an aggregate of 35,262,500
Restricted Shares were granted to reward the eligible awardees, details
of which are set out as below:

B BB T8 2 E B ER AR ER TN A A A
BfA-_T—NELtA-—BZAERN - R=_T—+
F+ZA=+—8 B LA 35,262,500 %R Fl
MR SRE S BRERBA T - FEBESOT

Number of
Restricted
Date of grant of Shares Outstanding at Outstanding at
Awardees Restricted Shares Granted 1 January 2017 31 December 2017  Vesting conditions
RIB-tf R=B-t%
B -A-Af t+ZA=t-AM
Ef£BAL BFRHMRE B R RASE 3 &8 BEKH
Directors (1) Subject to fulfilment of the year's preset
Bz performance, operation and financial targets at
Mr. Tian Ming 19 November 2014 1,696,000 1,696,000 1,696,000 the discretion of the Board
mBA%E E-mET-ATAR BAREESRRENERAT L EERE &
8 April 2016 1,681,500 1,681,500 1,681,500 ERMKAR
T EMANR
Mr. Xiang Jiong 19 November 2014 1,596,000 1,596,000 1,596,000 (2 After satisfying condition (1), a waiting period of
AMEE “E-MEF—-AT A two years is required.
8 April 2016 1,681,500 1,681,500 1,681,500 ERRE(ERAE  EEBREBRER
“Z—FmANR Ho
Ms. Shen Leying 19 November 2014 1,064,000 1,064,000 1,064,000
mELTT “T-mET-ATAA
8 April 2016 1,150,500 1,150,500 1,150,500
ZZ—EMANA
Mr. Xie Yuanjian 19 November 2014 1,064,000 1,064,000 1,064,000
AEREA “T-mET-ATAA
8 April 2016 973,500 973,500 973,500
ZE-FMANA
Ms. Zhou Qin 19 November 2014 620,000 620,000 620,000
EEen “T-mET-ATAA
8 April 2016 885,000 885,000 885,000
2 FmANR
Sub-total 12,312,000 12,312,000
Uiy
Other Employees 19 November 2014 11,888,000 11,888,000 11,888,000
HitfEs —Z-mE+-A+hA
8 April 2016 11,062,500 11,062,500 11,062,500
ZE-EMANA
Sub-total 22,950,500 22,950,500
Dt
Total 35,262,500 35,262,500 35,262,500
@t

-
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATION OF
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER UNDER RULE
13.18 OF THE LISTING RULES

On 24 April 2015, the Company as issuer, Haitong International
Securities Company Limited (“Haitong”) as subscriber, certain
subsidiary guarantors and Landsea Group entered into the
Subscription Agreement in relation to the issue to Haitong of 9.50%
Senior Notes due 2018 with an aggregate principal amount of
US$100,000,000 (the “Senior Notes”). Completion of the subscription
took place on 30 April 2015.

The Company, Landsea Group and the trustee entered into the
Keepwell Deed on 30 April 2015 for the benefit of the Senior Notes.
According to the Keepwell Deed, Landsea Group undertook that,
among others, it shall (a) directly or indirectly own and hold at least
50% of the outstanding shares of and control the Company; (b) cause
the Company to have the required consolidated net worth at all times;
(c) cause the Company to have sufficient liquidity; (d) cause the
Company to ensure that the repayment of principal or payment of
interest in respect of any shareholders’ loan provided to the Company
by Landsea Group should not be made when and if there is any
overdue payment on the interest, principal or any other obligation
under or in respect of the Senior Notes; and (e) cause the Company to
remain solvent and a going concern at all times under the laws of their
respective jurisdiction of incorporation or applicable accounting
standards.

The Company, Landsea Group and the trustee entered into the Deed
of Equity Interest Purchase Undertaking on 30 April 2015, pursuant to
which Landsea Group shall agree to purchase certain equity interests
upon the receipt of a written notice provided by the trustee following
the occurrence of an event of default.

If Landsea Group ceases to own more than 50% of the Shares, holders
of the Senior Notes will have the right, at such holder’s option, to
require the Company to redeem all, but not some only, of that holder’s
notes at 101% of their principal amount, together with accrued interest
to the date of redemption.

As at 31 December 2017, the Senior Notes remained outstanding.

ERBRRBRE EHRAE 138K 24
ERNEE

R-F-—RAFMA-+tMA  ARA(ERET
A BBEREFERAB(ERE] ERRE
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—N\FEHFELR9.50% 2 BEBHF(EREFF]) °
RBEFECR _Z-—AFEOA=+THEE=TK

R-ZZE—RFMA=+H &7 AFEERE
FEAMBRES 2 Fzs 5] LA FRIE - RIBAE R
& BAmSEAG (P ek B @ EREEE
BREFAEARRAC BTN RIZEF#EZLD50% : (b)
REARR—ERBBEMBZEAEERE (Ol
ARFREBRARDER : (HBEERERELE
FZBMIMNZHE - RS ERMEMEER - €
EARRERTEAF RE AR QAR Z M
BRREFEERSHIINAFE  REERERRAR
E R AR EERE A NRBE R B 2 MK
AVARER AP E R G ERERE -

RZZ-—HFMUA=+TH " ARF  BAFEERE
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The Company will continue to make relevant disclosure in its
subsequent interim and annual reports of the Company pursuant to
Rule 13.21 of the Listing Rules for as long as circumstances giving rise
to the obligation under Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules continue to
exist.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Company did
not have other disclosure obligations under Rule 13.18 of the Listing
Rules.

SHARE OPTIONS

The share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted and became
effective upon passing relevant ordinary resolution at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 25 April 2012. Summary of
the principal terms of the Scheme were set out in the circular to the
Company’s shareholders on 22 March 2012. No share option was
granted under the Scheme since its adoption.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Options” and
“Restricted Share Award Scheme” above, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Company’s Directors or chief executives to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.

R EWARRE1B2116% - WIFELIRAET LD
MAE 1B EFE 2 BN » AIARBBNE
BzHHRFEREDEBFELARBERE -

B EXFREES - REBEEMRANE13.18G HE
TE—tF+ZA=1+—H  RAARLEEAEM
BERME-

Jiz 19 HA ¥
BEE—_E-——FWA_+RABETZ2ARTRE
BERE L@AEMEEAE  ROBETE(Z
FHEI]) BERMI B B A AER o %At 8l 2 EERFKBE
EHIN _ZE——F=A+TZHEELRARRZ
KA - REME - W BRBZTERL RGN E
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B XX TR in HisE | Ko [ BRI 1 B BB T &1 | mER
PR EEE SN » AR A S ELAE AP B 2 R F A 4
SLEEARH BEARREETHEETRARR
BB AR R A E AR 2 B HEHF MR -

e

HRReEEERAE /| —T—tFFR




DIRECTORS' REPORT
EERWE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

As at 31 December 2017, the register of substantial shareholders R-_E—+F+_-_A=+—H ' XAFEEBZELER
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO HIEEHIEICIEFEZ TERRELME R B
shows that other than the interests disclosed above in respect of X BEEME TESRIETHRAE 2R
certain Directors and chief executives, the following shareholders had 4 » LA FRREREME AR AR HEAANA T2 BT
notified the Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of 7&K 7 H RS :

the Company:

ORDINARY SHARES OF HK$0.01 EACH OF THE AAREBREEOIIEBINEER
COMPANY

Number of Shares held/Percentage in
total number of issued Shares

FsROBE,/ HERTROBREI L

Number of Number of

Long position/ ordinary derivative
Name of Shareholder Short position Shares Shares Total
BRpEE/ 28 e/ %e LERE fTERHEA b
Landsea Group (Note 1) S B (FzE1) Long positioniT & 2,428,893,994 463,560,113 2,892,454,107
(62.00%) (11.83%) (73.83%)
Landsea International (Note 1) Landsea Intenational (Fi{% 1) Long positionfF & 2,428,893,994 463,560,113 2,892,454,107
(62.00%) (11.83%) (73.83%)
Greensheid (Note 1) Greensheid (1) Long posttioniT& 2,209,991,823 - 2,209,991,823
(66.41%) (66.41%)
Ping An Insurance (Group) Company HE TR RE (£E) RO ER AR Long positionf¥& 327,002,604 184,397,163 511,399,767
of China, Ltd. (Note 2) (MizE2) (8.35%) (4.71%) (13.05%)
Short positioni & 327,002,604 184,397,163 511,399,767
(8.35%) (4.71%) (13.05%)
Ping An Life Insurance Company FETZASRRROERAR Long positionff & 327,002,604 184,397,163 511,399,767
of China Ltd. (Note 2) (HizE0) (8.35%) (4.71%) (13.05%)
Short position% & 327,002,604 184,397,163 511,399,767
(8.35%) (4.71%) (13.05%)
Ping An Real Estate Company Ltd. FergERRAR (F2) Long position{¥& 327,002,604 184,397,163 511,399,767
(Note 2) (8.35%) (4.71%) (13.05%)
Short position% & 327,002,604 184,397,163 511,399,767
(8.35%) (4.71%) (13.05%)

N
=2
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Number of Shares held/Percentage in

total number of issued Shares

FisRABE,/ HERTROBEE AL

Number of Number of

Long position/ ordinary derivative
Name of Shareholder Short position Shares Shares Total
RRtE/ 48 e/ %R ERERYA fTERGEE ok
Pingan Real Estate Capital Ltd. (Note 2) ~ FRABEEAERAF (H32) Long position{¥& 327,002,604 184,397,163 511,399,767
(8.35%) (4.71%) (13.05%)
Short positioni & 327,002,604 184,397,163 511,399,767
(8.35%) 4.71%) (13.05%)
Fuji Investment Management Limited EEREERERAA (HE2) Long positionf¥& 327,002,604 184,397,163 511,399,767
(Note 2) (8.35%) (4.71%) (13.05%)
Short position & 327,002,604 184,397,163 511,399,767
(8.35%) (4.71%) (13.05%)
Mr. Wong Chung Tak, Richard (Note 3~ FHa/& % 4 (i35 3) Long positionff & 205,472,623 = 205,472,623
(5.24%) (5.24%)
Ms. Ng Ka Fong, Jenny (Note 3) REFHLT(HE3) Long positionff & 205,472,623 - 205,472,623
(5.24%) (5.24%)
Thing On Group Limited (Note 3) Thing On Group Limited (H7£3) Long position& 205,472,623 - 205,472,623
(5.24%) (5.24%)

Notes: BdaE -

(1) These include (i) 2,209,991,823 ordinary shares held through Greensheid, (ii) (1)
218,902,171 ordinary shares held through Landsea International and (iii)
463,560,113 derivative shares held through Landsea International which shall be
issued by the Company upon exercise of the conversion rights attached to the

convertible perpetual securities in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$432,687,009 issued by the Company on 29 January 2016 to Landsea

International.

Greensheid is wholly-owned by Landsea International, which is in turn wholly-owned

by Landsea Group. Therefore, Landsea International is deemed to be interested in
the shares held by Greensheid, and Landsea Group is deemed to be interested in
the shares held by Landsea International and Greensheid pursuant to the SFO.

1% ()2,209,991,823 % i i3 Greensheid T 5 A &) & i@ A%

(i)218,902,171 f&% iB Landsea International B 4 9 & 38 A%
Ry 2B R =ZF — < — A =+ N H AlLandsea
International BT 3% 17 7N & ¥ & 3£ 432,687,009 74 7T 2 7] #2 %
KA B 5 P BT AR iR AT (R 1% K 31T 80 463,560,113 iR 3

i8 Landsea International # 8 HIHT AR °

Greensheid F Landsea International 2 & # /& * il Landsea
International ERAFFSEE 2 E A - At - BEFHFRHE
{651 + Landsea International #% £% 4 7 Greensheid 3% A& 2 %
MR - MRS E MR AR Landsea International
K Greensheid 358 2 R H B #Ex o
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These include (i) 327,002,604 ordinary shares, and (i) 184,397,163 derivative
shares held by Fuji Investment Management Limited which are to be issued by the
Company upon exercise of the conversion rights attached to the convertible
perpetual securities in an aggregate principal amount of HK$130,000,000 issued by
the Company. Fuji Investment Management Limited is wholly-owned by Pingan Real
Estate Capital Limited which in turn is wholly-owned by Ping An Real Estate
Company Limited. Ping An Real Estate Company Limited is owned as to 49% by
Ping An Life Insurance Company of China Ltd., which in turn is owned as to 99.5%
by Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd. Therefore, each of Ping An
Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd., Ping An Life Insurance Company of
China Ltd., Ping An Real Estate Company Ltd. and Pingan Real Estate Capital Ltd.
is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Fuji Investment Management
Limited pursuant to the SFO. These 184,397,163 derivative shares have been
further adjusted to 196,969,696 derivative shares upon payment of the final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 on 3 July 2017.

The entire issued share capital of Thing On Group Limited (“Thing On”) is beneficially
owned by Mr. Wong Chung Tak, Richard (“Mr. Wong”). Ms. Ng Ka Fong, Jenny
(“Ms. Ng”) is the spouse of Mr. Wong. Therefore, Mr. Wong and Ms. Ng are deemed
to be interested in 205,472,623 ordinary shares held through Thing On.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any

other relevant interests or short positions in the shares and underlying

©) B¥E ()327,002,604 AR AR + K (i)184,397,163 IR E &K
BERARARMFHAEAAARRARRMETALE
4 #£ 130,000,000 7 7T 2 AR AR K A 28 5 FTH 5 AR MR 1T
FERBETINERD BEREEEFRARBFILTE
EERNERARZERA  MIELTBEEANEGRAFH
FLRIBEARAAZERE - TRABEARAAHTP
BFZ ANESRBENDERAREFL9%  MABEFLAS
REBERHD AR ARIHFTREFLZRE(RE)RKDBRAD A%
F99.5% ° Bt - BIBRFEFH REBEEA - PEFLRE(F
E)RMDERARE  FRAFELZASRBBROBRAR - ¥
THEARAFARFLZIBEEANGRATSBWR AR
EEREEBARAAFAZRODIEEER - Z
184,397, 163ATERB N —_E—+F+ A=AXNEHE=
T—RNF+_A=+—ALFEZRAREAZE—FHRERE
/196,969,696 & HTERAD °

(3 Thing On Group Limited ([Thing Onl) 2 2 & E #& 1T A H
FrEEE(ERE)BEHEES  MRESZXT(RLL])
ABEREZREGB Al TEERRZLTHBEARER
Thing On 48 Z 205,472,623 I% @Ak h A HERS ©

BREXFABEEEN RT—tF+_A=+—
B ARRHEEMS N AR RRD REBRD 2

shares of the Company as at 31 December 2017. HEM B BRESTIAR -

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the Group’s related party transactions for the year ended 31

December 2017 are set out in Note 41 to the consolidated financial

statements. Some of those transactions constituted connected

transactions or continuing connected transactions and have complied

with the relevant disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.

N
=2
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has the following
connected transactions:

(1) On 31 December 2015, the Company entered into the
shareholder loan framework agreement (“Framework Agreement”)
with Landsea Group, pursuant to which Landsea Group agreed
to grant shareholder loan(s) in an aggregate principal amount of
not exceeding RMB4,000,000,000 (or Hong Kong Dollar
equivalent) to the Company and/or its subsidiaries during the
two-year period up to 31 December 2017 at an interest rate of
5.5% per annum. As at 31 December 2017, Landsea
International Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Landsea Group, has granted loans in an aggregate amount of
RMB189,912,000 to the Company which remained outstanding
at 31 December 2017.

(2)  Apart from the grant of shareholder’s loan under the Framework
Agreement above, Landsea Group has also granted loans to the
Group in an aggregate principal amount of RMB3,385,482,000
which remained outstanding as at 31 December 2017. Such
loans included (i) certain loans with interest rate ranging from
5.3% to 6.6% per annum repayable in 5 years from the
respective date of drawdown, of which RMB1,665,000,000
remained outstanding as at 31 December 2017; and (i) some
short term interest free loans.

(3 On 31 December 2016, #MBAMBEZEEFR AR (Suzhou
Langkun Property Limited*) (“Suzhou Langkun”) entered into (i)
the loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement 1”) with JT &Rk ZzZE 5
EAFR AR (Jiangsu Guotai Huading Investment Company
Limited”) (“Jiangsu Huading”), being a 22.5% owner of Suzhou
Langkun, in relation to the provision of a loan of
RMB279,000,000 to Jiangsu Huading; and (i) the loan agreement
(the “Loan Agreement II”) with ST#HBEZEESRIBFERER A A
(Jiangsu Guotai Zijin Technology Development Company
Limited*) (“Jiangsu Zijin”), being a 22.5% owner of Suzhou
Langkun, in relation to the provision of loan of RMB279,000,000
to Jiangsu Zijin.

BERS
BE_ZT—+H&+-_A=1+t—BILEE K£BEAH
LARRER S ¢

(1) RZZE—AF+-A=+—H AL FHAF
SEEITRREFIERBZ ((EXEBZE] - 3
HEEREE_Z—tF+-_A=1+—HZH
BMFERRARAR R, KEMBRARREEH*
R R8T R B A R 4,000,000,000 7T (S HE
BID) ZIRREF - REFESE5%ETE - R
T—tF+-_A=1+—H BHFEEE2EWES
A @) Landsea International Holdings Limited 7]
ARalEiba £ ARK189,912,000T 2 &
FOR—E—+FE+-A=+—HBINKREE -

@) BRREEOERBERERRERIN - BAFE
ErmMASEERLEASLBEAARE
3,385,482,000 TME R * ZERR T —+
FHZA=T—RIKRERE ZERBRE)F
FENF53%ZE6.6% BRESHETERAEHRE
FSFABEZCETER EFARE
1,665,000,000tR = FE—+F+=A=+—
BIAEE : Ri)BETRBAREENK -

@ RZZT—RNFEF+-A=+—8 #HMNAHEE
BIRAF ([#RIMNEA ) B () IHERERKRE
BRAR(VIFRER ) (FFHEMNBAH22.5%
Ez)FIEZ MR (EF—OEXRBE]) - A
AB B RIERE SR AR 279,000,000 7T
MER k(i) EIHBERLeRHRERERA
Al (DIERRe ) (FFHEINEAE22.5% ) %
ERG®(EF_nEXRBE]) - AEE@ER
TER RS 1R A R# 279,000,000 THIE R °
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Suzhou Langkun is owned as to 55% by the Group, and 22.5%
each by Jiangsu Huading and Jiangsu Zijin, therefore, Jiangsu
Huading and Jiang Zijin are regarded as connected persons at
subsidiary level. The transactions contemplated under the Loan
Agreement | and the Loan Agreement Il constituted connected
transactions for the Company at subsidiary level under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules and are subject to notification and
announcement requirements but exempt from the circular,
independent financial advice and shareholders’ approval
requirements under Rule 14A.101 of the Listing Rules.

On 29 December 2017, Suzhou Langkun entered into (i) the two
loan agreements (the “2017 Loan Agreements I”) with Jiangsu
Huading in relation to the provision of loans of RMB285,750,000
to Jiangsu Huading; (ii) the two loan agreements (the “2017 Loan
Agreements II”) with Jiangsu Zijin in relation to the provision of
loans of RMB285,750,000 to Jiangsu Zijin.

The transactions contemplated under the 2017 Loan Agreements
| and the 2017 Loan Agreements Il constituted connected
transactions for the Company at subsidiary level under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules and are subject to notification and
announcement requirements but exempt from the circular,
independent financial advice and shareholders’ approval
requirements under Rule 14A.101 of the Listing Rules.

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has the following

non-exempt continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of

the Listing Rules:

N
=2

ERMNBAM A ASEEHE 5% e - ML ek
SETIHRZSADANEEH25%EE &
I IRMESETHEXSERARNBARE
EMBEAT - IRIEETARAE14AE - F—
MEFHREE —HERBBEIE THHEITHR
SERARRENBRAREAMNBER S WA
BTBARANENRE - EATEARRIER MR
BIZE14A101 RAVIE K ~ B~/ BT F5 R RS R AR R
BOERIHE o

@ RZZE—+tF+=-A=1+NB - &N B
IHESEITMNDENRHZ(ZE—LFF—
HEFHZE])  AREBRRIHERREEAR
#& 285,750,000 TTHI E 5K : (i) L8k £ 2 25 5] M
HBEZRHHE(ZE—tFE_HERRZE])
WA R BRI R RE AR 285,750,000
TLHYE K o
BEEMRAEI4AE  — S —FF—HE
FERE T+ EE AERGEE Mg
TR GERARTENRBE AR EBEABER
SWABTFTRARNENHRTE A RERE
ETRAIZE14A 101 15B0E R - 18 B 5 R R
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On 25 December 2017, the Company entered into the framework
agreement in relation to the development and construction entrusted
management services and sales agency services (“Project
Management Services Agreement”) with Landsea Group, pursuant to
which the Group shall provide development and construction entrusted
management services and sales agency services to Landsea Group
and its subsidiaries for a term of three years commencing from 25
December 2017 to 24 December 2020 at an annual cap of RMB120
million per year.

On 25 December 2017, the Company entered into the framework
agreement in relation to the properties services and properties
consulting services (“Properties Services and Consulting Agreement’)
with Landsea Group, pursuant to which Landsea Group or its
subsidiaries shall provide to the Group properties services and
properties consulting services for a fixed term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020 at the
respective annual caps at RMB7 million, RMB4 million and RMB4
million.

Given Landsea Group is interested in approximately 62.00% of the
issued share capital of the Company, Landsea Group is a connected
person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under the Project
Management Services Agreement and the Properties Services and
Consulting Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of
the Company and are subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements but exempt from independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has engaged the auditor of the Company to report the
continuing connected transactions of the Group in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unmodified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group in this

report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

R_ZTE—tF+-_A=+HHB ARREBFEE
I EBEBAZREREZREERG KIS RER
BOEEHZ(EEEERBHZED - Bt - &A%
BER-_Z—tF+_AZ+HBEZT=_FTF
TZAZTEBM=FH " ABAFEERENE
ARERHAZERZREERB RHEERERE
FELRAARE 12088 -

REZZB—+tF+ZAZ+HHB ' AARHEHAFEE
I — BB ERS R EE AR IER G =

(MRS R RHZE]) o BUL - BAFFS B sk H T
BARER-_ZE—NF—A—AEEE=FHH "
RAEERHMERE R EZARYS BEE-F
—EFF+A=T—HAL FEELERIFIABAR
B7TEEL ARB4EETLRARK4I4HEET -

ERBAFERES AR R EBITIRAL 62.00% K
# o BEBLTRAUEUAS  BBEEEBLARAN
BEAT Bt - HEEEREHERDERSE X
BABEORZERARAN 2 IFERERS WA
BTRHEANERTE  BEHRPETERERE
HIFRE °

ARACEARRRZZEEMBRET LSS
M B BB R BE A R 3 3000 5% (AR ERT) [ F|Z
SEHEEVBERAIIRETE] > A2 EER
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The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and based on
the unmodified letter issued by the auditor of the Company noted
above, confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

(@ in the ordinary course and usual course of business of the
Company;

(b)  either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Company
than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent third
parties; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interest of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Board would like to confirm that the connected transactions and
the continuing connected transactions carried out during the year
ended 31 December 2017 and as disclosed in this report have
complied with the requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s purchased from the five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 25.8% of the Group’s total purchases
and purchased from the largest supplier included therein accounted for
approximately 12.0% of the Group’s total purchases.

During the year, the Group’s revenue from the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 22.2% of the Group’s total revenue and
revenue from Landsea Group, being the largest customer included
therein accounted for approximately 11.5% of the Group’s total
revenue.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the Company, their
associates, nor any shareholder which to the best knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital,
had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.

ARARBUFNTEFCENLAFERERH
WEER EXFtA AR RZEMELNBERER
Eul-”q:ﬁﬁwu\u/(:rikgz%

(@) MARBHBEEBBEPRIL

b) EREFRGHRETIL - HARB B A] L
MR ZAEEZERHRBR —REEGRTE
17 H‘J%ﬁf’{@?ﬁﬁ’\h@f&,ﬁéﬁjﬁ_ﬁi
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() RZEXRZWNHEBWBHIL KFIBRAFSE
B WNAARARRZEENE -

BERENBEREE_T—+tH&F+_-_A=+—HIt
FEMETHREISRZERER I UARARE
FrigEE BB~ EARBIE 14AZEFTERE °

TEEFRHER

RAFE  FEERTAHRER 2 RBEFEER
SR #25.8% ¥ BIEASAGER 2 HRE -
{57 S B R IE R 49 12.0%

RAFEE  REBRBAATPL ZIRAMGAREBE
WA#22.2%  REFAFER (RAEF) 2B AL
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2017, other than those purchased by the trustee for the
Share Award Scheme.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws, or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a prorate basis to existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.
The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the
Directors as required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong) when the Report of the Board of
the Directors prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with
section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of
Hong Kong).

SUFFICIENT OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 December 2017.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares. Intending
holders and investors of the Company’s shares are recommended to
consult their professional advisers if they are in any doubt as to the
taxation implications (including tax relief) of subscribing for, purchasing,
holding, disposing of or dealing in shares. It is emphasized that none of
the Company or its Directors or officers will accept any responsibility
for any tax effect on, or liabilities of, holders of shares in the Company
resulting from their subscription for, purchase, holding, disposal of or
dealing in such shares.
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AUDITOR B EED
The Company has not changed its external auditor during the past — Z&A2A &A@ = F L4 E /NS0 E0AT o
three years.

A resolution will be submitted to the 2018 AGM to re-appoint R-ZE—N\FRFHEAFAS LIRS RZERE

PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company. 78 BB AR B AR o
On behalf of the Board REXEER

Landsea Green Group Co., Ltd. BRReEBERAH

Shen Leying R

Director EE

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018 BE - N\FE=ZA=+/\H

N
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
EAVR R SR e

_E
pwc B 5% Rk i

To the shareholders of Landsea Green Group Co., Ltd. BHFSZEEEARATRRER
(Formerly known as “Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd.”) (FI78 [BAFFAR EER RN E]])
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (REFZEFMAK s BRAF)
OPINION =R

WHAT WE HAVE AUDITED RAEHFEFANRE

The consolidated financial statements of Landsea Green Group Co., FAF#SEEEAER A A (LA TER &2 8] ]) REK
Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on BRARI (A THE[EEE ) FEHRFE112E290 8

pages 112 to 290, which comprise: iR G MRk - B -

e the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017; e R —tF+ A=+ —HBNEEEEARE
=

e  the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the o  HEZHILFEMNGFEEZAKGER

year then ended;

e

B

#

E\I’
R

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the yearthen o  HZEZHILFERNLGRERE
ended;

e  the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then o HEZHIFEMNGEBRERER K
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include e GREMEHRRNT  BREESHBERHME -
a summary of significant accounting policies.

" 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong L EBTEATAEN I

Tel: +852 2289 8888  Fax: +852 2810 9888 B 5h: +852 2289 8888  {HH: +852 2810 9888 —
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

EAVR R S CTIEES

OUR OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

INDEPENDENCE

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
o Classification of Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate;

. Revenue recognition for development management services.

EMWER
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Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN ES AR ERRETEE

Classification of Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate
HEALAA  EELERBENTHNTE

Refer to note 4(j) (Classification of subsidiary, joint venture and
associate), note 16 (Interests in associates), note 17 (Interests
in joint ventures) and note 38 (Disposal of subsidiaries) to the
consolidated financial statements.
F2HEE MR 4) (HBLAR - &EeERBEAR
o) - iz 16 (RBEE A RIMER) 17 (REERE
B ) M8 (L EMBAR]) o

The Group invests in certain properties projects with various
other parties under various arrangements. According to the
terms of these arrangements, the Group classifies the
investments into subsidiary, joint venture or associate. As of
31 December 2017, the Group had investments in 32 joint
ventures and 18 associates with carrying amount of
RMB1,885.44 million and RMB983.08 million, respectively. At
the same time, the Group had 7 non-wholly owned
subsidiaries with total non-controlling interest of RMB206.12
million. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
recognized gain from derecognition of subsidiaries due to loss
of control while retained these investments as joint ventures
and associates. These gains amounted to RMB107.19 million
and RMB178.43 million respectively; that is RMB285.62
million in total which represents 25.33% of profit before tax.
EXBERBEEETHEAREMMEAREETYWEER - R
BRETHNGER  EEERZERENERMBLAR - /%
PEIBERF - R_E—+F+_A=+—H BEKEHE
FREAGELERIBHBEAR FEESNA/RARE
1,885 44 BB TR ARKO83.08BET - AR - EXEEAFT
BFEREWBAR - HIFEHUERERERARK206.1288
ToBE_Z—+F+T_A=+—HILLFE EXERILER
REZHENONBRABMERMNG  ZEREREREED
ERBERTE - ENBORR/ARBI07T19BETRARYE
17843 BB & HARK285.62BHE T - HERKRBIATF
FEHY 25.33% ©

We understood, evaluated and tested the relevant control over
the Group’s classification of subsidiary, joint venture and
associate.

B - TR ERENEB LG
RIS AP AAERIERIE X -

AELERBEA

For material investments, individually or in aggregate, we
challenged management’s assessment and performed the
following audit procedures:

HEAKRE (ARIKET)ME  HMEREEREHOTE - I
EITUATEEF

We examined the legal documents associated with the
investments, to determine the key terms, including rights of the
investors, terms of shareholders’ agreements, dispute
resolution provisions, termination provisions, governance
structures and profit-sharing arrangements, and assessed
these key terms against the classification criteria.

BB ETRKREFAOERXT - NEE BRI -
BENEN  RRBZEOGRR - FEEORG - &
ERIIBRAE B - NEEN D BERF R %

BIEER

d Fr
R

When there have been subsequent changes to the
shareholders’ agreements or governance structures, we
assessed whether these changes would impact the initial
assessments by management.
ERFREXEAEBLREELZHE - RMTEZZEY
REYET ERBON S -
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EAVR R S CTIEES

Key Audit Matter
BERETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN ES AR ERREET SR

The classification and change of classification of the Group’s
investment involves significant judgement in determining the
levels of control and influence based on a number of criteria.
The classification has significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated statements of comprehensive income and
consolidated balance sheet due to their effect on consolidation
scope. Moreover, the reclassification from subsidiaries to
associates and joint ventures has significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated net profit.
ERERENERZHEREETRBRNEHRRTE HHE
TRERDBEHIREBRHE - DERAEEGRSBENT
2R HYEYESEENGE T HKEREGAEEREREA
BREE - I BHMBRARENSERBMERTAIREEDRE
HEKENGESFNEELERTE -

We, therefore, consider classification of subsidiary, joint
venture and associate a Key Audit Matter.

it - HMIRBANELG  aECERBERANDHER
REFTEIE o

We sought for written confirmations or communicated verbally
with co-operating parties, to confirm the contract clauses and
completeness of contracts and agreements we obtained and
whether there are any subsequent supplementary contracts
and agreements or amendments.

HfEEEMERLESIEN QAEBR - SREIRFIF
MaEkBENGRRE TR UEREEREEHRSAOR
R IERT

We assessed whether the considerations paid for acquisitions
or received from disposals of investments represent the fair
market value in an arm’s length transactions when there was
acquisition or disposal.

B E TRIBRER I NI EREFKRRNRERS
KENVBBIRENR TR PR TFHE -

We evaluated the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures in
respect of the classification and carrying values of subsidiaries,
associates, and joint ventures against the accounting
standards adopted by the Group.

BMFETESREEWBAR BEARREERENS I
REBRHENRBRRKIBEARESBEANGTERRERD °

Based on our audit procedures performed, we consider the
judgement made by management regarding the classification
of subsidiary, joint venture and associate supportable by
evidences we gathered.

EREMAUTHOESEF  RMRREBEHMBEBLAR
BEPELBERAN BN HEBER R FPMTKRERENX

# o

AN

106

Landsea Green Group Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2017




Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN ES AR ERRETEE

Revenue recognition for development management
services

A5 ETEE IR B A FE AT

Refer to note 2.28 (Accounting policy for revenue recognition),
note 4 (vii) (Critical accounting estimates and judgement for
revenue recognition for property development management
services fees) and note 5 (Revenue) of consolidation financial
statements.

BREFEAE I BHERNE2.28 (WA BB ESETHE) - BaE
4(vi) (T8 B F % B IR 7% B WA HER 1 B 5 & a1 51 K A1)
RMteES (WA ) °

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded
revenue from development management service amounted to
297.47 million, representing approximately 4.8% of the
Group’s total revenue.
HE-T—+tF+-_A=+—HILFE BE5ENRAZEERE
RBBRARBARKE29747TEET  HEREEBHAKRAL
4.8% °

The Group provides development management service
contracts for both floating and fixed fees and revenue is
recognised by using the percentage of completion method.
Significant accounting estimate is involved in the determination
of percentage of completion, in both the cost budget and the
projected sales and there is significant audit effort on revenue.
ERERFBRETWEIRABERRBEEH - RATK
BOWEERBA - BE KB D LR REXNG GG
BREKATEERATHER  ZFWARBES TESIEE
BK-

We, therefore, consider the revenue recognition for
development management service a Key Audit Matter.

At - BB BEEREERBBAERSRERETEEH -

We understood, evaluated and tested the controls over
revenue recognition for development management services.

BT RE - FHE R R T R RS AR AT BRI E X -

We assessed if the percentage of completion used is
reasonable and consistently applied. In respect of cost incurred
and cost to completion, we tested actual costs incurred to
supporting evidence, performed site visit to project, and agreed
the cost to completion to approved budgets. We compared
with hindsight, the actual costs incurred with the budget of
previous years to assess the realiability of the budget.

B EMATKE LR EEEAERER - MRNEEL
RARBRIRAE  BZMREEREEXNEIEZFILRE  #
TEHEBEMEZER  WHRERTRNASE EESLEZRF - &
PIABRELEKAEBEFENBEESRLE - EMmaTMHE
FAGK LI i

We assessed the reasonableness and sensitivity of
management estimation for cost to completion with
comparison to similar projects of the Group, actual costs
variance to budget by stage.

BMmAERESENELIER  SRRERKAEES
M ERMMEERBEHR TN Z G5t & B MG -

For estimation in respect of projected sales, we compared
projected sales volume and price to similar projects and
available market data including registered selling prices for
transaction, and also offer prices of property nearby with
similar characteristics.

TBETHEMETAE - BMLBBALUIEROEHERRER
MZZAEEERFEEENBOIMERBFRENHHIE -

We considered the accounting estimations used in revenue
recognition for development management services were
supported by evidence we gathered.

HAIR BB PT UL ER IR B A A 15 B 2 B IR RS W A W R AT
KA Bt -
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EAVR R S CTIEES

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the
chairman’s statement and management discussion and analysis (but
not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, and the corporate information, financial summary/financial
review, financial highlights, breakdown of major properties, directors
and senior management, report of the directors and corporate
governance report which are expected to be made available to us after
that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirement of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

b= =2

ERREFAHEMESAT - R ERR2ERM
RAZHBERE AR RSN EFEREREEER
iw R OMAEER (BT EREGREMEHRER LR N
REERE) - URBMIFAERNZ B RAERENH D
AEH  MBHME MBOE MBEHE XEY
XFHE BEFENSNEEE EFRRSNEEE

A -

\
/

BAHGRAMBRENBELL TRERMES &
PRI ZEEMERBRRTAFANEFTER

‘BARMBEEAMBRERNOEFT - RANTERH
BEMER  EUERT  ZEEMEEEE R
EUBHRRARMEETBRETR THNBREFHE
BEAREESEUF FEERHEREANER

ERBMEAITHIE  WRRMBREMEETF
EER#HRRLE  BMAFTEREZFETE-HEES
| HBfYRBEMRSE -

EERBERZEERGEMBERREA
EENEME

BERAEFARARBEESTMASEMN(EL
P R RE B BRD]) B B 5 AR E f
BEEMREEaMBHRE  THERRRELRS
MBHREROBE N FERRKFRERMERNE
REBRERAFTFEARLEHEE -
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

EfESEMBHRRE EFARNHESERSE
REMEN  YEERABATHRERERBLEAH
MEE - ARERFEEERGTER  RIFES
EERESEBRAFILEE  SHEELMERY
BRIE-

BERZBeAREEEERENMERERIE

REMRENGEMBRRAENE
£

BAWER  RYUSRAMBRRBBRES THFEH
RARFFREER M B R E KB RBLEE S ERF
& THABERMERNZEMRS - HFIER
RERZE-NN\—F(RBEE)F0GEE T (ER
ER)MERMOEBR - BRI 2IMARERIEE M B
B BT ERABENATAEMNEMALTER
SERBEEAERET - ARRIJRERKEHRE
BARERERB(EEETEMNDETHET X
—BAHRRAMTFER B EIR - SHREUA R AR
MEFS RS - WRAERMEMEBIELLE
KA RE R B & M MR E R ERBSE B |mER
PRYE I RO EORTE - BB BAA) 88 SR PR AL ] 4R AR AE &
x o

ERB(EBEAERDETRABRES - HIFE
AT ERHAE - REF T EREREE - BT -

o BBIFAFHEARIKGF R MERARE M H
REEBAHERBAWER - ReTMATER
R AR EE LR - A RERE R AEE /)
BARE  FRBME LR - ARARFER
BESRER  RE BFRER ERRE - %
EBNAEMESZ L - FREEERRRTEM
BYHEAHREULNER SN AREERE R
RMEHMEARFERBRAA AR
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e

VR IR ES

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit

findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

N

10

BREAMEIERIN
FHEE - BRERH  EXEFERS
BT AP RN AR I O (] R IR G o

TRREEZFEFT AR A EMES - UREHEENE
FHi2F - BB WA IFH B R B ARMEHI M B X
MBERER -

SHEE FARA ST OIS R &3
R B & TR o

HESRMARECLSTERNREHIELS
o RBAERNERE  BEESHFAER
FERBEAFRNERNTHEEMN - #imAeE
BHESENFBELERNELERERE 10
REMRBRFEEANEEE  MAEBEER
BN EPIRBEREIBHFEEPBRERTH
HEARE - BREBRENEETE - IRMEE
BRFBREEBR - RAINEREERNZEE
W& HILFBUSEERRE - AT - REFEIR
HERNFT G HERE T REFELE -

FHEFAMBERROERIRT N - BENA
B BREE  URRAVBHRREEFTER
RIBFAR ZHMEIA -

HEEBEAERXEH LB EERENF
R EENENRR  UARHSRSMBEHRRE
RER - BMEESEEFHNTM - EEMH
17 HPIARBEFBERAREZMEE -

BAREZZESRBTENE
BREEME
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Esmond S. C. Kwan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018

BZAPEAECZBQRIBH  HBRMACTEE
BB MMEEEXERER  YRMFABEREA
EAEMERASEFERMBLENAERBERNE

I8 - UREBEBRNERT - BB -

ftEEZZBBBENFRT  RMAEEWLER
HAFREAVBRRNEARSEER - AMBEK
MRESASFE  AMAEREM RSP R ELS
B BIFERERTIAALCRABEELER A
BimFEROBERT  MREEBHRERMRETAE
BREREKNAERRBBEENARN & - A
BIVRAETNEERSEPBBZER -

HERB Y ZBERENETHE ARARERA

BERAEB TSR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

et EWEK

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE_-ZF

—tFFT A=+ —BLFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=t+—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—+F —EF—RF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt e ARET ARETTT
Revenue WA 5 6,213,931 4,845,008
Cost of sales and services SHE R ARTE AL A 9 (4,690,410) (4,086,294)
Gross profit EF 1,523,521 758,714
Other income Hilgzs 7 150,704 142,681
Selling expenses HEEH (119,889) (90,115)
Administrative expenses THRER 9 (420,235) (288,754)
Fair value gain on an investment property B MEER AT BEFSE 18 28,910 41,750
Other gains, net E A F1FHEE 8 11,991 392,258
Operating profit & FE 1,175,002 956,534
Finance costs, net B & A F5E 10 (238,925) (194,085)
Share of gains of associates FELEE L A TIRIE 16 169,453 45,088
Share of gains of joint ventures FE(HEEDERNSE 17 21,881 24,930
Profit before income tax BR A48 B A1 K 1,127,411 832,467
Income tax expense FiStiE M 11 (406,570) (225,631)
Profit for the year FEFE 720,841 606,836
Other comprehensive income Hib2mss
Translation differences which may be Higr st A\IBmmfE X =5
subsequently recycled to the profit or loss 145,300 (122,282)
Other comprehensive income for the year, FEHEMPEIE - HBHE
net of tax 145,300 (122,282)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEXEKNSHALE 866,141 484,554

N
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Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=t+—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BT AR¥T AREFT
Profit for the year attributable to: FEFERER :
The shareholders of the Company Vi UNGIJiE 580,523 595,439
Non-controlling interests eI MRS 140,318 11,397
720,841 606,836
Total comprehensive income for the year EE2HKRHRBAERER
attributable to:
The shareholders of the Company ARARIPER 744,968 454,413
Non-controlling interests FEF I (AR 2S 121,173 30,141
866,141 484,554
Earnings per share attributable to BEREQARRNEESRKE
shareholders of the Company for the year (ISR A R¥%IR)
(expressed in RMB per share)
Basic earnings per share EARGRMES 12 0.143 0.147
Diluted earnings per share RTINS 12 0.127 0.131

The notes form an integal part of these consolidated financial

statements.

M FERE AR AR A M RER ) — B D

o
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

/\\/T\ % F 1/ 3

As at 31 December 2017 R=—F—tF+=-F=+—H

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2017 2016
—B—+t5F —E—RF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE ARET R ARETTT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FEREEE
Investment property KEMMZE 18 319,830 290,920
Property, plant and equipment TEE - THRERE 19 656,245 21,070
Interests in associates E’\\Hﬁﬁ EWNGE oL 2 16 983,077 744,099
Interests in joint ventures RELhENER 17 1,885,436 261,610
Other receivables, prepayments ,H\MJE%Z/TA SENE NG
and deposits 25 181,826 425,516
Amount due from related parties JRE W5 e 5 R IR 41(a) 1,370,535 187,036
Deferred tax assets BERIBE = 30 237,735 163,609
Goodwill GRS 9,460 9,460
5,644,144 2,093,320
Current assets REBEE
Properties held for sale EEHEmE 20 847,831 395,323
Properties under development HEREME 22 6,658,882 10,379,261
Inventories EiF 21 52,069 23,501
Deposits for purchase of land BB HhriEd 24 212,125 42,000
Trade receivables FEURBR X 23 629,462 233,270
Other receivables, prepayments HEfp i - TR kG €
and deposits 25 381,341 328,934
Amounts due from related parties JFE U RS 5 FRIR 41(a) 1,559,826 818,271
Amounts due from non-controlling FEUS FEIE I e RS TR
interests 26 571,500 558,000
Prepaid taxes AR 139,534 158,394
Restricted cash XPRHIIR % 27 281,952 215,722
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 27 3,341,835 2,761,130
14,676,357 15,913,806
Total assets BEE 20,320,501 18,007,126

N
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As at 31 December

R+=HAH=+—8H
2017 2016
—B—+t5F —E—RF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
liEsd AR%T R ARETTT
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Borrowings B 29 3,254,957 4,815,351
Deferred tax liabilities EEFHIEAE 30 75,537 52,850
Amounts due to related parties FE~T RAEE 5 B 41(b) 2,714,606 1,787,112
Amounts due to non-controlling interests  FE{ FEFE Sl MERE 25 FIE 31 17,217 211,492
6,062,317 6,866,805
Current liabilities RBEE
Creditors and accruals RN BT E R 28 2,001,908 1,367,759
Advanced proceeds received &P WE A TR SRIE
from customers 4,051,066 4,924,805
Amounts due to related parties FET AR 5 IE 41(b) 2,044,080 325,360
Amounts due to non-controlling interests ~ FE{ FE15 HIl M RE 25 3 IE 31 18,110 -
Borrowings RN 29 2,174,458 1,267,990
Taxation payable FERITRIE 270,499 201,691
10,560,121 8,087,605
Total liabilities wmas 16,622,438 14,954,410

e
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

SEEERE

As at 31 December 2017 E/\\;Y —tF+=-A=+—8H

As at 31 December

Rt+=-—A=t+—H
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE ARET R ARETTT
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable to BEREARRRNELRR #E
the shareholders of the Company
Share capital R& 7N 32 31,800 31,800
Convertible perpetual securities AR K A B 2 34 495,425 484,204
Reserves G 35 2,964,716 2,384,652
3,491,941 2,900,656
Non-controlling interests JEFE | MERE RS 36 206,122 152,060
Total equity R 3,698,063 3,052,716
Total liabilities and equity HBEENER 20,320,501 18,007,126

The notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 112 to 290 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2018 and were
signed on its behalf.

Xiang Jiong
48
Director

-
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

—II— A4

AN
N

/% PN II\EIII\

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EHR

;I:—?

—tF+-_HA=+—RALFE

Attributable to the shareholders of the Company

BERAARIIRR
Convertible Non-
perpetual controlling
Share securities Reserves interests
capital (note 34) (note 35) Total (note 36) Total
ATHRAR FEfE 1
KA =] Em
[E&N (Pf=E 34) (Ffi3E 35) #Et (MizE 36) #aEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIT AREBTT ARETRT ARETRT ARBFTT AREBTRT
At 1 January 2016 R-ZE—XE—H—AH 26,665 110,054 1,779,746 1,916,465 40,210 1,956,675
Business combination between HRAEFIFEERS G
entities under common control - - 1,484 1,484 - 1,484
At 1 January 2016 (Restated) R=-B—XE—H—H
(R=E5) 26,665 110,054 1,781,230 1,917,949 40,210 1,958,159
Profit for the year FERHE - - 595,439 595,439 11,397 606,836
Other comprehensive income Hih2mEUkES
Exchange difference arising from REBINETSEERER
translation of foreign operations =5 = - (141,026) (141,026) 18,744 (122,282)
Total comprehensive income FEZEWNGSHAE
for the year - - 454,413 454,413 30,141 484,554
Issuance of shares (note 32) TR (M3 32) 5,135 = 360,943 366,078 = 366,078
Dividend A& . = (133,934) (133,934) = (133,934)
Employee share based 1= 8 AR R (P 5 33)
compensation (note 33) - - 10,245 10,245 - 10,245
Shares held for share award scheme gt {7 22Eh 512145 A HRR 1D - - 1,846 1,846 - 1,846
Issuance of convertible perpetual 1T ARG K A B 55
securities (note 34) (PFI5E34) - 363,847 - 363,847 = 363,847
Accrued distribution to holders of —Hﬁﬂxikﬁ & AR AR
convertible perpetual securities 2k (HiEE34)
(note 34) = 18,661 (18,661) = = =
Contribution from ISR E R
non-controlling interests - - 24,426 24,426 278,509 302,935
Distribution to TR FEH2R I 1 R S 2 R
non-controlling interests - - - - (196,800) (196,800)
Distributions to holders of convertible W—Hﬁﬁxmﬁ\ BEHERAA
perpetual securities 7K = (8,358) - (8,358) - (8,358)
Consideration paid for business HEESIEEEKS G
combination between entities RE
under common control - - (95,856) (95,856) - (95,856)
Subtotal of transaction BRI F /g
with shareholders 5,185 374,150 149,009 528,294 81,709 610,003
At 31 December 2016 R-B—XREF
+=—BA=+—8 31,800 484,204 2,384,652 2,900,656 152,060 3,052,716
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

AN E

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE_-ZT—

b

tHET A=+ —BLFE

Attributable to the shareholders of the Company

BERETDTRR
Convertible Non-
perpetual controlling
Share securities Reserves interests
capital (note 34) (note 35) Total (note 36) Total
TR G
KA#SH s e
R (FtsE 34) (Ht&x 35) Bt (Bft&E 36) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR%®TR AR%TR AR®BTR AE®TR AR%Tx
At 1 January 2017 R-B—+t&—H—H 31,800 484204 2,384,652 2,900,656 152,060 3,052,716
Profit for the year FEFE - - 580,523 580,523 140,318 720,841
Other comprehensive income Htt2maE
Exchange difference arising from REGINETSEE £ MR N E 58
translation of foreign operations 164,445 164,445 (19,145) 145,300
Total comprehensive income FEZEWEEHE
for the year - - 744,968 744,968 121,173 866,141
Dividend Be - - (138,682) (138,682) - (138,682)
Shares held for share award scheme &5 $EB) =+ 213 B K% 15 - - (6,543) (6,543) - (6,543)
Accrued distribution to holders of }f*' oK A BHIFE AERT
convertible perpetual securities DK (FI5E34)
(note 34) - 19,679 (19,679) - - -
Contribution from non-controlling JEsE Stz E & (MIFE36)
interests (note 36) - - - - 24,674 24,674
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) W EE @A 7 (Mis: 37) 137,010 137,010
Transaction with non-controlling B JEPE I A 2R A 2
interests (note 36) (Ffi%E 36) (134,044) (134,044)
Distribution to non-controlling MFEE B RS 5k
interests (note 36) (Pif3£ 36) - - - - (61,344) (61,344)
Distributions to holders of convertible [a] AJ K A 5 H A DK
perpetual securities - (8,458) - (8,458) - (8,458)
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries BRIEHEHB AR (KHi5E38)
(note 38) - - - - (33,407) (33,407)
Subtotal of transaction B 5/ NaT
with shareholders - 11,221 (164,904)  (153,683) 67,111)  (220,794)
At 31 December 2017 R-Z—tHF+=-A=+—8H 31,800 495,425 2,964,716 3,491,941 206,122 3,698,063
The notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial H{:FBR ARG A M BREL —I5H ©

— statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+F+_A=+—HIFE

DATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—-HLEE

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FisE AR¥TR ARBT T
Cash flows from operating activities RETBNREESRE
Net cash generated in operations KESIRE F 5 40 1,448,120 2,411,562
Tax paid BEASHIE (401,092) (384,910)
Interest paid EATFLE (415,030) (233,477)
Net cash generated from operating activities TS & )FEE 631,998 1,793,175
Cash flows from investing activities RETENEESRE
Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries I B BT B A R R 25, 37 (1,946,561) (1,685,994)
Capital injection in joint ventures REERETE (1,000,444) (124,573)
Capital injection in associates REtERREE (12,138) (324,681)
Proceeds from disposal of joint ventures HESEDEMSHIIE 24,850 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HETEE « TH&&EN
plant and equipment Fri§ k18 21 94
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries, HEHBARMSHIE KRS
net of cash and cash equivalents RIEESEEY 38 776,199 312,559
Lendings to third parties BRTE=H (93,460) (338,320)
Interest received BEHFE 10,120 14,700
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BETEE - TRREE (646,760) (19,323)
Dividend from associates NG 72,000 -
Funding to related parties Bl 41(e) (324,319) -
Collection of funding to related parties W Bl = REEE S IR R E & 41(e) 1,278,253 1,421,028
Advance to non-controlling interests MR SRR MR RS BTN (13,500) (558,000)
Net cash used in investing activities L BB T R (1,875,739) (1,302,510)

e
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE_-ZF

—tFFT A=+ —BLFE

DATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December
BZ+-A=1+—-HILEE

2017 2016
Sl of ;3 —E—RF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BiaE AR¥TR ARETT
Cash flows from financing activities Fﬂﬁ;ﬁiﬁl HEER

Proceeds from borrowings B EIA 40(b) 2,887,033 4,579,687
Repayment of borrowings BIBER 40(b) (2,319,051) (4,982,988
Proceeds from related parties R & REEE T A FTS RUE 41(g) 2,080,044 1,533,593
Prepayment of due to non-controlling interests ~ FE{< JE1% Il MRS TBAT =GR IE R > (110,651) (286,754)
Repayment to related parties mRAEE B K 41(e) (453,230) -
Interest paid BfFLE - (231,743)
Contribution from non-controlling interests FEFEHIME R T E 36 24,674 305,802
Funding from non-controlling interests REFEZEH RN E 17,813 453,232
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company 2R Tﬂxﬁﬁ’lﬂxé (138,682) (133,934)
Distribution to non-controlling interests FEFE B MR R D R 36 (61,344) (196,800)
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary ~ YfE—Fd M‘T% NAIRFEIME (81,900) -
Issuance of ordinary shares, net of issuance cost 2¥1TE /AL + HBRZXITALAN - (2,714)

Distributions to holders of AR AEFRHE A
convertible perpetual securities 50BN (8,458) (8,358)
Increase in restricted cash PR &IER £ 32N (40,833) (41,459)
Net cash generated from financing activities BEZE TR H 2 FEE 1,795,415 987,564
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents B4 RBRRSZEEYLINFELE 551,674 1,478,229
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A— BRSNS EEY 2,761,130 1,262,269
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HINKSFEE SR i B 2 29,031 20,632
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+=—A=+—HHWRERRELZEY 27 3,341,835 2,761,130

The notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial

BN A AR A MR — &5

— statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IN=NE e B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—_T—+&+_A=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Landsea Green Group Co., Ltd. (formerly known as: Landsea
Green Properties Co., Ltd., the “Company”) was incorporated in
Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability. The
company changed its name from Landsea Green Properties Co.,
Ltd to Landsea Green Group Co., Ltd as approved by the
Special General Meeting on 28 February 2018. The addresses of
its registered office and principal place of business are Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM11, Bermuda and Room
5103, 51/F., The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong
respectively. The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”).

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Company and its
subsidiaries are referred to as the “Group” hereinafter. The Group
is principally engaged in property investment and property
development and sales.

In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding company of
the Company is BA 5% & B #x 17 B BR A 7] (Landsea Group Co.,
Ltd.), a company established in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Renminbi (“RMB’000”) and were approved for issue
by the board of directors on 28 March 2018.

—REH
s eSBERAR (AIEMFKEHESR
BRAR - [ARRFE]) /A RETMAK L E
BREBRDIAE - ARFKEBEHAFEEM
EERAREZRAFHEEEARAF - B
—NFZAZTN\RERRENRE
Ao dMERMIERFEEBKHE S R &
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton,
HM11, Bermuda A & &8 IR 2 f5 A8 99
SRR IRFR 5115103 E c KA RIRMDRES
BMERXZAARAR([FEMRA]) £ -

ARRBREERAR  ERHBARNES
AHBENREMBEHRRM T3 - RABRE
MEARGERAEE] AEETERE
FHERE FHERBERHEE -

EERG  ARANREER AT RAFEE
BROERATE - ZARRFEARLME (T
B )RRz -

AFAMBHRRAARET T ARETT))
2 WRHEERN_T—-N\F=A=tN
B #E/ETIES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HRRM L
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE_-ZF

N

122

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These

policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,

unless otherwise stated.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

(i)

(i)

Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622.

Historical cost convention
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of investment property
which is carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 4.

—tFFT A=+ —BLFE

2 FESHHERE

REANGEVBHRRACANEZ ST HRE
RT3 e BRREHRBIN - LEBRERAIIR
MERFEERER -

21 REEEE
() BFEBUBHEEAREERT

151
AEBNEAUBRRDIRBES

MBmEEA([EBETBREE
B ]) R 622 EF BN T EFIH
BRI -

(i) ELEFEH
iR A MR ERIBE L ACANE B
e YRR ARBEARNRE
HEMENEFBEFELDERT -

REFE BB BREERINT
BERAEFEARTHRRS G - F
BENETCEARNEBESERB
BARELHE - P ReEHE SRR
EEMFENEE - oor REERER
BMFIELERBR RMAFTHEHE
M EE4 R o
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
(iijl New and amended standards adopted by the

Group
The Group has applied the following standards and
amendments for the first time for their annual
reporting period commencing 1 January 2017:

. Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses — Amendments to HKAS
12, and

o Disclosure initiative — amendments to HKAS 7.

The adoption of these amendments did not have any
significant impact on the amounts recognized in prior
periods. Most of the amendments will also not affect
the current periods.

The amendments to HKAS 7 require disclosure of
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
see note 40.

2 FESHBERBE®)

21 mEEEE)

(iii) FEBERAHIRTET R AT R

rEBER T —+F—A—BHRA
AV F R E R R ATER R
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o BARERBEBRBRELENREA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IN=NE D B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ESBERE %)

POLICIES (continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 21 RBEEEE)
(iv) New standards and interpretations not yet (iv) DARBRAHIFTER R 2K
adopted
Up to the date of issuance of this report, the HKICPA HEARETZBEEH  HESEMAD
has issued the following new standards and NEBEBMATIER RN » 7%
amendments which are relevant to the Group’s SRR EREREBNEER
operations but are not yet effective and have not B EDARERRREREERER
been early adopted by the Group: B4 -
Effective for
annual periods
beginning
Standards/Amendments on or after note
R B8
ZEBRH
BRBH BHBEN R
HK 40 (Amendments) Transfer of Investment Property 1 January 2018
BB ERFE 0% (BR) HEEREME —Z-)\$—A—H
HK(IFRIC) 22 Foreign Currency Transactions 1 January 2018
and Advance Consideration
BB (AR BHRE2RE HNER 5 RBNHKE —Z2-\¥—A—H
ZEE)F22%
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018 (@)
BBUBRELENFE 155 BEFH KK —T-)\$—A—H (@)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018 (b)
BEMBRELRNFE IR SRTE —Z-N\¥—H—H (o)
HKFRS 4 (Amendments) Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with 1 January 2018 or
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts when the entity
first applies
HKFRS 9
BEEMBMELNEAR (B BEBMBRELNEIFRBREOERELY —T—-/\&—H—H
BRELEAFIREMIA HERERNRA
BBIERELER
oL
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
(iv) New standards and interpretations not yet

2 FESHBEERE®)

21 mEEEE)
(iv) 1DRIRABIFER R 2IE ()

adopted (Continued)
Effective for
annual periods
beginning
Standards/Amendments on or after note
RUT BE
ZEBRBRE
A/ BH% BEBEN  MHE
HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Classification and Measurement of Share-based 1 January 2018
Payment Transactions
BERMBREEIFE 25 (BH) UROAERNINZ SN ERGTE —Z-N\¥—H—H
Annual Improvements Annual Improvements to 1 January 2018
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
FREUHE BENBRELENFERE_T—NFE —Z-N\¥—H—H
- RFEH
HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor To be determined
HKAS 28 (Amendments) and its Associate or Joint Venture
BBUBREENE10 KREEEBME DTSRG E R ZHN 5
SRBEBGTAERIE 285 BEHEXHE
(&%)
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019 (©
BEMBRELNE 165 HE —E-h&—A—H (©
HK(IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 January 2019
BE(ARVBHRERERZES) AETREMENMEHNERE —Z-NF—A—H
2235
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2021
BB RELENETH REE L) —E_—%—-A—H
Amendment to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation 1 January 2019
EAMBRELNFEIOR (Bh) REERFHERERHE —E-hE—H—H
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE_-ZF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

N

126

POLICIES (continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(iv) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)
The Group has already commenced an assessment

of the impact of these new standards or

amendments, certain of which are relevant to the

Group’s operation. According to the preliminary

assessment made by the directors, no significant

impact on the financial performance and position of

the Group is expected when they become effective
except for HKFRS 15, HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16.

@

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Nature of change

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the
recognition of revenue. This will replace HKAS
18 which covers contracts for goods and
services and HKAS 11 which covers
construction contracts and the related
literature.

The new standard is based on the principle that
revenue is recognised when control of a good
or service transfers to a customer.

The standard permits either a full retrospective
or a modified retrospective approach for the
adoption.

—tF+H=+—RALFE

2 FESHBERE®)

21 wBEEEE)
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PR MR EREANTZE

@ BEUMBHREERFE 1554
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
(iv) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)

@

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Impact

Management has assessed the effects of
applying the new standard on the Group’ s
financial statements and has identified the
following areas that will be affected:

o Revenue from pre-sales of properties
under development is recognised when
or as the control of the asset is
transferred to the customer. Depending
on the terms of the contract and laws that
apply to the contract, control of the
properties under development may
transfer over time or at a point in time.
Control of the properties under
development is transferred over time if
the Group’ s performance do not create
an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance
completed to date.

When control of the property transfers
over time, revenue is recognised over the
period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the
completed property.

2 FESHBEERE®)

21 mEEEE)
(iv) BRI ERR B (E)
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B B LAE 1552
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BIEBE WEALE
MIESERKZBHE
BT Z AR -
BREAPYISE 2SI
BERs RIS o

BRI HRER
RMAEE  WABRA
MBER2EE TXE
MEEZEEER B
Al WASHERFES
B T W) 5 2 Y2 I R R 1

=7
s ©

e

127

HRReEEERAE /| —T—tFFR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/T\

B HRRM L

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE_-ZF

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

N

128

POLICIES (continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
(iv) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)
Impact (Continued)

The progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation
is measured based on the property
development costs incurred as a
percentage of total estimated costs for
complete satisfaction as allocated to the
contract.

Revenue for certain pre-sale properties
contracts may be changed and
recognised earlier over the period of time,
instead of at a single point in time under
the current accounting policy.

Certain costs incurred for obtaining a pre-
sale property contract (e.g. sale
commission), which is currently expensed
off in profit or loss directly, will be eligible
for capitalisation under HKFRS 15 and
match with revenue recognition pattern of
related contract in the future.

Presentation of contract assets and
liability. Reclassification shall be made as
at 1 January 2018 to be consistent with
the terminology used under HKFRS 15.

Based on the preliminary assessment, it will
have some impact on the Group’ s financial
position and result of operation upon adoption
HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2018.

—tF+H=+—RALFE
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
(iv) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)

(b)

HKFRS 9 (2014), “Financial instruments”
replaces the whole of HKAS 39

HKFRS 9 has three financial asset classification
categories for investments in debt instruments:
amortised cost, fair value through other

2 FESHBEERE®)

21 mEEEE)
(iv) BRI ERR B (E)

(b)

BB BFHREERFEINE (=
F—mF) 2B TA] HEA
BB B A ERE 9 EIRE
Al

B8 B 15 2 R 95k S
EHFTAREDR=ETH
BESRR : B#EKA EA

comprehensive income (“OCI”) and fair value AEESBAEME2E KA
through profit or loss. Classification is driven by ([HEmz2mk Al AR RKIE

the entity’s business model for managing the
debt instruments and their contractual cash
flow characteristics. Investments in equity
instruments are always measured at fair value.
However, management can make an
irrevocable election to present changes in fair
value in OCI, provided the instrument is not
held for trading. If the equity instrument is held
for trading, changes in fair value are presented
in profit or loss. For financial liabilities there are
two classification categories: amortised cost
and fair value through profit or loss. Where non-
derivative financial liabilities are designated at
fair value through profit or loss, the changes in
the fair value due to changes in the liability’s
own credit risk are recognised in OCI, unless
such changes in fair value would create an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which
case, all fair value movements are recognised
in profit or loss. There is no subsequent
recycling of the amounts in OCI to profit or loss.
For financial liabilities held for trading (including
derivative financial liabilities), all changes in fair
value are presented in profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

N

130

POLICIES (continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(iv) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)

(b)

HKFRS 9 (2014), “Financial instruments”
replaces the whole of HKAS 39 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 introduces a new model for the
recognition of impairment losses — the expected
credit losses (ECL) model, which constitutes a
change from the incurred loss model in HKAS 39.
HKFRS 9 contains a ‘three stage’ approach,
which is based on the change in credit quality of
financial assets since initial recognition. Assets
move through the three stages as credit quality
changes and the stages dictate how an entity
measures impairment losses and applies the
effective interest rate method. Where there is a
significant increase in credit risk, impairment is
measured using lifetime ECL rather than
12-month ECL.

While the Group has yet to undertake a detailed
assessment, there will be no significant impact on
the Group’s classification for financial assets and
liabilities. As the Group expects that its financial
assets and liabilities currently measured at
amortised cost will continue with their respective
classification and measurements. And the Group
does not hold any financial assets currently
classified as available-for-sale (AFS), financial
assets currently measured at fair value through
profit or loss or financial liabilities currently
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group expect the new impairment model
introduced by HKFRS9 will generally result in
earlier recognition of losses compared to the
current incurred loss model of HKAS 39.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
(iv) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)

(c)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”. The Group is the lessee of
certain buildings which are currently classified
as operating lease. The Group’s current
accounting policy for such leases is set out in
Note 2.32 with the Group’s future operating
lease commitments, which are not reflected in
the consolidated statement of financial position,
set out in Note 39. HKFRS 16 provides new
provisions for the accounting treatment of
leases and will in the future no longer allow
lessees to recognise certain leases outside of
the balance sheet. Instead, all non-current
leases must be recognised in the form of an
asset (for the right of use) and a financial liability
(for the payment obligation). Thus each lease
will be mapped in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position. Short-term
leases of less than twelve months and leases of
low-value assets are exempted from the
reporting obligation. The new standard will
therefore result in an increase in right of use
assets and an increase in financial liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
In the statement of profit or loss, as a result, the
operating expense under otherwise identical
circumstances will decrease, while depreciation
and amortisation and the interest expense will
increase.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(iv) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)

(©)

(Continued)

The Group consider that the adoption of the
new standard will have some impact on the
financial position of the Group as the related
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities will be
recognised upon adoption of the new standard
on 1 January 2019. However, the impact to the
financial performance of the Group will not be
Significant as the impact of amortisation of the
right-of-use assets and unwinding the discount
of the related payable will not be materially
different from the operating lease charges that
would have been recognised under the current
standard.

The Group does not intend to adopt the above
standards before their respective effective dates.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

2.3

SUBSIDIARIES

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations by the Group (refer to note 2.7).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
balance sheet, consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.

ASSOCIATES

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control. This is
generally the case where the Group holds between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting (see
note 2.5 below), after initially being recognised at cost.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

N
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2.4

2.5

JOINT ARRANGEMENTS

Joint arrangements are classified as either joint ventures or
joint operations depending on the contracted rights and
obligations of each investor. The Group has assessed the
nature of its joint arrangements and determined them to be
joint ventures.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method (see note 2.5 below), after initially being recognised
at cost in the consolidated balance sheet.

EQUITY ACCOUNTING

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits
or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s
share of movements in other comprehensive income of the
investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates and joint ventures
are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the
investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is
tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2.14.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IFEeHBERE )
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTERESTS 26 FEREZNEE

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with
equity shareholders of the Group. A change in ownership
interest results in an adjustment between the carrying
amounts of the controlling interests and non-controlling
interests to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount of the adjustment to
non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or
received is recognised in a separate reserve within equity
attributable to shareholders of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account
for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss where appropriate.
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POLICIES (continued)
2.7 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises
the:

. fair values of the assets transferred

. liabilities incurred to the former shareholders of the
acquired business

o equity interests issued by the Group

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)
The excess of the

. consideration transferred,

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity over the fair value of the
net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value
of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as
a bargain purchase.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.9 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares

N

138

segment information based on the regular internal financial

information reported to the executive directors for their

decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s

business components and for their review of the

performance of those components. The business

components in the internal financial information reported to

the executive directors are determined following the

Group’s major business and service lines.

2.10 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial
statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”), which is Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), Renminbi (‘RMB”) and US
dollars (“USD”) respectively. The consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally
recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred in
equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges
and qualifying net investment hedges or are
attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign
operation.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income within “Other gains/(losses) — net”.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.10 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities for each balance sheet are
translated at the date of that balance sheet;

— income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss and statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions), and

— all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in exchange reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation), all of
the currency translation differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
shareholders of the Company are reclassified to the
profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continued)
2.11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The
cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs, such
as repairs and maintenance, are charged to the profit or
loss during the year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment to their residual values using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives:

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms

Furniture, fixtures and 3-10 years
office equipment

Motor vehicles 5-10 years

Buildings 20 years

The assets’ residual value and useful life are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.14).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised as “Other
gains/(losses) — net” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

—tFFT A=+ —BLFE

2 FESHBERE®)

211 ABE - THERHE

TEE - TR R BIRE 2 AR Rt
FERBEEBRIIE BERABRER
BER MG EEZZUEFERR R EIA
I E RN E R ERRIERA

BERARBEZBEBRIEATEE
R 2 BRAMARRLEENz - BA
A EFTER - AEFAEREMNKREE
SERA—HEBELE (MER) - A
HEMEA (Gl RrREER) TEE
R EE AR IB=R -

TEE  ITHMERXBOFTERABUTH
A A FE RN EREN BER
HEEE

HEEFEE BHEEFH
FRE -HER 3E104F

PN RN
RE 52104
BF 204

EEMNFGEARAERAFHESHRE
BERE TR - W EE R REH AR -

ﬁéffgé!’]ﬁ%ﬁﬁm CEEF AR E g
- RIBE 1% & 2 &Y B T B OB = L 7T
H&E@%E(WE‘EZ.M) °

HENMESHERIZLBAEREEE
EEETEFZE WS 2R R A E
RR [EAPRS/(BER) F8] -

Landsea Green Group Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2017




2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IFE2HBERE &)
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 212 _REMYE

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by
the Group. It also includes properties that are being
constructed or developed for future use as investment
properties.

Investment property is initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing
costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are
carried at fair value, representing open market value
determined at each reporting date by external valuers. Fair
value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if
necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or
condition of the specific asset. If the information is not
available, the Group uses alternative valuation methods
such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are recorded
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in
fair value gains or losses on investment properties.

2.13 GOODWILL

Goodwill is measured as described in note 2.14. Goodwill
on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible
assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an
entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or
groups of units are identified at the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes,
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POLICIES (continued)
2.14 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Goodwill is not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

2.15 PROPERTIES HELD OR UNDER

DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

Properties under development and held for sale are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Development
cost of properties comprises cost of leasehold land
payments, construction costs and borrowing costs incurred
during the construction period. Upon completion, the
properties are transferred to completed properties held for
sale.

Net realisable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable variable selling
expenses and the anticipated costs to completion.

Properties under development and held for sale are
classified as current assets unless the construction period
of the relevant property development project is expected to
complete beyond normal operating cycle.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.16 INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value. Cost is determined using the weighted average

method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price

in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable

selling expenses.

2.17 INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS

0]

(ii)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled more than 12
months after the end of the balance sheet date.
These are classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables also include trade and
other receivables, amounts due from related parties
and non-controlling interests and cash and cash
equivalents in the consolidated balance sheet.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.
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POLICIES (continued)
2.17 INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL

ASSETS (Continued)

(iii)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. If a loan has a
variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment on
the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an
observable market price.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IE€HBERE®)
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL QAT RERHMERMEE (8)

ASSETS (Continued)

(iii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

2.18 OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in consolidated balance sheets when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers arising
from sales of properties or providing management and
development service. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
See note 2.17 for further information about the Group’s
accounting for trade receivables and a description of the
Group’s impairment policies.
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POLICIES (continued)
2.20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. Restricted cash is excluded from cash
and cash equivalents.

2.21 SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issue of shares
are deducted from share premium to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

2.22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods
or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within twelve
months after the reporting period (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IFE2HBERE &)
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 BORROWINGS AND BORROWING COSTS 2.23 ERREBEREAR

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the
establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised
as a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale.

2.24 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable
to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
expect to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

N

1483

POLICIES (continued)
2.24 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX

(Continued)

0]

(i)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the company’s subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Current income tax also includes PRC land
appreciation tax which is levied on the appreciation of
land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties
less deductible expenditures including land cost,
borrowing costs and all property development
expenditures.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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(ii)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.24 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX
(Continued)

(ii)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment
property that is measured at fair value is determined
assuming the property will be recovered entirely
through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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0]

(ii)

(iii)

POLICIES (continued)
2.25 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by the employees up to the
balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group participates in defined contribution
retirement benefit plans which are available to all
relevant employees. These plans are generally funded
through payments to schemes established by
governments or trustee administered funds. A defined
contribution plan is a pension plan under which the
Group pays contributions on mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis into a separate entity. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee services in the current and prior periods.
The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
plans are expensed as incurred and, in most cases,
are not reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions.

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised
as a liability when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made. Liabilities of bonus plan are
expected to be settled within twelve months and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when
they are settled.
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(ii)

(iii)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.25 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)
(iv) Restricted share award scheme

2 FESHBERE®)

225 EER®HA(£&)
(iv) RAMERGEB 2

The Group operates a restricted share award scheme
to recognise the contributions by employees. The fair
value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of restricted share is recognised as
employee benefit expense.

The total amount to be expensed over the vesting
period is determined by reference to the value of the
restricted shares granted:

o including any market performance conditions;

U excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions; and

U including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions.

The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of restricted share awards
that are expected to be vested. It recognises the
impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in
the profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to
other reserve.

Employee share trust is established, for the purposes
of awarding shares to eligible employees under the
restricted share award scheme.
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POLICIES (continued)
2.25 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

(iv) Restricted share award scheme (Continued)

The employee share trust is administered by an
independent trustee and is funded by the Group’s
cash contributions and recorded as contributions to
employee share trusts, an equity component. The
administrator of the employee share trust buys the
Company’s shares in the open market for award to
employees.

Upon vesting, the corresponding awards in the
share-based compensation reserve will be transferred
to the employee share trust for shares awarded to
employees.

2.26 PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it
is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 IFE@HHBERE®)
POLICIES (continued)

2.27 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE LIABILITIES 227 BB ERAE

Financial guarantee liabilities are recognised in respect of
the financial guarantee provided by the Group to the banks
for the property purchasers.

Financial guarantee liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the issue of the financial guarantee liabilities. After initial
recognition, such contracts are measured at the higher of
the present value of the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation and the amount
initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Financial guarantee liabilities are derecognised from the
consolidated balance sheets when, and only when, the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or
cancelled or expired.

2.28 REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. The Group recognises revenue
when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and
when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity.

Revenue from sale of properties and lands held for sale in
the ordinary course of business is recognised when all the
following conditions are satisfied:

()  the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the properties,
which is when the construction of relevant properties
has been completed, upon delivery, and collectability
of related receivables is reasonably assured;

(i)  the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the properties
are sold;
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POLICIES (continued)
2.28 REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

(iiy ~ the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

(iv) it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

(v  the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Deposits and instalments received from purchasers prior to
meeting the above criteria for revenue recognition are
included in the consolidated balance sheet under current
liabilities.

Revenue from sales of land improvement is recognised by
using the ‘percentage-of-completion’ method to determine
the appropriate amount to recognise in a given period. The
percentage of completion is established by reference to the
costs incurred to date compared to the total costs to be
incurred under the transaction. Provision is made for
foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated by
management. Where contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses exceed progress
billings, the surplus is treated as trade receivables. Where
progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date
plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus
is treated as advanced proceeds received from customers.

The Group provides property development and management
service to its customers which including brand authorisation
service, sales management service, green product
integration service and development management services.
The Group recognizes revenue on different types of service
by reference to the service’s stage of completion at the
balance sheet date when the outcome of the rending of
services can be estimated reliably:

— Revenue from brand authorisation, sales
management service and green-technical system
integration service fees is recognised in accounting
period in which the services are rendered.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.28 REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

Revenue from development management services
associated with both floating and fixed fees is
recognised by using the ‘percentage-of-completion’
method to determine the appropriate amount to
recognise in a given period. The percentage of
completion is established by reference to the costs
incurred to date compared to the total costs to be
incurred under the transaction. Where the outcome
of a contract cannot be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised only to the extent that the expenses
incurred are eligible to be recovered. Provision is
made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are
anticipated by management. Where contract costs
incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the
surplus is treated as trade receivables. Where
progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to
date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is treated as advanced proceeds received
from customers.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a

straight-line method over the term of the relevant lease.

Decoration service income is recognised when the related

services are provided.

2.29 INTEREST INCOME

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis

using the effective interest method.

2.30 DIVIDEND INCOME

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive

payment is established.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continued)
2.31 GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions. Government grants relating to costs are
deferred and recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period necessary to match
them with the costs they are intended to compensate.
Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to an
entity within the Group with no future related costs are
recognised as income of the period in which they become
receivable.

2.32 LEASES

The Group leases certain properties. Leases of properties
where the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the
lower of the fair value of the leased property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges,
are included in finance lease liabilities. Each lease payment
is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to the profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under finance
leases is depreciated over the asset’s useful life or over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term if there
is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain
ownership at the end of the lease term.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases (note 39). Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.33 DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

2.34 EQUITY INSTRUMENTS
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs. Respective distributions if and when declared are
treated as equity dividends.

Convertible perpetual securities issued by the Group that
have the above characteristics are classified as equity
instruments.
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POLICIES (continued)
2.35 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT

ASSETS

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that
outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognized but are disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is
virtually certain, an asset is recognized.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks such as
market risk (including foreign currency risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk, which result from its
operating, investing and financing activities. According to
the Group’s risk management policies, the financial risks
shall be assessed continuously by the management taken
into account of the prevailing conditions of the financial
market and other relevant variables to avoid excessive
concentrations of risk. The Group has not used any
derivatives or other instruments for hedging purpose. The
most significant financial risks to which the Group is
exposed to are described below.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Group mainly operates
and invests in Hong Kong, United States (“‘US”)
and the PRC with most of the transaction
denominated and settled in HK$, US$ and
RMB respectively. Foreign exchange risk mainly
arises from certain borrowings and other
current liabilities of the Company (with
functional currency of HK$) and the companies
located in US (with functional currency of US$)
which are denominated in RMB.

At 31 December 2017, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against HK$ and US$ with
all other variables held constant, pre-tax profit
for the year would have been approximately
RMB215,142,000 (2016: RMB203,870,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange differences on translation of RMB
denominated borrowings and inter-group loans.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

N

160

(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) HHEERE (&)
(i) Interest rate risk (i) FEREREE

(b)

The Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets and liabilities other than bank deposits
and borrowings. Bank balances and borrowings
at floating rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. The Group’s exposure to
market risk for changes in interest rates relates
primarily to bank balances which bear floating
interest rates. Management monitors the
interest rate risk and performs sensitivity
analysis on a regular basis.

At 31 December 2017, if interest rates on bank
balances and borrowings had been 50 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s bank interest income
and profit for the year would have been
approximately RMB7,240,000 (2016:
RMB17,157,000) lower/higher. The sensitivity
analysis has been determined assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the
balance sheet date.

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a

financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under the terms of the financial instrument
and cause a financial loss to the Group. The credit

risk of the Group mainly arises from bank balances

and deposits, trade and other receivables and
amounts due from related parties and non-controlling

interests. The carrying amounts of these balances

represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit

risk in relation to financial assets. Management has a

credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

(b)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on Group’s cash and cash equivalents
is limited because the counterparties are banks with
high credit ratings. In respect of trade and other
receivables and amounts due from related parties,
individual credit evaluations are performed on all
debtors. These evaluations focus on the debtors’
past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the debtors as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
debtors operate. The Group does not obtain collateral
from customers or counterparties in respect of
receivable.

The Group typically provides guarantees to banks in
connection with the customers’ borrowing of
mortgage loans to finance their purchase of
properties for an amount up to 70% of the total
purchase price of the property. If a purchaser defaults
on the payment of its mortgage loan during the
guarantee period, the bank holding the guarantee
may demand the Group to repay the outstanding
amount under the loan and any interest accrued
thereon. Under such circumstances, the Group is
able to retain the customer’s deposit and re-sell the
property to recover any amounts paid by the Group
to the bank. In this regard, the directors consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
Detailed disclosure of these guarantees is made in
note 42.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(c)

N
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Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and cash equivalents and the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities.

The Group’s primary cash requirements have been
for the payments for property development projects
and operating expenses. The Group finances its
working capital requirements mainly through internal
resources and borrowings from shareholders and
banks.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient cash balances and adequate
credit facilities to meet its liquidity requirement in the
short and long term.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay as of 31 December 2017.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

3 BKERRERE &)
31 HM¥ERREZE (&)
(c) #»BELEB (&)

Less than
1 year or
repayable on Between

At 31 December 2017

Creditors and accruals

Amounts due to non-controlling
interests and interest thereon

Amounts due to related parties and
interest thereon

Borrowings and interest thereon

At 31 December 2016
Creditors and accruals
Amounts due to non-controlling
interests and interest thereon
Amounts due to related parties
and interest thereon
Borrowings and interest thereon
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demand  1and2years Over 2 years Total
PR-EZ
REREER —EmE WEAL @t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETT ARETT ARETT
1,715,606 - - 1,715,606
20,176 19,283 - 39,459
2,120,416 502,153 2,291,850 4,914,419
2,495,178 362,004 3,175,999 6,033,181
1,185,656 - - 1,185,656
23,449 23,449 227,985 274,883
344,326 361,182 1,431,930 2,137,438
1,612,466 2,241,241 3,069,142 6,922,849
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

N
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3.2

3.3

FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION

Below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value by
valuation method. The different levels have been defined as
follows:

1. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

2. Inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

3. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

The Group’s investment property is recognised under level
3 of the fair value hierarchy and details of the valuation are
disclosed in note 18.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s current financial
assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair values
due to their short maturities.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group’s capital management objectives are:

— to ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern; and

—  to provide an adequate return to shareholders.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or obtain borrowings.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3
3.3 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

BRERER &)
3.3 BEAEKEE (&)

The Group monitors its capital structure on a basis of
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by
total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less
cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash pledged for
the Group’s borrowing. Total capital is calculated as net
debt plus total equity as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet.

The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 were
as follows:

AEERBEEABLREZEAR
B R ERABEEFREANE R ERT
8- BHFRANBREBRRS LIRS
ZEYRERARE G FHER AR F
Besrt8 - ERRBENEBFRNEGS
BEREBERARHBERSAE -

RZEBE—+tFRER_ZTE—XF+_H
—t—HWEEAGBLERNOT :

As at 31 December

W+=HA=+—H

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T R ARBT T

Borrowings (note 29) &R (F17E29) 5,429,415 6,083,341
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 27) & : IR& RIESZEW (Mizr27) (3,341,835) (2,761,130)
Restricted cash (note 27) ZRRHE S (E27) (129,290) (215,722)

Net debt &R %5 1,958,290 3,106,489
Total equity b 3,698,063 3,052,716
Total capital BARBERE 5,656,353 6,159,205
Gearing ratio BEBBLE 34% 50%

Restricted cash was pledged as securities for certain bank
borrowings and mortgage facilities of the Group and
management considers that such restricted cash should be
included in the calculation of net debt in order to reflect an
appropriate gearing ratio of the Group.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENT

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below:

(I CLASSIFICATION OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT

VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE

In the normal course of business, the Group develops
properties together with other developers or institutions,
through entering into co-operation agreements with these
parties. The rights and obligations of the Group and the
other parties are stipulated by respective co-operation
agreements, article of associations of the project
companies, etc. Because of the complexity of the
arrangements, significant judgement is needed in
determining whether the project company is subsidiary,
joint venture or associate of the Group. The Group makes
judgement based on the substance of the arrangements
and the definition of subsidiary, joint venture and associate.

() ESTIMATED FAIR VALUE OF INVESTMENT

PROPERTY

The Group’s investment property is stated at fair value
which is determined by an independent professional valuer.
Such valuation is made based on certain assumptions,
which are subject to uncertainties and might materially
differ from the actual results. In making the judgement,
reasonable consideration has been given to the underlying
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the reporting date. These estimates are regularly
compared to actual market data and actual transactions in
the market.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

4 BERESIHEFTRAE &)

JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(Illl) NET REALISABLE VALUE OF INVENTORY, (m E=F- BEFEEVERBRDEH
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE AND UNDER ER TSR FEE
DEVELOPMENT
Management determines the net realisable value of EEERBARITTISEE (NGO HEE
inventory, properties held for sale and under development RG)VEFEERF FEHEME RHEF
by using prevailing market data such as most recent sale EHERF EH FE  FFHIERET
transactions. Such assessment is made based on certain B EFSETEEREZ  AlgeE®T
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainties and might BRAEBRMEBER - EHHERETFTER
materially differ from the actual result. In making the BHREANMAEHBABBRRELEEZE
judgement, reasonable consideration has been given to the B ZEHABATHEETERMEER KX
underlying assumptions that are mainly based on market BERZ 5 ERVELLE o
condition existing at the reporting date. These estimates
are regularly compared to actual market data and actual
transactions in the market.

(IV) INCOME TAXES AND DEFERRED TAX (IV) FriSHiRIEEBIR

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong, US
and the PRC. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain in the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the year in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is likely that future taxable profits
will be available against which the temporary differences or
tax losses can be utilised. When the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences will
impact the recognition of deferred income tax assets and
income tax charges in the period in which such estimates
are changed.
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B HRRM L

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

N

168

v)

(Vi)

PRC LAND APPRECIATION TAXES

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes in the PRC.
However, the implementation and settlement of LAT varies
among various tax jurisdictions in cities of the PRC, and the
Group has not finalised its LAT calculation and payments
with local tax authorities in the PRC for most of its property
development projects. Accordingly, significant judgement is
required in determining the amount of land appreciation
and its related taxes. The Group recognises these liabilities
based on management’s best estimates. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax expenses and provisions of land appreciation
taxes in the period in which such determination is made.

IMPAIRMENT OF INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
AND JOINT VENTURES

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to identify any
impairment indicator for whether interests in associate and
joint ventures. This determination requires significant
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates,
among other factors, the duration and extent to which the
fair value of an investment is less than its cost; and the
financial health of and short-term business outlook for the
investee, including factors such as industry and sector
performance, changes in technology and operational and
financing cash flow.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENT (Continued)
(Vi) REVENUE RECOGNITION FOR

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICES
FEES

The Group uses the percentage-of-completion method in
the accounting of development management service
contract. Use of the percentage-of-completion method
requires the Group to estimate the total contract costs
incurred up to the end of the reporting period as a
percentage of total estimated costs to completion for each
contract. While for the contracts with the floating fees,
besides the determination of percentage of completion,
significant accounting estimates is also involved in the
determination of projected sales. The total revenue
recognised could be different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, and these differences will impact the
revenue in the periods in which such target properties are
delivered to customers.

(VI REVENUE RECOGNITION FOR SALES OF

LAND IMPROVEMENTS

The Group uses the percentage-of-completion method in
the accounting of sales of land improvements. Use of the
percentage-of-completion method requires the Group to
estimate the total contract costs incurred up to the end of
the reporting period as a percentage of total estimated
costs to completion for each contract.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_T—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

5 REVENUE 5 WA
Revenue recognized during the year is as follows: FARRNBALAT :
Year ended 31 December
BEt+-A=1+—HLEE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBTF T
Sale of properties and lands in SHEW S K T 5,379,563 4,121,233
— The PRC — 4,048,718 3,834,225
— The USA =3 1,330,845 287,008
Management services fee income (i) BB AR B W E (i) 753,225 623,171
Decoration service income 2 # R A Wz 46,313 74,141
Rental and management fee income KEYFHE REERE W
on investment property 26,548 26,463
Long-term rental apartment income RHEABMKES 8,282 -
6,213,931 4,845,008
(i) Breakdown of the revenue from management services is as 0} TEHERREUCABBAL T -
follows:
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=+—HLEE
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBT T
Revenue from development 2 E IR AR A
management service 297,472 269,056
Revenue from sales management service  $HEEIERIFIA 281,572 229,566
Revenue from green product FEEMBSRBKRA
integration services 152,775 83,280
Revenue from brand authorisation services 5 i 5% #E RIS A 21,406 41,269
753,225 623,171
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that
are used to make strategic decisions. These reports are prepared
on the same basis as these consolidated financial statements.

The chief operating decision-maker is identified as the executive
directors of the Company. The executive directors consider the
business from services perspective and have identified the
following operating segments:

(i) Investment office property;

(i)  Property and land development and sale;

(i)  Management services; and

(iv)  Long-term rental apartments.

The Group established the long-term rental apartment business
in 2017. To better measure the performance, a separate segment
is reported.

The executive directors assess the performance of the reportable
segments based on a measure of revenue and segment profit.
Segment profit includes profits from subsidiaries, share of profits
of joint ventures and share of profits of associates. This
represents the profit earned by each segment without allocation
of gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, interest
income on bank deposits, corporate expenses and corporate
finance costs charged in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. This is the measure reported to the
management of the Group for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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B HRRM L

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE_-ZF

—tFFT A=+ —BLFE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 ’“‘Zﬁé{t (&)
The segment information provided to the executive directors for 2 E—+tF+_A=+—HILFE  @H
the reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 2017 TEEEENRESZLENLDT -
is as follows:
Year ended 31 December 2017
BE-B—tF+-A=t-HLFE
Property
Investment and land Long-term
property development Management rental
office and sale services  apartments Total
FHER
VNS TR
RE R#E ERRE REQNE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TR AR%®TR AR%®TR AR%TR
Segment revenue (external) DEUA (SMEF) 26,548 5,425,876 753,225 8,282 6,213,931
Reportable segment profit s 2 ERF 45,511 1,113,465 410,885 (44,170) 1,525,691
Depreciation of property, plant TEE  IRMRENE
and equipment ) (9,374) (1,739) (142) (11,258)
Fair valug gain on REUMENDABES
investment properties 28,910 - - - 28,910
Share of gains of associates f‘&‘ {5 e NI - 169,453 - - 169,453
Share of gains of joint ventures BETENE - 21,881 - - 21,881
Segment assets "*IE BE 349,941 17,140,908 2,526,845 302,807 20,320,501
Segment liabilities HDEERE 83,313 15,772,957 662,542 103,626 16,622,438
Interests in joint ventures REEERBEDRARNER
and associates - 2,868,513 - - 2,868,513
Additions to non-current assets BINEREEE
(excluding financial assets) (TMeESREE) 28,925 220,746 13,814 156,910 420,395
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 IHEM @

Year ended 31 December 2016
BE-T-—AFt-A=1—HIEE

Property
Investment and land Long-term
property  development  Management rental
office and sale services  apartments Total
BHER
/N ES TR
RE RHHE ER R RENE st

RVB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'O00O  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTE ARETT ARBTE ARETT ARETE

Segment revenue (external) AEA (SN) 26,463 4,195,374 623,171 - 4845008
Reportable segment profit REHBFE 58,433 557,601 389,174 - 1,005,208
Depreciation of property, plant THE  IRERETE

and equipment @) (11,314) (1,100) - (12,417)
Fair value gain on REUMEN DA BENG

investment properties 41,750 - - - 41,750
Share of gains of associates i A= YNEIE - 45,088 - - 45,088
Share of gains of joint ventures EHEERETE - 24,930 - - 24,930
Finance costs NHER - (81,823) - = (81,823)
Segment assets NEEE 309,069 15,238,363 2,459,694 - 18,007,126
Segment liabilities NEEE 58,122 14,293 919 390,877 - 14,742,918
Additions to non-current assets EmMERBEE 41,760 683,348 406,903 - 1,132,011
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6

Reconciliations of segment profit to profit before income tax are

N
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as follows:

B HRRM L

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE_-ZF

—tF+H=+—RALFE

DEEM &)

7 B AR EERR PR S AT AUE VB BR AT

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1T-HLEE

2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARBT T
Segment profit 53 BB FI) 1,525,691 1,005,208
Bank interest income R1THI B U ER 10,120 14,700
Gains/(losses) on disposal of property, plant ~ HENEIE - TR KRR EH

and equipment M5/ (&B) ] 56

Unallocated corporate income RO ARBA 101 120
Unallocated corporate expenses F N NGIE= 355 (408,499) (187,617)
Profit before income tax BRETS BRI FE 1,127,411 832,467

Reconciliations of segment assets/liabilities to total assets/

liabilities are as follows:

DEMEERBEREEE ABENHERNT

As at 31 December

BR+=-—A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET R ARBFIT
Segment assets DEREE 20,320,501 18,007,126
Unallocated assets AOBLEE - =
Total assets BEE 20,320,501 18,007,126
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 ZSEEM @

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—AH
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Segment liabilities NEBEE 16,622,438 14,742,918
Unallocated liabilities AOBEEE - 211,492
Total liabilities marE 16,622,438 14,954,410
The Group does not have any single customer which contributes AR B I B A (E A KB U A 10% A /Y E
more than 10% of the Group’s revenue. —®5 o
Unallocated expenses mainly represent corporate expenses such APERERBETEIENRIER @ FINBIKE A
as finance costs and administrative expenses. Unallocated RITHER - AP EWRTEIEMERZ -
income mainly represents sundry income.
The Group’s revenue from external customers and non-current KREERKBINBREERIWA MIERBEE TR
assets are divided into the following geographical areas: AT Hb I8 (@ 152 5 -
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
SEREFBA FRBEE
Year ended 31 December As at 31 December
BE+—-A=1+—HLEE R+=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARETT AR®T ARBT T

Mainland China R A 4,863,089 4,530,170 5,064,967 1,823,786
The USA ES 1,350,842 314,838 578,475 133,930
Hong Kong (domicile) B (Eftib) - - 702 135,604

6,213,931 4,845,008 5,644,144 2,093,320
The revenue information above is based on the location of the A EWABRDREFAEMEMIEL o A E3E
customers. Non-current assets information above is based on MENEEEIVIREEMEHMIEDL -

the location of the assets.
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IN=NE D B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_T—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

7 OTHER INCOME 7 Hfthlzs

Year ended 31 December

BEt+-HA=1+—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—+F A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETT
Interest income from amounts due from joint ~ FEUL A & 1D 2 M B2 A Rl IR FI B

ventures and associates (note 41) ek (BsE41) 105,402 95,064
Interest income from non-controlling interests  FE32 Hil 14 #E 25 A7 Bk 75 23,764 -
Interest income from loan to third parties and ~ FEULSE = 77 &2 R U iE — BG4 A 7

deposit paid for acquisition of an associate AR S &9 F B (FHEE25)

(note 25) 13,362 22,117
Bank interest income RITH B ES - 14,700
Government grants BT 5,083 7,785
Interest income from financial products R A BB e 2,575 =
Sundry income IR 518 3,015

150,704 142,681
8 OTHER GAINS, NET 8 HFEGFHE

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=1+—HLEE

2017 2016

—E—tF —ZT—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARBT T

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) HEMB AR 215 (HEE38) 285,619 165,304

Gain on disposal of a joint venture EaEELFE 608 =
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant g ’% TEJJF TREREZ

and equipment 5/ (EE) 2 56

Net exchange (losses)/gains EFL (EE—ETE )/ 5 FE%E (270,320) 226,898

Others HAth (3,914) -

11,991 392,258
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EXPENSES BY NATURE

9 RUESENER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2017 2016
—F—+tF —ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARETT
Employee benefit expenses EEwRHNER
Directors’ remuneration (note 14) SR (MsE14)

— fees — e 900 1,028

— salaries and allowances — ¥4 NERL 15,324 13,171

— retirement benefit scheme contributions — RKEFIFTE 3R 355 329

— restricted share award (note 33(b)) — BRHIMERR (D 22 E) (P 5 33(b)) - 3,745

16,579 18,273
Other staff costs Hithk T & A

— wages, salaries and allowances — IT& - %4 K&=EEL 218,675 205,208

— retirement benefit scheme contributions — RIREAE SR 18,682 17,582

— other staff benefit — H B T 18 F 15,875 18,386

— restricted share award (note 33(b)) — PR HIMERR (D 22 B (P 5 33(b)) - 6,500

253,232 247,676
Cost of sale of properties and lands in HEMERTHER

— The PRC — 3,350,368 3,499,633

— The USA — X[ 1,183,222 291,236
Other taxes HAhFiI8 134,327 198,766
Advertising and promotion expenses BEEMKEEER 72,133 42,337
Rental expense for office buildings HAEHEER 35,904 15,294
Rental expense for long-term REAABHSER

rental apartments 11,543 =
Subcontracting fee DBEEH 28,205 18,781
Legal fees ERER 12,433 17,076
Professional fee EXEH 12,783 7,043
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  TNE1E - TR & REITE (FFH3E19)

(note 19) 11,258 12,417
Stamp duty ENIERL 5,746 9,365
Operating costs in respect of KEMENLEER

investment property 5,700 6,378
Decoration materials used (note 21) B AREEYE (E21) 4,788 19,856
Provision for impairment of trade receivables & U BE 2k @i E B4 (Fi 3£ 23)

(note 23) 2,783 2,138
Auditor’s remuneration A GIER

— Audit services — ERRE 1,298 985

— Non-audit services L 864 343
Provision of impairment losses on completed B8 TiS{EtH S W R E BB E

properties held for sale (note 20) (Pffz£20) 1,032 2,157
Others (i) E A (i) 86,336 55,409
Total o 5,230,534 4,465,163
Representing: 7
Cost of sales and services HE RIRTGE A 4,690,410 4,086,294
Administrative expenses 1THE R 420,235 288,754
Selling expenses HEZH 119,889 90,115

5,230,534 4,465,163

(i) Others include subsidiaries’ statutory and non-statutory audit fee of (i)

RMB3,727,000 to their respective auditors.

HA B EN B R R &S XEE S AEE RIBEER

% B AR 3,727,000 T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_T—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

10 FINANCE COSTS 10 B ER
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEFE
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREET T
Interest expense FMEER 526,813 571,684
— Bank borrowings — RITE 151,084 269,212
— Loans from the ultimate holding — RERKERARNER
company (note 41) (H3E41) 126,888 100,296
— Senior private notes (in USD) — BEFLEES (ET) 78,195 149,743
— EB-5 loans (in USD) — EB-5 53 (£7T) 21,626 5,950
— Loan from other financial institutes — HihmERENER(ET)
(in USD) 18,062 -
— Junior private notes (in USD) — RFMEES (ETT) 14,942 16,778
— Interest expense on amounts due to — RS AN F BB
related parties (note 41) (ff5E41) 99,275 29,705
— Sell and buy-back arrangement (in USD)  — & kBB ZHE (ET) (M5 22)
(note 22) 9,733 -
— Discounted bank accepted note (in RMB) — B BLIRERITHEN Z i (A RE) 4,380 =
— Loans from non-controlling interest — REEZEFIMEETER 2,628 -
Less: Interest capitalised W BAER B (285,286) (387,817)
241,527 183,867
Finance income B s W e
Bank interest income RITH B ES (10,120) =
Other finance charges E A B 52 7,518 10,218
238,925 194,085
The interest capitalization rate in 2017 is 6.5% (2016: 6.9%). REZFE-—EFNHNEEREERR65%(=F

— 7N 1 6.9%) °
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11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11 FISHEHR

Year ended 31 December

BEt+-HA=1+—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—t5F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARETIT
Current tax RIEARR I8
— Hong Kong profits tax — BENER
Tax expense for the year FEHIBER 1,770 -
Over-provision in prior years BAEFEBERE - (1,832)
— PRC enterprise income tax — RREMPEMEH
Tax expense for the year FEMIBER 383,903 266,544
— US profit tax — XTI SR
Tax expense for the year FEMBER - 170
385,673 264,882
PRC land appreciation tax R 1 M (AR 103,087 16,884
Deferred tax (note 30) IEXEFIR (M 5E30) (82,190) (66,135)
Total income tax expense FriSHi & AEE 406,570 225,631

(i)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at 16.5% (2016:
16.5%) on the assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for
the year.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and implementation Regulations of the EIT Law,
the applicable tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%,
except for Landsea Design which enjoys a preferential
income tax rate of 15% as approved by relevant tax
authorities.

PRC land appreciation tax is levied at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land
value, being the proceeds from sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including cost of leasehold lands,
borrowing costs, business taxes and all property
development expenditures. The tax is incurred upon

(il

EANEBRIIANFEEREBELENER
B B IR B R16.5%( Z B — N F
16.5% ) {E L i -

REFBEEEMSTE(EEMER
EDREBRGD - REMBQENE
A ER25% » AT RATEABABRE
MAIAEZE 15% MW EBMEHR XA
RSN o

B 1 b 3R (B 5 DA SH & WD SR PR 1S SRR
R X (BEREE LA - &K
PR BRBEAAEMERER WL
HIZEIR T F 30% = 60% B R R
Yo THIBERNDEMEREBEE
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B HRRM L

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(i)

N
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(Continued)

At of 31 December 2017, the Group has unused tax losses
RMB31,298,000 (2016: RMB41,029,000) available for
offset against future profits for certain entities in PRC which
have not been recognised due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The tax losses would expire within five
years.

The EIT Law and its implementation rules impose a
withholding tax at 10% for dividends distributed by a PRC-
resident enterprise to its immediate holding company
outside the PRC for earnings generated beginning 1
January 2008. A lower 5% withholding tax rate may be
applied when the immediate holding companies are
established in Hong Kong according to the tax treaty
arrangement between the PRC and Hong Kong. The
directors of the Company had confirmed that retained
earnings of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries as at 31
December 2017 will not be distributed in the foreseeable
future. No PRC withholding income tax was accrued during
the year ended 31 December 2017. The Group controls
the dividend policies of these subsidiaries and it has been
determined that the remaining earnings will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not recognize
deferred income tax liability for PRC withholding income tax
with amount of RMB259,722,000 (2016: RMB149,828,000)
on the remaining unremitted distributable profits generated
by its PRC subsidiaries attributable to the investors outside
the PRC with amount of RMB2,597,218,000 (2016:
RMB1,498,283,000), as the directors of the Company had
confirmed that the retained earnings as at 31 December
2017 will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

—tFFT A=+ —BLFE

(i)

11 FIBHER @)

(%)

NZE—+F+HA=1+—0 BBRE
FHEEENT]ERRRFER - ik
7N £ B 3 4 1 2R 0] FR VR K 8 R 2R A A9
REABIEEEARE 31,208,000 7T(=
T—RF : AR¥41,029,0007T) © BB
EEENAFERER o

CEMBTHEREBRRARREPEE
REXU-_FTNF-—A-—BHEELEN
Y 28 A0 E AR B AR S 0 B R AR R B R B
HR B 7R 10% TR - RIEH E
HERBRIMRBIHE LT - FERE
RABIKIINEE - A EARIEH 5% TR
HBBE - ARREECHR  A5E
TPEMBARNR-_FT—tF+ A
_—i— BREFREE TSR AR
DK -BE_ZT—+F+_HA=+—H
EFE - WEBTEBENMAEH - A
SEEHZEMNBARNREBERLD
EEBFREE TGN ERRDIK

R-ZT—+tFE+-_A=+—H AEH
I R HEE A BIR INE & & (G H A B
BRARBTRELAIHSEFBEEEA
R#2,597,218,0007L (=& —/RN4F : A
R 1,498,283,000 7T ) 1M = 4 &) 1 B 78
M5 € 8 A R 259,722,000 7T (=
T—NEF : AR¥149,828,0007T) #ER
BREFBHREE  THRARAFEER
ERRBABTERALARARS RN ZE
—tF+=ZA=+—HHBTFRK= -
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11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(i) Under the law of the US on Federal tax and state tax, the
blended tax rate of the US’s subsidiaries is 39.87%. US
profit tax is provided for at 39.87% of the profits for the US
statutory financial reporting purpose, adjusted for those
items which are not assessable or deductible. (The Tax
Cuts and Jobs Act was passed on December 22, 2017,
which reduced the corporate tax rate from 35% to 21%,
and the new 21% tax rate is effective for tax years
beginning after December 31, 2017.)

(ivy  The Company incurred a loss of RMB232,789,000 in year
2017. No deferred tax assets was recognised on the loss.

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at
the applicable rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which
the Group operates, based on existing legislations, interpretations
and practices in respect thereof.

11 FIBHER &)

(i) ARIEE @I RIMNROEBERE - =
BEIHE A RIREES T E A39.87% © HhE
B EEMBERFRME - EEFEHRIZF
) 30.87% sHRE S - WHLBARBIK
TOHEIE B fEE AR - ORI R EEE
22 (Tax Cuts and Jobs Act) R —Z —+
F+_A-+-—BEB ZEARGLE
RMEMIBE%RME21% * 21% HFHER
—E—+FE+ - A=+ BHBHNEDR
FEEM )

vy RNRABRZZTE—LtFELEBEARE
232,789,000 7T ° B4 FL 3% B 1R FE R (A
FEEFIBERE °

HAtb i[5 ER B A B TR IR AR B & 75

PrERDEAERMBITERREE - WIRIEZ
HRDERBROBRITED - REREAIEDL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IN=NE D B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_T—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11 FEHER ©)
Reconciliation between profit before income tax and income tax BTSRRI A E RS BB EERNT -

expense is as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1T-HLEE

2017 2016
N P
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTR ARBET T

Profit before income tax & BT 15 554 /i R R 1,127,411 832,467
PRC land appreciation tax R A b (E B (103,087) (16,884)
1,024,324 815,583

Tax on profit before income tax, calculated at  RFrSRBIFENTIIE @ HOEER X

the statutory rate of 25% (2016: 25%) 25% (ZZ—75%F : 25%) 5T H 256,081 203,896
Effect of different tax rates of group RE D RDERE R & & R R E QR [F
companies operating in other jurisdictions MR E (248) 2,156
Tax effect of non-taxable income (a) BERR U E RIS Z (a) (50,953) (44,292)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AAIR A WS & 29,175 39,832
Tax effect of unrecognized tax losses (b) AERHMEEEOHREZE b) 52,900 7,119
Over-provision in prior years BAEFEBERE - (1,832)
Others (c) E A (c) 16,528 1,868
Total wast 303,483 208,747
PRC land appreciation tax R B (A R 103,087 16,884
Income tax expenses FriSii & A 406,570 225,631
(@) Non-taxable income are mainly share of gains of associates and joint (@) BERBRETEAFRADEHE NI RAEDET
ventures. 8o
(b) Unrecognized tax losses mainly represent loss of the Company (note 11(iv)). (o) KERRBEREBEAARERE (KT 116v) °
(© Others mainly represent tax effect of realization of unrecognized temporary (© HE T ERERAAFEAMRAEBEZBANRGEY
difference in prior years. %o

N
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 Sz

() BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE () SBREXRRKzZ:
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit FIREARW S THIZEB R AR R IREH
attributable to shareholders of the Company by the AR AFE B 317 E @A A NE 15
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during BETE -
the year.

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1T—-HLEE

2017 2016
S P
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTR ARBET T

Profit attributable to shareholders BN AR RIRERAFE

of the Company 580,523 595,439
Accrued distribution of the convertible AR K A B H R ERT 2K

perpetual securities (note 34) (Ff3E34) (19,679) (18,661)

Profit used to determine basic earnings FREEE S RER W= A F)E

per share 560,844 576,778
Weighted average number of ordinary BT EERA N T HE(TR)

shares in issue (thousands) 3,917,571 3,917,571
Earnings per share BRI E (LEBRARESIR)

(expressed in RMB per share) 0.143 0.147
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE_-ZF

B HRRM L

—tF+H=+—RALFE

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 12 SRkE &)
(ii) DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE (i) HESKRWK=

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the MRS RERYERAREY
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding BHEELTBERMABRD BT ARD
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary IEFEHEEE - A A B —BAWE
shares. The Company has one category of dilutive potential HENBELZBER : TBRRKATS -
ordinary shares: convertible perpetual securities. The BREF AR K A B A EREE R 5T R
convertible perpetual securities are assumed to have been A% o

converted into ordinary shares.

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—ALFE

2017 2016
—g—tF 2 A%
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue (thousands)
Adjustment for:
— Assumed conversion of convertible
perpetual securities (thousands)

Adjusted weighted average number of
ordinary shares for diluted earnings per
share (thousands)

Diluted earnings per share
(expressed in RMB per share)

5B AR B R B A

580,523 595,439
BEITE BRI B (FRR)
3,917,571 3,917,571
EATSIEFE
RERE I [ MK A B S (T AL
660,530 611,126
RIEEEHEERKERN T B
LN (THR)
4,578,101 4,528,697
WREFR K E (AR ARES|TR)
0.127 0.131

N
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13 DIVIDEND

13 KB

Year ended 31 December

BEt+-HA=1+—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—+tfF A
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2016 of RMB3.54 cents
(2015: RMB3.4 cents) per fully
paid share

Dividend of convertible perpetual
securities

) BHEZZ—X"F+-—A=+—H
LIEFERREGRATIRN
ARBIB4H (ZE—REF
AR®3.45) 138,682 133,934
(i)  FATHRBKABFRE
19,679 18,661

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1T—-HLEE

2017 2016
—E—tE T A
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TF T ARET T

Proposed distribution of final dividend out of

contributed surplus account of RMB3.54
cents (equivalent to HK cents 4.42) (2016:
RMB3.54 cents (equivalent to HK cents 4))

EEEEARABRKRIRE RS
FREBRARK 3545
(FHER 4428 (ZF—RF -
AR 3545 (FBER48L))

per ordinary share 138,682 138,682
A final dividend relating to the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-_Z—R"F+-_A=1+—HItFEHXH
amounted to RMB138,682,000 was fully paid on 3 July 2017. B AR# 138,682,000 tE RN T —+HF+

A=A28K% -

e
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE_-ZF

B HRRM L

13 DIVIDEND (Continued)

N

186

The Board proposed to make a distribution out of contributed
surplus account of RMB3.54 cents (equivalent to HK cents 4.42)
(2016: RMB3.54 cents (equivalent to HK cents 4)) per ordinary
share amounting to a total of RMB138,682,000. The proposed
distribution is based on 3,917,570,961 (2016: 3,917,570,961
shares) issued as at 28 March 2018. The proposed final dividend
is not reflected as a dividend payable as of 31 December 2017,
but will be recorded as a distribution for the year ending 31
December 2018.

The proposed distribution out of contributed surplus account is
subject to the passing of an ordinary resolution for approving the
distribution by the shareholders at the annual general meeting of
the Company to be held on 28 May 2018.

—tF+H=+—RALFE

13 RE &)

EEREAEARBRKELIREBRAR
#3540 (FHER4.428) (ZZ—7RF : A
RE3540 (HBER4BI)) MWDK - BEH
B ARM138,682,0007T ° B0 K JIRE =
T-NEF=ZA=-Z+ N \HBHWEZETKRM
3,917,570,961 IR (==& — /<4 : 3,917,570,961
BRIEE - WKAKHARBETRAEZS—LF
TZA=T—BMENKE - BRIHEBE=
E—N\F+-A=+—ALFEEHNDIK -

EREBEAMARKRELNNDRBFRRR-F
—N\FERA-TN\BREITHARRABRBER
SRBEHAEBARRREHBRFREL DR T
BRERR - TAEE -
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14 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 14 EZ={EFRREZR

(i) DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (i) E=EE
The remuneration of each director is set out below: LEENMESEFIWOT -
For the year ended 31 December 2017: BE_Z—+F+-_A=1+—HItFE:
Contribution

Salaries, toretirement  Restricted

allowances and other share

Fees  and bonus benefits award Total
1% 20 RIKHR R

ik R¥EAL RHMERN R R st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR ARRTR ARET:R

2017 ZE-tF

Executive directors YTES

Tian Ming e - 4,504 69 - 4,573

Xiang Jiong Al - 2,994 75 - 3,069

Shen Leying gL - 3,041 98 - 3,139

Xie Yuanjian e - 2,646 75 - 2,721

Zhou Qin EE) - 2,139 38 - 2,177

Independent non-executive  BIFHTES

directors

Xu Xiaonian HNE 300 - - - 300

Ding Yuan T& 300 - - - 300

Lee Kwan Hung &S00 300 - - - 300

Non-executive directors FHTES

Zhou Yimin PR - - - - -
900 15,324 355 - 16,579

e
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

14 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

(i)

N

188

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

i) E=ME #©)

14 EETEFRES @)

Contribution
Salaries, to retirement Restricted
allowances and other share
Fees  and bonus benefits award Total
I%& - =28 R PR
ik RiEL  REMET B1n 228 st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
2016 —E—XE
Executive directors HITES
Tian Ming FH BF - 4,028 15 988 5,031
Xiang Jiong BEE - 2,948 70 988 4,006
Shen Leying gk - 2,886 100 677 3,663
Xie Yuanjian SR = 2,543 58 572 3,173
Zhou Qin JESE) 257 766 86 520 1,629
Independent non-executive BV EHITES
directors
Xu Xiaonian RN 257 - - - 257
Ding Yuan T 257 - - - 257
Lee Kwan Hung S o3 257 - - - 257
Non-executive director EHITES
Zhou Yimin PR - - - - -
1,028 13,171 329 3,745 18,273
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14 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

DIRECTORS’ RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND
TERMINATION BENEFITS

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
benefits or termination benefits during the year (2016:
Ditto).

CONSIDERATION PROVIDED TO THIRD
PARTIES FOR MAKING AVAILABLE
DIRECTORS’ SERVICES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2016: Ditto).

INFORMATION ABOUT LOANS, QUASI-
LOANS AND OTHER DEALINGS IN FAVOUR
OF DIRECTORS, CONTROLLED BODIES
CORPORATE BY AND CONNECTED ENTITIES
WITH SUCH DIRECTORS

There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and controlled entities with such directors
(2016: Ditto).

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Group was a
party and in which a director of the Group had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year (2016: Nil).

14 EETEARES @)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

ESHNERENRZILEREN

RAFE  HEE RS W KKREUE
MRABENREEEREMN(ZE R
F AR -

RRUEESBREOE=FRHANK
B

BE_T—tH+-_A=1t—HL*F
B ARE B ES R HEFRE AT
B=FXNRE(ZZ—XRF : HR) -

FHEUES HIZLEREBRE
ERAZHANER BERRHE

BMENESE EXEiEEREER
RIEBANER  BERREMRIFHR
BE(ZT—RE : 48R) o

ESRXS  RERGHNERE
=

ARARBEEAI L BAKEEXGAR - M
AEEEEERAMEAEERNESR
RERKFANEMEMFEENERR
5 REERARK(ZZE—RF 8-
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_T—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

15 FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND 15 IEBReFMALTRSREEEN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENT

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year included three existing (2016: four) directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in note
14.

The emoluments of the remaining two (2016: One) individuals
during the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 were as

i

RAFE  ARETUSEFHALEHE=4
(ZT—AF : O2)REEF  AMSRHE
14K DH PRI -

BE_Z—tHERZE-RF+-A=+—H
HEFE - ﬁ%—ltﬁlﬂ%(_‘g—/‘_\i P—R) AR

follows: HEN T -

Year ended 31 December

BZE+=-B=1+—HILEE
2017 2016
—E—+tfF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREETIT
Basic salaries, allowances and bonus HATE 2R RIEAD 9,788 2,874
Contribution to retirement benefits schemes R {RIEFIET 2 2k 148 67
Restricted share award BRI MR 1 228D - 530
9,936 3,471

The number of employees whose remuneration fee within the
following band was as follows:

HEHMaETHERSBEANESHRE -

Numbers of individuals

EE®A

2017 2016
—E—+F —ZT—RF

RMB3,000,000 to RMB4,000,000 AR # 3,000,000 &
AFR¥E 4,000,000 7T - 1

RMB4,000,000 to RMB5,000,000 AR 4,000,000 TE
AR ¥ 5,000,000 7T 1 =

RMBS5,000,000 to RMB6,000,000 AR 5,000,000 TE
AR ¥ 6,000,000 7T 1 =

N
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15 FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND 15 IEBReFMALTRSREEEN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENT il (=)
(Continued)
The senior management’s emoluments (excluding the five highest HE T +tFN_T—XRF+_A=1+—H
paid individuals and directors) during the year ended 31 IHFE SHAEEBNTMN(AEZEaEMA
December 2017 and 2016 fell within the following bands: TREZGRINE NIAERESERA -
Numbers of individuals
EE&E
2017 2016
—E—+t5F —E—RF
RMBO to RMB1,000,000 AR®OTLE
AF#1,000,0007T 1 1
RMB1,000,000 to RMB2,000,000 AR¥1,000,000TE
AR #2,000,0007T 9 3
RMB2,000,000 to RMB3,000,000 AR¥ 2,000,000 T2
AR # 3,000,0007T 1 3
RMB3,000,000 to RMB4,000,000 AR ¥ 3,000,000 TE
AR ¥ 4,000,0007T - 1
16 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 16 REE QAT ELRS
As at 31 December
R+=BA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
Share of net assets EIEFEE 983,077 744,099

e
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE_-ZF

—tF+H=+—RALFE

16 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 16

Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31

N

192

December 2017 which, in the opinion of the directors, are

material to the Group. The entities listed below have share capital

consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the

Group. The country of incorporation or registration is also their

principal place of business, and the proportion of ownership

interest is the same as the proportion of voting rights held.

REtE XA R ()
TXFEAAERR T —tF+A=1+—
AMEE AR MESRRAZSTAREAE
EESEK - TXMIEREEEREAERE
ERA T BRI - Eﬁﬂﬁii&ﬂﬁ.%ﬁ
REFZLEXME - MiFRLEAIEFBEIRERE
B LLBIEE o

Place of
business/
country of Measurement
incorporation % of ownership interest method Carrying amount
ESH
ARRLER EER % HEYD: BEE
As at 31 December As at 31 December
RT=A=+-H RT=A=+-H
2017 2016 2017 2016
“B-tE ZEE ZE-tE ZTRE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
Nanjng Xueheng Properies Co,Ltd ~ EIREEEEARAR thePRC 4990 4990 Equity method 305,877 322,607
il %
Nanjing Aojian Properties Co. Lid ERAREZABAA thePRC 1297 1297 Equity method 225,123 232,656
HE &
Chengdu Chengfeng Enterprise FAELEEREEA thePRC 33.00 10000 Foity method 214,389 -
Management and Consultant Limited ~ RAZ](KiE38) B&A
(note 38)
Immaterial associates (i) below FEABEAF (TR 237,688 188,836
Totalinterests in associates REENENAER 983,077 744,009
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16 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
() PROPORTIONAL COMMITMENTS AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES IN RESPECT OF
ASSOCIATES

16 REBLEQATINER ®)
() BERBEATNLARERSAE
&

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

Commitments — associates AE — BE QA

— lease commitment — FAEAE 9 -
— capital commitment — BREE 135,443 -

(I) SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FOR ASSOCIATES

The tables below provide summarised financial information
for those associates that are material to the Group. The
information disclosed reflects the amounts presented in the
financial statements of the relevant associates and not
Landsea Green Group Co., Ltd’s share of those amounts.
They have been amended to reflect adjustments made by
the entity when using the equity method, including fair value
adjustments and modifications for differences in accounting

policy.

() BEQXANTBERRE

TREIIBAEEBEA 2B E QA
BEMBE - AIEEN R 2
REIW I MR T2 O BCE - T IERA
FHREEEERARMAOIGEHEEE-
ZEBEMCIER] M RRERERAE
SOAFMEZAE  BRMLETERER
PRz ARt BERAR REXN -

e
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_T—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

16 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
(I) SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FOR ASSOCIATES (Continued)

16 RELEATINER ®)
) HMEQARANMBEERBE#E)

Chengdu

Chengfeng

Enterprise

Management

and

Nanjing Aojian Nanjing Xueheng Consultant

Properties Co.,Ltd Properties Co.,Ltd Limited

R

BRREE¥ BREHEX CEEEEA

BRAF BRAA BRAF

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017

—ZE-tf§ —E-REF —E-tf§ —E-RF —E-tf

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETTT ARBT T ARETTT AR¥TR
Current assets REEE

Cash and cash equivalents HERBREEEY 976,803 1,059,896 1,027,249 691,917 802,316

Other current assets HihmghEE 5,360,060 6,040,956 4,808,783 3,082,663 2,577,482

Total current assets MEEELE 6,336,863 7,100,852 5,836,032 3,774,580 3,379,798

Non-current assets FnEEE 7,468 21,532 17,467 11,474 55,467
Current liabilities mEAaE

Other current liabilities Hin 7w asE (4,378,232) (4,403,657) (5,205,934) (3,020,255) (1,652,506)

Total current liabilities B BEEE (4,378,232) (4,403,657) (5,205,934) (3,020,255) (1,652,506)
Non-current liabilities FrRBas

Financial liabiliies SEEE(TREEMNERR)

(excluding trade payables) - (800,000) - (100,000) (1,069,440)
Total non-current liabilities R A EEE - (800,000) - (100,000) (1,069,440)
Net assets BEFE 1,966,099 1,918,727 647,565 665,799 713,319
Group's share in % REEE®R% 12.97% 12.97% 49.90% 49.90% 33.00%
Group’s share REEENG 255,003 248,859 323,135 332,233 235,395
Adjustment A (29,880) (16,203) (17,258) (9,626) (21,006)
Carrying amount IRAE 225,123 232,656 305,877 322,607 214,389
Revenue A - - - -

Income tax expense FT{SHi& A 4,058 = 6,041 9,539 27,594
Loss for the year FEEBR (12,175) (23,911) (18,233) (28,727 (82,512)
Group's share AEEEN (1,579) (3,101) (9,098) (14,335) (27,229)

N
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16 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
(111) INDIVIDUALLY IMMATERIAL ASSOCIATES

In addition to the interests in associates disclosed above,

16 REEZEQTNESR @)
(D IREEEFEN:
B EHBMB A ATERN AEE
TR S T E RIS E AR A R
25 DAERSE AR o

the Group also has interests in a number of individually
immaterial associates that are accounted for using the
equity method.

As at 31 December

W+=HA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+t5F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBT T
Aggregate carrying amount of individually (ENIEREEpN: AN
immaterial associates AREEARE 237,688 188,836

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-HA=1+—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of:  NEE[F fE(G 4258 :
Profit Pl 207,359 62,524

17 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 17 REELENER

As at 31 December

R+=BA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Share of net assets ELFEE 1,885,436 261,610

e
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_T—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

17 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 17 REELEWRER )

Set out below are joint ventures of the Group as at 31 December TX A& ARE I%_ﬁ—tiﬂ— —A=+—
2017 which, in the opinion of the directors, are material to the HHEGELE  MEERRAXSERHEAE
group. The entities listed below have share capital consisting BEEAK o Tyﬁﬁﬁljfﬁ“jﬁgg*ﬁ1 SAREFRH
solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the group. B TR o Eﬂﬂﬁ_ﬂkuiﬂﬁl%ﬁ
The country of incorporation or registration is also their principal ABHITELSEME - MBRLFIEIFERER
place of business, and the proportion of ownership interest is the Hy L BIFRE o

same as the proportion of voting rights held.

Place of
business/
country of Measurement
incorporation % of ownership interest method Carrying amount
EEHY/
FMAELEAR BEER% HIEV:N REE
As at 31 December As at 31 December
R+=A=1-H Rt=A=t-H
2017 2016 2017 2016
E-tF 5% “E-+t5 -TN%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTT  AEETR
Zhongcheng Qiannian Investment EEPHESRERL  thePRC 50.00 - Equity method 335,931 -
Company (Limited Partnership)* (EREE) f BE
Jiaxin Langda Il Investment Company ~ ZEEfiE—%KEA¥  thePRC 29.98 - Equity method 513,446 -
(Limited Partnership)* R (EREE) i ERA
LS-NJ Port Imperial JV LLC (note 38)  LS-NJ Port Imperial V. the USA 51.00 100.00  Equity method 363,980 -
LLC(RizE38) B
Immaterial joint ventures (i) below FERRERE(TX(i) X 672,079 261,610
Total Interests in joint ventures RABLENERER 1,885,436 261,610
* These companies were incorporated during the year of 2017. * RERATRN T+ FHR MK o

N
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17 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 17 REETLEMNER &)
() PROPORTIONAL COMMITMENTS AND () BEREELENLEPERERIARE
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES IN RESPECT OF &
JOINT VENTURES

As at 31 December

W+=HA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Commitments — joint ventures RRBE — BEDLE
— capital commitment — BREIE 249,011 -
— lease commitment — THERIE 1,184 1,153

e
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

17

N
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INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 17 REELENER &)
() SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION () EELENMBEERBE
FOR JOINT VENTURES
Shanghai
Zhongcheng Jiaxin
Qiannian Langda Il
Investment Investment
Company Company LS-NJ Port
(Limited (Limited Imperial
Partnership) Partnership) JVLLC
EisrhiE EERECSR LS-NJ Port
B2BREFRL REGBLHE Imperial
(BERE®) (BERE®) JVLLC
2017 2017 2017
—EB—tF —E—tF —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT ARETR
Current assets MBEE
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIREEFEEY 17,830 17,431 101,418
Other current assets Himeh & e 629,320 1,600,550 1,123,859
Total current assets MENEEAE 647,150 1,617,981 1,225,277
Non-current assets EMBEE 24,850 94,642 10,180
Current liabilities mEask
Other current liabilities HimEa & (139) - (127,840)
Total current liabilities MENE EBEE (139) - (127,840)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Financial liabilities cRaE (T REER
(excluding trade payables) R - - (409,997)
Other non-current liabilities HEMIEREAR - - (2,078)
Total non-current liabilities IEREAEETE - - (412,075)
Net assets BEFE 671,861 1,712,623 695,542
Group’s share in % REEEL % 50.00% 29.98% 51.00%
Group’s share RNEFFEL 335,931 513,444 354,726
Adjustment T - 2 9,254
Carrying amount FREAE 335,931 513,446 363,980
Revenue A - - _
Income tax expense FSiiE A - 888 -
Loss for the year FEE A (139) (2,663) (4,801)
Group’s share AEBFENL (70) (798) (2,449)
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17 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 17 REELENER®)

() INDIVIDUALLY IMMATERIAL JOINT () BERIEERSELE
VENTURES
In addition to the interests in joint ventures disclosed above, BRENEENEECERERIN AEE
the Group also has interests in a number of individually MEEE THREAEERSESDENHE
immaterial joint ventures that are accounted for using the o ARETREALR ©
equity method.

As at 31 December

W+=HA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Aggregate carrying amount of individually EARIZEERA L EMRMmARE
immaterial joint ventures 672,079 261,610

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBT T

Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of:  NEE [ fE(L 4258 :
Profit palbE 25,198 24,930

e
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE_-ZF

18

N

200)

B HRRM L

—tFFT A=+ —BLFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

As at 31 December 2017, the Group held one block of
commercial building located in Shenzhen, the PRC. Changes to
the carrying amount of investment property in the consolidated
balance sheet are summarized as follows:

18

REMYWR

RZE—+F+_A=+—H KXEEHE—

BRI R BRI ZETF - A

BEERE

RORBE Y EREEZ SR T

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tF T RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBT T
At 1 January n—HA—H 290,920 249,170
Fair value gain AR BENE 28,910 41,750
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 319,830 290,920

The Group’s interest in investment property at its carrying
amount is analysed as follows:

REBRREMY XSRS

T

HEREED TR

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARETIT
In Mainland China, held on: EHREAMIEE :
Lease of 50 years 50 FHIfHE 319,830 290,920

Investment property was valued at 31 December 2017 by an
independent professionally qualified valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle
Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, who is a member of
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and has appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of similar
properties.

As at 31 December 2017, investment property with carrying
amount of RMB319,830,000 (2016: RMB290,920,000) was
pledged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings (note 29).

REMYMERBIEESERMGEMTERT
ERAELFAERAFAN-F—EF+=A

=t+—BETHE " FEH

ﬁlgﬁi\\ j)}%/ﬁ HUEEW% = E =4

?Ti%.ﬁ-{ﬁ&u

- WA #E

Bt R BB RS ERNT LR -

RZE—+tF+-A=+—0 RKEEAAR

#319,830,0007T( = & —

NE:ARE

290,920,000 7T) M E WX IBRIEALRE

B RS B SRR an (BT 29) -
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18 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued)

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

An independent valuation of the Group’s investment property
was performed by an independent and professionally qualified
valuer to determine the fair value of the investment property as at
31 December 2017 and 2016.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, all of the Group’s investment
property was within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as the
valuations were arrived at by reference to certain significant
unobservable inputs. There were no transfers between levels 1, 2
and 3 during the year.

VALUATION PROCESSES OF THE GROUP

The Group’s investment property was valued at 31 December
2017 by the independent professionally qualified valuer who
holds a recognised relevant professional qualification and has
recent experience in the locations and segments of the
investment properties valued. For all investment properties, their
current use equates to the best use.

The Group’s finance department includes a team that reviews the
valuations performed by the independent valuer for financial
reporting purposes. Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between the financial department and the
valuation team at least once every six months, in line with the
Group’s interim and annual reporting dates. This team reports
directly to the executive directors and the audit committee.

At each financial year end the finance department:

U Verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

o Assesses property valuations movements when compared
to the prior year valuation report;

o Holds discussions with the independent valuer.

18 BEMYE »)

IRBEEER
AEENREMYMEEHBYERSERMAE
RIETTEMME  WEBEEREEMER -F
—tERZEB-RETA=+—BH2AE
B-

HAEEL2EETEATAHSRHARERS
o RZE—tFER =T —AR"F+ZA=1+—
H AEEMEREUEMELHB AL BEER
ME=F - FRAFE— —R=RELEEE -

AEENEERRE
AEBNEREEMER-_FT—CtF+=A
=t —BBBIBESERMGEMETHE
ZLEMAERERTEERER - HAHER
RE MY EFrERAEMATEB R BT REER
B BRIMAREMEMFEHC ERRERR

7N 5% B B 755 BB P 5 2 B 8 S (BB & fih
18 PAEVEH B 75 ER 3 - BATS ERPT R i B E X
BRNEARL BT REZ(BAREENFH
RERHREBH—B) - AatwmGERE k&
R ZEBERAATESREZZECE
)

MG EFIRNSETREFEER

s REBUMAERENE2HEIZHAE:

o FHEMELEARL-—FEMGERSH

B

o HFYHEMETHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IN=NE D B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_T—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued) 18 REMYE &)
VALUATION TECHNIQUES fHERE
In valuing the property, the Group have adopted the income REB BB ZHEETHE 5T LE

REBENPTERK,HNIRAE 5T AT
MEMSWAFE YO RHENEREER
SfFHEERE  BRZES RS FRIEE
MERMELRERCABEAREE - BEIS
AT BATRE2EE@M S LAEMNEE
HEHERS -

approach by taking into account the net rental income of the
property derived from its existing leases and/or achievable in the
existing market with due allowance for the reversionary income
potential of the leases, which have been then capitalized to
determine the fair value at an appropriate capitalization rate.
Where appropriate, reference has also been made to the
comparable sale transactions as available in the relevant market.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the ERGETELEEL o
year.

BEEHEAT O BREAABMIBETHALE

Information about fair value measurements using

significant unobservable inputs as follows (Level 3)

B8 (F=/R) WERMF

Unobservable
inputs
Fair value at (probability-  Relationship
31 Dec 2017 Valuation Unobservable weighted  of unobservable
Description (RMB’000) technique(s) inputs average) inputs to fair value
R=B—-tF
+=-A=+-H AUHE
HAREE TABE BAHE TURZBAYE
b (AR®TR) #EFE BAHE (MEFHER) HALEENBE
Landsea Tower- 319,830 Term Term yields 5.5%  The higher the term yields, the
commercial and reversionary lower the fair value
building method
N EHRERZ FHRR FHlEERES  AABESER
—BEET
Reversionary yields 45%  The higher the reversion yields,
the lower the fair value
BN BlRaEEs  AAEEER
Vacancy rate 6%  The higher the vacancy rate, the
lower the fair value
FEX ZEXUS  RAEEBE
Average daily rental 3.20  The higher the average daily

per square meter

g¥hxEBHES

rental, the higher the fair value

AHBeEs  AREELS

N

2002

Landsea Green Group Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2017




18 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued)

18 BEMYE »)

VALUATION TECHNIQUES (Continued) LEFZEE)
Unobservable
inputs
Fair value at (probability-  Relationship
31Dec 2016  Valuation Unobservable weighted  of unobservable
Description (RMB’000)  technique(s) inputs average)  inputs to fair value
RZB—"F NAHE
+-A=+-H WA
WRAEE FABE (IEFHE  FaBEREARE
fait (AR®TR) ®ERE BARE Bx) HARBEENEER
Landsea Tower- 290,920 Termand Term yields 5.0%  The higher the term yields, the
commercial reversionary method lower the fair value
building
RN FHRERZ FHR R FHRRZES  AAEBESER
—HXET
Reversionary yields 55%  The higher the reversion yields, the
lower the fair value
EHWRE EHRREES  AAEBEYE
Vacancy rate 8%  The higher the vacancy rate, the
lower the fair value
FEX TEXYS  AABEEE
Average daily rental 2.70  The higher the average daily rental,

per square meter
BEHKAHHES

the higher the fair value
BHMEHS  AAEBEEES

e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_T—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

19 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

19 FBE  IHRRE

Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Buildings Total
HERT HE- %8
£15 3 INST AE EF st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AREFTT ARETTL AREFT
At 1 January 2016 R-B-xE—-HA-H
Cost B%N 3,748 15,034 2,722 = 21,504
Accumulated depreciation e (3,043) (3,263) (1,279) = (7,585)
Net carrying amount BREFE 705 11,771 1,443 - 13,919
Year ended 31 December 2016 HZ_-Z—AF
+ZR=+-H
LEE
Opening net carrying amount FURmFE 705 11,771 1,443 - 13,919
Additions =0 10,095 8,933 334 - 19,362
Depreciation e (8,675) (3,274) (468) - (12,417)
Disposals HE = ©) (35) = (38)
Exchange difference EHER 45 184 15 - 244
Closing net carrying amount FREMFE 2,170 17,611 1,289 = 21,070
At 31 December 2016 R-E-—RE
+=A=+-
Cost B 13,843 23,964 3,021 - 40,828
Accumulated depreciation Z5E (11,673) (6,353) (1,732) = (19,758)
Net carrying amount REFE 2,170 17,611 1,289 - 21,070
Year ended 31 December 2017 HBZ=-ZT—+t &
+=A=t+-H
HEE
Opening net carrying amount FUEEFE 2,170 17,611 1,289 - 21,070
Additions 0 174,337 22,983 365 449,074 646,759
Depreciation e (5,213) (5,632) (413) - (11,258)
Disposal e - (23) - - (23)
Exchange difference BN ER (61) (232) (10) - (303)
Closing net carrying amount FEREEFE 171,233 34,707 1,231 449,074 656,245
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+&
+ZRA=+-H
Cost B 188,180 46,919 3,386 449,074 687,559
Accumulated depreciation 2T E (16,947) (12,212) (2,155) - (31,314)
i Net carrying amount REFE 171,233 34,707 1,231 449,074 656,245
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19 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19

(Continued)

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
acquired two buildings for self-use and management,
which are located in Shanghai with cost of
RMB126,114,000 and RMB322,960,000 respectively. As
31 December 2017, the Group has obtained the title
certificates for the two buildings. The buildings were still
under decoration and not yet ready for use as at 31
December 2017.

(i)  Addition for leasehold improvements was mainly decoration
costs on leased properties to be used as Long-term rental
apartments. Majority of the decoration are in progress and
not yet ready for use.

T8E- - IRESE®R

@

(i)

HE_T—+tF+-_HA=1+—HBL#F
B ASERERBELN EENBERAR
EEETF KA BRAREK
126,114,0007T & A K # 322,960,000
Lo RZEBE—+tF+=-A=+—H" &
EBEREMEEF EREFRE - F
BIEFEETEE  RZT—+F+=

A=t+—RBRHEER -

HEMERENENTIZREEMED
REKRA  EENELREREALE -
KM TR KRBUETTH - HARRER °

20 PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 20 K1ESHEWE

Analysis of properties and lands held for sale is as follows:

FEHEMER LHHOOT

As at 31 December

W+=HA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+t5F ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBT T
Properties and lands held for sale: BIRHEMEN T
— In the PRC — &EF 830,982 378,624
— In the USA — ExEH 20,038 18,856
851,020 397,480
Less: provision for decline in the value of W S EHEMER
properties and lands held for sale THEE N KA (3,189) (2,157)
847,831 395,323

e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IN=NE D B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_T—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

20 PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE (continued) 20 FESHEWHE »&)
Movement of properties and lands held for sale is as follows: BHEEEMER T HAESHNT :

As at 31 December

Rt=RA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tF T RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARBT T

As at 1 January n—HA—H 397,490 172,840
Addition (note 22) o (MEE22) 4,987,120 4,015,509
Properties and lands sold (note 9) BEME KT (FI5E9) (4,533,590) (3,790,869)
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8 851,020 397,480
All of the properties and lands held for sale are within normal FIBFEIHE MR R L HITR ERELAHEA
operating cycle and hence included under current assets. The FA - BOUERBEAE - BE{KEE—FIK
amount of properties and lands held for sale expected to be EBEHRFFHENER T BEBERARE
recovered after more then one year is RMB31,060,000. The 31,060,000 7T  #R 88 B TAH — F AU E Z 5%
remaining balance is expected to be recovered within one year. e

Movement of provision for properties and lands held for sale is as REHEMER T A REZE T

follows:

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREF T ARETT

As at 1 January ®n—A—H (2,157) -

Provision during the year F A (1,032) (2,157)

As at 31 December Rn+=—A=+—8” (3,189) (2,157)

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recognized BEZZ—tHFt-A=-THLEFE 4&

impairment losses of RMB1,032,000 (2016: RMB2,157,000) on @E‘fﬁJﬁIT%THﬁ%%%EﬁiWWE@ R

completed properties and lands held for sale (note 9). BEEEARE1,082,000T(ZF—RF : A
S R¥2,157,0007T) °
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21

22

INVENTORIES

21 BEfF

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
Decoration materials (note 9) el (3E9) 52,069 23,501

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in
cost of sales and services amounted to RMB4,788,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: RMB19,856,000).

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 22 HEPEME

Movement of properties under development is as follows:

P EENZESHIT

HE_ZT—tHF+-_A=+—BHULFE ¥R
ATHARGTAHERREERNEFTERAR
AR BA4788000( - T —NF: AR
19,856,000 7T) °

As at 31 December

Rt=A=+-8
2017 2016
—E—+t5F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETT
As at 1 January n—HA—H 10,379,261 7,986,633
Additions N 5,958,140 6,842,304
Deduction as results of disposal of R A R im0 (£ 38)
subsidiaries (note 38) (4,691,399) (434,167)
Transfer to properties and lands held RS RS E Y & i (32 20)
for sale (note 20) (4,987,120) (4,015,509)
As at 31 December Nt+=—A=+—H 6,658,882 10,379,261

e
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE_-ZF

B HRRM L

22 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

N

208

(Continued)
Analysis of properties under development is as follows:

—tFFT A=+ —BLFE

22 FAEBAPEME®)

PP EENDITET

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8H

2017 2016
—E—+tF A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARBT T
Land payments T ER 3,849,021 7,619,059
— Leasehold land, the PRC — MEEE LM 2,179,574 4,819,126
— Freehold land, the USA — EBDKA KL 1,669,447 2,799,933
Development expenditures and improvements B 2% 5z ) & M0 RS 2,097,565 2,100,411
Total st 5,946,586 9,719,470
Interest capitalised B B 712,296 659,791
6,658,882 10,379,261

All of the properties under development are within normal FIEREREEINEELERBARES

operating cycle and hence included under current assets. The
amount of properties under development expected to be
completed after more than one year is RMB3,005,694,000. The
remaining balance is expected to be completed within one year.

The Group’s properties under development are located in the
PRC and USA.

As at 31 December 2017, properties under development with net
book value of RMB2,138,953,000 (2016: RMB4,321,649,000)
were pledged as collateral for the Group’s bank borrowings (note
29).

On 11 October 2017, certain subsidiary of the Group signed an
agreement with a third party at a proceed of RMB869,586,000 to
sell a parcel of leasehold land located in Tianjin with net book
value of RMB194,379,000. As at 31 December 2017,
RMB600,000,000 has been received and the related leasehold
land was pledged for the third party’s borrowing. The disposal
had not been completed as at 31 December 2017.

HEERBIEE - HESNBBE—FRTHH
5P B b 2R A5 A R ¥ 3,005,694,000 7T ©
HREATEH—F AR ZHIE -

AEENFREPEHEMNPERER -

RZZ—tF+=-A=+—80 EEFEAA
R#2,138,953,000 (= F —R"F: AR%
4,321,649,000 7T) B FEiE D HIFIER
REB RS RITHERAER R (F5E29) -

RZZE—tF+A+—H8 AEE—HHNBEA
RIE-—RE=ZFFHBE UFMERE
869,586,00073&%*%ﬁfﬁé%iﬂ’ﬁﬂ%i
# 0 BRENFE A AR 194,379,0007T c =
TE—tF+_A=F+—H BURIDARK
600,000,000t E B E T ERZE=FH
BEREER - ZHEFER T —+F+=
A=+—HB#EKZEK °
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22

23

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
(Continued)

Certain subsidiary of the Group entered into a sale and buy-back
agreement with a third party, whereby property under
development were sold and the Group has the option to
repurchase the property under development on a predetermined
schedule at a nominated value. Such property under
development are restricted under the agreement as the title of
freehold land has transferred to the third party. As at 31
December 2017, property under this restriction amounted to
USD104,656,000 (equivalent to RMB683,843,000), and related
borrowing amounted to USD41,374,000 (equivalent to
RMB270,345,000) (note 29).

The interest capitalization rate of borrowing in 2017 is 6.5%
(2016: 6.9%).

TRADE RECEIVABLES

22 FAERAPEME#)

EAEEWNBARE—RE=FFILEERE
B BURBTEHEELERAEES
EEERAEEETEIRERBREZAZES
FBHIE - HIVKAEETMEBEZE=7 -
EHERBERENEASZBRERS - RZ2F
—tF+-_A=1+—8 ZHRHZEHERE
5104,656,000% 7T( #H F N A R &
683,843,0007T ) * % 18 74 f& 3K 4 41,374,000
Fx(HER AR 270,345,0007T ) (Hf 7
29) o

RZE—tF BEXOFBELREE6.5%
(ZZ—7"F 1 6.9%) °

23 EWERR

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—+F —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR AREET T
Trade receivables from sales of properties Y2 SHE FEURBR TR 4,180 21,930
Trade receivables from providing TR E IR & 5 3 AR 7% 9 B UK BR 3R
management services 371,465 205,543
Trade receivables from providing TR AL 50 AR 7% 9 FE UK AR 3K
decoration services 33,892 8,356
Trade receivables from land sales T Hb 85 A FEUAR 3K 225,267 -
Subtotal /NET 634,804 235,829
Less: Provision for bad debt B SRR (5,342) (2,559)
629,462 233,270

The carrying amounts of the trade receivables approximate their

EW AR REEEAE AR BEMEE

fair values.

e
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_T—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

23 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23 FEWERR (&)
The aging analysis of trade receivables by invoice date is as FEUBR IR E HHABI R BRI DT 0 -
follows:
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+t5F —ET—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Less than one year —FR 557,605 217,573
One to two years —EWF 62,502 18,256
Two to three years ME=4F 14,697 -
634,804 235,829

The credit terms granted to customers of purchase properties
are generally ranged from 30 days to 60 days, while for the
customers to whom the Group providing management and
development services, decoration services and sales of land, the
credit terms are one year.

Based on past experience, management believes that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of trade
receivables arise from sales of properties and lands as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group did not hold any
collateral in respect of these balances.

N

210

BTEPEBEDENGEESN KN FI0RE

60 A - MAKE AT FRHEEMFAERY

KRG ELHHETARTEFNEERR
fE o

RIFBERLSR  EEEREHRNEEERLE
EXEPHAERDERFAITHEE - HBA
FAYDEE e 130 36 65 R WUAR AR (E B B A » X
SEY EZFERT B TR o
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23 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Movement in the provision for impairment of trade receivables
from providing management services and decoration services
that are assessed for impairment collectively are as follows:

23 EWERR (&)

TR R TR AR A5 B 5K A AR A5 B FE W AR K (1 & B

ERHE) RRERFEZEZNT

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tfF A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
At 1 January n—HA—H 2,559 421
provision during the year FARBEEE 2,783 2,138
At 31 December nNt+—_A=+—8 5,342 2,559

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amounts of trade
receivables were denominated in below currencies:

RZZE—tF+A=+—H  BRERNE

EERATNERSIE

As at 31 December

B+=-—HA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREET T
RMB AR 409,537 232,212
USD EIT 225,267 3,617
634,804 235,829

As at 31 December 2017, RMB27,820,000 (2016:
RMB13,985,000) trade receivables were past due but not
impaired.

Impairment loss on trade receivables is recorded in
“Administrative expenses”. Amount charge to the provision
account are written off when there is no expectation of recovering
additional cash.

RZZB—+F+ZA=+—H BRERXRAR

07,820,000 ( = & —

NEF: ARE

13,985,000 7T ) & B @ HABARRE °

RN BEBEFATTHRER] - B8
MA@ RESNR I - RIMEH A B A AR N ER

HEHE °

e
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24 DEPOSITS FOR PURCHASE OF LAND
As at 31 December, deposit for purchase of land represent the
deposits made for acquisition of for land parcels in the USA.

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amounts of deposit for
purchase of land were denominated in below currencies:

g+ R E
RT-A=+—8 KBRS ENEEE
SRR S ©

RZZB—+F+_A=+—H KELTHZES
MEREERIA TERSIE

As at 31 December

Rt=A=+-8
2017 2016
—®-tF T AF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBET T

USD eIV
RMB AR

N

212

212,125 =
- 42,000

212,125 42,000
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25 OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS

AND DEPOSITS

25 HttEWR  FAASRRERS

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBT T
Non-current assets IRBEE
Prepayment for acquisition of subsidiaries UG BE B B A R TE R 3R 55,539 -
Lendings to third parties (i) ERTE=F) 113,460 30,000
Deposits for property maintenance YRR 11,827 5,413
Value added tax to be offset FEIMIEER 1,000 -
Deposit paid for acquisition of an associate Ui i —fEE & A R E kS - 390,103
181,826 425,516
Current assets REBEE
Value added tax to be offset and other AR NS (B R N £ b T8~ B 38 (iif)
prepaid taxes (iii) 152,596 189,940
Prepaid rental fee (i) TS E A (i) 59,916 =
Deposits for purchase of land UgBE + i i & 33,483 1,000
Deposits in housing fund FEAESES 18,712 17,729
Prepaid professional fee ENEXER - 8,806
Prepaid interests TEF & - 11,200
Other receivables and prepayments H b eI 3 R FEA 3R 116,634 100,259
381,341 328,934

e
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25 OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS
AND DEPOSITS (continued)

The loans to third parties and maintenance fund are repayable

N

214

within two to eight years from the end of the year. The balances
of loans to third parties bear interest ranging from 6%-14%.

)

(i)

(i

Of the total lendings to third parties, RMB66,433,000 (2016:
RMB30,000,000) was secured by the equity securities of
two companies which holds properties in the PRC.

Prepaid rental fee is rental prepaid for the leasing of
properties to be used for long-term rental apartments.

Effective from 1 May 2016, the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
are subject to value added tax for its sale of properties. The
applicable tax rate is 11% under normal VAT arrangement
and is 5% for qualified old projects with a simplified
method. Input VAT under normal VAT arrangement is
deductible and recorded as “other receivables, repayments
and deposits” where there is a debit balance.

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amounts of other
receivables, prepayments and deposits were denominated in

below currencies:

—tF+H=+—RALFE

HtEWR  BARREZES @)

RE=TERREEESANFRR_ENF
MIEE - A =T EREHRIF XN F6%E
14% °

) EXRTE=ZFBLEF AR
66,433,000L( Z T — R~ F: AR
30,000,000 7)) F1 AR FEIFA AP B 5 5 D % 9
NRIRIRREVEEA

i BENESERAGREREAZNEE
MEBANES -

iy BZE—A"FRA—A#L AEEAF
!W%A RIZABEE W HE BNIL(E
o BIE—MISEFRLHNERBRER
1% MEBEREREBUNUBSHE
BUE% K - (B AR%E - BIE—
RIE E R T BRI A S E R AT T 00
AR HMERHR - BRRkEE] -

R-F—tHF+-_A=1+—8 HEMEKXK
B BNRERESRATEEIE -

As at 31 December

W+=—HA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+F A
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

RMB
usD
HKD

AR

BT

501,077 723,107
58,138 27,966
3,952 3,377
563,167 754,450
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25 OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS 25 HMEWR ANRREE@®
AND DEPOSITS (Continued)
The fair value of other receivables, prepayments and deposits are HEWRE FENREES Z AR BESY W0
as follows: N

As at 31 December

W+=HA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Non-current assets IRBEE
Prepayment for acquisition of subsidiaries I BB B R R R TR 3K 55,539 -
Lendings to third parties ERTE=H 113,460 30,000
Deposits for property maintenance MR EIRS 8,597 3,751
Value added tax to be offset FRREAIGER 1,000 -
Deposit paid for acquisition of an associate Wi —RE 2 A FNE N E - 390,103
178,596 423,854
Current assets MENE E
Value added tax to be offset and other FHR IS ER R E A TE R
prepaid taxes 152,596 189,940
Prepaid rental fee BNESER 59,916 -
Deposits for purchase of land BE % e 33,483 1,000
Deposits in housing fund FEAERES 18,712 17,729
Prepaid professional fee ENEXEER - 8,806
Prepaid interests AR - 11,200
Other receivables and prepayments H eI R R FE I 116,634 100,259
381,341 328,934
The fair value of deposits for property maintenance are based on MEFEEIZ SO AR BEDIRENERENT
cash flows discounted using a rate based on the borrowing rate 475% 2 4.9% 2 th RBFVIBIVESREFTE © %
of 4.75%-4.9%. The fair value are within level 2 of the fair value ARBEERALBERBFHNE 4 -
hierarchy.

e
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N
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B HRRM L

OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS
AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

Based on past experience, management believes that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group did not hold any collateral in respect of these balances.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

—tF+H=+—RALFE

25 HEMEWF BEARRZEE &)
BEAELS SEEHEZENESEETE
EAEEEEHRNHR AT EEKE  HBA
B E AR R ERE - AEEY ERRE
GERA I A T G o

26 FEWIEfE&IMERRIE

As at 31 December

R+=BA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETT
Amounts due from non-controlling interests E UK FE 22 | M A 25 X T 571,500 558,000

In December 2017, %M 8A 3 & % B BR A 7] (Suzhou Langkun
Property Limited) (“Suzhou Langkun”), an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, renewed the loan agreement
with its owners, pursuant to which Suzhou Langkun would
advance loan to its owners on pro-rata basis according to their
respective shareholding interest in Suzhou Langkun. The loan is
unsecured, repayable within one year, and Suzhou Langkun shall
charge an annual interest rate of 4.35% per annum on the actual
amount of drawdown. As at 31 December 2017, the outstanding
amount due from the non-controlling shareholders of Suzhou
Langkun amounted to RMB571,500,000.

RZF—tF+ A ARBERIE2ENE
NEEFMNBAHERER AR ([FRMBAE]) BE
HER AERTESR G - BULEMEARIRES
A BRERIN BR s B B I L I R R AR &
Ko ERREER - AR —FREE - MEM
BAIRZE1% 4.35% MM X RIB MM ER S5
AR -RITE—LF+-A=+—H B
JMEAHSEERRRMREEFREARK
571,500,000 7T °
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EQUIVALENTS

27 RESTRICTED CASH AND CASHAND CASH 27 SR4IBESLURELRESZEY

As at 31 December

Rt=A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tF ZERF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARBT T

Restricted cash
— restricted for project developments
— restricted under escrow account

ZRRFIRE
— RHIAEBEERE 82,662 47,795
— REINTERFE TRE

for investments 70,000 -
— deposits as security for property — MEBRIZISERNERTR

purchasers’ mortgage loans 67,698 165,897
— restricted for discounted bank — [RHADBIRIBITA R EE

accepted notes 45,000 -
— pledged for the Group’s bank borrowings — — {E/& 75 BIER1T 2 FA9 K 38

(note 29) (KtzE29) 7,291 1,325
— others — Hfth 9,301 705

281,952 215,722

Cash on hand and cash at banks FHEIRS MIRTIR S 3,341,835 2,761,130
The carrying amounts of restricted cash and cash and cash ZREVLUARRES KRS EEBYHNETER
equivalents approximate their fair values. HAREBERS -

e

217

HRReEEERAE /| —T—tFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

27 RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH AND CASH 27 ZR#HBEESURBERBEEEY

EQUIVALENTS (continued) (%)
As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of restricted cash, R_ZT—tF+_A=1+—8 FRERL -
cash on hand and cash at banks were denominated in below FHEBSMBETESHNEDERIATNEES
currencies: 1B :
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—tHF ZE-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ETR AREFIT
RMB AR 3,127,073 2,607,451
UsD E7T 492,066 361,342
HKD BIT 4,648 8,059
3,623,787 2,976,852
28 CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS 28 EMNRFKETER
As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ETx AREFIT
Payables for construction materials e T2t M RIS FE
and services 1,162,081 975,214
Interest payable FERHFIE 235,257 138,205
Deposits from customers EFRiES 190,115 29,932
Accruals for staff costs FEEtER T & 159,949 111,917
Value added tax and other tax payables 188 (B i N EL A E A~ B 18 126,353 70,186
Payables for acquisition of investments W BB & FE N R IE 92,144 -
Advanced payments received BT IR - 4,160
Other payables E b B 36,009 38,145
2,001,908 1,367,759
As at 31 December 2017, the fair values of trade and other R-ZE—+F+-_A=1+—8  ENERIEE
i payables approximate their carrying amounts. o EN R EEREmEMRE °
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28 CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS (Continued) 28 EMNERFKRETER®

The aging analysis of payables for construction materials and FE T2 R RIS FOR Z BRIEE AT 0T -
services:
As at
31 December
2017
R-E—+tF
+=A
=t+-—AH
Less than one year PR—F 1,035,053
One to two years —EmRF 30,933
Two to three years ME=1F 5,865
Over three years =FLAE 90,230
1,162,081
As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amounts of trade and RZE—+F+_A=+—8 " EAEREE
other payables were denominated in below currencies: fb FE TR R BRE(E IR A T EEEFIE -

As at 31 December

W+=HA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+F A
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

RMB AR 1,702,046 1,169,901
usD Eviv 280,894 192,091
HKD BIT 18,968 5,767

2,001,908 1,367,759

e
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29 BORROWINGS

N

220

—tFFT A=+ —BLFE

29 B

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETIT
Bank borrowings RITEK

— in RMB — AR% 1,447,900 2,852,685

—inUSD —E7T 217,888 212,131

— in HKD — BT 230,708 208,912
Sell and buy-back arrangement (in USD) & R EEZEE (ET) (FfEE22)

(note 22) 270,345 -
Loans from the ultimate holding company KERKIEBRATNER(ARK)

(in RMB) 1,665,000 1,662,177
Senior private notes (in USD) BEAERES (ET) 659,534 685,457
EB-5 Loans (in USD) EB-5 &7 (%7T) 521,334 152,979
Loan from other financial institutes (in USD) REEMEE#RBENER(ET) 326,706 =
Discounted bank accepted note (in RMB) DARIRIRTTAR A ZR (ARE) 90,000 -
Junior private notes (in USD) REEFLEES (ETT) - 309,000
Total @it 5,429,415 6,083,341
Less: short-term borrowings and current B RREERARBERNREE S

portion of long-term borrowings
Bank borrowings RITEK
— inRMB — AR# (1,081,500) (531,010
— inUSD — X7T - (212,131)
— inHKD — T (16,718) (208,912)
Loans from the ultimate holding company KERKIERATNER(ARKE)

(in RMB) - (6,937)
Senior private notes (in USD) BELEESR(FETT) (659,534) -
Loan from other financial institutes (in USD) KEHMHERENER(ET) (326,706) -
Discounted bank accepted note (in RMB) BRIRIRTTA N EZR (ARE) (90,000)

Junior private notes (in USD) RBREESFH (FTT) - (309,000)
Total HBET (2,174,458) (1,267,990)
Non-current portion FEREE D 3,254,957 4,815,351
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29 BORROWINGS (continued) 29

B A (&
As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amounts of borrowings RZE—+F+_A=+—H  BFHNEAEE
were denominated in below currencies: BIATEEZIE :

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET R AREFIT
RMB AR 3,202,900 4,514,862
UsD ETT 1,995,807 1,359,567
HKD BT 230,708 208,912
5,429,415 6,083,341

Bank borrowings carry interest ranging from 4.75% to 8.0%
(2016: 2.46% to 8.0%) per annum and are secured by:

(i)

(i)

(iv)

restricted cash of RMB7,291,000 (2016: RMB1,325,000)
(note 27);

properties held for sale owned by two fellow subsidiaries of
the ultimate holding company of RMB526,511,000 (2016:
RMB157,941,000);

properties under development with carrying value of
RMB2,138,953,000 (2016: RMB4,321,649,000);

investment property of RMB319,830,000 (2016:
RMB290,920,000) (note 18);

guarantee provided by the ultimate holding company;

pledged by equity interest of subsidiaries of the Group.

RITERIBFANENT475%ZE8.0%(=F
— N 1 2.46% E8.0%):TE C WA T&IA
{EHH -

(i)

)

V)

TRE RS ARK7201007T( ==
—NF: AR ¥1,3250007T ) (M 5%
27)

R SR 4RI AR A B A R R (R R B A B R
BEHFIEHEEME AR S526,511,000
T(ZZE = F: AR®157,941,000
JT)

HMESPEMWE FEHEAARK
2,138,953,000 t( — T —"NF : AR¥
4,321,649,0007T) :
"EWE AR ®S319,830,0000( = &
— N AR #290,920,0007T ) (Bt
18) :

BRI A BT IR A B (R

ZN S NS S

e
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29 BORROWINGS (continued)

N

222

The loans from the ultimate holding company are unsecured and
carry interest ranging from 5.3% to 6.6% per annum.

Senior private notes are guaranteed by shares of subsidiaries of
the Company (note 43) and carries interest at 9.5% (2016: 9.5%)
per annum. The balance of senior private notes is repayable on
30 April 2018.

EB-5 Loans represent loans from third parties and carry interest
ranging from 3.6% to 4% per annum and are guaranteed by a
subsidiary. The balances are repayable ranging from 3 January

2020 to 31 March 2021.

The junior private notes were repaid during the year ended 31
December 2017.

Loan from other financial institutes is granted by the ultimate
holding company and carried interest at 8% annual. The balance

is repayable on 27 April 2018.

Borrowings are repayable as follows:

—tFFT A=+ —BLFE

29

B2
REFBERARNERAEER  WIZEF
RE53%E6.6%:HE

BEMLBBEFHARENERROROER

(P 5£43) 2 F F) %9.6% (2016 : 9.56%) &t
B BEASESFNEHREAN_F—\FNA
=tHAXff-

EBSERIERBE=ZFHNER  FFENT
3.6% E 4% WH—FHMERRIER - BHER
R CEFE-AZHE_ZT-_—4FZA=+—
HEAREE -

RBILBEFE
=t+—RLEFEEER

NBE-F— 5+ 1

REEMBERBNENHRKRERATER
it FR A%  £HBER_ZT—N\FMNA
—t+tHEE-

ERER TR (EE

As at 31 December

W+=—HA=+—H

2017 2016

—E—+tF A

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%TR AREETIT

Within one year —FE R 2,174,458 1,267,990

Between one and two years —EME 188,019 2,022,747

Between two and five years MERF 3,066,938 2,792,604

5,429,415 6,083,341

Fair value of the borrowings are not materiality different to the B ALBEEAHEERBETESAEZR

carrying amount, since the interest on the borrowings are either EEE’V%?K?'J BHEEFMSMNERISERBE
close to current market rates or borrowings are of a short term HYEE o

nature.

Landsea Green Group Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2017




30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 30
The deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
to the same fiscal authority. The net amounts are as follows:

EIEFTSH

BEAEARNMITRNGIR AN IREERR
BREAGERE - BREMRSHSRFEA—MIK
e - IR EEHREER B BERAEHE

FEAT

As at 31 December

BR+=A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARET T
Deferred income tax liabilities to be settled BB e —FEREER
after more than one year RIEFTISTAE 75,537 52,850
Deferred income tax assets: RIEFTISMEE -
— to be recovered within one year — R —FERWE 108,463 75,232
— to be recovered after more than one year  — ¥ AERIE—F & Y [E] 129,272 78,377
237,735 153,609
Deferred tax assets, net RIEF IR B EF 58 162,198 100,759

As at 31 December 2017, deferred income tax assets and
deferred income tax liabilities to RMB57,911,000 (31 December
2016: RMB105,747,000) were offset.

RZB—+FE+-_A=+—0  BEREHE
ENEEMSHAaEARES57,911,0007T(=
ZE-RNRE+-_A=+—HBH: ARK

105,747,000 7¢) B & $H ©

e
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30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movements in the net deferred tax are as follows:

30 MEEFTEB )

BRI FERENT ¢

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—A~
2017 2016
—E—+F —ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ETR AREFIT
At 1 January n—H—H 100,759 44,220
Credited to profit or loss (note 11) {-ETE SHR (MYsE11) 82,190 56,135
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38) HEMB AR (HE38) (19,555) =
Currency translation differences B E (1,196) 404
At 31 December R+—A=+—8 162,198 100,759
Movements in the deferred tax liabilities, prior to offsetting, are as REAIREF B EEEHNT
follows:
Disposal of
investments
Revaluation Difference accounted
of in  Accelerated Unrealised for using
investment capitalized tax exchange the equity
properties interests  depreciation gains method Total
HERE
RE® f-¥:N4 mE REH DY 3597
MEET FISEE BIENE ERFIE AE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®TT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARET:
At 1 January 2016 RZZ—REF
—R—H 42,413 4,794 214 5,185 - 52,606
Charged to profit or loss TEEEYH 10,438 35,872 620 54,480 - 101,410
Currency tranglation differences S HE =5 - 1,859 4 2,681 - 4,581
At 31 December 2016 RZZ—R"F
+ZA=+—-H 52,851 42,525 875 62,346 - 158,597
Charged to profit or loss RS 7,228 16,369 235 (68,940) 14,747 (20,361)
Currency translation differences E#¥HEZ5 - (2,960) (51) (1,777) - (4,788)
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+F
+-A=+—-H 60,079 55,934 1,059 1,629 14,747 133,448
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30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 30 EEMBH (&)

The movements in the deferred tax assets, prior to offsetting, are IR ERIBEEZ SN T ¢
as follows:
Temporary Temporary
difference on difference on
unrealised recognition Provision for
profit of of revenues bad debt
intercompany and cost and accrued
transactions Tax losses of sales expenses Total
NG
XM
RER BRARAE
Gilh Tl HEBR BRR et
ERER HEER NEREE ERRG #ct
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETTT ARETT ARETT

At 1 January 2016 R-ZE—"E—F—H 30,244 25,261 29,811 11,510 96,826
Charged to profit or loss BRI 42,047 48,177 21,446 45,874 157,544
Currency tranglation differences &t E 248 - 2,620 = 2,366 4,086
At 31 December 2016 RZE-—"E+-A=+-H 72,291 76,058 51,257 59,750 259,356
Charged to profit or loss TEERYH 36,045 14,208 (15,665) 27,241 61,829
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - (19,442) = (113) (19,555)
Currency tranglation differences ~ SH & =% = (2,911) = (3,073) (6,984)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tE&+ZA=1—H 108,336 67,913 35,592 83,805 295,646

e
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE_-ZF

31 AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING

—tF+H=+—RALFE

31 B FFEFIERERERE

INTERESTS
As at 31 December
R+=-A=+-—8H
2017 2016
—E—+HF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFIT
Non-current liabilities kRnBERE
Amounts due to non-controlling interests (i) JE A<t S22 Sl 1 e %5 B () 17,217 211,492
Current liabilities REBAE
Amounts due to non-controlling interests (i) &1~ FE% I 1442 25 2RI (i) 18,110 -
35,327 211,492

)  As of 31 December 2017, the amounts due to non- 0)
controlling interests are unsecured and bear interest at
10% per annum. The balance of RMB17,217,000 was

repayable after one year.

As of 31 December 2016, the amounts due to non-
controlling interests are unsecured and bear interest
ranging from 10% to 12% per annum. The balance of
RMB96,498,000 is repayable in December 2019 and the
remaining balances have no fixed term of repayment.

As of 31 December 2017, the amounts due to non-
controlling interests are unsecured. The balance of
RMB18,110,000 was repayable in one year from the year
of 2017 and interest free.

(i)

N

226

R-ZF—tHE+-_A=1+—H" B3k

70 ) M R 25 TR B A 23R 10% B
AR B o &g AR¥17,217,000 T/H
R—EFREE

R-ZE—XREFE+-_A=+—H "  ER3I
2l 1 A S K A E R IR R RN
T10% E£12%5F B # 88 A B &
96,498,000 L BN —ZE—NE+ = A&
B HBFaIwmE gk -

R_ZT—+&+=-_A=+—8" Eff3k
THM R RIEARER SRARK
18,110,000 TZER =T —tF T —F
NEZATEE -
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32 SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December

32 A

As at 31 December

RT=A=+-H RT=A=+-H
2017 2016
IB-tF “ENE
Equivalent Equivalent
Nominal nominal Nominal nominal
value of value valug of valug
Number ordinary of ordinary Number ordlinary of ordinary
of shares share share of shares share share
Lh LER Lh LER
gk & hEfE SEEfE vk R SHEfE
Note '000 HK$'000 RMB'000 000 HK§'000 RMB'000
firzt Th TEn  AR®TR T T ARETR
Ordinary shares, issued LER BRARMR
and fully paid:

At1 January R—A-A 391751 30,176 31,800 3,306,912 33,069 26,065
Issuance of shares 2R - - - 610,659 6,107 5,135
At 31 December Rt-A=1-H 3,917,511 39,176 31,800 3,917,571 39,176 31,800

(@ On 29 January 2016, the Company completed the issuing
of 610,659,269 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at a price
of HK$0.718 per share to Landsea International to acquire
Epic China. Accordingly, 610,659,269 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each were issued at a premium of HK$0.708
each and the premium on issue of shares of
HK$432,347,000 (equivalent to RMB360,943,000), net of
issuance costs, was credited to the share premium
account.

@

N-B—RE—A-+hB ARFE
B % & % /£ /0.7187 JT [AlLandsea
International 2 17610,659,269 i% & i% @
{B0.01 77T A9 38 A% LA UK BE Epic China °
It + 610,659,269 /% & iz E E0.01%8
JOHY AR B R B A% 0.708 7 JT K i (B
BT - MEBITIRID AV E 432,347,000 %8
7t (#8 & 7 A R % 360,943,000 7T ) £ 1

BRETTE MR ABRMDRER

e
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IN=NE D B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

33 SHARE OPTIONS AND RESTRICTED SHARE

AWARD SCHEME

(A) SHARE OPTIONS
Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 25 April 2012, the
current share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
by the Company. Since the adoption of the Scheme, no
further options can be granted under the old scheme.

The Company operates the Scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and reward to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include the directors
(including executive and non-executive directors), other
employees, suppliers, customers, person or entity providing
research, development and other technical support,
investee entity and any professional advisor and business
consultant of the Group from time to time determined by
the directors as having contributed or who may contribute
to the development and growth of the Group. The Scheme
is effective on 30 April 2012 and, unless otherwise
terminated, remains in force for 10 years from that date.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Scheme or any other share option
scheme adopted by the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on the
date of adoption.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued
upon the exercise of the options granted to each participant
including both exercised and unexercised options under
the Scheme or any other share option scheme adopted by
the Company in any 12-month period must not exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue on the date of grant.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholder’s approval in a general meeting.

N

228

33 KRR RFIMER D RBE S

(A)

fiz 1 HA#E
BERZZE—Z—FMHA=Z+RHBETH
ARRRRBAFARE LBRANLRRE
R OARAREME AT R D BT &
(TazstEl]) - BERMZETEIAR - &
RERT S L B AR BRE o

ARBRILZAE  BERREEMHSY
BB AEEEBRINSER2EE -
ZETEIMAERSEERRES (B
TTRIEMITESR)  HiER - HHER -
BEP - REMEEEMRMSEOAL
HER  REHREBURAKETE
MEMBXERMEFER (EER LY
AEEBRMIERBEKA L ER
F)  ZAER_ZE——_FWA=+HAE
M MERFEAEMI RE L - BRI S
ZHE10FHEABK -

BrIEEAR QAR ELE - B RIAITER
2T B S AN A B ER 4 B A ] A AR 1 BR
RSB T AP B B {n HAE AT
BITHRMOBE - THBAARFNEK
M A BIE EITRIDAY 10% ©

BRIEEEAR R RIRRIL & - PMER+ 1A
AR - &2 82ERZFEHARREKR
A B A fr] B A B £ B R 1 81 3R eV AL D
HitE (BRI T ITEE R RITHE) 1T -
BERTESTEITHARR M AR
REL BN EBEARRC ETRD
1% ° AN — SR A B e 1Y
B B iEEt LR - BEBRRAE L
FERCRALE ©
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33 SHARE OPTIONS AND RESTRICTED SHARE 33 % 10 Hi# & BB %l £ IR 10 28 B 51 &l
AWARD SCHEME (continued) (%)
(A) SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) (A) BDHARE (&)

The limit on the number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Scheme and any other schemes of
the Company must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time. No options may be granted under any
share option schemes of the Company if this will result in
the limit being exceeded.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of offer, upon payment of
nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. An
option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme and the terms of grant, which shall not be
more than 10 years from the date of grant.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to be
issued upon exercise of the options shall be no less than
the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by
the SEHK on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the SEHK for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of
grant. The subscription price will be determined by the
board of directors at the time the option is offered to the
participants.

The scheme limit under the Scheme is 198,660,605
shares, representing 10.0% of the issued share capital of
the Company on 25 April 2012, being the adoption date of
the Scheme and approximately 5.1% of the issued share
capital of the Company on 28 March 2018, being the date
of the Annual Report.

The Scheme
There was no outstanding share option under the Scheme
as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

RT3 5% T 8 AKX B 9 (] E Al FF
FERLERARITENME R BEM
ATERITHRMNER  TEEETED
BITIR1D #930% © AN AR 15 R4 S 8
BBE LR - AT BREARFEM
P AR At B4R th e 1) HA B

REBRMBENENHREZ2ENERR
21t BARRTHER  EARAAXNA
HIEBETHERERE - XEH B
THEBBI10F A - By iRk Rl R % T 8/
AR BB R RRATE ©

BT R D B S T AT AR A J R (D
MRBETSERUTSERFNRSH
B: (AR AROAREL R BRES B
RETBELHNE B RERARAUTE ; (i)
RARROARBEZER L B ER A EE 2%
HEBABMIABENEARERAT
MW TEFEE  Kii) AR RIRAORE
HRHNEE EFRENRABHEER
ERMHEAERETREE -

BRI %8l - 71 &) LR A 198,660,605
B HERAARR-_Z—=—FMA
Z+HA (A8 RMA A 8) B 1T
KA 10.0% RAAARBIR_E—\F=
A=+ N\B(BE®{RAH) BBITRALY
51% °

Zit &
R_B—tLtF+_A=+—HKR-ZE
—RNFE+ZA=+—B ZETILE
1 AR T T 150 B P 1 A
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33 SHARE OPTIONS AND RESTRICTED SHARE 33 RO HIENEPRHI MR EEBEFE
AWARD SCHEME (continued) (%)
(B) RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (B) FR&IMEAR (75 MEt &l

N

260

On 2 July 2014, the Group adopted a share award scheme
(the “Share Award Scheme”) as an incentive to recognise
the contributions by employees and to give incentives in
order to retain them for the continuing operation and
development of the Group, as well as to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, existing shares of
the Company will be purchased or new shares will be
subscribed for “Restricted Shares” by a trustee appointed
by the Company and be held on trust for the relevant
grantees until such shares are vested with the relevant
grantees in accordance with the rules of the Share Award
Scheme. The Restricted Shares will be awarded with
reference to the performance, operating and financial
targets and other criteria determined by the Board from
time to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, 12,352,000
(2016: 144,000) existing shares at a cost of RMB8,578,000
(2016: RMB90,000) were purchased by the trustee.
Meanwhile, dividends of RMB2,035,000 (2016:
RMB1,936,000) were received by the trustee.

RZZE—NE+LAZH  AEEFRHK
o Bt &) (A iy BBt 81 )) - ERR
BAZHEEMELMER - BEL 8
BRESAKENFELERERNH
Bh UR/AKEE-FERBES
AT e

R RENET 8] - NRARARENR
FEARBEARNRRRA B IR B
D ER [RBIER D ] - WIAEFETT K
HEARARS  EEEBERORER
D RE SR EBNEEARAR
k- BREEBRODH2EEZTRTIEET
MERR KERMBEREAREMEE
T AR -

HE - ZT—+t&+-_A=+—HIL*F
€ 12,352,000 ( = & — X &F:
144,000/% ) A 4~ & A R # 8,578,000 7T
(ZZ—7"F : AR®90,0007)MIEE
RO EETABA - A 57 AWE
f% B A R#2,035000T(=F—/KNF
AR#1,936,0007T) °
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33 SHARE OPTIONS AND RESTRICTED SHARE 33 j% 17 HA # X2 PR & M IR 19 28 @) 51 &l

AWARD SCHEME (Continued) (#)

(B) RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (B) PFRAIMERR 7B & (2)
(Continued)
Details of the Restricted Shares granted by the Company AR BFTIRHBR SR D BT

are as follows:

Outstanding Granted Outstanding at
Fair value per at 1 January during 31 December
Name of employees share (HK$) 2017 the year 2017
BR R=T—tF R=B—tF
AREE —H—H +=B=+—H
EEH®E (Bx) 8 RATE rEERE e RATE
Directors 2=
Tian Ming FHAA 0.68 3,277,500 - 3,277,500
Xiang Jiong BEE 0.68 3,277,500 = 3,277,500
Shen Leying FRgLL 0.68 2,214,500 = 2,214,500
Xie Yuanjian SR 0.68 2,037,500 - 2,037,500
Zhou Qin Bk 0.68 1,605,000 = 1,505,000
12,312,000 - 12,312,000
Other employees Higs
In aggregate @t 0.68 22,950,500 - 22,950,500
35,262,500 - 35,262,500
The outstanding Restricted Shares had been fully vested as RZE—RNE+-_BA=+—8 " HK7T
of 31 December 2016. ERIZRHIARDE 2R
No expenses (2016: RMB10,245,000) (note 9) was FRRNEBE I EEBIMNIERBY - L&
recognized by the group as there was no additional share BRAEMNIHE(ZZE—FRF: AR
based compensation during the year. 10,245,000 7T) (Fd3X9) o

e
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34 CONVERTIBLE PERPETUAL SECURITIES

N

232

The movements in the convertible perpetual securities are as
follows:

34 AKX F 3
TR AR SN EHRIIWT -

Convertible
perpetual
securities

AR R KA &5

RMB’000

ARET T

At 1 January 2016 RZZE—RF—H—H 110,054
Issuance of convertible perpetual securities (a) BT MAROK A FEF () 363,847
Distribution accrued JEET Pk 18,661

Distribution paid BNk (8,358)

At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 RZE—RE+_HA=+—HBRK

—E—+F—HA—H 484,204

Distribution accrued FEET Ik 19,679

Distribution paid B 5K (8,458)
At 31 December 2017 R-_B—tF+-_A=+—H 495,425

(@ In November 2015, the Company entered into an
agreement with a third party (the “third party investor”)
pursuant to which the investor agreed to subscribe for
convertible perpetual securities issued by the Company
with an aggregate principal amount of HK$130,000,000
(equivalent to RMB109,200,000).

The convertible perpetual securities do not have a fixed
maturity date and may be converted into ordinary shares of
the Company at any time at the option of the third party
investor at an initial conversion price of HK$0.7508 per
share subject to certain anti-dilutive adjustments.

(@

RZZE—RF+—A ARAHE—FF
=R E=ZAREEDIT L HE B
b REERERBERRAFMBITAS
¥E 4 130,000,000 T (HHE R AR
109,200,000 7T ) B A] AR K A 78 5

R ABHFCEETEHE F=
FIREEERERKZRYLHABESR
0.7508 BT (AI{ER S TREEAE) X
BAERRBLRERK -
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34 CONVERTIBLE PERPETUAL SECURITIES
(Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

The Company paid a final dividend of RMB3.3 cents
(equivalent to HK4 cents) per share for the year ended 31
December 2015 on 6 July 2016 to Shareholders whose
names appeared on the register of members of the
Company on 20 June 2016 (the “Record Date 1”), which
constitutes an adjustment event of the initial conversion
price pursuant to the terms and conditions of the securities.
The Company issued a written notice to the security holder
on 13 January 2017 in respect of the adjustment made to
the initial conversion price from HK$0.7508 per Share to
HK$0.7050 per share with retrospective effect from 21
June 2016, being the date immediately following the
Record Date 1. Similarly, following the payment of 2016
dividend of RMB3.54 cents (equivalent to HKD4 cents) per
share on 3 July 2017 (“Record Date 2”). The Company
issued a written notice to the security holder on 4 July 2017
in respect of the adjustment made to the conversion price
from HK$0.7050 per Share to HK$0.6600 per share with
retrospective effect from 8 June 2017, being the date
immediately following the Record Date 2.

The Company may, at its discretion, elect to defer (in whole
or in part) any distribution unless certain compulsory
distribution payment events have occurred and redeem or
purchase the convertible perpetual securities i) for taxation
reasons; ii) on the third anniversary of the completion date;
and iii) upon certain events as set out in the agreement.

Distribution shall be payable on the convertible perpetual
securities to the investor semi-annually in arrear at the
following rate of distribution:

(i) 7.5% per annum in respect of the period from the
completion date to the third anniversary of the
completion date; and

(i)  18.5% per annum after the third anniversary of the
completion date.

34 TERKAES#B)

@)

(%)
HRARFRZZE—A"FLtANAER
—ET-RFENA-t+B(ZEAH)
BUNAABRRE AT 2 BRRIRFEEE =
T—RAF+-A=+—HLEFEZRH
BREFSRARE33D (HBER4BM) -
BIBE FORR R EX A F L RE
MFARER  ARFERZTE—tF—
AT=BRZEFFHBEAZHERRL -
2 KR ERSR0.7508 B THEE
FAR0.7050% 7T - B EBRE SR A ]
1EERER BIZZE—REA-+—
He Atk R=ZZT—+FLA=H
(TREERH2D)EN = —"FEFBRA
R#3.545 (FBER4E) MR B -
ARARZE—tF+LAMNABESFE
EABHERBY BLAREHAER
0.70508 L = F X 0.66008 7T * 1B
PEBELS BB EREN B
T—tFANR

BRIFBAR TR DR NEMF BRI
ARBADRBBREA i) R e A B
FZBF: Ri)RBHEABNETE
- BiIFEEREEN2HMBXBE DK
KB SRR B A R BOKA RS ©

AELFENEAHRBEUTHREEM
SE BRI TRBAKAESN DR -

() FTERAHEETKERE=RTH
REFESRR75% Rk

iy TREBHE=ZFBFENELRAE
13.5% o
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B HRRM L

34 CONVERTIBLE PERPETUAL SECURITIES
(Continued)

()

In January 2016, the Company issued convertible perpetual
securities to Landsea International with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$432,687,009 (equivalent to
RMB363,847,000) to acquire Epic China.

The convertible perpetual securities do not have a fixed
maturity date and may be converted into ordinary shares of
the Company at any time at the option of Landsea
International at an initial conversion price of HK$0.9334 per
share subject to certain anti dilutive adjustment.

Distribution shall be payable on the convertible perpetual
securities to Landsea International semi-annually in arrear
at 3% per annum of distribution.

The Company may, at its sole discretion, elect to defer (in
whole or in part) any distribution and redeem or purchase
the convertible perpetual securities: i) for taxation reasons;
ii) on or after the third anniversary of the acquisition date.

The convertible perpetual securities issued to Landsea
international didn’t trigger the conversion price adjustment
of the convertible perpetual securities issued to the third
party investor.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has
accrued and paid distribution of RMB19,679,000 and
RMB8,458,000, respectively (2016: RMB18,661,000 and
RMB8,358,000, respectively).

N
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—tFFT A=+ —BLFE

34 TERRKARSE#)

) RZZ—AF—H KA 7AMLandsea
International 1778 & FE & 432,687,009
7T (FHE M A R #363,847,000 7T ) A9
AT K A B %+ LAUKHE Epic China °

AERKABFHFCEBRTR A -
Landsea International 7] 3% 12 B i% 1% 17 2
HBESRR0.9334 B T (A fERHE TR
MR ARARARILREAR

BAFFFENE R 3% HFIRE KA
Landsea International {E i 7] #2 A% 5k A &
HFHDIK ©

ARAB )R EA iR UK EE B E%E
—AFR 2% BERIFEE (2303
) 5k I BB O sk i B ] AR K A 7B 5 o

Al Landsea International 2 77 A] # A% sk A
BAEWEBHNABRBITTE=FRESE
R AT ARG K A B 55 2 2 HA(E -

BHE-Z—tF+-A=1+—RHILEE K&
EREBEFREMNED B AARME
19,679,000 7T & AR # 8,458,000 (=& —7~
F: 5l A AREE18661,000T & AR
8,358,0007T) °
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35 RESERVES

35 f##E

Share
based Capital
Merger Share  Tranglation compensation ~ Employee  redemption  Statutory Other  Contriouted Retained
Reserve  premium (a) reserve reserve  share trust reseve  resenve (o) reserve surplus eamings Total
aiieh  RhEBE  FERE  BMER  ROGE  BOEE iRRR0  AbER  EARR  BEME st
RVMB000  RMB'O0O0  RMB000  RMB'000  RWMB000  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RWMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETn ARETT ARETn ARETr ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~E-F-A - 751,108 (141,418 9,55 (30,789) 23,185 38,584 - - 1129485 1,779,746
Business combination between  HEIEHERHERAK

entities under common control 12,460 - (1,706) - - - 321 - - (12,541) 1,484

At1January 2016 (Restated) ~ R=F-~E-F-8

(&E5) 12,460 761,108 (143,124) 9,555 (30,789) 23,185 41,855 = - 1116944 1781230
Profit for the period ol = - - - - - - - - 595439 595,430
Other comprehensive income:  Eft 2 Elk :
Exchange diferences arising from iGN EBELMES

tranglation of foreign operations ~ Z% - - (141,006) - - - - - - - (141,02
Total comprehensive (loss)/ B2 (58)/ hEH#HE

income for the period - - (141,020) - - - - - - 595,439 454413
Employse share based Rt EIGRD)

compensation (note 9) - - - 10,245 - - - - - - 10,245
Shares held for share iR REHERENRD

award scheme - - - - 1,846 - - - - - 1,846
Transaction vith non- SRR S

controling interests - - - - - - - 24,426 - - 24,426
Acorue distribution to holders of - Bk A B AT

convertiole perpetual securties 7 (Bt 34)

(note 34) = = = = = = = = - (18gsl)  (18660)
Dividend i - - - - - - = - (13393 - (13393
Transfer to statutory reserve BT RA - - - - - - 83,004 - - (83294 =
Issuance of shares ikt - 360,943 - - - - - - - - 30,943
Share premium reduction BB EE - (400,000 - - - - - - 28645 151,355 -
Considerafion paid for busingss S| BRERAK

combination between entties 7T

under common control (95,856) - - - - - - - = = (95,856)
At 31 December 2016 RoB-AET-A=+-R 83306 712050 (841500 19800 (8907 23185 125140 244%6 114711 1761783 2384652
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35 RESERVES (Continued)

35 e

Share based Capital
Merger Share  Translation compensation ~ Employee redemption  Statutory Other Contributed  Retained
Reserve premium (a)  reserve reserve  share trust reserve  reserve(b)  reserve surplus  earnings Total
g k8 &x
AHEE ROEEER FERE  EMEE  ROERE  EERE IERG0) RUREE  EME%  2RE gt
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000
AEETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARETx
At1 January 2017 R=Z-t£-5-A (83,396) 712,051 (284,150) 19,800 (28,907) 23,185 125,149 24,426 114711 1,761,783 2,384,652
Profit for the period HETIE - - - - - - - - - 580,523 580,523
Other comprehensive income:  Eft2 El : - - - - - - - - - - -
Exchange diferences arising from iGN EBELMEL

tranglation of foreign operations ~ Z% - - 164,445 - - - - - - - 164,445
Total comprehensive income ~ BH2EREAE

for the period - - 164,445 - - - - - - 580,523 744,968
Shares held for share SR REH B ARRA

award scheme - - - - (6,543) - - - - - (6,543)
Accrue distribution toholders of ARGk A E A5 AT

convertiole perpetual securties 2 (Bt 34)

(note 34) - - - - - - - - - (19679 (19679
Dividend e - - - - - - - - (13868 - (138682
Tranfer to statutory resenve (o)~ EEZZTEHED) - - - - - - 80,915 - - (89,915) -
Share premium reduction () HIERAEER) - (500,000) - - - - - - 500,000 - -
At 31 December 2017 R=2-t%

+tZp=t-8 (83396) 212051  (119,705) 19800  (35450) 23,185 215064  244%6 476020 2230712 2964716

N
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35 RESERVES (Continued)

(@)

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the annual general
meeting held on 10 June 2017, an amount of
RMB500,000,000 was transferred from the share premium
account to the contributed surplus account. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, a company may make
distributions to its shareholders out of the contributed
surplus under certain circumstances.

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the annual general
meeting held on 10 June 2016, an amount of
RMB400,000,000 was transferred from the share premium
account to the contributed surplus account and retained
earnings, respectively. Under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, a company may make distributions to its
shareholders out of the contributed surplus under certain
circumstances.

In accordance with the Laws of the PRC on Enterprises
Operated Exclusively with Foreign Capital and the Articles
of Association of the Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in
the PRC, an appropriation to the statutory reserves has to
be made prior to profit distribution to the investor. The
appropriation to the statutory reserve of these foreign
investment enterprises shall be no less than 10% of the net
profit until the accumulated appropriation exceeds 50% of
the registered capital.

35 #E®)

@)

BRER-_T—tFRNATHRITZRE
BERAREBRBENRZR ARK

500,000,000 7t F A {7 4 (B AR & B = B
BHRE - BEERE—NAN—FAF
& ARIAESETIER TAESERR
REIEL DK ©

wﬁ%—%—ri
AgBBARRZER © AR 400,000,000
Emkhmf SRIEIBEEHRHBRE
N TWAom%E%g—nA—iﬁ
A% RAEIA S THER TAEHMER
MRERIELE DR

ATBE8ITZBRR

BEFEAREIMBEIINGBEECEER
RNEE R F R MK BB A RH 8
BEREMA - MEEEELFESIE
Al - BEEERBEEL SR - ZFINE
TESEELEREFENSETS LR
FE10% - EE Rt D BB AT M EAR
#)50% & LE °
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36 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

N
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36 FFIEFItEER

2017 2016

—E—tF ZE—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARBT T

At 1 January n—HA—H 152,060 40,210

Profit for the year FERE 140,318 11,397

Acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries Y& B8 A FI5EIME2S (i) (134,044) =

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) e BT B A ) (FIEE37) 137,010 =

Deemed disposal of subsidiaries (Note 38(b)) 8 & L & b B 2 7] (M 3X 38(b)) (33,407) =

Contribution from non-controlling interests JEIEH MR E 24,674 278,509

Distribution to non-controlling interests ) SEHE ) 1 R 2k D (61,344) (196,800)
Exchange difference arising from translation of &GN EMEELEREH =58

foreign operations (19,145) 18,744

At 31 December 2017 R-ZEB—+F+-A=+—H 206,122 152,060
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37 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (ASSET

ACQUISITIONS)

(i)

HUBEI SUPPLY AND MARKETING XUDONG (i)
MINSHENG PLAZA PROPERTIES LIMITED

(“XUDONG”)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
acquired Xudong. The related assets and liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

37 WEHBAR (BEWE)

g (T#R=R1)

position on the dates of the acquisitions were as follow:

HAHERRRERSEXREBRD

BE_T—tH+-_A=1t—HL*F
B AEBWREHRR - HEMBIRAE
ERNWE AR EERAED T

RMB’000

AR® TR
Properties under development FEH EHE 1,256,012
Cash and cash equivalents ReE KA SEEY 19
Trade and other receivables JFE Ui B R R A R L 3R 43,213
Trade and other payables FE A~ BR R N B A JE AN 3K (17,649)
Subtotal /J\E-I_ 15281 5595
Non-controlling interest FEFEHI MR A (132,144)
Asset acquired BUEEEE 1,149,451
Cash consideration WEREB 1,082,200
Interest in associate BN T A 67,251
Total FEE 1,149,451
Cash consideration WEREB 1,082,200
Less: NG
Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary acquired BEUWEBARIIRE NESEEY (19)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents RUBTFEESRALEEYNRERE

on acquisitions

1,082,181

e
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

37 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (ASSET
ACQUISITIONS) (continued)

37 WEKEBAR (BEWRE) @

(i) OTHERS (i) Hfb
Apart from Xudong, the Group acquired a number of BRIGHRI REBWESE TESZTRAAY
property development companies, which, the directors REBTNBEAZHEPEHE - 746
consider not significant to the Group. The assets and AR RERNWE BN EEEE
liabilities recognised in the consolidated statement of FEaBEmT
financial position on the dates of the acquisitions were as
follows:
RMB’000
ARET R
Properties under development FE A EHE 846,244
Cash and cash equivalents ReERFSEEY 12,570
Trade and other receivables JFEE LT B 3k B Lt JRE LT3R 54,453
Trade and other payables JE A~ BR R N B A B AN R (16,990)
Subtotal /Net 896,277
Non-controlling interest FEPEHI MR A (4,866)
Assets acquired BUEEEE 891,411
Cash consideration RENRE 821,411
Consideration payable for acquisition FEfS U E 70,000
Total HEt 891,411
Cash consideration RENRE 821,411
Less: Cash and cash equivalents of B FTUEBN B ARIMBE S KRS EEY
subsidiary acquired (12,570)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents WENEERASEEYREEE
on acquisitions 808,841

N
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37 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (ASSET 37 WEMEBAR (BEWE) #)
ACQUISITIONS) (continued)

(iii) During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group (iii) BE_T—RET+-_A=+—HILFE"

acquired B E¥ (F#) BR2AF] (Al Green Properties
(Chengdu) Co., Ltd.), # B8 E (XKE) BEXER QA
(Zhongfuyiyang (Tianjin) Real Estate Co., Ltd.), &%k (X
) BHEAHMRAAF (Zhongfuleing (Tianjin) Real Estate Co.,
Ltd.), EBEZEEE AR A7 (Shanghai Kunhong Co., Ltd.)
and FEEEL (KFE) BFAMRAF (Zhongfuyie (Tianjin)
Real Estate Co., Ltd.) together with certain shareholder
loan from third parties with the consideration of
RMB1,668,150,000 in total (net of cash outflow on
acquisition was RMB1,666,494,000). The acquirees own
certain land use rights and a second-hand property. Since
the lands and property were vacant and management
plans to develop or redevelop them for sale in the future,
these transactions have been accounted for as acquisitions
of assets and liabilities instead of business combination.

REBE AR EBTEARE 1,668,150,000
T (B RBEZRERHEAARE
1,666,494,000 L) BEE=FHERLE
¥ (R#) BRAR - PREESRE (KF)
EXERAAT - PREER (R2) BEX
BRARF - LBRREEEBRAF KA
BEE% (K2E) BXERAFURET
BRRER BB IEES T L FER
BE—R_FWE - aRZETMEY
¥EAFEMRE BEREAEMENRE
FHREUERERHEE  ZERHEAR
FIVENREERBE - MIEXEBEH -

e
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE_-ZF

B HRRM L

38 DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(i

N

242

—tFFT A=+ —BLFE

38 HLEMBEAT

XUDONG (i) =
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group BE_Z—+t&F+-_A=+—8I#F
disposed of Xudong, which was retained as a joint venture B AXEBHERE  MEER SRR

after the transaction.

BRAaZEhx-

Net assets disposed with reconciliation of disposal gains HTEZFEEALENBRBESRAY
and cash inflow are as follows: BN -
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Net assets disposed of comprise: HEFEEQRE
Properties under development FE R EiHhE 1,267,491
Cash and cash equivalents ReE KA EEY 20,110
Deferred tax assets BRI IEE B 6,404
Other assets Hm&EE 106,464
Creditors and accruals FES R R BT A (60,230)
Other liabilities Hh & & (62)
Shareholder’s loan RERE R (749,248)
Group’s net assets disposed of AEBHEFEE 590,929
Recognition of interest in joint ventures HEREEDERES 198,766
Consideration from disposal to be received (a) BUE 2 HERIE (a) 461,895
Total FEE 660,661
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHRB AR ZFIS 69,732
Total consideration in cash B SRE 461,895
Less: Due from joint ventures (note 41) A RIAE E R EFIE (FFE41) (461,895)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents in the B TR EERNRES KRS EEY
entities disposed (20,110)
Net cash outflow arising from disposal: HEEAZFHRSME (20,110)
(@ The Group disposed of Xudong to a joint venture of @ ARERNAEE-—HAECELE

the Group and accordingly, the proceeds to be

received is recorded in amounts due from related

parties (note 41). The amounts was collected on 11

January 2018.

R - Bt - S RERE P IS SR IR

& 2 B Bk 77 SRR BR (B a2 41) ©
ZRBAER T \F—A+—H
Yem e
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38 DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38
(i) OTHERS

HEMBATR @)
(ii) Htb

Apart from Xudong, the Group disposal of a number of

property development companies, which the directors

consider not significant to the Group. The subsidiary

disposed of were all retained as joint ventures and

associates.

Net assets disposed with reconciliation of disposal gains

and cash inflow are as follows:

BRIFRIN AEEURBETESRRY
$%@T\J§Eﬁ2%ﬁ%§$%ﬁﬂ§° 2

EMBARTHRBRAEELERBER
7] o

ﬁ%Z/ﬁié{F‘EﬁiHﬂl%*u &iﬁﬁﬂmj\ﬁf
RO

Interest retained in

EE TR
Joint ventures Associates
EELE i /N
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETIT ARET T

Net assets disposed of comprise: HESEERK

Properties under development R E 1,087,499 1,909,720
Cash and cash equivalents Re KB EEY 79,476 90,796
Deferred tax assets EERIRE B 13,151 -
Amount due from shareholder JFE U % B8 FR I8 170,000
Other assets HihEE 12,748 23,245
Creditors and accruals R BRF R ERTE A (7,178) -
Borrowings EE (100,000) (959,440)
Shareholder’s loan RERERK (254,000) =
Other liabilities Hih g & (207,138) (418,281)
Group’s net assets disposed of AEBHEFEE 624,558 816,040
Fair value interest retained EBEAREBERER 323,074 335,627
Cash consideration from disposal HEMNRSRE 329,574 658,839
Total st 652,648 994,466
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBRARZHE 28,090 178,426

e
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38 DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

N

D44

(i) OTHERS (Continued)

38 HEWBAR &)
(i) Hfb (&)

Interest retained in

OB EER

Joint ventures Associates

Fo aE i AN

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREET T

Total consideration in cash BB RE 329,574 658,839
Less: Receivables W FEUGRIR = (1,032)
329,574 657,807

Less: Cash and cash equivalents in the B EHEERNRSRES

entities disposed £EY (79,476) (90,796)

Net cash inflow arising from disposal: HEELE ZFHRESRA 250,098 567,011

(iii) DEEMED DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group lost
control in Hangzhou Langzheng Investment Limited,
Zhongfuyile (Tianjin) Real Estate Co., Ltd. and Zhongfuleling
(Tianjin) Real Estate Co., Ltd. pursuant to capital injection
by a new investor and change of board of directors
composition respectively. The two companies became two 3]
joint ventures of the Group after the change in control.

(i) REHEHEQF

LIRSS

BELE -

BE-FT—tHF+-_A=T—BL#F
B AREAEMMNAEREERAT
MRS - RIF— B BREERTRE
Z(RR)BEXERDAIRFEER (K
REXERARMIEAREERKBE
 RME R RN I ERK AT
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38 DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38 HEMBAT (&)
(ii) DEEMED DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (iii) RELEHWBLT (&)
(Continued)
The deemed disposal had resulted in a net gain of
RMB9,371,000 and the net cash outflow of

BRIEH EBBFFB AR 9,371,000 7T
NFEIR €7 B AR #20,800,0007T © 9

RMB20,800,000 analysis as follows: T
RMB’000

ARBT T
Properties under development FEH EHE 426,689
Cash and cash equivalents ReE KA SEEY 20,800
Other assets HMmEE 141,290
Creditors and accruals FER R R E A (14,326)
Borrowings (BN (200,000)
Shareholder’s loan EN=EN (47,822)
Other liabilities Hih & & (144,291)
Amount due to non-controlling interests JE A SE 2 1) M A 2 SRR (83,328)
Group’s net assets disposed of rEBEHEEEFE 99,012
Non-controlling interests FEE A a5 IE (33,407)
Net assets BESE 65,605
Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries: BRIEHERBRARMNFIE
Fair value of interests retained in joint ventures REABEEDLEESHOALEE 74,976
Gain on deemed disposal RIELEFIE 9,371
Net cash outflow arising from disposal: HEEEXNRESRHFE - (20,800)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

38 DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38 HEHBAT (&)
(iv) Summary with details are as follows: (iv) BmE0T :
Net Cash
Gain from inflow from
disposal of disposal of
subsidiaries subsidiaries
o B
HH € Bt SR ATEE
ARFE R
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBET T

Disposal Xudong to Joint venture HERRTELERE 69,732 (20,110)

Disposal other subsidiaries to HEHEMMHBAR TSN 28,090
Joint ventures other than Xudong (R EHB M) 250,098
Disposal other subsidiaries to Associates & E [ B A 7] FEE L A 7 178,426 567,011
Deemed disposal BIELE 9,371 (20,800)
285,619 776,199
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38 DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38 HEKEBRAT &)

(v) DISPOSAL DURING THE YEAR ENDED vy B2-F—A"FT-ALFENE
DECEMBER 2016 EER
(a) Disposal of subsidiaries without retained equity (a) HEKEBLE (EREBEZ)
interests
Net assets disposed with reconciliation of disposal HEZFEERHENESRIESR
gains and cash inflow are as follows: ASBERIAT ¢
RMB’000
ARET T

Net assets disposed of comprise: HESEESE
Properties under development 2 E i E 434,167
Other receivables o e Wk 203,441
Cash and cash equivalents ReE KB EEY 11,959
Interest in an associate R R RIS 2,450
Other assets HitnEE 544
Borrowings ES (270,000)
Shareholder loans REER (389,764)
Other liabilities HtBE (2,050)
Group’s net liabilities disposed of AEBHEFAR (9,253)
Cash consideration from disposal HEMRERE 105,005
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — M B A R FiE 114,258
Total consideration in cash BwEeNRE 494,769
Less: Shareholder loans B BB (389,764)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents in the W THEERNRE KA EEEY

entities disposed (11,959)
Net cash inflow arising from disposal: HEEEZFHRETA ¢ 93,046
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_T—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

38 DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38 HEWBAR &)

(v) DISPOSAL DURING THE YEAR ENDED v) BE-E—XE+-BILLEEHH
DECEMBER 2016 (Continued) E5E (&)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries with loss of control (b)) HEREBEREELXEZHEBLFT
retained as joint ventures (K LZHRE)
Net assets disposed with reconciliation of disposal HEZFEERLENENIRER
gains and cash inflow are as follows: AEERIOT -
RMB’000
ARET T
Net assets disposed of comprise: HESEESE
Properties under development A2 R E A 1,031,045
Interest in a joint venture R—HEEELENER 238,672
Cash and cash equivalents ReERFEEY 5,101
Other assets HM&ERE 573
Property, plant and equipment TEIE - TRARFZE 43
Creditors and accruals R M ETE R (621,594)
Borrowings B (250,000)
Other liabilities HthBE (401)
Translation reserve ITE R 66
Group’s net assets disposed of REFEEEREE 403,505
Recognition of interest in joint ventures REBEMER 229,936
Cash consideration from disposal HENRERE 224,615
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RME AR ZAE 51,046
Total consideration in cash RIESRE 224,614
Less: Cash and cash equivalents in the /)Ek FIHEEENReRIBeEED
entities disposed (6,101)
Net cash inflow arising from disposal: HEEEZFHRESMA 219,513
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39 COMMITMENTS
(A) OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT

Group — As lessee

At the reporting date, the Group had outstanding
commitment for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

39 &g
(A) REHERH
FEE — EBEEA
RFE RS AEBRETIREBLE
ME 7 RERKSERENZFAENT

As at 31 December

R+=-H=+—~H
2017 2016
—g-tfE —TAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Within one year N 82,756 23,153
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFRF(BIEEEWF) 763,080 37,256
After five years hFE 1,549,378 =
2,395,214 60,409

Group — As lessor

The Group leases its investment property under operating
lease arrangements, with lease terms ranging from one to
twenty years, with an option to renew the lease terms at
the expiry date or at dates as mutually agreed between the
Group and the respective tenants. The terms of the leases
generally also require the tenants to pay security deposits
and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the
then prevailing market conditions.

AEE — ERHEA
AEERBEEHERHFHBEEREY
¥ HEENF-—E_tF AEERE
m AR ASEELEHPEMRGE 2B
HEM - o MEHRK—RREEP
SN FREBEE RREERRITHILE A
e -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

39 COMMITMENTS (Continued) 39 EE @)
(A) OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT (A) KEHEZH &)
(Continued)
Group — As lessor (Continued) AEE — EBHBEA (B)
At the reporting date, the Group has contracted with RBEBR AEBEBENUTEBPETY
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: CARKBEBENK :
As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—+t5F —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBT T
Within one year N 34,449 20,513
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFRE (BEEREMTE) 66,158 57,105
After five years hF® 18,723 14,992
119,330 92,610
(B) CAPITAL COMMITMENT (B) EAAEIE
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had the following RZE—+E+-_A=+—8  K&£E8
capital commitments: ZEREEWNT
As at 31 December
R+t=B=+—8
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Authorised but not contracted for R REERETAY
— Development expenditure — BRI 864,765 2,157,049
Contracted but not provided for: EEESHEE R3]
— Development expenditure — FEIH 1,534,328 1,909,406
— Purchase of freehold land — BEKAERE T 854,724 -
— Renovation expenditure — ®iETH 84,527 -

2,473,579 1,909,406
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40 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 40 REMBRE
Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash generated from BRETIST RIS ISR EMERAT ¢
operations is as follows:

(A) CASH FLOW INFORMATION (A) BEREER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-BHLEE

2017 2016
—E—tF —ERF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETTT

Profit before income tax B B 1515 B A B 1,127,411 832,467
Adjustments for: T

Interest income (note 10) Bz (FFE10) (10,120) (14,700)
Depreciation of property, plant and TEE « TRMRENITE

equipment (note 19) (MFE19) 11,258 12,417
Fair value gain on investment property KEMMENRRBERNS

(note 18) (HfzE18) (28,910) (41,750)
Interest expense (note 10) FEEA(MFE10) 249,045 194,085
Gains on disposals of subsidiaries (note 8) &t B A T FIE (FIEs) (285,619) (165,304)
Gains on disposals of a joint venture HE—MeLrENFIE (HFES)

(note 8) (608) -
Share of gains of associates FE(GEE & A B RIS (169,453) (45,088)
Share of gains of joint ventures JE1E & B ERF (21,881) (24,930)
Employee share based compensation & B R HEsREN (FI7EQ)

(note 9) - 10,245
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HETHE THRERENFIEF

equipment (note 8) (Mf7E8) 2 (56)
Provision for write-down of properties held #8351 85 & 4 2 8448 (P35 20)

for sale (note 20) 1,032 2,157
Provision for trade receivables JE W BR TR B 2,783 2,138
Operating profit before movements in B 8 B AN BRI AY A8 2 T

working capital 874,940 761,681
Increase in properties held for sale BESHE L (453,540) (223,254)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_T—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

40 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 40 KEMERET @

(Continued)

(A) CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) (A) BEeEREER (&)

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-HA=1+—HLEE

2017 2016
—g—tF T AE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

Decrease/(Increase) in properties
under development

Increase in inventories

(Increase)/Decrease in deposits for
purchase of land

Increase in trade receivables

Increase in other receivables, prepayments
and deposits

(Decrease)/Increase in advanced proceeds
received from customers

Increase in restricted cash

Increase in creditors and accruals

(Increase)/Decrease in employee
share trust

(Increase)/Decrease in amount due from
related parties

Increase in amount due to related parties

Net cash generated from operations

PR E AR, ()

1,430,029 (1,220,797)
EEAFIE 0N (28,559) (16,378)
BB Tmmze (G8Nn),wd
(170,125) 687,300
JE W BR K38 N (461,784) (140,425)
H b EWGK - TE SR RIZE N
(27,010) (905,381)
A% B YR B FE 1 AT 1S FE
CRA), /18N (873,739) 1,942,985
S PR 35 1 N (25,397) (47,409)
FERTBR R I FE ST B R L AN 1,394,236 1,567,575
BERMEEEM), R
(6,543) 1,846
JE U5 st 75 Sk IE (38 00), R
(1,223,788) 3,819
FE AT BB 73 SRIEE AN 1,019,400 =
KESHE SR 1,448,120 2,411,562
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40 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 40 REMBERE &)

(Continued)
(B) RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING (B) MEEZEFELEENYER
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRHFVAEEBARETESMEL ARG
arising form financing activities, including both cash and WEE(BERENIEFRESES) S -
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing BEREZSFELENABEARNEERE
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future EHREMERVEEMETEMBIRS
cash flow will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated MENRESRENAKBEETRE
statements of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.
Amount Amount
due to non- due to
controlling related
Borrowings interest parties Total
FEA
FEHEFI M PEA
(EE REHPRIE BB AINE e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®BTR AR®TR AR®BTR
As at 1 January 2017 RZZE—tF
—H—H 6,083,341 211,492 2,112,472 8,407,305
Cash flows ReEnsE 567,982 (92,837) 2,646,214 3,121,359
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBAR
(note 38) (FfF3E38) (1,259,440) (83,328) - (1,342,768)
Exchange differences BEGINETSFTE A
arising from translation of [ X Z%8
foreign operations 24,026 - - 24,026
Amortisation of senior BELESESEH
private note 13,506 - - 13,506
As at 31 December 2017 R=_ZT—+4F
+=—A=+—H 5,429,415 35,327 4,758,686 10,223,428
* The cash flows include financing cash inflow of RMB1,626,814,000 & BEREELERERERAARE
and operating cash inflow of RMB1,019,400,000. 1,626,814,000 7T X & £ B & K A AR

1,019,400,000 7T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

41 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND 4 BEBRAIERERS
TRANSACTIONS
In addition to those related party balances and transactions BZEGEUBERRIEREIN KEEHESR
elsewhere disclosed in these consolidated financial statements, THEE SR RS ¢

the Group had the following:
(A) AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES (A) FEUEREE S 78

As at 31 December

WR+=B=+—8
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

Non-current assets FRBEE

Amounts due from associates (i) JrE U Bt 2 /A B 51 A (i) 285,364 =

Amounts due from joint ventures (ii) JE U A 2 1 3 F0IE (i) 1,085,171 187,036
1,370,535 187,036

Current assets REBEE

Amounts due from associates (i) JFE Wi B - N B RIA (i) 768,465 650,919

Amounts due from joint ventures (i) JE UL A & 1 5 FRIE (i) 791,361 167,352
1,559,826 818,271

N
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41 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(A) AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES
(Continued)

M

(i)

As of 31 December 2017, non-current amounts due
from associates generates interest at 8% per annum.
Current amount due from associates includes
RMB204,104,000 generating interest at 14% and the
remaining is interest-free.

As of 31 December 2016, current amounts due from
associates generates interest ranging from 8% to
14%.

As of 31 December 2017, non-current amounts due
from joint ventures generates interest ranging from
5% to 12%. Current amounts due from joint ventures
includes RMB159,000,000 generating interest
ranging from 5% to 12% per annum and the
remaining is interest-free.

Included in current amount due from joint ventures is
RMB461,895,000 related to the disposal of a
subsidiary (note 38), which was subsequently
collected on 11 January 2018.

As of 31 December 2016, non-current amounts due
from joint ventures includes RMB146,304,000
generating interest at 8.5% and the remaining is
interest-free. Current amounts due from joint ventures
includes RMB100,000,000 generating interest at 8%
per annum and the remaining is interest-free.

All amounts due to related parties are unsecured.

The carrying amounts of amounts due from related parties

approximate their fair values.

41 BEEHRLERERS &)
(A) FEWRBEEE S E (&)

) RZEB—+rtF+=ZA=+—8H &
Wik N B FEM B S IR R R o
45 A R #204,104,000 T B —
FRNEE  RFNEB%TE - &
WHE QR RBRERFEARE
204,104,0007T + & 14%F| = Ft
B HHBHeS -

HE—_FT—XR"F+-_A=+—H"
FE UGB & A BR B F IR IE T T 8%
F14% FF) KT8 o

iy RZZT—tF+—H=1T—H &
& & EIERBRIBLZN F5%
Z12%FHFERGE - EEE D
B ZUE B 15 A K ¥ 159,000,000
T BENEE%E12%EHE - H
ERGEE o

FABKEERERBHEZAR
#& 461,895,000 7T £2 ) & — F ffJ |8
NaEl(M3E38) B - BRAKIEHE
BR=ZFE—N\FE—A+—RHkKHE -

BE-_ZT—R"F+=-A=+—8"
G EREFERBAEREAR
# 146,304,000 7T * $28.5% | K5t
B HHGE - EWAEELERE
FRIE B FE A R 100,000,000 7T
8% FF KRB BT EHAER

B o

o

P FE I BRESE 77 SRR /S R AR o

FEM B AR REEEE AR EE
BE °
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

41 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND 41 BEAERERRS &)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(B) AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

N

256

(B) EfEABSREA

As at 31 December

B+=-—H=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+t5F —ET—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBT T
Non-current liabilities FERBEME
Amounts due to associates (i) JEASTESE 2N B FNA () 1,761,220 707,182
Amounts due to joint ventures (ii) FERT & & 1B 3£ R0A (i) 763,474 210,100
Amounts due to a fellow subsidiary of the — FEfRTHARIZR A B — R R E
ultimate holding company (i) 2\ B) FRIA (i) 189,912 -
Amounts due to the ultimate holding FERT S AP AR A BIFIA (v)
company (iv) - 869,830
2,714,606 1,787,112
Current liabilities REBBE
Amounts due to associates (i) JESTEE 2 A | FRA (i) 298,200 220,000
Amounts due to joint ventures (i) FES A& & 1 ZEFRIA (i) 25,398 -
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries of the B 4 4Z2R% A 7[R Z i B A 7l
ultimate holding company (iii) FRIA (iii) 8,092 105,360
Amounts due to the ultimate holding FEST B ARIERR A B FE (V)
company (iv) 1,712,390 -
2,044,080 325,360
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41 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(B) AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES
(Continued)

U

(i)

(i)

(iv)

As of 31 December 2017, non-current amount due
to associates is interest-free. Current amounts due to
associates includes RMB293,700,000 bearing
interest at 8.5% per annum and the remaining is
interest-free.

As of 31 December 2016, non-current amounts due
to associates is interest-free. Current amounts due to
associates bears interest ranging from 5.5% to 6.2%
per annum.

As of 31 December 2017, non-current amounts due
to joint ventures includes RMB315,230,000 bearing
interest ranging from 6% to 7.5% per annum and the
remaining is interest-free. Current amounts due to
joint ventures is interest-free.

As of 31 December 2016, non-current amounts due
to joint ventures includes RMB160,000,000 bearing
interest at 7.5% per annum, and the remaining
balance is interest-free.

As of 31 December 2017, non-current amount due
to fellow subsidiaries of the ultimate holding company
bears interest at 5.5% per annum. Current amounts
due to fellow subsidiaries of the ultimate holding
company is interest-free.

As of 31 December 2016, non-current amount due
to fellow subsidiaries of the ultimate holding company
bears at 5.5% interest per annum.

As of 31 December 2017, current amounts due to

the ultimate holding company is interest-free.

As of 31 December 2016, non-current amounts due
to the ultimate holding company is interest free.

All amounts due to related parties are unsecured.

41 BEEHRLERERS &)
(B) FE(IRAEES=IE (&)

) #HE=FT—+F+=-A=+—8"
ENEE AR ERBRERES
JERBE AR RSB FEREARE
293,700,000 ¢ © &2 F F| &L 8.5% &t
B HHRS -

BE-_ZT—XR"F+=-HA=+—8"
EREERARERBRBERARE
FE(THE & A Rl BV RIEIR N T5.5%
E6.2% MFEFEFE o

iy #HEZZE—tF+=—HA=+—8"
EREEREERBREREAR
#£ 315,230,000 7T * & F F 6%
BE75% B EBRRE - BNE
ELETRBREARS -

BE_T-—RF+-_A=1+—8"
BNAEERIFRBFAREAR
# 160,000,000 JTT#Z 7.5% HY G F| &
FHE BRTHERRE -

(i) BHE-ZF—tF+-_HA=+—8"
N SRR A AR RWE AR
MBVRIBIRFFEE55%5T 2 &
NREIZERA R R RME AT RS
HERRE o

RE-F-~ET-A=+-8
LGP S3 ONSIE S PASEL
REVRE5.5% FRIE 8 -

vy BE_Z—+tF+=-A=+—8"
ENSEERATR RS REAR
S
BE-_T ~FTA=1+—8"

N REER D RIERBD AL R

B o
/Th

P FE I BRESE 77 SRR S SRR AR o i
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_T—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

41 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(C) TRADE RECEIVABLES

(C) EUWiR

41 BEAERERRS &)

As at

31 December
2017
R-ZE—tF
+t=ZA=+—H
RMB’000
AR%F T

Trade receivables due from joint ventures
Trade receivables due from associates

(D) BORROWINGS

A &R
& Wi 2 2 B RR K

(D) f&5K

158,065
65,586

223,651

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARBTF T
Amount due to the ultimate holding FER AR AR A R FA (FF 5 29)
company (Note 29) 1,665,000 1,662,177

N
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41 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(E) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(1) Funding with related parties

41 BEEHRLERERS &)

(E) BABAEXS

(1) HEBRLEXES

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-BR-tFT-AZt-HULEE

Funding to related parties

mERIRHRES
Operating Investing
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR  AR%TR

Collection of funding

KEES
Operating Investing

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  AR®TR

Associates NG| 570,022 285,364 2,801 468,849
Joint ventures BehE 656,567 38,955 - 809,404
1,226,589 324,319 2,801 1,278,253

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE-E-tE+-A=t-HLEE

Funding from related parties Repayment of founding
mE% L RRES HEES
Operating Financing Operating Financing
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARBT R ARBT R AR®TR
Associates B N E] 737,492 485,838 - 253,000
Joint ventures BehE 290,000 561,734 - 94,870
Fellow subsidiaries of the ultimate B ZARA AIH R Z KB

holding company /NG - 189,912 8,092 105,360
The ultimate holding company SeeSUl YN - 842,560 - -
1,027,492 2,080,044 8,092 453,230

e
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IN=NE D B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

41 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND MM BEEFIERERS @)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(E) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) (E) BEARSZ (&)
(2 Management services, other income an finance (2 EERE EMAzREEAKX
cost

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZERF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARBT T

Management service income from REBEARIREEREZ
associates and joint ventures B RIS W 421,983 187,845
Management service income from RERZEMMBARZ EERE
fellow subsidiaries Wz 612 74,045
Interest income received from associates A5 4 2~ 74 F 2 (i 3F 41 (a)()
(note 41 (a)(i) 52,454 75,841
Interest income received from joint AA & EUF B (B EE 41 (2)i)
ventures (note 41 (a)(ii)) 52,948 19,223
Interest expense on loans from the R E R AR ZERHE
ultimate holding company (iv) & A (v) 126,888 100,296
Interest expense on loans from fellow K B &KL F XMTEB AT 2
subsidiaries of the ultimate holding EHFIEE R (M 41 (o))
company (note 41 (b)(iii)) 58,098 830
Interest expense on loans from joint RERKRIEREELEZER
ventures (note 41 (b)(ii)) F2 8 A (M 5E 41 (o)) 29,789 15,817
Interest expense on loans from KEKE AT ZESNEER
associates (note 41(b)(i)) (B 41 (0)()) 11,388 13,058
()  During the year, the Group provided property () FA - AEBEREBEQER
development and management services to its BECERHBEAREERE
associates and joint ventures, and the prices of R7% - %5 R AR
these services are based on the prevailing ZIRITTHEREBEZE -

market prices of similar services.

N
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41 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(E) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(2) Management services, other income an finance

cost (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Pursuant to the Property Development and
Management Services Agreement entered into
between the Group and its ultimate holding
company, the Group has provided certain
project management, sales management to
fellow subsidiaries of its ultimate holding
company. These transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Group
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and
such transactions have complied with the
relevant disclosure requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

The prices of these services are based on the
prevailing market prices of similar services
provided by the Group to independent third
parties.

The ultimate holding company provided interest
bearing loans to the Group during the year. The
interest expense on loans is based on prevailing
market interest rate and is exempted from the
reporting and disclosure requirement pursuant
to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

41 BEAERRRS &)

(E) BB RS (&)
EERE - Rtz R &KX

@

(%)
(i)

(i)

J"—/\

1R 1R 7N 5 [ B i AR R
ﬂizﬁﬁﬁ%aﬁW$%
C AREE R RAER AR
u%W%AﬂhM%FEE
B HETERE - BRIE
FTHRAFUAE  ZEXR
SBRAEBZHERER
5 MZEXH5HEE8F LM
HMBFEAASFIE AR E

BT °

R B8
EAE B -

FR - BEREBRARRASE
BERHTEER - EXFIE
BRDKBTMS MR
H-WwRE EWHEBE
14A.90 {5 IEEA 538 <F 1 7 %
WERRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IN=NE D B

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_T—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

41 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND M BEAIESRERS @)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(F) INCLUDED IN EMPLOYEE BENEFIT (F) EERANEBERAEREREUTEIIZ
EXPENSES ARE KEY MANAGEMENT FTEEBEASHE:

PERSONNEL COMPENSATIONS WHICH
COMPRISES THE FOLLOWING CATEGORIES:

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1T—-HLHEE

2017 2016
—®-tF T AF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTR ARBET T

Short term employee benefits EEES R 42,641 29,776

Contributions to retirement RIRBF T B 5K
benefits schemes 1,267 820
Restricted share award PR I 1 R 15 22 B - 5,825
43,908 36,421

N

202

Landsea Green Group Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2017




42 GUARANTEE 42 ER

As at 31 December

B+=B=+—8
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBETTT

Guarantee in respect of mortgage facilities ETERZIZIBRE FTIREIER ()

for certain purchasers (i) 2,140,598 2,648,983
Guarantee to joint ventures in respect of TR TR & FE IR AR (i)
borrowings (ii) 230,316 141,558
2,370,914 2,790,541
()  The Group has in cooperation with certain financial 0] NEBEHEETSRBESE BEDME
institutions arranged mortgage loan facilities for its BRLTHIRBERMETHZEER Y
purchasers of properties and provided guarantees to ERETERHER BHEERBERER
secure obligations of such purchasers for repayments. EREER AR X EREER
Such guarantees will be released by banks upon the BEF(LUREEAE)BRHIRITHE -
issuance of the real estate ownership certificate to the KAREERE  MBEEREOZAR
purchasers or the satisfaction of mortgaged loan by the BEITTEK -

purchaser of properties, whichever is earlier. In the opinion
of directors of the Company, the fair value of the financial
guarantee contracts is not significant.

(i)  As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group provided a iy H=E=ZZTE—tFR_ZFT—X~"F+=A
guarantee to Fenway Ventures Point Properties LLC, a =r—H8 - ZK%@Z%@ETT%?&ZW Fenway
50% joint venture of LS-Boston Point LLC, for its bank Ventures Point Properties LLC (  fLS-
borrowings. Obligations under such guarantees shall be Boston Point LLC#E 5 50% 4 25 /) & &
discharged pursuant to the counter-indemnity provided by E)REER - ZERETHBRIERRG
Landsea Group Co., Ltd. SE RO AR R R H ERERE R o

e
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B HRRM L

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE_-ZF

—tFFT A=+ —BLFE

43 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

N

204

43 FEWE QT
W—E—tF+—-A=+—8 AXFZEH

December 2017 are as follows: BRRFFBWT
Proportion of Proportion of
ordinary ordinary
Proportion of shares shares
ordinary held by heldby  Principal
Place of shares the Group the Group  activities and
incorporation  Particulars of directly asat asat place of
and kind of issued share held by 31 December 31 December  operation
Name legal entity capital parent (%) 2017 (%) 2016 (%)
REER FEER
i “E-tf “E-X%
RIS 82" +ZA=t-B +ZA=t+-H
REERR EBRA BEEER BEEER IEXH
£ £l BRITRARE EERILA (%) E B (%) Hfl(%) REEHY
Cathay Holdings Limited (note 1) Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each 100 100 100 Investment holding
BREEARAR (M) i 2fk - BR1AT REER
China Information Industry Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each = 100 100 Investment holding
Limited (note 1)
PEESEXERAR(ME1) BB 2R BR1ET REER
Dawning Information Industry PRC HK$152,120,000 - 100 100 Property leasing and
(Shenzhen) Limited* building management
BRESEX(RI)BRAF  PE 162,120,000 7T FHEHERETER
GOI Limited (note 1) Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each 100 100 100 Investment holding
GOl Limited (Ff3 1) &R 21 BB REZKR
Green Future Holdings Limited ~ Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 100 100 100 Investment holding
(note 1)
REARERARAT (1) FE 1% 8R1AT REER
Green Homeland Limited (note 1)  Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100 100 100 Investment holding
REXERRAR (ME1) i 1 8R1AT REER
Green Theme Limited (note 1)~ Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100 100 100 Investment holding
Green Theme Limited (fifiE1) &% 1 5R1ET RERR
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43 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 43 TEMEAR @)

Proportion of Proportion of

ordinary ordinary
Proportion of shares shares
ordinary held by heldby  Principal
Place of shares the Group the Group  activities and
incorporation  Particulars of directly as at asat place of
and kind of issued share held by 31December 31 December operation
Name legal entity capital parent (%) 2017 (%) 2016 (%)
REER AEER
i b 2l 3 ZB-5~F
RIS 84" +ZA=t-B +=A=t+-H
REEER EERE BELER BEEER IEBEH
R LSl BRITRAFE EERLLA (%) E B (%) tfl(%) REEHY
New Phenomenon Technology BV 1 share of US$1 100 100 100 Investment holding
Limited (note 1)
New Phenomenon ARERREES 1R BR1ET REER
Technology Limited (FifE1)
Aqua Sky Limited (note 1) Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100 100 100 Investment holding
HBARAR (1) BE 1R 8RBT RERR
Easy Shine Global Limited (note 1) Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100 100 100 Investment holding
RIARIRARAA (M 1) BE 1R 8R1AT RERR
Green Era Limited (note 1) BVI US$50,000 100 100 100 Investment holding
RERRARAR(ME1) REABRES 50000%T REER
Power Sky Enterprise Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100 100 100 Investment holding
(note 1)
ARGEBRAR (A7) B 1% 8R1AT REER
Prosperous Eagle Limited (note 1) Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 each 100 100 100 Investment holding
ERBRAR (1) &k 1% 8R1AET REER
Nanjing Langming Real Estate ~ PRC RMB1,050,000,000 - 100 100 Investment holding
Group Limited™
ARAEESEARATY  TE ARH1,050,000,00070 REER
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_T—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

43 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 43 TEMEAT @)

N

266

Proportion of Proportion of
ordinary ordinary
Proportion of shares shares
ordinary held by heldby  Principal
Place of shares the Group the Group  activities and
incorporation  Particulars of directly as at asat place of
and kind of issued share held by 31December 31 December  operation
Name legal entity capital parent (%) 2017 (%) 2016 (%)
FRER ARER
i “E-t& ZB-5~F
KitE 8§28 t+ZA=t-B +=A=t+-H
REEER HERE BELER BEEER IEEH
£H LSl BRITRAFE ERRLLA (%) £ (%) Bhl(%) REEHE
Hangzhou Langhong PRC RMB100,000,000 = 100 100 Property development
Property Limited™
HNARESBRAR! T AR#100,000,00070 FHERE
Chengdu Langming PRC RMB8,000,000 - 100 100 Property development
Property Limited*
RBAHERERAR i AR 8,000,000 FHERE
Shanghai Langming Property PRC RMB50,000,000 - 100 100 Property development
development Limited™*
LEBEEHEREERAT PHE AR 50,000,0007C BHERE
Suzhou Langkun PRC RMB100,000,000 - 55 55 Property development
Property Limited*™
FMAMEEERAR" T AR100,000,00070 BHERE
Shanghai Langxin Properties PRC RMB50,000,000 - 100 100 Property development
Development Limited*
EMERHERERRAA B AR 50,000,000 7 FHERE
Wuxi Langhua Development PRC RMB50,000,000 - 100 100 Property development
Co., Ltd.*
ESNEERERAR i AR 50,000,0007C BHERE
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43 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 43 FEMBAT &)
Proportion of Proportion of
ordinary ordinary
Proportion of shares shares
ordinary held by heldby  Principal
Place of shares the Group the Group  activities and
incorporation  Particulars of directly as at asat place of
and kind of issued share held by 31December 31 December operation
Name legal entity capital parent (%) 2017 (%) 2016 (%)
REER AEER
i b 2l 3 ZB-AE
RIS 84" +ZA=t-B +=A=t+-H
REEER EREE BEEER BEEER IEBEH
R LSl BRITRAFE EERLLA (%) E B (%) tfl(%) REEHY
Nanjing Ganjia PRC RMB8,000,000 - 100 100 Property development
Investment Limited**
ERLEREARAR T AR8,000,0007 FHERE
Nanjing Landsea Shenlu Property  PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100 100 Property leasing
Management Limited* and building
management
HRBRRENEERERAR HE AB%5,000,00070 FHERERETER
Nanjing Landsea Investment PRC RMB200,000,000 = 100 100 Investment holding
Management Limited*
ARHIRREAERERAR)  PE AR 200,000,007 RERR
Shanghai Landsea Investment ~ PRC 1S$5,000,000 - 100 100 Investment holding
Management Limited*
FEMEREERERAG  hHE 5,000,000%7T REER
Shanghai Langmao Investment ~ PRC US$500,000 - 100 100 Investment holding
Management Limited™
LEPRRAERERAR  PHE 500,000% 7 REER
Nanjing Langqing PRC HK$1,371,480,000 = 100 100 Property development
Property Limited*
HRBREXARAR! T 1,371,480,000 7T FHERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE_-ZF

—tF+H=+—RALFE

43 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

268

43 TEMBEAT (&)

Proportion of Proportion of
ordinary ordinary
Proportion of shares shares
ordinary held by heldby  Principal
Place of shares the Group the Group  activities and
incorporation  Particulars of directly as at asat place of
and kind of issued share held by 31December 31 December  operation
Name legal entity capital parent (%) 2017 (%) 2016 (%)
i “E-t& ZB-5~F
KitE 8§28 t+ZA=t-B +=A=t+-H
REEER HERE BELER BEEER IEEH
£H LSl BRITRARE ERRLLA (%) £ (%) Bhl(%) REEHE
Nanjing Landsea Construction ~ PRC RMB50,000,000 = 100 100  Decoration and design
and Decoration Limited**
R RSB RAR m AR#50,000,0007C Eh R
Zhejiang Langyue Construction  PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 100 Decoration and design
and Decoration Limited*
MIAREERHERAR  PE AR 10,000,000 G
Ningbo Jinwo Business PRC RMB30,000,000.00 - 100 - Property development
Investment Co., Ltd.*
ERSABERERRAT o AR 30,000,000.00 7 BHERE
Wuxi Minglang Property Limited™  PRC RMB50,000,000 - 100 100 Property development
ESBNEEERAR i AR#50,000,0007C BHERE
Chongaing Langrui Equity PRC RMB2,000,000,000 - 100 100 Investment holding
Investment Fund Partnership
(Limited Partnership)*#
ERPEREREECAYLE T AR 2,000,000,00070 REER
(BRA%)*
Wuhan Langxi Equity Investment  PRC RMB1,999,800,000 - 100 100 Investment holding
Fund Partnership
(Limited Partnership)*#
RERRREREECAYLE T AR#1,999,800,00070 REER

(BRA%)!
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43 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 43 TEMEAT @)

Proportion of Proportion of

ordinary ordinary
Proportion of shares shares
ordinary held by heldby  Principal
Place of shares the Group the Group  activities and
incorporation  Particulars of directly as at asat place of
and kind of issued share held by 31December 31 December operation
Name legal entity capital parent (%) 2017 (%) 2016 (%)
REER AEER
i b 2l 3 ZB-AE
RIS 84" +ZA=t-B +=A=t+-H
REEER EREE BEEER BEEER IEBEH
R LSl BRITRAFE EERLLA (%) E B (%) tfl(%) REEHY
Shanghai Langging Investment ~ PRC RMB17,183,252.53 = 100 100 Investment holding
Management Limited*
LEREREERERAR AR 17,183,25253 7L RERKR
Nanjing Xinbeisheng PRC Subscription - 100 100 Investment holding
Investment Limited**
HREARREERERAR TE AE REER
Nanjing Bozhixin Investment PRC RMB17,880,000 - 100 100 Investment holding
Management Limited™
BREZEREERARAR T AR¥17,880,0007C RERR
Nanjing Xinhuisheng Investment ~ PRC RMB8,000,000 - 60 60  Investment holding
Management Limited*
AREREREERERAR PE AR 8,000,000 REER
Nanjing Xinzhousheng Investment PRC Subscription - 100 100 Investment holding
Management Limited**
EREMNEREERBRAR TE RE REER
Nanjing Xinmingsheng Investment PRC Subscription - 100 100 Investment holding
Management Limited™
AREREREERERAR TE R REER
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_T—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

43 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 43 FEMBRAT &)
Proportion of Proportion of
ordinary ordinary
Proportion of shares shares
ordinary held by heldby  Principal
Place of shares the Group the Group  activities and
incorporation  Particulars of directly as at asat place of
and kind of issued share held by 31December 31 December  operation
Name legal entity capital parent (%) 2017 (%) 2016 (%)
KEER KEBH
i “E-t& ZB-5~F
KitE 8§28 t+ZA=t-B +=A=t+-H
REEER HERE BELER BEEER IEEH
£H LSl BRITRARE ERRLLA (%) £ (%) Bhl(%) REEHE
Suzhou Langrui Investment PRC Subscription = 100 100 Investment holding
Management Limited*
FNAHRAERERAR o Ei RERR
Hangzhou Langhui Investment ~ PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100 100 Investment holding
Management Limited**
MMBREERERAG AE#5,000,0007 REER
Shanghai Langju Properties PRC Subscription - 100 100 Property development
Development Limited*
ERERHEREERAR & A BHERE
Beiing Landsea Investment PRC RMB50,000,000 - 100 100 Property development
Management Limited*
IRHFRAERERAR AR %50,000,0007C FHERE
Nanjing Landsea PRC RMB2,000,000 - 100 100 Property development
Landscape Limited**
BRESERRBARAR AR2,000,0007 BHERE
Wuhan Langming PRC Subscription - 100 100 Property leasing and
Investment Limited** building management
RERMEREARAR i A FhERERETER
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43 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 43 FEMBRAT &)
Proportion of Proportion of
ordinary ordinary
Proportion of shares shares
ordinary held by heldby  Principal
Place of shares the Group the Group  activities and
incorporation  Particulars of directly as at asat place of
and kind of issued share held by 31December 31 December operation
Name legal entity capital parent (%) 2017 (%) 2016 (%)
REER AEER
i b 2l 3 ZB-AE
RIS 84" +ZA=t-B +=A=t+-H
REEER EREE BEEER BEEER IEBEH
R LSl BRITRAFE EERLLA (%) E B (%) tfl(%) REEHY
Zhongfuyiyang (Tianjin) Real PRC RMB100,000,000 - 75 75 Property development
Estate Co., Ltd.*
PEER (RREXERAR THE AR%100,000,0007T FHERE
Shanghai Landsea Planningand  PRC RMB3,000,000 - 100 100 Decoration and design
architectural design Co., Ltd.*
FEMERARERHARAR PE AR3,000,0007 RHRRE
(BLBSLRERER:
BRAR)!
Wuhan Langheng Industrial PRC Subscription - 100 100 Property development
Co. Ltd."#
REMEERERAR M RE FHERR
Shanghai Langji Enterprise PRC Subscription - 100 100 Investment holding
Management Consulting
Co., Ltd.*
ERRERERZAGRAR PH i REER
Shanghai Langshan Industrial PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 100 Property development
Co., Ltd.*
LERPERERAR e AR%10,000,0007C FHERE
Hangzhou Langkang Investment  PRC Subscription - 100 100 Investment holding
Co., Ltd.*
HMEARRE AR AR i i REER
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43 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

N
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43 TEMEAT (&)

Proportion of Proportion of
ordinary ordinary
Proportion of shares shares
ordinary held by heldby  Principal
Place of shares the Group the Group  activities and
incorporation  Particulars of directly as at asat place of
and kind of issued share held by 31December 31 December  operation
Name legal entity capital parent (%) 2017 (%) 2016 (%)
FRER ARER
i “E-t& ZB-5~F
KitE 8§28 t+ZA=t-B +=A=t+-H
REEER HERE BELER BEEER IEEH
£H LSl BRITRAFE ERRLLA (%) £ (%) o) REEHS
Xian Jiapeng Real Estate PRC RMB20,000,000 - 70 - Property development
Development Co. LTD.*
BRREFHERZERAA HH AR#20,000,0007C FHERE
Xian Langshiming Real Estate PRC Subscription - 100 - Property development
Development Co. LTD.*
BRPFHENEREERAR PE RE FHER
Shanghai Langzhi PRC RMB8,000,000 - 100 100 Property development
Property Limited*
LEBBEXERAR i AR 8,000,007 BHERE
Hangzhou Langyu Investment ~ PRC RMB105,492,600.00 - 100 - Leasing
Management Co. LTD.*
RNAERAERERAR  PHE AR105,492,600.00 7T BE
Beijing Langshiyu Business PRC RMB12,270,000.00 - 100 - Leasing
Management Co. LTD.*
ERBREERERERAR PHE AR 12,270,000.00 75 BE
Langshiyu (Shenzhen) Business ~ PRC RMB2,180,000.00 - 100 - Leasing
Management Co. LTD.*
AABHRER (M) BRAG PHE AR¥2,180,000.00 70 e
Hangzhou Langrong Investment  PRC RMB44,530,000.00 - 100 100 Leasing
Co. LTD.*
HMARREBRAR" i AR 44,530,000.00 72 e
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43 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 43 TEMEAT @)

Proportion of Proportion of

ordinary ordinary
Proportion of shares shares
ordinary held by heldby  Principal
Place of shares the Group the Group  activities and
incorporation  Particulars of directly as at asat place of
and kind of issued share held by 31December 31 December  operation
Name legal entity capital parent (%) 2017 (%) 2016 (%)
AEER AEER
i “E-t ZB-5~F
RIBE 828 +ZA=t-H +=B=t-H
REEER EERE BRLER BEEER IEE¥H
£ £ BRITRAFE EERLLA (%) £ (%) LBlc) REEHE
Shanghai Langsong Industrial Co. PRC RMB120,000,000.00 - 100 100 Leasing
LTD.* (note 1)
FEBREFERAR (M) PE AR%120,000,000.007C g
Nanjin Langshiyu Business PRC RMB50,000,000.00 - 100 - Leasing
Management Co. LTD.*
BRERBEZERARAR T AB%50,000,000.007C BE
Chengdu Langming Real Estate  PRC RMB8,000,000.00 - 100 100 Property development
Co. LTD.* (note 1)
RERAEE X BRAR " (1) +E AR %8,000,000.007T FHERE
Chengdu Langsheng Enterprise ~ PRC Subscription = 100 - Investment holding
Management Consulting
Co. LTD.*
RAPRCRERZAARAR TE AE RAER
Landsea Holdings usS US$158,873,331 - 100 100 Investment holding
Corporation (note)
Landsea Holdings Corporation %8 158,873,331 T RAER
(FirE)
SF Vale LLC (note 2) usS 1US$9,000,000 - B 5 Investment holding
SF Vale LLC (MizF2) xH 9,000,000% 7T RERR

e
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43 TEMEAT (&)

Proportion of Proportion of
ordinary ordinary
Proportion of shares shares
ordinary held by heldby  Principal
Place of shares the Group the Group  activities and
incorporation  Particulars of directly as at asat place of
and kind of issued share held by 31December 31 December operation
Name legal entity capital parent (%) 2017 (%) 2016 (%)
FRER ARER
At “B-tf “E-RE
KL 878 +ZA=+-H +ZA=t-H
REEER EERE BELER BEEER IEEH
£ o)l BRITRAFE ERRLLA (%) E B (%) W) REEBY
LS- Jordan Ranch LLC Us US$19,900,870 = 100 100 Real estate development
and sales US
LS- Jordan Ranch LLC xH 19,900870% 7T FHERERHEE - XH
159 Aliso Ridge Loop LLC usS US$4,004,043 = 100 100 Sellreal estate held for
development US
159 Aliso Ridge Loop LLC XE 4,004,043%7C HERERERINE - X
LS-LA Simi LLC usS US$21,786,756 - 100 100  Real estate development
and sales US
LS-LA Simi LLC xH 21,786,756 57T FHERERHE - X8
LS-OC Portola LLC US US$102,849,956 - 100 100  Real estate development
and sales US
LS-OC Portola LLC %E 102,849,956 £ 7T FHERERHE - X
LS-Walnut Creek LLC us US$12,945,233 - 100 100  Real estate development
and sales US
LS-Walnut Creek LLC xH 12,945,283 %70 BHERERHE - X8
LS-NJ Port Imperial LLC UsS 1S$96,335,191 - 100 100 Real estate development
and sales —
New Jersey
LS-NJ Port Imperial LLC %H 96,335,191 %7 FHERERHE
il
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43 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 43 TEMEAT @)

Proportion of Proportion of

ordinary ordinary
Proportion of shares shares
ordinary held by heldby  Principal
Place of shares the Group the Group  activities and
incorporation  Particulars of directly as at asat place of
and kind of issued share held by 31December 31 December  operation
Name legal entity capital parent (%) 2017 (%) 2016 (%)
FRER ARER
i “E-tE ZB-5~F
RIS 82" +ZA=t-B +=A=t+-H
REEER EERE BRLER BELER IEZEH
R £ BRITRAFRE BB (%) £ (%) El(%) REEHIH
LS-Sunnyvale LLG Us US$133,269,944 = 71 71 Redl estate development
and sales — California
LS-Sunnyvale LLC XA 133,269,944 X0 FHRERRRHEE — A
Long City Ventures Limited BVI 1S$50,000 - 100 100 Property development
Long City Ventures Limited RBERRES  50000FT FHERE
Epic China Limited BVI 1S$50,000 100 100 100 Investment holding
Epic China Limited EBEMRHEE 50,000%T REER
Landsea Equity LLC Delaware US$51,900,000 = 100 100 Investment holding
Landsea Equity LLC aED 51,900,000% ¢ REER
Baoding Hongshan Landsea PRC RMB10,000,000 - 51 51 Investment holding
Investment Co., Ltd*
REMAVAFREGRAA  HHE AR%10,000,000 RERR
@ Limited liability company registered in the PRC # PAREFMZ AR AR
For identification purpose only * R
Note 1: Senior private notes are guaranteed by these shares of the companies (note fizE1: BEAEEFEZZIARRMER (i 29) -
29).
Note 2: The Group is the only managing member of the company. fE2: AEBEAZARKE—EEKE -
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44 ASSOCIATES 44 HENT

R-ZZE—tF+-_A=+t—H8 XEEBREQ

el

7

N
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Particulars of the Group’s associates as at 31 December 2017

are as follows:

AIMFEBIT

Place of Percentage of
establishment/ ownership
Name operations interests (%) Principal activities
R, wmER
=8 R it B EZEDE (%) EEHR
Hangzhou Wanye Property Co., Ltd.*# PRC 34  Property development
MINEHEXBR AT A 5 b EE 7 B
Suzhou Science and Technology Town Landsea  PRC 20  Property development
Property Co., Ltd.**
MBI BAREE AR A A H B EE A B
Nanjing Merchant Xingsheng Property PRC 30  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.*#
HARAEEEEEBRA Y FEiHERE
Nanjing Aojian Properties Co., Ltd*(a) PRC 12.97  Property development
MARREEEXEGRAFR) H B E R B
Nanjing Xueheng Properties Co., Ltd** PRC 49.9  Property development
HAREHEXERA A" Y EHbE R
Chengdu Chenshi Properties Co., Ltd** PRC 25  Property development
RERFEXBRA A" H B E R B
Hangzhou Langyou Properties PRC 49  Property development
Development Limited*#
INBABEHEMRZEER AR AR Y FEiERZE
Hangzhou Langning Investment Limited™* PRC 27  Investment holding
MINBAZ IR EBR AT A WE IR
Chengdu Taihang Ruihong Properties PRC 9.91 Property development
Development Limited*#(a)
BREARITIR A E HERZEFR A E ) A Y i EE A B
Chengdu Chengfeng Enterprise Management PRC 33  Investment holding
and Consultant Limited*#
AN IE ¥ EIEZRERA H KEER
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44 ASSOCIATES (Continued) 44 BENT) (8)

Place of Percentage of
establishment/ ownership
Name operations interests (%) Principal activities
B3/ BERE
=x ! R R EZED (%) FEEK
Allgreen Properties (Chengdu) Pte. Ltd.*# PRC 33  Property development
ERBX(KH)BRAF! HE 5 3 EE 2
Zhejiang Tianyuan Properties Development PRC 40  Property development
Company Limited**
AL R TEtEREFR A A A P i E B 2%
Haining Langhong Property PRC 80  Property development
Development Limited*#(b)
HERAZE MEREBR AR D) H P 3 2E i 2%
Suzhou Qiandao Industrial Co., LTD.*# PRC 19  Property development
BN EEEERAGE! A 5 HhEE A 2
Nanjing Xushenghui Enterprise Management PRC 40  Investment holding
Consulting Co., LTD.*
ERERECEEREANEGRAR H REER
Nanjing Yicheng Real Estate Development PRC 20  Property development
Co. LTD.**
EREXEERZEERAR H 5 3 EE A 2%
Jiangyin Lansheng Real Estate Development PRC 19  Property development
Co. LTD.**
IEARFEMEREAER AR A = HhEE R 2
Landsea Rongda (Beijing) Investment Management PRC 20  Investment holding
Co., Ltd.**
BAFRE (L) REEBEARAA! H REER
# Limited liability company registered in the PRC f RAPBEEM 2 BRAR
For identification purpose only * (2R
(@) The Group has one board seat in Nanjing Aojian Properties Co., Ltd. and @ K%@)}’éfﬁ?@@@%%ﬁﬁﬁQaﬂ&ﬁkﬁﬁjziﬁlﬁ“ﬁ%%i@
Chengdu Taihang Ruihong Properties Development Limited, respectively. EREBRARAFIRE —HERRRA -
(b) According to the co-operation agreement with a third party, the Group only (b) RBE—BE=TWEFHE - AREERZERE

= ) S Bl M4 o\ S RS
has significant influence in the entity, the Group account it as interest in REARE - HARRBHE DA

associate.
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45 JOINT VENTURES

N
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—tFFT A=+ —BLFE

45 SEIHE

Place of Percentage of
establishment/ ownership
Name operations interests (%) Principal activities
R meRE
8 R ih B EREIL (%) TEEK
Nanjing Langrun Property Development PRC 50.1  Property development
Company Limited*
ErEEEREER AR H 3 EE R 2
Suzhou Langhong Property Limited™* PRC 51.0 Property development
HNARERGRAE! H 3 EE R 2
Silver Knight Global Limited (HK) Hong Kong 38.46  Investment holding
Silver Knight Global Limited (HK) S KEER
Hangzhou Langping Property Co., Ltd.** PRC 50 Property development
MMEAFERERAF H 3 EE R 2
Suzhou Gaotiexincheng Landsea Properties PRC 51  Property development
Co., Ltd.**
BN EE AR AR H 3 EE R 2
Shenzhen Langxinhe Investment Company PRC 23 Investment holding
(Limited Partnership)**
RIBAEEREFR O (ARG A KEER
Wuhan Changan Investment Limited®* PRC 60 Investment holding
REAFRZREGRA A H KEER
LS-Boston Point LLC us 50  JV with Ping An —
invested in
Boston project
LS-Boston Point LLC E350 B2 & &
— & & Boston 8 B
Hubei Supply and Marketing Xudong Minsheng PRC 30 Property development
Plaza Properties Limited #*
ML EERRRERSEEFARA A H 3 EE R 2%
Zhongfuleling (Tianjin) Real Estate Co., Ltd.** PRC 35 Property development
RiggEe (RR) BEXBR AR H 3 EE R 2%
Zhongfuyile (Tianjin) Real Estate Co., Ltd.** PRC 35 Property development
HRigRRLE (RR) BEXEBR AR H 3 E R 2
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45 JOINT VENTURES (continued) 45 ¥ L¥ @

Place of Percentage of
establishment/ ownership
Name operations interests (%) Principal activities
ML, mERE
Z8 £ i B BEEIE (%) FEEK
Chengdu Shanggao Investment Co., Limited* PRC 50 Property development
EE R EREBR AR A Y B b= A B
Chongqing Xingde Real Estate Development PRC 25.5 Property development
Co., Ltd.**
EREEEMEREERAR" AR B b= R B
Chengdu Langhui Corporate Management and PRC 50 Investment holding
Consulting Co., Ltd.
REPEAIE D B R ABRA A AR Y B R
Chengdu Hanfei Properties Development Co., PRC 50 Property development
Ltd **
KENVEREHERZERR AR AR B b= R B
Hangzhou Langzheng Investment Limited *# PRC 50 Property development
INBAEREBR AR AR Y B b= R B
Jiaxin Langda | Investment Partnership (Limited PRC 30 Investment holding
Partnership) **
REPRE—RIREERLE(BRE®) A Y AR
Jiaxin Langda Il Investment Partnership (Limited PRC 30 Investment holding
Partnership) **
RHPAE_RISEARLE(BRER) A Y B R
Shanghai Zhongcheng Qiannian Investment PRC 50 Investment holding
Company (Limited Partnership)**
EBRHESRER L (BRER) A Y B R
Tianjin Langxin investment management PRC 51 Investment holding
Co., LTD.**
REPEREEEBERA A" A Y B R
Shanghai Zhujiu Enterprise Management PRC 50 Investment holding
Consulting Co., LTD.*#
FEEACEERAZAERAA A Y B AR
Yixing Meisheng Real Estate Co. LTD.*# PRC 51  Property development
HEAXREXEERAA AR B b= A B

e
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45 JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

45 & NL¥E )

Place of Percentage of
establishment/ ownership
Name operations interests (%) Principal activities
3L,/ BHE
=L £ ity 2 EEED (%) FEEK
Feidong Wanxin Cultural Industry Investment PRC 10 Investment holding
Co., LTD.*#
R XCEXREARA A REER
Hefei Wanxin Cultural Investment Co., LTD.*# PRC 25  Investment holding
BREGEFEAF X LIRERR AR B REER
Shanghai Landsea Shenlv Investment Enterprise ~ PRC 5.44  Investment holding
(limited partnership)**
FEFRERECE(BRER) B REER
Asia Pacific Business Link Limited Hong Kong 38.46  Property development
TAKEMEFRAA i 5 3 EE R 2
Shanghai Asia Pacific International real PRC 38.46  Property development
estate Co.,LTD.*#
FETABREHERRA B B 3 EE R 2
LS-NJ Port Imperial JV LLC USA 51  Property development
LS-NJ Port Imperial JV LLC EHE P EE A 3%
LS-LIA Manager LLC USA 50 Management services
LS-LIA Manager LLC =S EIR RS
LS-LIA Manager Il LLC USA 50 Management services
LS-LIA Manager Il LLC =S EIR RS
LS-LIA Manager Ill LLC USA 50 Management services
LS-LIA Manager Il LLC =S BB RS
LS-LIA Manager IV LLC USA 50 Management services
LS-LIA Manager IV LLC E350 EIR RS

w Limited liability company registered in the PRC

For identification purpose only

N
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46 SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ON SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-

CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The total non-controlling interests as at 31 December 2017 were
approximately RMB206,122,000, of which approximately
RMB231,637,000 were attributed as below for Suzhou Langkun

Property Limited.

SUMMARISED STATEMENTS OF BALANCE
SHEET

46 HEAFEZHIMEERME D A

BKERRE
R-E—+FE+ZA=+—B84aIE R
WA B AR 206,122,000 7t  H A &R BA 1
BXBR A EEMLHAREE231,637,0007T ¢
ZHEE DT °

EEREREE

As at 31 December

W+=HA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Current mED

Assets BE

Liabilities af
Total current net assets mENFEERE
Non-current IERED

Assets BE

Liabilities afE
Total non-current net assets IERBFEERE
Net assets BEFE
Accumulated non-controlling interest EFHIEEH R

2,350,624 2,718,592
(1,816,969) (2,293,163)
533,655 425,429
9,094 7,620
(28,000) (247,000)
(18,906) (239,380)
514,749 186,049
231,637 83,722
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46 SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 46 EZAJFEZEHIME~EZMNE QRN
ON SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON- BEREE @
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

SUMMARISED STATEMENTS OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

EHREREE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2017 2016
—2—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARBT T

Revenue
Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Total profit

Total comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling interest

Dividend paid to non-controlling interest

N

282

WA 1,254,315 785,240
B PT 1S B A A1 428,632 134,747
FisfiE A 99,932 33,762
N RS 328,700 100,985

IR IR RS RS 2 E W AR ER
147,915 45,443

B IEE SR RS - -
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46 SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ON SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-

CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

SUMMARISED CASH FLOWS

BERERE

46 EE KFEFMERME D TR
KERRE »)

Year ended 31 December

BEt+-HA=1+—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—t5F A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Net cash generated from/(used in) KBRS () E %5
operating activities 240,717 (196,144)
Net cash generated from/(used in) EEEME(R)EE %5
investing activities 25,190 (16)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BMEFREET(R) BREFRE
financing activities (313,045) 248,472
Net (decrease)/increase in cash ReRESEEMLNCRD), 18N
and cash equivalents R (47,138) 52,312
Cash and cash equivalents at year beginning F#38& MRE&HEW 168,610 116,298
Effect of currency translation on cash ReRBEeEEEERENTE
and cash equivalents - -
Cash and cash equivalents at year end FRESRESZED 121,472 168,610
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47 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 47 XAREEEBERRRABEED

N
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MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY

AAREERER

As at 31 December

R+=-—BA=+-—H

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ETR ARETIT

Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR ZIRE 399,089 78,126
Investments in joint ventures REELEZIRE 129,701 123,755
528,790 201,881

Current assets REEE
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits  E fth JEUZX -~ T R RIS 415 2,350
Amounts due from subsidiaries R ENGIE ¢ 4,405,246 4,120,585
Restricted cash SRHIEIRE - 1,325
Cash and cash equivalents e RIHESEEY 8,823 13,148
4,414,484 4,137,408
Total assets BERE 4,943,274 4,339,289
Current liabilities REBEE

Creditors and accruals FENERRIETER 17,559 3,355
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETHT B A T 318 2,799,566 1,985,429
Borrowings N 1,002,958 292,156
3,820,083 2,280,940

Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings EEN 213,990 685,747
Total liabilities HwWEE 4,034,073 2,966,687
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47 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

47 AAFEEEBXRRREED »)

BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (Continued) KABEEERER (£)
As at 31 December
Rt+=-—A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET R AREFIT
Equity =

Share capital A& X 31,800 31,800
Convertible perpetual securities (Note (a)) ARG K A S (Ki5E (a)) 495,425 484,204
Reserves (Note (a)) &t (fsE(a)) 381,976 856,598
Total equity R 909,201 1,372,602
Total liabilities and equity mEEREs 4,943,274 4,339,289
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47 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 47

N

286

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
Note (a) Convertible perpetual securities and reserves movement

RRREERERKAESE @)

AAREERER (&)
B AT (a) N2 A AIHRBOK A B 75 R A = E

of the Company
Convertible
perpetual
securities Reserves Total
GIE:Y
KA H i HEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®TT AREBTT
(@)
At 1 January 2016 R=-B—XRFE—H—H 110,054 640,212 750,266
Exchange difference arising from BMEGINEBFIEAER =5
translation of foreign operation — 153,219 153,219
Loss for the year FEREE = (157,272) (157,272)
Total comprehensive loss FEXHEEHAE
for the year - (4,053) (4,053)
Issuance of shares BTN - 360,943 360,943
Shares held for restricted share ARSI D S BT B i A
award scheme el %) = 1,846 1,846
Employee share based compensation  {& & % 25 Bl - 10,245 10,245
Issuance of convertible perpetual BITR R IROK A B 5 (HI3E34)
securities (note 34) 363,847 - 363,847
Accrued distribution to holders of AR K A B 515 B A BT
convertible perpetual securities K 18,661 (18,661) -
Share premium reduction BIRAR D 5 (B - - -
Distributions to holders of convertible AR A B EZEE A DR
perpetual securities (8,358) - (8,358)
Dividend g = (133,934) (133,934)
Subtotal of transaction AR AT 5 /N5t
with shareholders 374,150 220,439 594,589
At 31 December 2016 R-E—XxE+=-A=+—H 484,204 856,598 1,340,802
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47 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
Note (a) Convertible perpetual securities and reserves movement

of the Company (Continued)

AAREERER (&)
B AE (@) N A R A RBOK A B S R R 2 2 ()

47 XRREERERKRAFESE @)

Convertible
perpetual
securities Reserve Total
CIE::)s
KAEE e st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR®TRT AR%¥®TrR
(b)
At 1 January 2017 R=-ZB—tF—H—H 484,204 856,598 1,340,802
Exchange difference arising from HMEGINEISFIEEIE R =5
translation of foreign operation - (76,929) (76,929)
Loss for the year FEEIE - (232,789) (232,789)
Total comprehensive loss FEZEEBRAESE
for the year - (309,718) (309,718)
Shares held for restricted share AR IR D B ET B R A 2
award scheme 80 - (6,543) (6,543)
Accrued distribution to holders of AR K A BH B AR DK
convertible perpetual securities 19,679 (19,679) -
Share premium reduction AR AR (5= (B - - -
Distributions to holders of convertible A K A B EF A A DR
perpetual securities (8,458) - (8,458)
Dividend f% 2 - (138,682) (138,682)
Subtotal of transaction BARF R 2 S/ Nat
with shareholders 11,221 (164,904) (153,683)
At 31 December 2017 NR-—ZEBE—+tH&E+=-B=+—8H 495,425 381,976 877,401
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47 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 47 XAREEEERRFEEEZSE @)
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (Continued) AATEEEER (&)
Share based Capital

Share  Translation compensation ~ Employee  redemption  Contributed  Accumulated
premium 1eserve reserve  share trust reserve surplus losses Total
RiEgw R  A4EM
KRB FERE i f&it FE  EERR  ZitEE a5t
RMB'000  RMB000  RMBOO0  RWMBOO0O  RMB'OO0O  RMB0O0  RMB000  RMB'00O
ARETTE  ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR

At1 January 2016 R=E-~E-F-H 751,108 (34,90) 9,55 (30,789) 23,185 - (717,978 640,212
Exchange diference arising from RERNERREEEZE

translation of foreign operation - 163,219 - - - - - 153,219
Loss for the year EEER - - - - - - (167219 (157,272
Total comprehensive loss FEREFEAR

for the year - 153,219 - - - - (157,272) (4,089)
Issuanoe of shares 7kt 360,043 - - - - - - 360943
Shares held for restricted share ARGIERDRE M

award scheme BEZRG - - - 1,846 - - - 1,846
Employee share based compensation EERERH - - 10,245 - - - - 10,245
Accrued distrioution to holders of R AR AT

convertible perpetual securities Pk - - - - - - (18,661) (18,661)
Share premium reduction AR EE (400,000) - - - - 248645 161,355 -
Dividend Re - = = = -3 - (13393
Subtotal of transaction SRR G

with shareholders (39,067) 153,219 10,245 1,846 - 114,71 (24,578) 216,386
At 31 December 2016 R-E-~E+-A=t-AH 712,051 118,314 19,800 (28,907) 23,185 114,711 (102,556) 856,598
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47 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 47 KRB EEEBERRREEESH &)
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (Continued) KATEEGE/E (&)

Share based Capital
Share  Translation compensation ~ Employee redemption Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve reserve  share trust reserve surplus losses Total
REgH  EERS  EARE
RiEE  FERE it R fie  HABR  EHER LR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR  AR¥TR ARETR ARETr ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

At 1 January 2017 R-E-t£-F-A 712,051 118,314 19,800 (28,907) 23,185 114,711 (102,556) 856,598
Exchange difference arising from HEBNERIELELZE

translation of foreign operation - (76,929) - - - - - (76,929)
Loss for the year EEER - - - - - - (232,789)  (282,789)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ £E2EFRAE - (76,929) - - - - (232,789)  (309,718)
Issuance of shares Bk - - - - - - - -
Shares held for restricted share BRI R SRR A

award scheme BELRG - - - (6,543) - - - (6,543)
Accrued distribution to holders of ARKAEFSE AT 2R

convertible perpetual securities - - - - - - (19,679) (19,679)
Share premium reduction BRI EE (500,000) - - - - 500,000 - -
Dividend Ra - - - - - (138,682) - (138,682)
Subtotal of transaction with shareholders — ERES 5/ \zt (500,000) - - (6,543) - 361,318 (19679)  (164,904)
At31 December 2017 W-E-+E+-A=1-F 212,051 41,385 19800 (5450 23185 476020  (355024) 381,076
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NN e

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_T—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

48 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(i) On 7 February 2018, Shanghai Langging and Nanjing
Langming, wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
entered into the Transfer Agreement with CITIC Capital and
Pingan Heding, pursuant to which (i) CITIC Capital
conditionally agreed to sell and Shanghai Langqging
conditionally agreed to purchase the entire Property Share
of General Partner of the Partnership at the consideration
of RMB10,000; and (ii) Pingan Heding conditionally agreed
to sell and Nanjing Langming conditionally agreed to
purchase the entire Property Share of Limited Partner of
the Partnership at the consideration of RMB221,000,000.

(i) On 28 February 2018, Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd.
changed its name to Landsea Green Group Co., Ltd..
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
BT 1 =

Year ended 31st December

BE+=-A=1t—HLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—B—t§ TN —T-h¥ —T-MF _—T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETIT ARETT ARETT ARETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&gE51) (&E51)
Results E3
Revenue* N 6,213,931 4,845,008 1,792,791 703,826 33,042
Profit before income tax* BT SR AR 1,127,411 832,467 663,990 419,517 35,735
Income tax expense* FrisBims - (406,570)  (225,631)  (184,261)  (119,367) (7,206)
Profit for the year EE A 720,841 606,836 479,729 300,150 28,519
Attributable to: SR
Owners of the Company KARIFIEE 580,523 595,439 485,079 301,590 28,519
Non-controlling interest FEIE B A RS 140,318 11,397 (5,350) (1,440) =
720,841 606,836 479,729 300,150 28,519
* Including continuing and discontinued operations * BIERERIERERE
At 31st December
R+=A=+-H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Bt ZE—RE ZE-hHF ZTWNE ZT—=%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&g=51) (&gE51)
Assets and liabilities BEREE
Total assets BEE 20,320,501 18,007,126 14,140,916 8,989,167 2,880,335
Total liabilities BaE (16,622,438) (14,954,410) (12,182,757) (7,607,922) (1,838,144)
3,698,063 3,052,716 1,958,159 1,381,245 1,042,191
Attributable to: AR T
Owners of the Company NARIFIEE 3,491,941 2,900,656 1,917,949 1,335,685 1,032,191
Non-controlling interest JEFE R R RS 206,122 152,060 40,210 45 560 10,000
3,698,063 3,052,716 1,958,159 1,381,245 1,042,191
291
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PARTICUI_ARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTY

AY V2 \\/
X/\

INVESTMENT PROPERTY HELD FOR RENTAL BEHEZREMYR

PURPOSE
Approximately
gross floor area Attributable
RAOBEEE Nature of interest of

Location (square meters) property the Group Lease term
3t B (EFK) MIEME FEEELER BOFH
Landsea Tower, Shahe Road West, 23,736 Commercial 100% Medium-term lease
Shenzhen High-Tech Park,
Nanshan District,
Shenzhen City,
The People’s Republic of China
hEE AR AME 23,736 GES 100% H AR A
]
E={11])
IR B i [ [ )] PR R
BARFRE

N

282

Landsea Green Group Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2017




L ANDSE A BRI

- 5 @ ® 8 £ F -

é% This report is printed on environmentally friendly paper
RIREARRGEN R



	Cover
	Inside Front Cover
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Major Events and Accolades of Landsea Green Group in 2017
	Chairman’s Statement
	Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Corporate Governance Report
	Directors’ Report
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Balance Sheet
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Financial Summary
	Particulars of Investment Property
	Back Cover



